Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Gary Marson Tel; 0208 547 5021
gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 24 June 2015

Policy and Finance Committee
Date:

Thursday 2 July 2015

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames KT1 1EU
Members of the Committee
Councillor Eric Humphrey(Chair)
Councillor Gaj Wallooppillai (Vice Chair)

Councillor Rowena Bass
Councillor David Cunningham
Councillor Kevin Davis
Councillor Andrew Day
Councillor Phil Doyle
Councillor Richard Hudson

Councillor John Ayles
Councillor Tom Davies
Councillor Liz Green
Councillor Rachel Reid

Councillor Linsey Cottington

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

2

AGENDA

1.

Apologies for Absence and Attendance of Alternate Members

2.

Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other nonpecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this agenda.
3.

Minutes

To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14th April 2015.
4.

Our Kingston Programme

Appendix A

To launch the Council’s Our Kingston Programme including the Outcome Based
Budgeting project to deliver the vision and policy programme set out in Destination
Kingston while meeting our savings targets.
5.

Medium Term Service and Financial Plan - Destination Kingston
2014/15 - 2017/18 - 2014/15 Revenue Outturn

Appendix B

To report the revenue outturn position for 2014/15 and note the way in which this will
impact on the delivery of the Medium Term Service and Financial Plan for 2015/16 to
2018/19.
6.

Revenue Support Grant

Appendix C

To update the Committee on the work being undertaken to achieve greater financial
independence for Kingston and to ensure that the economic rewards of growth within the
borough are retained for local benefit.
7.

Corporate Grants Programme – Moving to a Commissioning
Approach

Appendix D

To propose changes to the management of the Council’s Corporate Grants Programme
and move from an application process towards a commissioning approach, while retaining
some level of small grants.

8.

Grants to Voluntary Organisations: Emerging Needs and New
Initiatives Grants 2015/16 and Community Investment Fund
Update

Appendix E

To set out proposals for the allocation of grant support to voluntary organisations under
the Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grant strand for 2015/16 and to regularise a
previous year’s grant award from the Community Investment Fund

3
9.

Annual Equalities Update

Appendix F

To receive the annual summary of progress in the implementation of equalities in service
provision and employment.

10.

London Living Wage

Appendix G

To provide information to the Committee to enable it to consider implementation of the
London Living Wage
11.

Shared Internal Audit Service

Appendix H

To seek approval to extend the current shared Internal Audit service with the London
Borough of Richmond, to include the London Borough of Merton based on the proposal
set out in the Business case at Annex A.

12.

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 Public Spaces
Protection Order and Fixed Penalty Notice Arrangements

Appendix I

To report the outcome of the Public Spaces Protection Order (dog fouling) consultation
and recommend the order is made, and to agree a consistent fixed penalty level, and
reduced penalty for early payment, for all Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) issued under
provisions of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 in those cases where
the offender is given the opportunity of avoiding liability to prosecution by paying a fixed
penalty under a FPN.
13.

Kingston Town Centre Management Board Appointment

Appendix J

To consider the appointment of a representative to sit on the Kingston Town Centre
Management Board.
14.

Appointments to Internal Working Groups

Appendix K

To consider appointments to internal Member Working Groups for the 2015/16 Municipal
Year.
15.

Standing Order 32 - Urgent Action

Appendix L

To report the details of the urgent action taken in accordance with Standing Order 32 in
respect of temporary classroom facilities at the Kingston Academy site.
16.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.
17.

Exclusion of Press and Public

4
The following resolution is included if any exempt matter is to be considered at the
meeting for which the Committee wish to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph
*….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

5

Welcome to this meeting.
The following information explains the way some things are done at the meeting and some of the
procedures.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council.
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

6

More meeting information
Accessibility
•
•
•

•

All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be audio recorded and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough. The call in period is 5 days after the
minutes have been published (the deadline for the call in of any of these decisions will be set out
in the Minutes). Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to
be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a full meeting of the Council The Council at
this meeting cannot change the original decision, it may decide that no further action is necessary,
in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the Committee with
its views and a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

Policy and Finance Committee

A1

Appendix A

2 July 2015
Our Kingston Programme
Report by Executive Head of Organisational Development and Strategic Business
Purpose
To launch the Council’s Our Kingston Programme including the Outcome Based
Budgeting project to deliver the vision and policy programme set out in Destination
Kingston while meeting our savings targets.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Policy
To 
RESOLVE 
that 
1.

The Our Kingston Programme be approved and launched as the means by which the
Council will deliver the vision set out in Destination Kingston

2.

A cycle of quarterly reports to the Policy and Finance Committee on progress with
the Programme commence from September 2015.

3.

Outcome Based Budgeting be progressed to set the Medium Term Financial Plan for
201620.

Key Points
A.

The Council is launching the Our Kingston Programme to deliver the vision set out
in Destination Kingston.

B.

The operating model the Council is moving towards places the citizen at the centre
of everything we do.

C.

The Outcome Based Budgeting project is being launched within the Our Kingston
Programme to align budget setting to community outcomes rather than service
departments.

D.

The Council will work with local people and partners in all that it does, holding
democratic accountability and sovereignty for Kingston. This will mean a new way
of providing the services local people need.
The Vision for the Our Kingston Programme

1.

In our medium term plan for 201519 ‘Destination Kingston: the mind of a city, the
heart of a town’ we set out our overarching vision for the future of the borough.

2.

Kingston has a proud history as a destination of choice with a set of fundamental
strengths that have combined to make us a place that people want to be: our
history, heritage, arts and culture; the river and green spaces; Kingston town
centre; retail; residential and excellent education.

3.

Our borough has expanded considerably over the past twenty years and the
indications are that our population is to continue to grow even faster in the next
decade. This is not something we can ignore. As part of London we need to face
up to the fact that the capital is growing and that we need to take our share of this.
A growing population brings challenges but it brings opportunities too.

4.

A2
Our challenge is to find new and innovative ways of delivering the needs of our
borough and to do this within the resources available. Destination Kingston sets
out the detail of our Policy Programme and the resources we have at our disposal.
Over the four years from April 2015 to March 2019, we need to save £37 million,
equivalent to 28% of our 2014/15 net budget of £131 million.

5.

To meet this challenge our vision is one that embraces growth and the intention to
work closer with local people as the drivers for positive change across our borough.
There is nothing inevitable about the future  we cannot leave the consequences of
a growing population to chance, or to developer’s to determine.

6.

In his foreword to destination Kingston, the Leader has explained that:
“We now need a new programme that completes the transformation of our
Council and that works to an agenda where services are publicly organised
but not always publicly delivered.”

7.

Local Authorities face a stark choice when thinking about the future. They can
respond to the financial change by managing through decline, reducing not only
services but also the influence they have, or they can take the opportunity to define
relationships with local people and partners.

8.

The 
Our Kingston
programme is designed to deliver our vision. It is called 

Our
Kingston
because this defines the way of working with partners and communities
that is at the core of what we do.

Future Operating Model
9.

In the future Kingston Council will bear little resemblance to the model that we
recognise today. Our vision of the future is not a continuation of the past. The
citizen is at the centre of what we do. For too long the Council has operated within a
central government imposed financial straight jacket. Renewing democracy and the
relationship between citizens and local services will be built upon local engagement
with local people working together.

10.

We choose not to follow a reductionist agenda. We must break the mould with new
and innovative ways to do things and to deliver services with our communities. It is
about engagement and renewal.

11.

As part of the launch of the Our Kingston Programme we are adopting an Operating
Model for the future, into which our future service designs and commissioning
decisions will fit. Our focus on outcomes for our communities is a core component
of our model, and information about community outcomes follows in this report.

12.

The Council will work with local people and partners in all that it does, holding
democratic accountability and sovereignty for Kingston. This will mean a new way
of providing the services local people need.

A3

Our Kingston outcomes
13.

As part of the launch of the Our Kingston Programme we have therefore developed
a set of cross cutting 
Our Kingston outcomes
to enable us to work together with
our communities and partners to ensure that the Kingston of the future is a place we
continue to be rightly proud of.

14.

By designing the Our Kingston Programme around these outcomes we know that
we can maximise the collective assets and resources available not just within the
Council but across the borough.

15.

The outcomes are important as they will form the basis of a conversation that
redefines the expectations that are currently projected on to the Council as the
delivery body for so many services. Instead, we will fulfil our role as a genuine
community leader at the centre of a network of collaboration that is facilitating and
enabling better outcomes for our borough.

A4

A5

Outcome Based Budgeting
16.
The first significant project to be launched with the launch of the Our Kingston
Programme is Outcome Based Budgeting.
17.

This project will replace the previous arrangements for preparing to set the
Council’s annual budget and Medium Term Service and Financial Plan with an
approach to resource planning organised around the Outcomes set out above. The
project will create our new approach to budget setting, enabling the Council to be
presented with budget proposals organised by outcome rather than service
departments.

18.

Outcomes based budgeting will deliver the level of savings required through
enabling smarter prioritisation of resources and reducing duplication. The new way
of budgeting will eliminate traditional departmental silos, enable cross cutting
objectives to be achieved and highlight interdependencies between outcomes.

19.

Work will commence in July with project progress being reported as part of the Our
Kingston updates to this Committee The results of the project work will be
incorporated into the formal budget proposals which will be published in the usual
way in January 2016 for consideration by all Strategic Committees in January /
February 2016 and the final decisions on the budget and Council Tax for 2016/17
being taken at Budget Council on 1 March 2016.

Timescale
20.

Critical Path over 4 years taking the Programme through to the end of the period of
the next Medium Term Service and Financial Plan (2016 20).

21.

Policy and Finance Committee will receive Quarterly reports on progress.

22.

A6
Next report to committee in September 2015 will include details of the projects
initiated.

Reporting arrangements and structure
23.

Reporting and monitoring arrangements and the requirements for project assurance
will be based on best practice along with our experience of successfully delivering
complex corporate transformational programmes.

24.

It is proposed in this report to establish a quarterly reporting cycle to Policy and
Finance Committee, providing reports on progress and to initiate key decisions.

25.

It is anticipated that the first report will be made to committee in September 2015.

26.

The quarterly report will detail how the initiation of programmes and projects within
the Our Kingston Programme is progressing, the Community Outcomes they
address, and the interdependencies, linkages and financial implications. Each
report will also include an overarching plan for this transformational portfolio will be
developed showing estimated relative timescales for constituent projects and
programmes.

Resource Implications
27.

The Council will commit significant resources from within budgets to the work of the
Our Kingston Programme and the Outcome Based Budgeting Project. The Strategic
Investment Reserve has been established to provide additional resources to fund
key investment in the Programme as required,

Legal Implications
’
28.
There are no direct legal implications in the establishment of the Our Kingston
Programme.
29.

Individual legal implications that may arise in the work of projects will be considered
as reports on those decisions with legal implications come forward to committee.

Risk Assessment
30.

Following launch of the Our Kingston Programme risk assessments will commence
and risk registers used.

Equalities Impact Assessment
31.

All programmes and projects in the Our Kingston Programme will ensure that due
regard is had to the public sector equality duty towards eliminating unlawful
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, advance equality of opportunity between
people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it and
foster good relations between people.

32.

As the projects are identified and work begins appropriate equality analysis will be
undertaken to support these work stream
. We also recognise the need to review
and refresh our EQIA findings throughout the life of the programme to succeed in
delivering our Community Outcomes

A7

Environmental Implications
33.

There are no environmental implications resulting from the Our Kingston
Programme launch, however each constituent project and programme will report on
all and any implications
.

Background papers 

None

Author of report  
Kevin Mitchell, 0208 547 5982, kevin.mitchell@kingston.gov.uk
.

B1

Appendix B

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
Medium Term Service and Financial Plan – Destination Kingston 2014/15 – 2017/18 –
2014/15 Revenue Outturn
Report by Director of Finance
Purpose
To report the revenue outturn position for 2014/15 and note the way in which this will
impact on the delivery of the Medium Term Service and Financial Plan for 2015/16 to
2018/19.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Treasurer, Finance and HR
To RESOLVE that:
1.

the action taken to achieve the revenue net under spend for the General Fund for
2014/15 and its application to increase the General Fund Balance as set out below,
be noted.

2.

for 2014/15, Neighbourhood Committees net under spends be carried forward for
use by those Committees in 2015/16.

3.

The On Street Parking Account (Annex 1); the Bus Lane Enforcement Account
(Annex 2) and the Moving Traffic Contraventions Account (Annex 3) be approved
for submission to the Mayor of London and the Secretary of State respectively.

4.

the 2014/15 outturn positions on the Housing Revenue Account and Schools
budget be noted.

Key Points
A.

The General Fund Revenue budget was £0.066m under spent in 2014/15,
increasing the General Fund Balance to £8.018m.

B.

The General Fund Balance now represents 6.5% of the 2015/16 net budget
requirement – an improvement of 0.1% against this performance indicator.

C.

The under spend position has been reached by bringing forward by 8 months the
policy approved by Council in March 2015 of drawing down £2m from the statutory
parking and traffic enforcement reserves to fund qualifying expenditure. This has
resulted in an additional contribution of £1.333m in 2014/15.

D.

The outturn position assumes the carry forward to 2015/16 of £0.376m of
Neighbourhood Committees under spends.

E.

There were over spends within Health & Adult Services and Learning & Children’s
Services offset by under spends in Place Services, One Council Services and Other
Corporate Services

F.

Planned investment for the final projects of the One Kingston Programme from
Strategic Reserves was lower than anticipated which has improved the position of
the reserve to fund future transformational expenditure.

G.

The Housing Revenue Account was £0.142m under spent in 2014/15, increasing
the HRA balance to £3.308m.

H.

B2
The Schools budget was over spent by £0.011m in 2014/15, along with planned
additional use of £1.4m this reduced the central balance of unspent Dedicated
Schools Grant to £0.829m from £2.240m.

I.

The Statutory On Street Parking Account exceeded income projections by £0.262m.
This gave a net spend of £0.308m against the account which reduced the balance
to £1.312m at 31 March 2015

J.

The Statutory Bus Lane Enforcement Account exceeded income projections by
£0.472m. This gave a net spend of £0.280m against the account which reduced
the balance to £2.225m at 31 March 2015.

K.

The Statutory Moving Traffic Contraventions Account exceeded income projections
by £0.748m. This gave a net spend of £0.135m against the account which reduced
the balance to £0.749m at 31 March 2015

Context
1.

The Council approved Destination Kingston the Medium Term Service and
Financial Plan for 2015 to 2019 Destination Kingston on 3 March 2015. This report
sets out the Council’s performance against the previous edition of Destination
Kingston for 2014/15 approved by the Council on 27 February 2014.

2.

The medium term financial plan for 2014/15 to 2017/18 was shaped by the
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 2010 which outlined government
reductions from 2011/12 to 2014/15 and the Spending round 2013 which detailed
10% cuts to local government departmental expenditure limits between 2014/15
and 2015/16.

3.

It can be difficult to track the real effect of deficit reduction on our finances based
simply on published information. Transfers of responsibility to or from local
government distort comparative figures and the impact of growing demand for
services is hidden. Our analysis shows that:
• During 2014/15 we spent 20% less in real terms (taking inflation into account)
than we did in 2010.
• Since 2010 our funding from the government has reduced by more than 33% (in
straight cash terms in comparison to the 2014/15 budget)
• During the period the Borough’s population grew by 8%

4.

The Committee has considered the Destination Kingston 2015 to 2019 Medium
Term financial plan on its 12 February agenda. This shows the medium term
funding projections and detailed 2015/16 budget and explains how the headline
figures from the 2014 Autumn Statement show a reduction for the Resource
Departmental Expenditure Limits, which is the element of public expenditure
containing Local Government Funding through to 2019/20. The estimated reduction
is 10% in cash terms and 17% in real terms. When factoring areas of expenditure
that enjoy ‘protected’ status such as the NHS, the reductions to Local Government
can be assumed to be even greater.

5.

This means that the scale of the financial challenge that the Council has faced and
met since 2010 is likely to be repeated in the next 4 years. With the General
Election now behind us, it is likely that the Government will deliver a new CSR to
report in autumn of 2015 after a second 2015 budget to be announced by the
Chancellor in July 2015. A new CSR should allow for some medium term clarity
over Government Funding levels which would confirm the level of financial
challenge that the Council faces over the medium term.

B3

6.

Since the 2010 CSR, RBK have primarily met the financial challenge through the
delivery of savings via the One Council and One Kingston Programmes. With
further cuts to funding forecast by government, the continued exploration of shared
services and alternative delivery methods for services will be vital for Kingston to
deliver a balanced budget in the future. This will require new ways of working and a
new approach to delivering services, not just efficiency savings

7.

As outlined in the most recent edition of Destination Kingston, we are launching
‘Our Kingston’. This will be our primary vehicle for transforming our services to
allow us to continue to meet our ambitious outcomes within a reducing overall level
of resources.

8.

The under spend position for 2014/15 within the General Fund points to the fact that
RBK continues to meet these financial challenges. This under spend has facilitated
an increase to the General Fund Balance to £8.018m. This means that the Council
has managed to increase its General Reserve to 6.5% of the 2015/16 net budget
requirement which was highlighted in the March 2015 budget report as being
important to mitigate the Council’s future financial risk.

General Fund Revenue Outturn Position and General Fund Balance 2014/15
9.

The outturn position indicates an under spend of £0.066m.

Function
Health & Adult Social Care
Learning & Childrens Services
Place
Total Services
One Council Services (ICT)
One Council Services (Assets)
One Council Services (Strategic Business)
One Council Services (Finance)
Total One Council Services
Neighbourhoods
Other Corporate Services
One Kingston Programme
Total Other Services
Statutory Parking & Traffic Reserves
Total General Fund

Month 10
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
Budget
Outturn
Forecast
£000s
£000s
Outturn
Variance
£000s
2,823
51,558
54,466
308
39,604
40,237
(550)
26,156
25,188
2,581
117,318
119,892
(4)
27
(0)
(286)
(2,594)
(3,083)
110
3,515
3,541
(445)
7,060
6,721
(625)
8,009
7,179
0
7,382
7,382
(805)
(3,383)
(3,860)
0
1,644
1,644
(805)
5,644
5,167
0
0
(1,333)
1,151
130,971
130,905

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s

2,908
634
(968)
2,574
(27)
(489)
26
(339)
(830)
0
(477)
0
(477)
(1,333)
(66)

This under spend has increased the General Fund Balance as follows:

Balance at 1 April 2014
2014/15 under spend
Balance at 31 March 2015
10.

£m
7.952
0.066
8.018

The position shows an improvement from that reported to Committee at Month 10
due to changes in the use of earmarked reserves. The underlying position reported
at Month 10 had worsened before these adjustments. There have been some
changes in specific services in both directions; however, the driver for the
improvement has been the decision to bring forward by 8 months the additional
contributions from statutory parking and traffic enforcement reserves to fund
qualifying expenditure. From 2015/16 the budget allows for an annual contribution

B4
of £2m from these reserves which was agreed at the Council’s meeting on 3 March
2015. By bringing forward this policy by 8 months, an additional £1.333m has been
drawn down in 2014/15. This should be borne in the context that the reserves will
still maintain a sustainable balance of £4.1m over the medium term and by the fact
that these statutory enforcement functions over achieved income projections by
£1.482m in 2014/15.

11.

Planned investment for the final projects of the One Kingston programme from
Strategic Reserves was lower than anticipated which has improved the position on
the reserve and its ability to fund future transformational expenditure. The balance
at 31 March stands at £1.974m with current expenditure commitments in 2015/16 of
£1.326m and a planned contribution of £1.000m.

12.

The outturn position assumes the carry forward to 2015/16 of under spends of
£0.376m within the budgets of Neighbourhood Committees

13.

A summary of significant contributions and appropriations to and from earmarked
reserves can be seen under paragraph 27.

General Fund – Major Variations
14.

The major variances in each function and service are described below.

Health & Adult Social Care
15.

The 2014/15 outturn position for the service is an over spend of £2.908m, an
adverse movement of £0.085m from Month 10.
The main reasons these relate to are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the Your HealthCare contract (Kingston at Home and Amy Woodgate) £0.545m over spend,
Long-term external commissioning support for clients excluding Mental
Health over spends (£0.934m in Homecare, £0.489m in residential,
personal budgets and nursing budgets),
pressures around Mental Health Placements - £0.572m over spend
commissioning staffing - £0.115m over spend
Deprivation of Liberties (DOLs) Court Judgement - £0.273m over spend
Additional consultancy costs - £0.115m over spend
Mental Health Care Management Staffing costs - £0.149m over spend
Taxi Card contract based on latest usage figures – (£0.197m under spend)
One off income relating to client funding from previous years – (£0.385m
under spend)

Health & Adult Social Care
Adult Services Other
Short & Long Term
Social Activities
Public Health
Total Health & Adult Social Care

16.

Director’s Comments

2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month
Budget
Outturn
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
253
19,565
20,388
2,594
30,742
32,825
(24)
527
529
0
724
724
2,823
51,558
54,466

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
824
2,083
2
0
2,908

B5

The major variances within Health & Adult Social Care relate to:
Short & Long Term
•

Long term external commissioning support for clients

Home Care - £0.934m over spend:
The Kingston at home strategies to manage demand have seen a reduction of
need, including those becoming fully independent, of 74% against a target of 80%.
A reduction in the level of need was recorded in 52% of the 87 people who started
re-ablement, against a target of 35%. However, against a target of 45% to
enable people to be fully independent, performance is at only 22%. This will have
a direct impact on Home Care costs and an indirect one on other services.
The number of people completing re-ablement is lower than planned, although the
rise in acuity of potential users is demonstrated by the fact that 30% of people are
readmitted to Hospital within the first week.
The Kingston at Home model and contract is being reviewed and negotiations for
2015/16 are underway, which will seek to achieve improved outcomes and value for
money.
Two further elements of increased cost are very small number of clients that did not
transfer to the new Home Care contract and remained at a higher cost and the oneoff additional costs from slower than anticipated migration to the new arrangements.
This represents about £0.105m of the Home Care overspend.
Residential, personal budgets and nursing budgets - £0.489m over spend reduced
by £0.385m one off income from previous years:
The over spend has been generated by an increase in demand. In terms of activity
for the year there has been a net increase of 10 over-65 placements between 1 April 2014
and 31 March 2015.
The numbers admitted at 104 exceeds the target of 91 admissions by 13 places or
14%.
Residential and Nursing Adults over 65
Numbers at beginning of month
Numbers admitted
Numbers exiting
Total at m onth end

Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct
Nov Dec Jan Feb
263 260 262 270 274 271 277 275 272 268 263
8
8
16
11
4
10
5
4
9
8 10
(11)
(6)
(8)
(7)
(7)
(4)
(7)
(7) (13) (13) (6)
260 262 270 274 271 277 275 272 268 263 267

Total
in/
Mar out
267 263
11 104
(5) (94)
273 273

Adults under 65 has seen a net reduction of 5 places over the year of which 3 were people
with learning disabilities.
Residential and Nursing Adults under 65
Numbers at beginning of month
Numbers admitted
Numbers exiting
Total at m onth end

Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
136 134 134 134 133 132 132 131 130 131 131 131
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
(2)
0
0
(2)
(1)
0
(1)
(1)
0
0
0 (1)
134 134 134 133 132 132 131 130 131 131 131 131

Total
in/
out
136
3
(8)
131

B6
The over spend was reduced by £0.385m of one off income from the Kingston CCG
related to client costs from previous years.

•

Kingston at Home Contract - £0.545m over spend

The Kingston at Home (KAH) contract with YourHealthCare was agreed at a sum
that was £0.400m higher than the available budget. Of this, £0.180m was offset by
a one-off contribution from corporate budgets in 2014/15 and £0.220m was agreed
to be added to the budgeted sum on a non-recurrent basis. In addition one-off
payments related to increased demand were made during the year to the provider totalling
£0.122m.

£0.203m of lost income relating to 2013/14 and 2014/15 has increased the over
spend. This relates to St Georges Mental Health Trust decommissioning 15 places
at the Amy Woodgate day centre from 2013/14. St Georges previously paid RBK
for this provision through RBK’s contract with YHC and subsequently YHC has not
accepted a corresponding reduction in the contract value. This is the subject of
ongoing review.
Mental

•

Health

Placements

-

£0.572m over spend
Commissioners have renegotiated and continue to negotiate down costs with
providers with this generating better value for money. The Commissioner states
that there is a noticeable increase in demand for the three main following reasons:
• South West London and St Georges NHS Trust (SWLStGs) have reduced the
number of Adult Acute Beds within Tolworth Hospital.
• Acute Mental Health bed occupancy in London is currently in the region of 130%
with a recognised national shortage of availability this increases pressure on RBK
to transfer earlier from acute beds.
• The level of acuity of mental ill health before an admission to hospital is
considered to be higher than at any other time meaning the likelihood of detention
under the Mental Health Act is more likely, which increases the Boroughs duty to
fund discharging patients under Section 117 of the Act (Statutory).
A number of actions are currently being undertaken to address the Mental Health
residential care budget overspend
Adult Services – Other
• Deprivation of Liberties Court Judgement - £0.273m over spend
The costs arising from this judgement were difficult to estimate at the beginning of
the year because the number of assessments and referrals to the Court of
Protection to be made in 2014/15 was unknown. As a consequence a maximum
budget risk of £0.460m was flagged earlier in the year of which £0.273m has
materialised. A new process for monitoring the costs, involving regular invoices
from the doctors, has been agreed for 2015/16.
For 2015/16 Adults Social Care will review delivery of all of its statutory duties
including DOLS and develop a sustainable cost effective model to meet the
requirements of these functions.

B7

• Mental Health Care Management Salaries - £0.149m over spend
The over spend arises from the delayed implementation of the staffing changes
associated with the new section 75 agreement. The expectation is that this will be
completed by the end of the financial year and will not have an effect in the 2015/16
budgets.
• Commissioning staffing - £0.115m over spend
Relates to unfunded staff within the supporting people commissioning team
• Additional work commissioned to Newton consultants - £0.115m over spend.
Additional work commissioned to Newton consultants around the sustainability of
the savings and training of the in-house team.
• Taxi card budget - £0.197m under spend

The under spend reflects reduced usage charge from London Councils
Public Health
The service was over spent by £0.059m at the end of the year which was funded
from the earmarked Public Health reserve balance which now stands at £0.375m.
Public Health are continuing their negotiations with CCG relating to prescribing
drugs costs. There is still uncertainty surrounding whether there is a liability for
2014/15 and if so how much. Any costs agreed will need to be funded from the
£0.375m reserve balance. The maximum liability the service is exposed to in
relation to 2014/15 is £0.175m
General
Although the over spend in Adult Services has been managed in relation to
compensating under spends in other RBK services, it is important to analyse the
potential recurrent nature of these issues in 2015/16. Analysis shows that of the
£2.908m over spend in 2014/15, £0.849m was restricted to 2014/15. Of the
potential £2.059m pressures carried through to 2015/16, £1.202m has been
mitigated through budget growth, leaving £0.857m as a residual risk. The majority
of this relates to Mental Health services and is the focus of specific work to address
this area. The specific work relates to a review of all current placements, more
integrated use of current management information systems and improved financial
monitoring through the S75 agreement with Health and the joint commissioner.
Learning & Children’s Services
17.

The 2014/15 outturn position for Learning & Children’s Services is an over spend of
£0.634m, an adverse movement of £0.326m since the last reported position.

B8

Learning & Children's Services
AfC Commissioner
Culture & Lifelong Learning
Total Learning and Children's Services

18.

2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month Budget
Outturn
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
328
34,645
35,311
(20)
4,959
4,927
308
39,604
40,237

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
666
(32)
634

Director’s Comments
The major variation relates to change control requests under the provisions of the
contract with AfC. These requests are in line with the contractual provisions centred
around the risk and reward mechanism with AfC and relates to the unavoidable cost
of an increase in demand for statutory Children’s services. The provisions of the
contract allows for the company to elect to a ‘risk/reward’ position on budgets that
could demonstrate high volatility (external placements; leaving care packages;
unaccompanied asylum seeker children and special educational needs). Where a
level or risk is accepted, the matching benefits of up-side risk gain also fall to the
company. The company can elect to take a neutral/nil risk position and did so
in
2014/15.
Both requests relate to pressures within the Kingston Social Care division.
The requests were received firstly in February 2015 (£0.426m) and secondly in May
as AfC was finalising its year end position (£0.232m). Both requests have been
agreed to by Kingston. Richmond have also received and agreed similar requests
of £1.099m and £0.273m respectively.
The 2014/15 company financial position for AfC is detailed in paragraphs 44 to 47.
A small under spend of £0.032m was achieved within the Culture and Lifelong
Learning Service.

Place Services
19.

Place Services report a £0.968m under spend against General Fund budgets, an
improvement of £0.418m since month 10. The underlying service variance is
£2.450m under spend, but surpluses of £1.482m relating to On Street parking, Bus
lane enforcement and Moving Traffic Contraventions have been transferred from
the General Fund to the statutory ring fenced accounts.
.
2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month
Budget
Outturn
Place
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
Environment
(246)
19,386
18,850
South West London Partnership
145
4,508
4,664
Planning & Transport
(79)
2,493
2,465
Housing
(370)
3,970
3,410
On-Street Parking (income surplus above target)
(184)
(2,910)
(3,172)
Bus Lane Enforcement (income surplus above target)
(458)
(841)
(1,313)
Moving Traffic Contravention (income surplus above target)
(780)
(450)
(1,198)
Transfer of income surplus to Statutory Accounts
1,422
0
1,482
Total Place
(550)
26,156
25,188

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
(537)
156
(27)
(560)
(262)
(472)
(748)
1,482
(968)

B9

20.

Director’s Comments
The main variations were as follows:
Environment & South West London Waste Partnership (HRRC) - £0.381m
under spend. The under spend increased by £0.279m from month 10, mainly due
to deferring to 2015/16 some project
management costs associated with the
Shared Waste Collection project. Significant variances related to:
Environmental Health & Trading Standards
Street Services
Waste Disposal
Waste Collection
Household Refuse & Recycling Centre

-

£0.077m under spend
£0.170m under spend
£0.055m under spend
£0.153m under spend
£0.156m over spend

Planning & Transport - £0.027m under spend. Predominantly related to under
spends in Directorate Management and Support.
Housing General Fund - £0.560m under spend. The under spend has increased
by £0.190m from month 10 due to the inclusion at year end of Discretionary
Housing Payment grant monies which enabled improved rent collection and also
further operational under spends. Significant variances related to:
Private Leasing Scheme
Bed & Breakfast Accommodation
Tenant Finder Scheme

-

£0.417m under spend
£0.093m under spend
£0.062m under spend

Statutory Parking Accounts. As described in paragraph 10, the statutory parking
accounts all over achieved their income projections as follows:
On Street Parking Account
Bus Lane Enforcement Account
Moving Traffic Contraventions

-

£0.262m over achievement
£0.472m over achievement
£0.748m over achievement

One Council Services
21.

One Council Services’ outturn position is an under spend of £0.830m, a favourable
movement of £0.205m since month 10. Details by service are summarised in the
table below:

One Council Services
ICT
Assets
Strategic Business & Organisational Development
Finance
Total One Council Services

22.

2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month
Budget
Outturn
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
(4)
27
(0)
(286)
(2,594)
(3,083)
110
3,515
3,541
(445)
7,060
6,721
(625)
8,009
7,179

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
(27)
(489)
26
(339)
(830)

Director’s Comments:
•

ICT – a small under spend of £0.027m relating to operational expenditure

•

Assets achieved a £0.489m under spend, primarily related to staffing under
spends and over achievement of commercial rental income targets.

B10

•

Strategic Business & Organisational Development - £0.026m over spend.
Pressures in Business Support (£0.276m) and Legal (£0.147m) have been
largely offset by under spends within Strategic Business (£0.378m) and
Corporate Governance (£0.048m).

•

Finance - £0.339m under spend. This is primarily driven by significant
operational under spends of £0.206m in Revenues & Benefits; under spends of
£0.241m against the Social and Hardship Funds and an over spend of £0.125m
in the One Council Finance team.

Neighbourhood Committees
23.

It is recommended to the Policy & Finance Committee that because the Council has
reached an overall under spend position, the under spend of £0.376m in
Neighbourhood Committee budgets be carried forward to 2015/16 in accordance
with recent precedent and the Budgeting Code of Practice for Neighbourhood
Committees.

Neighbourhoods
Kingston Tow n
Maldens & Coombe
Surbiton
South of the Borough
Total Neighbourhoods
C/fw d of Neighbourhood under spend to 2015-16
Total Neighbourhoods

2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month Budget
Outturn
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
(26)
2,036
1,971
(23)
2,050
1,942
(2)
1,618
1,576
(15)
1,678
1,517
(66)
7,382
7,006
66
0
376
0
7,382
7,382

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
(65)
(108)
(42)
(161)
(376)
376
0

Other Corporate Services
24.

The Other Corporate Services outturn position shows an under spend of £0.477m,
and adverse change of £0.328m since month 10. Details by service are
summarised in the table below:

Other Corporate Services
Interest & Capital Financing
Employers Past Pension Costs
Housing Benefit/Subsidy/Overpayment
Redundancy & Early Retirement Costs
Corporate Grants & Resources
NNDR Discretionary Budget
Corporate Contingency
Levies
Total Other Corporate Services

25.

2014/15
Forecast
Outturn
Variance
2014-15
2014/15
at Month
Budget
Outturn
10 £000s
£000s
£000s
(296)
(2,414)
(2,510)
(580)
0
(526)
0
(145)
(322)
(60)
2,536
2,487
31
0
206
0
124
0
100
(4,175)
(3,888)
0
692
692
(805)
(3,383)
(3,860)

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
(96)
(526)
(177)
(49)
206
(124)
287
(0)
(477)

The main variations are:
•

Interest & Capital Financing - £0.096m under spend. The main elements to this
variance are described as follows:

B11
£0.161m under spend related to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). This is
effectively the cost to the Council of borrowing to fund capital expenditure. It is
lower than budgeted due to slippage in the capital programme in 2013/14.

Secondly there is £0.145m of additional income related to interest received
regarding the Council’s cash deposits.
Thirdly, a £0.231m under achievement of interest receivable from the HRA. Due
to slippage in the HRA capital programme, its planned need to borrow was
negated thereby reducing interest returns to the General fund
•

Employers Past Pensions costs - £0.526m under spend related to budgets that
fund the employers contribution to the Pension Fund for past deficit costs.

•

Housing Benefits/Subsidy/Overpayments - £0.177m under spend derived from
an increase in performance in the recovery of overpayments which has also
meant that no additional top up to the related bad debt provision is required.

•

Redundancy & Early Retirement Costs - £0.049m under spend. This under
spend relates to early retirement costs. The corporate redundancy budget was
under spent by £0.342m and this balance was taken to Strategic reserves to
fund future transformational expenditure.

•

Corporate Grants & Resources - £0.206m over spend. This relates to the
shortfall in resources funding the 2014/15 budget to that estimated when the
budget was set. The over spend primarily relates to the new S31 NNDR grant
which compensates the Council for changes to NNDR reliefs as a result of
recent changes to government policy. The actual amount of the grant is
estimated prior to the year but determined by actual results during the year.
This has partially been offset by under spends in the NNDR discretionary relief
budget of £0.124m.

•

Corporate Contingency - £0.287m over spend. The majority of this over spend
relates to the need to increase bad debt provisions by £0.343m related to the
Council’s service income.

One Kingston Programme
26.

The performance against investment requirements for the One Kingston
programme in 2014/15 produced under spends of £0.881m against earmarked
resource of which £0.661 will be carried forward into 2015/16 and £0.220m
represents genuine under spends which will be used to increase strategic reserves.

B12
Planned
Investm ent Expenditure Variance
2014/15
2014/15
2014/15
Project
Source
£000s
£000s
£000s
PMO & Strategic Business SIR
417
313
(104)
Adult Social Care
SIR
201
131
(70)
Care Bill
SIR
125
103
(22)
Place P1
SIR
157
157
0
Place P2
Grant
10
5
(5)
Place P3 (Kingston Futures) SIR
428
0
(428)
Place P3 (Kingston Futures) S106
340
340
0
Place P5
SIR
208
67
(141)
Place P5
Assets c/fw d
300
300
0
OK3 Finance
SIR
50
0
(50)
OK3 ICT
SIR
125
125
0
OK6
SIR
64
3
(61)
Total OK Program m e
2,425
1,544
(881)

Earm arked
for Project
expenditure
2015/16 £000s
0
(70)
(22)
0
0
(428)
0
(141)
0
0
0
0
(661)

Additional
Resource to
Strategic
Reserves
£000s
(104)
0
0
0
(5)
0
0
0
0
(50)
0
(61)
(220)

In addition to the table above £0.100m was drawn down from the AfC
Transformation Challenge Award Grant to fund set up costs as was the case in
Richmond. This reduced the total set up costs charged to AfC from £1.604m to
£1.404m (see paragraph 46).
General Fund Earmarked Reserves – Significant Contributions and Appropriations
27.

The table below is for information only but shows significant transactions with
reserves 2014/15.

B13
Reserve
Detail
Strategic Investment Reserve 2014/15 budgeted contribution for
transformational investment
Strategic Investment Reserve Care Bill Grant

Contribution Appropriation
Qtr £000s
£000
Decision Point
1
(1,000)
0 Budget Council 2014
4

(125)

1

0

3

0

Strategic Investment Reserve 2014/15 OK Programme - reserve funded
investment
Strategic Investment Reserve 2014/15 OK Programme - additional Adult
Social Care Transformation
Strategic Investment Reserve 2014/15 OK Programme - reserve funded
investment under spends
Strategic Investment Reserve Kingston Futures funding c/fw d to 2015/16

4

(215)

4

(428)

Strategic Investment Reserve P5 TFM funding c/fw d to 2015/16

4

(141)

Strategic Investment Reserve Care Bill & Adults Transformation c/fw d to
2015/16
Strategic Investment Reserve 2014/15 Redundancy budget underspend

4

(93)

4

(342)

Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
Strategic Investment Reserve
(Operational)
LPFA Sub Fund
Education Kingston

0 Commissioning Support
Board
1,625 Budget Council 2014
151 Commissioning Support
Board
0 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
Commissioning Support
Board
Commissioning Support
Board
Commissioning Support
Board
0 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
100 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
309 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
178 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
0 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
265 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
145 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
100 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
0 Budget Council 2014
200 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
540 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
0 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
3,217 Budget Council 2014
0 Budget Council 2014
841 Budget Council 2014

2014/15 OK Programme Investment from
agreed c/fw ds to 2014/15
L&CS agreed c/fw ds to 2014/15

1

0

1

0

Services agreed c/fw ds to 2014/15

4

0

Services agreed c/fw ds to 2015/16

4

(551)

AfC one off transition costs

4

0

Adult Services 2012/13 Grant c/fw ds

4

0

Use of AfC 2014/15 TCA Grant (set up costs)

4

0

2014/15 Contribution
Use of balance (directed by AfC)

4
4

(110)
0

Neighbourhoods

Use of 2013/14 c/fw d

4

0

Neighbourhoods

Amounts c/fw d to 2015/16

4

(376)

On Street Parking Account
On Street Parking Account
Bus Lane Enforcement
Account
Bus Lane Enforcement
Account
Bus Lane Enforcement
Account
Moving Traffic Contraventions
Account
Moving Traffic Contraventions
Account
Repairs & Renew als
TCA 2013/14

Planned Expenditure
2014/15 Net Surplus
Planned Expenditure

4
4
4

0
(2,909)
0

Additional Highw ays Maintenance funding

1

0

2014/15 Net Surplus

4

(1,561)

1,000 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14
0 Budget Council 2014

2014/15 Net Surplus

4

(1,198)

Budget Council 2014

Acceleration of 2015/16 policy of additional
contributions to qualifying expenditure
Capital Funding
Distribution of shared aw ard to partner
boroughs

4

0

4
4

0
0

1,333 P&F - Outturn Report
2014/15
275 Budget Council 2014
193 P&F - Outturn Report
2013/14

The table below shows current commitments against Strategic Reserves over the medium
term:

B14
Balance at 1 April 2014
Budgeted Contribution
2013/14 Transformation Challenge Aw ard Grant - RBK Share
Care Bill Grant
OK Programme Expenditure
OK Programme Expenditure deferred to 2015/16
OK Programme Expenditure under spends
2014/15 Redundancy budget under spend
Other Corporate Expenditure

£000s
(1,393)
(1,000)
(108)
(125)
1,776
(662)
(215)
(342)
95

Balance at 31 March 2015
Budgeted Contribution
OK Programme Expenditure b/fw d
Kingston Futures (element funded from Strategic reserves)
Adults Recommissioning
PMO Programme Support
Other Corporate Expenditure

(1,974)
(1,000)
234
428
130
419
115

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2016
Budgeted Contribution
PMO Programme Support

(1,648)
(1,000)
373

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2017
Budgeted Contribution

(2,275)
(1,000)

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2018

(3,275)

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Outturn & HRA Balance 2014/15
28.

The outturn position indicates a net under spend of £0.142m as detailed below
2014/15 M11
Forecast
Outturn
2014/15
Variance
Budget
£000s
£000s

2014/15
Outturn
£000s

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s

Gross Expenditure

194

31,591

31,636

45

Gross Income

(34)

(31,591)

(31,778)

(187)

Net Expenditure

160

0

(142)

(142)

This has had the following effect on the HRA Balance:

HRA Balance at 1 April 2014
HRA 2014/15 under spend
HRA Balance at 31 March 2015

£m
3.166
0.142
3.308

B15

30.

The main reasons for this variation are:
HRA Variances
Staffing & Housing Transformation Redundancy Costs
Running Costs & Operational expenditure
Repairs & Maintenance Costs
Overheads
Bad Debt Provision - full budget not required
Debt Charges
Total Expenditure Variances
Dw ellings Rents/Voids
Non Dw ellings Rents/Voids
Service Charges Tenants & Lessees
Right to Buy Allow ance
Use of HRA reserves
Other Income Variances
Total Incom e Variances
Total HRA Variance

31.

M10 £000s Outturn
£000s
109
34
(83)
(430)
356
839
0
(98)
(200)
(84)
0
(216)
182
45
(34)
37
128
(193)
0
40
(22)

97
(16)
(3)
(216)
(85)
36
(187)

160

(142)

Variation comments:
Having forecast an over spend throughout the year, the position on the HRA
improved to achieve a £0.142m under spend. This was largely due to a reduction in
debt charges compared to that budgeted. This was due to expenditure slippage in
the HRA capital programme which, along with increasing capital receipts from right
to buy sales, negated the planned need for the HRA to borrow to fund its capital
expenditure.
The delivery of this under spend should be put in the context of significant change
within the service in 2014/15 through the Housing Services Transformation
Programme (HSTP). This programme generated significant, one-off redundancy
costs, which have been absorbed by the HRA. The full effect of savings from this
programme will be seen in 2015/16.
The repairs and maintenance service faced significant pressures in 2014/15,
overspending by £0.839m ( repairs and maintenance £1.139m less £0.300m direct
revenue (capital) financing reduction relating to repairs). The repairs cost pressures
related to the final costs for the previous contractors filtering through into 2014/15,
as well as the first year of the new contractor Axis. The repairs spend is continuing
to be reviewed. Housing has employed a quantity surveyor to help review and
challenge the repairs costs in the future.
These cost pressures were partly managed by reducing expenditure in other
operational expenditure budgets and a reduction in overheads. There was also
increased income from the right to but allowance to the HRA as a result of the
increasing right to buy sales as well as use of minor HRA earmarked reserves
to
fund specific expenditure

B16
Schools Budget Outturn and DSG Balance 2014/15

32.

The Schools Budget outturn was £0.011m over spent. This position was reached
after the allocation of the planned use of £0.323m and additional use of
£1.077m, approved by the Schools Forum on 22 October 2014, from the DSG
reserve which has reduced from £2.240m to £0.829m. The carry forward of
£2.240m from 2013/14 greater than expected in the 2014/15 budget plans which
allowed for its additional use in 2014/15.

Item
Expenditure:
Schools Block

M9 2014/15
Forecast
Variance
£000

2014/15
Original
Budget
£000

2014/15
Revised
Budget
£000

2014/15
Outturn
£000

2014/15
Variance
£000

294

51,476

52,449

52,390

(59)

Early Years Block

(184)

7,937

8,002

7,721

(280)

High Needs Block

834

17,762

17,343

17,694

351

Total Expenditure

944

77,175

77,794

77,805

11

0
0
0

(76,852)
(323)
0

(76,394)
(323)
(1,077)

(76,394)
(323)
(1,077)

0
0
0

944

0

0

11

11

Funding:
Grant Funding
Budgeted use of 2013/14 c/fw d
Use of additional 2013/14 c/fw d
Balanced Budget

DSG Reserve Position
Balance at 1 April 2014
Use of budgeted c/fw d from 2013/14
Use of additional c/fw d from 2013/14
Outturn over spend
Balance at 31 March 2015

£000
2,240
(323)
(1,077)
(11)
829

34.

The outturn position has improved significantly from that reported during the year
mainly due to reduced over spends around the budgets in the High Needs block.

35.

However, as with previous years, the main pressure on the Schools budget remains
the High Needs block which was over spent by £0.351m and this after application of
£0.974m of the additional £1.077m drawn down from the DSG balance during the
year. Within that budget the main pressures centre around Special Educational
Needs and Independent placements.

36.

This outturn position has been reported by AfC, who manage the budget on behalf
of RBK, to the RBK Schools Forum on 24 June.

On Street Parking Account, Bus Lane Enforcement Account & Moving Traffic
Contraventions Account
37.

The Council is required to maintain a separate account of its on-street parking
business activities and to report annually to the Mayor of London on its outcome
and the use of any surplus generated. The account must contain all expenditure
and income in relation to the provision, management and enforcement of on-street
parking in the borough. The on street parking account for 2014/15 is included as
Annex 1.

38.

B17
In 2014/15, the account over achieved on income projections by £0.262m. This
meant that the account generated ££2.909m of income. Expenditure of £3.217m
against this produced a net expenditure position of £0.308m which reduced the
balance of the account to £1.312m at 31 March 2015.

39.

The Council is also required to maintain a separate account of its Bus Lane
Enforcement activities and report annually to the Secretary of State on its outcome
and the use made of any surplus generated. The account must contain all
expenditure and income in relation to the provision, management and CCTV
enforcement of bus lanes in the borough. The CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement
account for 2014/15 is included in Annex 2.

40.

In 2014/15, the account over achieved on income projections by £0.472m. This
meant that the account generated ££1.561m of income. Expenditure of £1.841m
against this produced a net expenditure position of £0.280m which reduced the
balance of the account to £2.225m at 31 March 2015.

41.

The Council is also required to maintain a separate account of its Moving Traffic
Contraventions activities and report annually to the Secretary of State on its
outcome and the use made of any surplus generated. The account must contain all
expenditure and income in relation to the provision, management and CCTV
enforcement of moving traffic contraventions in the borough. The CCTV Bus Lane
Enforcement account for 2014/15 is included in Annex 3.

42.

In 2014/15, the account over achieved on income projections by £0.748m. This
meant that the account generated ££1.198m of income. Expenditure of £1.333m
against this produced a net expenditure position of £0.135m which reduced the
balance of the account to £0.749m at 31 March 2015

43.

Included in the expenditure above is the additional £1m for highways maintenance
expenditure in 2014/15 approved by this Committee on 3 July 2014, as well as
£1.333m additional contributions to qualifying expenditure in 2014/15, representing
the decision to bring forward the policy agreed in the medium term financial plan at
Council on 3 March 2015.

Financial Performance of Significant Subsidiaries
44.

2014/15 represents the first year of operation for Achieving for Children Ltd (AfC).
AfC’s financial performance has been considered in more detail by its Board and by
the Joint Committee for Achieving for Children.

45.

In terms of AfC’s trading position, in other words, its performance against its
contract with Kingston and Richmond, a loss of £0.142m was realised. This is
compared to a forecast breakeven position projected at Quarter 3. This loss was
reached after taking into account the income received from the core contract
with both Councils and contract change control requests, allowable under the
contract provisions for specific demand led cost pressures. These change control
requests were made in the last quarter of the financial year and totalled £0.658m for
Kingston and £1.372m for Richmond.

46.

The Councils also charged the company for the costs incurred in setting up the
company, primarily for programme management costs, legal costs, ICT
infrastructure costs; HR and Service transformation advice and financial systems
and advice. These costs totalled £1.404m after the applied use of £0.2m DCLG
Transformation Challenge Award Grant by both Councils and increased the trading
loss within the company.

B18

47.

AfC will be expected to manage these total losses of £1.546m generated in 2014/15
over the next 3 years through to 2017/18. During the 2015/16 budget setting
process, the Councils asked AfC to make an additional £2m saving each year for
the next 3 years. The loss realised in 2014/15 now means that this target
effectively increases to £2.5m.

48.

AfC’s accounts are currently being audited and will be consolidated into the Group
Accounts of Kingston and Richmond reflecting the ownership share of those
boroughs. Kingston’s single entity and group accounts will be audited over the
summer and the results of that audit and the AfC audit will be reported to the Audit
and Governance Committee in September where the Kingston accounts will be
approved.

Timescale
49.

The outturn position is one of the essential building blocks for planning the next
stages of the Council’s medium term service and financial plan. It is good practice
for this to be reported to members as soon as it is available. The draft RBK
Statement of Accounts was submitted to the external auditors for audit on 30 June
2015. The auditors will report on their findings to the Audit Committee in
September 2015 when the accounts will be approved and published.

Resource Implications
50.

These are detailed above.

Legal Implications
51.

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. The report is made as
part of the requirements for managing the Council’s spending within budget.

Risk Assessment
52.

This report considers the outturn position and is therefore concerned with past
activities where risks have already been managed. Where identified risks have
continuing effects in 2015/16, these risks have been carried forward into the
management of the 2015/16 budget.

Equalities Impact Assessment
53.

There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report. Where
necessary, a full Equalities Impact Assessment was made as part of the process for
any adjustments to services arising from the medium term planning process leading
to the approval of that plan on 27 February 2014.

54.

A full Equalities Impact Assessment will be made in respect of any additional
service changes required as the next stages of the medium term service and
financial planning process progress.

Environmental Implications
55.

There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report.

Background papers: held by Toby Clarke (Capability Lead – Finance Accounting - 020
8547 5668, email: Toby.Clarke@kingston.gov.uk (Author of report)

B19

•
•
•
•
•

Medium Term Plan “Destination Kingston 2014-18” approved on 27 February 2014.
2013/14 Revenue & Capital Outturn report to Policy & Finance Committee, 3 July 2014
Medium Term Service & Financial Plan – Destination Kingston 2014/15 – 2017/18 –
Month 10 2014/15 Revenue Monitoring Position, 14 April 2015
Medium Term Service & Financial Plan – Destination Kingston 2014/15 – 2017/18 –
Month 6 2014/15 Revenue Monitoring Position, 4 December 2014
Medium Term Service & Financial Plan – Destination Kingston 2014/15 – 2017/18 –
Month 3 2014/15 Revenue Monitoring Position, 25 Sept 2014

B20

ANNEX 1 – STATUTORY ON STREET CAR PARKING ACCOUNT 2014/15
1.

The Council is required to maintain a separate account of its on-street parking business
activities and to report annually to the Mayor for London on its outcome and the use
made of any surplus generated. The account must contain all expenditure and income
in relation to the provision, management and enforcement of on-street parking in the
borough.

2.

The use of any surplus in the account is governed by Section 55 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act, 1984. The legislation specifies that the surplus may be used for:
(i)
(ii)

3.

making good to the General Fund for any deficits incurred in the On-Street
Parking Account during the previous four years;
meeting the cost of the provision and maintenance of off-street car parking in the
Borough, or in another Local Authority.

If, however, it is considered unnecessary to provide further off-street parking in the area,
the surplus may then be used to fund any of the following:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Public passenger transport services;
Highway improvement works;
Highway maintenance, or
the costs of anything that has the approval of the Mayor of London and which
facilitates the implementation of the Mayor’s transport strategy.
for prescribed authorities, any other purposes for which the authority may
lawfully incur expenditure

4.

At its meeting on 22 February 2001, the Cabinet agreed that further off-street public
parking could be considered unnecessary (minute 263-2/01). The decision was taken in
the context of the funded proposal to build the Seven Kings car park and the absence of
any proposals for new parking facilities in the District Centres or the remainder of the
Borough.

5.

Any unspent surplus in the accounts has to be carried forward in the account or
allocated to fund future spending projects. Any unspent project money has to be
returned to the account.

6.

The parking account outturn figures for 2014/15 are included as set out below. The
surplus generated for 2014/15 was £2,908,602. This compares to £2,982,567 in
2013/14.

B21

7.

The Secretary of State’s revised Guidance, issued in the light of the Traffic
Management Act, recommends that the annual parking account should also report on
activity levels. A number of the recommended statistical indicators are set out below.
Parking Enforcement
No. Hours of Patrolling provided
Total No. PCNs issued
No. High tariff PCNs
No. Lower tariff PCNs
No. PCNs Paid
No. PCNs Paid at discount rate

2013-14
55,658
59,081
39,683
19,398
47,586
41,063

2014-15
55,340
55,228
33,910
21,318
45,136
37,546

8.

At its meeting in March 2015 Budget Council agreed a programme of expenditure for
the use of the accrued parking account surplus for 2014-15 and the estimated surplus
for 2015-16.

9.

During 2014/15 a total of £4,217,007 from the parking account surplus was expended
on approved projects and revenue funding within the Council’s budgets. This
programme is continuing.

10.

The net surplus in the account as at 31st March 2015 stands at £1,311,992. There are a
number of capital and revenue commitments allocated against this and future surpluses.
Further use of the Parking Account surplus will be considered as part of the Council’s
medium term financial planning process later in the financial year.

B22

Statement of Parking Revenue Account

2014/15 £
INCOME
Fees & Charges:
Meter Receipts
Permit Receipts
Penalty Charges
Miscellaneous Income
Total Incom e
EXPENDITURE
Direct Salaries & Staff Costs
Maintenance & Equipment
Supplies & Services:
Publicity & Printing
Patrols & Processing
Fees & Charges
LC TEC Charges
Support Services:
Corporate Services
Total Expenditure
Net Deficit/ (Surplus)

(1,841,595)
(1,097,602)
(2,446,342)
(22,002)
(5,407,541)

268,122
85,541
15,069
1,835,517
150,493
76,297
67,900
2,498,939
(2,908,602)

Statement of Parking Surplus Account
Parking Account Funded Expenditure during 2014/15
Revenue Expenditure
Concessionary Fares Scheme (under section 3(i) Public Transport)
Car Parks Repairs & Maintenance Programme (under section 2(ii) Off Street Car Parks)
Highw ays Improvements (under section 3(ii) Highways)
Total

£
2,909,000
272,007
36,000
3,217,007

Summary of Account Surplus at 31 March 2015
Balance 1 April 2014
2014/15 Account Surplus
2014/15 Application in Year
Net Expenditure/ (Surplus)
Balance 31 March 2015

£
(1,620,397)
(2,908,602)
3,217,007
308,405
(1,311,992)

B23

Notes to the Accounts:
The general principles adopted in compiling the accounts conform to the requirements of the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 (Code),
published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). Revenue
accounts are prepared on an income and expenditure basis in accordance with the Code of
Practice and FRS18. The accounts therefore include all sums due to the Council and all sums
payable by the Council for goods and services provided or received during the year. Estimated
amounts are included where the actual amounts are not known at the time of closing the
accounts.

B24

ANNEX 2 – STATUTORY CCTV BUS LANE ENFORCEMENT ACCOUNT 2014/15
1.

The Council is also required to maintain a separate account of its Bus Lane
enforcement activities and report annually to the Secretary of State on its outcome and
the use made of any surplus generated. The account must contain all expenditure and
income in relation to the provision, management and CCTV enforcement of Bus Lanes
in the Borough.

2.

The use of any surplus in the CCTV Bus Lane enforcement account is governed by
Schedule 2 of the London Local Authorities Act, 1996. The legislation specifies that the
surplus may be used for:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Making good to the General Fund for any deficits incurred in the On-Street
Parking Account during the previous four years.
Meeting costs incurred in the provision or operation of public transport services
or facilities for public transport services.
Highway improvement works

3.

The CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement accounts out-turn figures for 2014-15 are included
below.

4.

The levels of activity recorded for the year, alongside the previous year for comparison,
are set out below
Bus Lane Enforcement
Hours of CCTV Monitoring
No. PCNs issued
No. PCNs Paid
No. PCNs Paid at discount rate

2013-14
4,133
25,051
22,659
21,069

2014-15
13,884
28,818
26,625
24,239

5.

During 2014-15 the net surplus from CCTV enforcement was £1,560,511.
compares to a surplus of £1,358,744 in 2013/14.

This

6.

Further use of the Bus Lane Enforcement Account surplus will be considered as part of
the Council’s medium term financial planning process later in the financial year.

B25

Statement of CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement Account

Bus Lane Enforcem ent
INCOME
Penalty Charges
Total Incom e
EXPENDITURE
Direct Salaries & Staff Costs
Maintenance & Equipment
Supplies & Services:
Fees & Charges
Enforcement & Processing
LC TEC Charges
Support Services:
Corporate Services
Total Expenditure
Net Deficit/ (Surplus)

2014/15 £
(1,937,087)
(1,937,087)

101,300
10,500
28,500
190,676
34,200
11,400
376,576
(1,560,511)

Statement of CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement Surplus Account
Bus Lane Enforcement funded expenditure 2014/15
Revenue Expenditure
Concessionary Fares Scheme (under section 2(ii) Public Transport)
Neighbourhoods Planned Maintenance (under section 2(iii) Highways Improvement)
Total

£
841,000
1,000,000
1,841,000

Summary of Account Surplus at 31 March 2015
Balance 1 April 2014
2014/15 Account Surplus
2014/15 Application in Year
Net Expenditure/ (Surplus)
Balance 31 March 2015

£
(2,505,764)
(1,560,511)
1,841,000
280,489
(2,225,275)

B26

B27

ANNEX 3 - MOVING TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS ENFORCEMENT ACCOUNT 2014/15
1.

The Council adopted the powers to enforce contraventions of Moving Traffic
restrictions during the financial year 2013/14. In line with the On Street Parking and
CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement Accounts, the Council is also required to maintain a
separate account of its Moving Traffic Contravention enforcement activities. We
therefore report annually to the Secretary of State on its outcome and the use made
of any surplus generated. The account must contain all expenditure and income in
relation to the provision, management and enforcement of Moving Traffic
Contravention locations in the Borough.

2.

The use of any surplus in the Moving Traffic Contravention enforcement account is
governed by Schedule 2 of the London Local Authorities Act, 2003. The legislation
specifies that the surplus may be used for:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Making good to the General Fund for any deficits incurred in the Moving
Traffic Contravention Enforcement Account during the previous four years.
Meeting costs incurred in the provision or operation of public transport
services or facilities for public transport services.
Highway improvement works
Highway maintenance works
Implementation of Transport for London strategy
The same activities in other London authority areas

3.

The Moving Traffic Contravention enforcement account outturn figures for 2014/15
are included below.

4.

The levels of activity recorded for the year, alongside the previous year for
comparison, are set out below
Moving Traffic Contravention Enforcement
Hours of CCTV Monitoring
No. PCNs issued
No. PCNs Paid
No. PCNs Paid at discount rate

2013-14
12,423
16,271
14,918
14,060

2014-15
12,049
19,994
19,541
18,008

5.

During 2014/15 the net surplus from Moving Traffic Contravention enforcement was
£1,197,576. This compares to a net surplus of £884,119 in 2013/14 The Council
introduced enforcement part way through 2013/14 financial year.

6.

Further use of the Moving Traffic Contravention enforcement surplus will be
considered as part of the Council’s medium term financial planning process later in
the financial year.

B28

Statement of Moving Traffic Contravention Enforcement Account
Moving Traffic
INCOME
Penalty Charges
Total Incom e
EXPENDITURE
Direct Salaries & Staff Costs
Maintenance & Equipment
Supplies & Services:
Fees & Charges
Enforcement & Processing
LC TEC Charges
Total Expenditure
Net Deficit/ (Surplus)

2014/15 £
(1,434,900)
(1,434,900)

100,000
10,000
29,000
77,324
21,000
237,324
(1,197,576)

Statement of CCTV Bus Lane Enforcement Surplus Account
Moving Traffic Enforcement funded expenditure 2014/15
Revenue Expenditure
Concessionary Fares Scheme (under 2(ii) Public Transport)
Other Highw ays Expenditure (under 2(iii) Highways Improvement)
Total

£
1,000,000
333,000
1,333,000

Summary of Account Surplus at 31 March 2015
£
Balance 1 April 2014
2014/15 Account Surplus
2014/15 Application in Year
Net Expenditure/ (Surplus)
Balance 31 March 2015

(884,119)
(1,197,576)
1,333,000
135,424
(748,695)

Policy and Finance Committee

C1

Appendix C

2 July 2015
Revenue Support Grant
Report by Director of Finance
Purpose
To update the Committee on the work being undertaken to achieve greater financial independence
for Kingston and to ensure that the economic rewards of growth within the borough are retained for
local benefit.

Recommendations of the Lead Member for Treasurer, Finance and HR
To 
Resolve
that the Committee 
1.

Endorses the principle of financial independence for Kingston

2.

Notes the work undertaken on this issue to date

3.

Endorses the future work programme and continued contribution to South London
and Londonwide work on devolution

Key Points
A.

The Council’s financial position continues to be extremely challenging due to
reductions in the funding received by Central Government as part of the national
deficit reduction strategy.

B.

RBK is one of the authorities that have been engaged in dialogue with Central
Government on the subject of devolution, specifically exploring the possibility of
changes to the way in which the local government funding system applies to
Kingston.

C.

The Government’s response to our proposals prior to the recent General Election
was positive. The new Ministerial team at the Department for Communities and
Local Government have given confidence that devolution and fiscal reform are
priorities for the new Government. Early indications are that the conditions are
favourable for constructive and productive further discussions on proposals relating
to Kingston: RBK is well positioned to take advantage of the prevailing national
agenda in favour of localism and devolution.

D.

RBK is also at the forefront of work at a subregional (South London) and regional
(London) level on devolution and growth. The South London Partnership recently
publish a prospectus for growth which outlined its position as a Joint Committee
and the opportunities for driving growth in Kingston and neighbouring boroughs.

E.

Achieving a different balance of financial settlement could have a very favourable
impact on our medium term financial position. It is also fundamentally linked to our
aims for local democratic renewal: the freedom to make meaningful local decisions
including those relating to fiscal matters is an intrinsic part of a vibrant local
democracy.

C2
Our proposition to Government will be based on:

F.

● Retaining a greater share of tax raised in Kingston for the benefit of the
borough
● Removing our current reliance on central government funding
● Piloting a model of self sufficient and autonomous local government
G.

We will continue to work with other boroughs in London and South London to
advance wider devolution of powers and public service reform. This will include
exploration of a Business Rate Pool for South London, which may of itself increase
the amount of business rates retained in Kingston.

Background
1.

The Coalition Government that came to power in 2010 committed to revamping
the funding system for local government. A clear policy intention was to reduce
the traditional links between funding and ‘need’ in favour of an emphasis on
incentivisation: instead of authorities being funded based on the levels of
deprivation or population growth they would be rewarded for tackling them. Key
initiatives introduced as a result of this policy included the New Homes Bonus,
which redirected mainstream funding according to new homes added to the
Council Tax list, and Business Rates Retention, which linked some funding to
local business rates growth or contraction. It did not restore local control over the
rate itself, and indeed the policy around Council Tax ‘Freeze’ and referendum
limits significantly reduced the local discretion exercised by councils over their
resource levels.

2.

Perhaps as a result of the acceptance that there was a continued need to
balance an element of need and resource redistribution (from more affluent
areas that generate resource above their funding levels to poorer areas), the
Business Rates Retention model has failed to deliver the local autonomy and
clear financial incentives that were promised.

3.

Towards the end of the Coalition Government’s period in office there were a
number of examples of a willingness to strike bilateral and specific deals with
individual authorities that introduced local amendments to the funding system.

4.

The Leader of the Council initiated conversations with the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and maintained a dialogue
throughout 2014/15. A number of meetings were held with the then Minister for
Local Government Kris Hopkins MP, whilst officers entered into correspondence
and met with the senior civil servant responsible for funding issues.

5.

The result of the General Election gives an opportunity to continue these
discussions with Government, albeit with a change in ministerial personnel. The
appointment of Greg Clark as Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government gives confidence in the likelihood of DCLG continuing to retain a
passion for localism and devolution and to be interested in agreeing bilateral
deals with individual authorities.

C3

Work to Date
6.

The Leader of the Council has been clear in his ambition of moving the Royal
Borough towards financial self sufficiency. By embracing the growth in
population that the borough faces over the next ten years we can ensure that not
only is it managed in the best way for the borough in terms of character and
infrastructure, but that it also contributes to our future revenue streams through
increased council tax and business rates. The ambition of self sufficiency is
directly linked to this work: ensuring that as much as possible of the benefit
generated is retained within the borough for the good of residents.

7.

It is also self evident that all things being equal, the element of our funding that
relates to business rates will perform much better over the medium term than the
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) provided by government. The assumptions used
in the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) presented to Council in March 2015
indicate an overall reduction in resources excluding Council Tax of £11.75m
(31%) by 2019/20. This consists of a small increase in Business Rates of £1.9m
(+9.7%) and a significant reduction in RSG of £13.7m (74%).

8.

It therefore follows that the lower our reliance on RSG, the less exposed we are
to the changes the Government will make to local government funding as part of
its deficit reduction strategy. If the Government were to allow us to exchange
RSG for additional Business Rates at a neutral point in 2016/17 (ie a £1 for £1
swap), and the trends applied as above, then we would be around £10m better
off by 2019/20.

9.

There are three broad categories of tailored agreement that have been seen
within local government over the past eighteen months: retention of business
rates for infrastructure funding on specific projects (ie Brent Cross), adjustments
to the mechanism for sharing growth in business rates (Oxfordshire and others)
and wider ranging devolution of service accountabilities and responsibilities
alongside fiscal reform (Greater Manchester). It is of note that each of these
deals has been struck with the Treasury rather than DCLG. Our future
engagement with the Government will be broadened to include HM Treasury as
well as DCLG.

10.

Our work in Kingston aligns with wider devolution work in London. Following the
London Finance Commission, which was jointly sponsored by London Councils
and the GLA, work is now being refocused on wider public service reform rather
than purely fiscal devolution. Similarly the work of the South London Partnership
of which we are a part. Additionally, national work such as the report of the Local
Government Finance Commission is of relevance and interest.

11.

Any solution for RBK needs to based on a full understanding of the underlying
risks and opportunities. It also needs to take account of the perceived costs and
benefits to central government. We should seek to make sure that any changes
address some of the fundamental weaknesses of the current arrangements: the
lack of local discretion about resource levels that means there are very limited

C4
mechanisms for releasing pressure as it builds in the system. This contrasts with
high levels of volatility in financial risks faced by authorities.
12.

We have commissioned work from London Councils to investigate the possibility
of a Business Rate Pool for South London. We will also now engage some
external support to model how we address some of the issues raised by DCLG in
discussions to date. these issues include:
Issue

Description

Equalisation

The paper highlighted that any change to the level of
Business Rate retained by Kingston would have an
adverse impact on funding for other authorities or the
DCLG.
It is straightforward to adjust for this impact in year 1, but
an impact would still emerge in subsequent years.

Volatility and
Risk

Retaining a greater share of business rates would
increase the level of risk carried by the local authority, as
well as increasing the potential reward.
Consideration will need to be given to our local potential
for growth and our relatively low level of available
reserves to manage any potential downside.

Levy and Safety
Net

The paper raises the point that authorities are protected
against significant reductions via the collective self
insurance mechanism of the levy and safety net.
A change to this arrangement would both reduce
protection locally and the funds available nationally to
protect others.

Growth

The obvious point is made that any growth allowed to be
retained locally in excess of the current arrangements
will be an equivalent cost to the Government.
This may not apply if the local retention drives greater
performance than would otherwise have been the case.

Reset of BRR

The as yet unidentified approach to resetting the system
is broached, and the risk of an adverse impact is raised.

Options
13.

Rather than the proposed approach the Council could choose to drop its own
work on this matter and to either accept the current system or to work for change
exclusively through representative bodies such as the South London Partnership,
London Councils and the Local Government Association.

Resource Implications
14.

C5

If successful the work set out in this report could have a significant impact on
Kingston’s future resource position. The only direct implications from the
recommendations in this report is the proposal to engage some additional
external support to model options. This is expected to be in the low thousands of
pounds and will be provided for from existing budgets.

Legal Implications
15.

None at this stage. The legal implications of any future change in funding
arrangements will be considered as work is progressed.

Risk Assessment
16.

The risks associated with the move towards financial independence are
discussed within the body of this report.

Equalities Impact Assessment
17.

An equalities impact assessment is not required in relation to this report as it
considers only a potential change in funding arrangements and not a change to
existing policy.

Network Implications
18.

There are no network implications arising from this report.

Environmental Implications
19.

There are no environmental implications arising from this report.

Background papers 
None
Author of report 
Leigh Whitehouse, Director of Finance,
leigh.whitehouse@kingston.gov.uk
/ Tel 020 8547 5570

Policy and Finance Committee

D1

Appendix D

2 July 2015
Corporate Grants Programme  Moving to a Commissioning Approach
Report by Executive Head of Organisational Development & Strategic Business
Purpose
To propose changes to the management of the Council’s Corporate Grants Programme
and move from an application process towards a commissioning approach, while retaining
some level of small grants. These changes are proposed to take effect from 1 April 2016.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Health and Social Care
To 
RESOLVE
that 

the policy set out in the report which changes the management and administration of the
current corporate grants programme to a commissioning approach from April 2016 be
approved and as a consequence:
● £1,052,650 of current grants allocation be transferred to commissioning budgets in
2016/17
● £100,000 be retained for transition funding in 2016/17
● £120,000 be retained for discretionary grants up to £3k each (emerging needs)
● £50,000 be retained for small grants up to £750 each
● Existing grant commitments for 16/17 and 17/18 continue to be honoured.

Key Points
A.

The financial context within which the Council is operating means that over the next
four years there is a need to save £37.4 million, equivalent to 28% of the 2014/15
net budget of £131 million. The Council has committed to achieve the best possible
outcomes for Kingston residents and service users through effective
Commi
ssioning of goods and services. This is not just outsourcing, but is a planned
way in which the Council works together with partner agencies and communities in
shaping and designing services, and deciding who is best placed to deliver those
services. The Council is ambitious in its plans despite the budget pressures, and is
not merely accepting a reductionist agenda. It sees a future whereby relationships
are redefined between communities, service providers and individuals. It is clear
that the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) will play an essential, and core role
in this future.

B.

The Council currently administers a Corporate Grants process. Grants are generally
allocated on a threeyear cycle, with some applications on an annual basis.
Organisations come forward to request funding against specific criteria and is
allocated by Committee. Grants are used by organisations in different ways which
include direct delivery and support to the core funding of that organisation. The
current annual grants budget for 2015/16 is £1,583,800.

C.

Destination Kingston 20162018 set out that the Council is operating in an agenda
where ‘services are publicly organised, not always publicly delivered’. This aligns
closely with the Commissioning approach. The Council sees the VCS as playing a
key role in Commissioning, not just by being potential providers of services, but
helping to shape and design them. Through a Commissioning approach, the

D2
Council spends around £13m per year with VCS organisations. The Council is clear
that there is more potential for VCS to be part of the future through Commissioning.
D.

It is proposed that the current administration of the Corporate Grants programme
ceases from April 2016. The majority of the budget would then move into
Commissioning budgets, aligned to appropriate outcomes. This will be supported by
transition funding to help organisations through the first two years of the change.

E.

The proposed change has been signalled at workshops, the Policy and Finance
Committee in February and the Voluntary Sector Board. Further consultation took
place during May/June through an online survey and focus groups.

Context
1.

Kingston adopted a Compact in 2000 which sets out a shared vision and
recognises the vital part that VCS plays in shaping services, ensuring that
communities have a voice through advocacy, and developing a strong network of
information and advice. This vision was refreshed in 2013, and set out principles
in which statutory authorities and the VCS would work together.

2.

The Compact sets out that the Council will ‘Aim to choose the approach to
achieve the required outcomes (e.g. grants, procurement//competitive tendering,
support in kind) which will attract the organisations best placed to deliver the
outcomes’.

3.

The Council launched its Voluntary and Community Sector Strategy in 2014. This
strategy was developed with the sector focusing on outcomes relating to the role
and contribution of the VCS as partners in shaping services delivery and
community engagement with four themes:
○
○
○
○

4.

Community development/engagement: including community leadership,
building social capital, coproduction, and community ‘voice’.
Commissioning: VCS engagement with shaping services as well as
delivering them
Communications: making sure everyone is aware of progress and
opportunities
Capacity building: for all partners to support better collaborative working and
to develop required skills
There are a range of forums in which the VCS, the Council and other partners
engage. These include:

○
○
○
○
○
○
○

Kingston Strategic Partnership
Voluntary Sector Forum (VCS led)
Voluntary Sector New Futures group (VCS led)
Voluntary Sector Board (cochaired by Cabinet Member for Health and Adult
Social Care and CEO of Kingston Voluntary Action – and a subgroup of the
Kingston Strategic Partnership)
Range of VCS networks, including Children & Young People, Mental Health,
Carers, BMER organisations, and Community Development
VCS Strategic Partners, a network of key leads for different subsectors who
have a role in promoting twoway communication between themselves,
smaller groups and statutory organisations.
Neighbourhood Committees, Community Panels, Community Budgeting,
various themed workshops and forums

D3
On 12th February, Policy and Finance Committee agreed to set out ‘in principle’
agreements for those voluntary organisations that in 2015/16 will be in the
second and third year of previously agreed multiyear funding (Strategic Partners
and Community Investment Fund). The Committee agreed the following position
and principles:

5.

○

The Administration has emphasised its support for the local voluntary and
community sector and has started to clarify its expectations about how this
might work in the future against the wider context of:
i.
ii.
iii.

iv.

Increasing pressure on Council finances and increasing demands for
services
Ongoing commitment to a thriving Voluntary and Community Sector
in Kingston
the Council’s approach to Commissioning including the focus on
joint/collaborative commissioning between RBK, Public Health (now
part of the Local Authority), the Kingston Clinical Commissioning
Group and Achieving for Children (AfC).
changes arising from the implementation of legislation and other
initiatives such as the Care Act, the Children and Families Act, the
Better Care Programme and the increasing use of personal budgets.

○

A wide ranging review of the way funding goes to the VCS (including grants
and commissioning) has been started and proposals will be brought to the
relevant Strategic Committees in 2015 in time for any agreed
recommendations to be implemented from the financial year 2016/17. This
review will involve a wide range of stakeholders in both statutory and VCS
organisations.

○

Grants that have already been awarded on a multiyear basis will be
honoured for the duration of their agreements (see below).

○

The total budget for grants for 2015/16 is £1,583,700. This includes agreed
premises costs, part of London Boroughs Grants Scheme reduced
contribution and other ongoing commitments not subject to the grants
process There is no inflation allowance on the Grants Budget because of
continuing financial constraints and therefore there can be no automatic
uplifting of previous awards to reflect any inflation in recent years.
Breakdown of this is as follows:

Budget available 15/16
Total Grants Budget available

£1,583,700

Less ongoing commitment to Strategic Partners grants
Less ongoing commitment to Community Investment Fund
grants in 3rd and final year
Less ongoing commitment to Community Investment Fund
rd
grant in 3
year of five
Less ongoing commitment to Community Investment Fund
grants in 2nd year

£55,000
£802,400
£181,000
£130,000

D4
Less allocation for capacity building of the voluntary and
community sector from the London Boroughs Grants Scheme
Less ongoing commitment to Kingston Community Furniture
(now to Staywell) and to KCABs for Hook Centre
Contingencies
Amount available for Emerging Needs and Small Grants
2015/16

£250,500
£65,000
£44,800
£55,000

(Note for info: premises costs are included in the grant allocations – relevant
leases end in 2017 – Siddeley House, Neville House, Parman House)
○

1
2

During the grants years 2013/14 and 2014/15 allocations to the Strategic
Partners and Community Investment Fund grants strands and other
allocations were such that the funding available for 2015/16 is limited to the
Emerging Needs and Small grants strands. Despite cuts elsewhere in the
Council, the Administration agreed to retain these grants, highlighting the
importance placed on building capacity in the Voluntary Sector. The two
grant strands were launched in December 2014 with a closing date of 27
February 2015, so recommendations for the Emerging Needs Grants will be
brought to a later Committee. Small grants are awarded under Strategic
Director’s delegated authority.

6.

32 organisations receive grants under £10k, 23 of which fall under £3k, and the
remainder between £3k£10k. 36 organisations receive grants between
£10£100k, and 7 organisations receive grants over £100k.1

7.

Of the 32 organisations that receive grants under £10k, 13 also get payments
from the Council outside the corporate grants programme (assumed to be
commissioned spend). Of the 36 organisations receiving grants between
£10£100k, 16 also receive payments for ‘commissioned’ services. The 7
organisations who receive grants over £100k, 1 receives other payments.

8.

In addition to the grants programme set out above, the Council has provided
payments to VCS organisations of around £13.7m per year. This is through
Commissioning budgets.2

9.

The value and administration of grants programmes vary from Council to
Council, but most London Councils have moved away from major Corporate
Grants programmes and focus on a commissioning approach. Neighbouring
Authorities have different practices but have tended to have moved away from
larger scale Corporate Grants Programmes. Sutton, for example, maintains an
‘Infrastructure Support and Capacity Fund, plus a lower value Community Fund’
of around £460k (over 4 years with a two year break clause). Richmond had
various lower value capacity building funds but moved away from Corporate
Grants some years ago. Charity organisations in the latter make use of three
charitable trusts who donate around £2m per annum.

10.

The Council’s annual grant programme is oversubscribed. The nature of the
existing grants programme means that they are only awarded on a maximum of
a three year basis, and there is never any guarantee that an organisation who
currently receives a grant may do so in the future. This means that VCS
organisations have less longterm security and need to wait until the outcome of

13/14 spend data
13/14 spend data

D5
the latest round of grants to be able to assess the level of income they require
and the shortfall that needs to be made up.
11.

The Council is supporting the initiative being taken by KVA and the strategic
leads to further build the capacity of Kingston's VCS and support increased
sustainability of the sector through providing advice and routes to financial
independence. This work is being supported through ongoing commitments as
set out in paragraph 21d.

12.

The Council’s move to commissioning drives the approach of assessing the need
for a
ll services, how those services are delivered and who provides them. This is
not about a strategic shift to outsourcing or shared services. While these may be
part of the future shape of service delivery the Council is not predisposed to any
model. The focus is on the best outcomes for Kingston's residents and
communities.

13.

The Council, in facing the challenges ahead, will need to ensure there is a
holistic approach to how services are commissioned to achieve the best
outcomes from residents. This will ensure there is no duplication of effort and all
partners work together in the best way.

14.

The Council recognises how any proposed change to the current process leads
to some uncertainty about how relationships will work for the future. The VCS will
play a major role in the future delivery of outcomes for Kingston residents and
service users and the changes proposed are intended to help strengthen the
Council’s ability to engage and collaborate with voluntary and community
partners. The Commissioning approach will be based on working together to
develop and deliver the agreed set of outcomes.

Options
15.

A project was established to consider options and to explore the opportunity to
align more closely with the 
Commissioning approach. This would look holistically
across opportunities for achieving outcomes and follows a process whereby
providers can play a role in shaping and delivering services. This would also
ensure that there is a picture of commissioning activity to achieve outcomes and
reduced opportunity for duplication. The project considered some highlevel
options:
○

Retain the grants programme 'asis'. This would mean that the budget for
grants allocation would be ringfenced when the Council is facing budget
reductions of 2030%.

○

Retain grants but with a 2030% budget cut, in line with Council reductions.
This would mean existing grantfunded organisations competing for a smaller
pot of money than previously.

○

Move some or parts of the grants administration to a third sector partner.
This would require the Council entering into a contractual relationship with a
partner (who itself would need to be commissioned) to administer the
programme. This would still require the Council to monitor fund allocation,
effectively increasing administration.

○

Ending the grants programme completely and moving budgets into
commissioning.

○

Moving a proportion of budgets into commissioning, and retaining some
elements of a grants programme.

Proposed Policy Changes

D6
A consultation was undertaken on the proposed approach to move focus away
from a corporate grants programme and into the commissioning. The project
team considered the responses and the Lead Member for Health and Social
Care recommends the following proposed policy:

16.

○
○
○

○

The current Corporate Grants Programme will cease from 1st April 2016.
Any residual funding or agreement to fund that the Council has already
committed to will continue for the period that has been agreed.
The total current value of the grants programme (£1,583,700) will not reduce,
but will in the most part be transferred to Commissioning budgets from
16/17. This will initially be based on an appropriate split around Council
budgets and proposed outcomes to be delivered from 16/17. Further work
will be undertaken as part of budget setting process and finalised in Autumn
2015.
Ongoing agreements or residual funding that the Council has already agreed
to will continue for the period that has been agreed. For 16/17 and for 17/18,
these include:
Community Investment Fund grants (Strategic Partner grants end March
2016)
16/17
£130,000 (no relevant premises costs involved)
£181,000 to KVA (includes contribution to premises costs of £21,868)
LBGS reduced contribution allocation – currently no end date
17/18
£181,000 to KVA (includes contribution to premises costs of £21,868)
LBGS reduced contribution allocation – currently no end date

○

The Council will retain £100k from the overall budget of £1,583,700 for
transition funding (for 16/17 and 17/18). This will be allocated on a case by
case basis through an application process. This can be used for intermediary
funding while organisations prepare for commissioning, including capacity
building.

○

The Council will retain £120k a level of discretionary grants for emerging
needs which will be a maximum of £3k per year (note that currently there
around 44 applications for this). 
Emerging Needs and New Initiatives grants
are annual Grants for oneoff projects or pumppriming/development activity
which can include a contribution to overheads. Organisations would be
expected to have considered how their project contributes to priorities in the
Kingston Plan, to Service Area priorities or to priorities they have identified
themselves. In addition they need to have thought about how the activities
might be sustained or have developed an appropriate exit strategy.

○

Focusing on Emerging Needs and New Initiatives is intended to encourage
organisations to think about developing activities to meet new and changing
circumstances. Applications for repeat funding will not be encouraged,
although there could be exceptions made for events or activities that occur
on a regular basis.

○

D7
The Council will also retain £50k per year from the existing corporate grants
budget for small grants under £750 per grant (note that there are currently 22
applications per year).

○

The administration for the small and emerging grants programme will be
developed on the basis of officer delegated decisions and Member oversight.
The process will be transparent and criteria published.

○

Commissioning decisions will follow the approach set out in Contract
Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation, which requires officers with
appropriate authority to consult with members for decisions over £100k. The
Council currently allocates grants through the Committee process.

○

For 2016/17 and 2017/18, including the commitments set out in (d), the total
amount of budget expected to move to Commissioning will be:
2016/17: £1,052,650 (less LBGS)
2017/18: £1,233,650 (less LBGS)
The Council will allocate this to appropriate Commissioning budgets for
agreement at Autumn budget.

Commissioning Approach

3

17.

The process for Commissioning services from the VCS will follow the Council’s
Commissioning framework and process. Commissioning is defined as ‘achieving
the right outcomes by deciding what service is needed, how it should be
delivered, and which public, private or third sector organisation should deliver it
within effective use of resources’.3

18.

While the Council has undertaken a number of events around how it
commissions services, it is clear from the consultation that further work is needed
to ensure a greater understanding with the VCS. The Council will commit to work
with strategic partners, including KVA in supporting all organisations through the
understanding of the process.

19.

The process of commissioning can result in redesign, decommissioning,
transfer (to another provider), a contract (through procurement) or allocation of a
grant. The decision on which route is depending on the nature and cost of the
service.

20.

The grant (resulting from a commissioning process) is the same legal instrument
as that which has been allocated through the corporate grants process. The
method of allocation is the difference. The corporate grants programme starts
with a budget which organisations bid for. When the budget runs out there is no
more opportunity. The commissioning approach includes the whole Council
commissioning budget, but is based on the agreed outcomes and engaging with
providers to come up with best solutions to address them.

21.

Procurement is an important element of commissioning, and this is the process
whereby the Council selects third party providers. However, the Commissioning
process will include far more involvement with providers ‘upfront’ and the
procurement process itself will be proportionate and flexible. This helps to
address some further concerns around burden for smaller organisations.

Kingston Council definition

22.

D8
The Council will consider potential opportunities to support smaller organisations
and also accept ‘consortium’ bids. The Council also looks at supply chains of
larger organisations and how they will themselves use VCS organisations.

23.

The Council Commissions services based on an agreed set out outcomes to
deliver the policy programme and ensure fair access to services for residents
and service users. Outcomes are not decided ‘topdown’ but in partnership with
communities, residents and service users, taking into account priorities (including
what matters most to residents from the AllinOne Survey and Leader
engagement sessions). This addresses some concerns from the consultation
around how outcomes are developed.

24.

The Council aims to engage with providers as part of designing appropriate
services. This will be proportionate to the service being commissioned. Higher
value commissioning (over £100k) is likely to require more indepth engagement.
Engagement is not just consultation, but coproduction and design. A theme from
the consultation is the concern around the lack of contact between
commissioners and the VCS. Commissioners will use full engagement to work
together to design processes where possible, and work with partners to have an
understanding of the service delivery.

25.

The engagement and design through commissioning will take into account the
value that VCS bring to the Borough (and this will be reflected in any evaluation
and monitoring).

26.

Commissioning seeks to include innovation. It is not about the Council defining a
rigorous specification but looks at providers (who currently provide valuable and
innovative services) to bring this into the process.

27.

If there is a limited market (or competition) for services, consideration may be
given around the need to run a wider competitive process and in some cases
may award a commissioned grant. In many cases, local, established providers
are wellplaced to come forward for commissioning opportunities and will be the
only source of provision. The Council will always ensure it complies with
principles in the Public Contracting Regulations around transparency, equality
and equal access to opportunities.

28.

The Council will ensure a consistent, fair and proportionate approach to how it
commissions services. The consultation raises concern that Commissioning can
be bureaucratic. While the Council has a legal obligation to ensure it complies
with appropriate legislation (including Public Contracting Regulations 2015),
there are flexibilities and the process is also proportionate to value. Where the
Council undertakes procurement, providers can expected lower value
requirements to be proportionate and will unlikely to be any more burdensome
than the grants award process.

29.

The Council will commit to longer contracts where possible to allow for more
certainty of service. This provides some further certainty to organisations, which
was another concern from the consultation.

30.

Opportunities (including potential market engagement sessions) will be promoted
through the Council’s eTendering system (
www.londontenders.org
) and
Contracts Finder where appropriate.. This allows access to wider opportunities
as other Local Boroughs advertise opportunities on the same system. While this
has raised some concerns through the consultation that larger organisations will
take over, the Council will ensure flexibility in the approach and ensure social
value and local provision is taken into account.

31.

D9
Organisations that have signed up to the etendering system for specific
services, they will automatically be alerted to any potential opportunities.

32.

Ongoing opportunities for dialogue with commissioners will increase. The Council
will begin to publish future commissioning intentions and opportunities and work
with providers as set out to develop solutions.

33.

Standards required by the Council will be proportionate. Organisations have
stated concern around being asked for rigorous data, including financial
standing, environmental policies, health and safety, ISO etc. The commissioning
process will be proportionate and only ask for evidence of standards where this
is necessary. There will not be any prequalification questionnaires for any
procurements that take place under £173k.

34.

The Council is committed to including Social Value criteria where possible.
Commissioning will achieve the best value for money. The Council therefore
seeks to commission for value, not just price and will emphasize the importance
of ‘local’ in setting criteria and evaluating bids and tenders.

35.

The Council will undertake regular reviews of the process. The Council is already
committed to working closely with Strategic Partners and specifically Kingston
Voluntary Action to share commissioning opportunities and rectify issues as they
arise.

36.

Capacity Building may be taken into account in Commissioning services. Where
appropriate the Council will consider Commissioning services on the basis that
the organisation’s corecosts are part or wholly covered.

37.

Performance management of contracts will be proportionate and aimed at
ensuring that outcomes are achieved. Performance indicators will be relevant to
the outcomes. There is no intention that the Council should ‘micromanage’
contracts.

Consultations
38.

The Council started the process in November 2014 with a workshop,
jointlydelivered with VCS key strategic partners which explored what
commissioning meant, and defined the process in the context of grants. This
workshop also looked at developing opportunities in Adult Social Care, Public
Health, Achieving for Children and Clinical Commissioning Group. A follow up
event took place in February which further refined how commissioning works, a
timetable of commissioning activity, and further opportunities. The Lead Member
for Adult Social Care, Health and Voluntary Services signalled the direction of
travel towards a Commissioning approach at both events.

39.

The VCS, through a forum of New Futures 2, also set out some key issues
around Commissioning, some of which have been addressed in the Council’s
Commissioning approach set out in this report. The VCS Board has also
considered issues with the proposed approach.

40.

The Policy and Finance Committee signalled intention to review the Grants
Programme on 12th February. This event was attended by a number of VCS
organisations.

41.

An online consultation took place over four weeks between May and June. This
was promoted through the existing VCS networks and groups, including the
Voluntary and Community Sector Strategy Newsletter, and through KVA. 148
responses were received, from a mix of residents and sector representatives. An
analysis of this consultation is at 
Annex 1
. The full set of responses is at 
Annex
2.

D10
In addition to the online consultation, there were a set of six focus groups for
VCS representatives. One focus group was attended specifically by strategic
partners, with others recruited from a list of VCS organisations. These were
wellattended. The report of these focus groups is shown at 
Annex 3
.

42.

43.

The consultation responses have been considered in full in designing the
proposed policy, with key themes being addressed throughout this report.

44.

The Committee is presented with the summary report from the online
consultation, the report from the focus groups and the full responses from the
online consultation, to ensure they are fully considered and understood in making
the decision.

45.

Key findings from the online consultation
○

62% of respondents expressed a level of support for the proposals and 38%
responded that they did not support the proposals

○

There are concerns from respondents about the competitive tender process
replacing the majority of the grants application process. However
respondents were largely satisfied the proposals will be open, fair and
flexible.

○

The continuing focus on the social value aspect of proposals was received
positively.

46.

47.

Key findings from the voluntary sector focus groups
○

There remains concern about the way the new proposals will work in
practice, including the implications of potentially increased competition within
the sector

○

There was enthusiasm for opportunities the new arrangements would create
with recognition of the support smaller organisations would require and
concern about the impact on organisations of engaging in commissioning

○

Uncertainty for individual organisations as to whether they would receive
funding in the future
Where the main responses received to the consultation have influenced the
policy proposed:

Summarised responses to the consultation

How it has influenced the policy proposed

Evidence the commissioning process
works

The implementation will be evaluated and
reviewed based on the evidence and
learning.
The Council currently commissions the
majority of its annual spend successfully.

Local Organisations will suffer and the loss
of local knowledge and innovation.

The transition funding and emerging needs
arrangements will support local
organisations.
Social Value will be an important part of
the commissioning arrangements,
including use of local provision and
involvement.

D11
Lower value grants are being retained.
The option to award a grant as a result of
the commissioning process is available
where applicable.
Need to be flexible, ensure organisation’s
core costs are funded and provide better
than short term arrangements for
organisations

The proposal allows the Council to work
with partners in the voluntary and
community sector to achieve outcomes.
Engagement and shaping together
commissioning intentions.
The commissioning approach allows
organisation’s core costs to be taken into
account. Organisations can include these
when submitting proposals or tenders.

Bidding process and question whether
there will still be some grants available

The commissioning approach will engage
smaller organisations as well as larger
ones and will be proportionate, fair and
transparent.
The proposals set out the retention of
smaller grants.
The proposals set out the Transition grant
budget and the Emerging needs grant
budget.

Competition over collaboration

The commissioning process is designed to
ensure both collaboration and competition
are possible. The Council’s engagement
process will address design of services
and approach with organisations. The
Council will also look at consortium
proposals where appropriate.

More information needed on the change

If the policy change proposed is agreed,
engagement will commence on the details
of designing commissioning intentions and
launching commissioning activity. This will
follow in July/August.

Individual councillors managing community No individual councillor will be asked to
grants
manage or decide upon the allocation of
grants independently.
More clarity on transition funding

The proposed size of the Transition fund is
set out in the report.

Smaller organisations will need support

The Council has committed to funding
KVA in 2016/17 and 17/18 to support the
sector.
The Council will engage as its sets

D12
commissioning intentions and begins
commissioning activity.
The Council is removing the requirement
to apply for grants where it runs a
commissioning process. It is anticipated
that for organisations currently receiving
less than £100K in grants the level of
capacity needed to participate will be
broadly comparable to the current grants
arrangements. The level of capacity
required by voluntary sector organisations
to respond to commissioning activity rather
than apply for grants will be evaluated and
learning applied.
Timescale
48.

The recommendations will be adopted from 1 April 2016. Further work will be
carried out during summer, leading to Autumn budget, around how allocation of
budgets to outcome areas will be managed.

49.

Ongoing commissioning activity continues, but organisations can expect there to
be further opportunities in Autumn 2015, leading to decisions and award of
contracts end of December 2015, early 2016 (this equate to the grants process,
so organisations will still have time to understand implications).

Resource Implications
50.

The proposed policy change will being maintained and split into commissioning,
transition funding, residual and ongoing commitments, and emerging needs and
small grants (as set out in 21.) The proposed policy change will contribute to the
£107k savings from Strategic Business budget due to reduction in administration.

Legal Implications
51.

The types of services (i.e. Education and vocational health services, Health and
social services and Recreational, cultural and sporting services) that fall under
these provisions were previously governed by the Public Contracts Regulations
2006 (as amended) and classified as Part B services. The Public Contracts
Regulations 2006 (as amended) has been repealed and replaced with a new
regime under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (“PCR 2015”) . Under the
new regime set out in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, services of this
type (that were previously classified as Part B services) with a value over the
financial threshold of £625,050 would fall under the “light touch” regime.. It
appears from the report that many of the services that would fall under the
proposals set out in this report would be of value significantly lower than the
financial threshold and would subsequently fall outside the application of the
PCR 2015. However, the commissioning of the services would still be subject to
the EU Treaty principles of equality, transparency etc., which are the principles
which the EU regulations are derived from, especially if there is a potential for
cross border interest. The Council’s actions in commissioning these services
must also be in accordance with the Council’s Contract Standing Orders.

52.

Notwithstanding, relationships have been established over the years, if the
Council is to pursue commissioning rather than grant funding, it must be mindful

D13
that during the commissioning process (e.g. any preengagement, in the tender
documents and the evaluation criteria used, and during the procurement), that
VSOs or any other organisations that have previously received funding are not
given, or could be perceived to have been given, preferential treatment. The
Council should also be mindful of its Best value Duty.
53.

The proposed policy change is within the Council’s legal powers to implement.

Risk Assessment
54.

The key risks include the concerns set out in the consultation, some of which are
addressed in the Commissioning approach and the proposed policy changes set
out in this report.

55.

The preexisting risk with the grants programme remains in that organisations will
not always be able to rely on receiving funding from the Council. This will be true
from Commissioning services, and the Council is committed to increasing
opportunities through the process. The Council’s role in ensuring a
welldeveloped and robust sector is essential.

56.

VAT has been raised as an ongoing question through consultation. Kingston
Voluntary Action has provided VCS with overall guidance but there is not a ‘one
size fits all’ approach. VCS will need to take individual guidance from HMRC
before contracting. The types of scenarios include the following:
○
○
○
○
○
○

If an unconditional grant is given to a VCS organisation there are generally
no VAT implications
If a grant is conditional on certain supplies being made and these supplies
are VATable, the VCS will need to charge VAT if it is VAT registered.
If VATable services are commissioned, the VCS organisation will need to
charge VAT if registered.
Any organisation that has VAT taxable turnover of more than £82,000.00 in a
twelve month period must register for VAT. It will then be able to recover the
VAT incurred in providing any taxable supply.
If a VCS organisation is registered for VAT but provides an exempt supply it
will not be able to recover the VAT on its costs of that supply.
For the VCS organisation, VAT is due to HMRC when a tax point is
established (i.e. when the services are provided or when an invoice is sent
out). An invoice must be sent out within 14 days of the service provision
unless authority has been obtained in advance from HMRC. This means the
VCSO may well have to pay VAT over to HMRC before being paid by the
commissioner.

Equalities Impact Assessment
57.

The full Equalities Impact Assessment is attached at 
Annex 4. This relates to the
proposed change in policy. Any individual commissioning decisions that follow
will be subject to further EQIA. Contextual demographic data is included at
Annex 5
.

Network Implications
58.

There are no direct implications on road/transport networks.

Environmental Implications

59.

There are no direct implications.

D14

Background papers  
held by authors of report 
Chris Morgan, Capability Lead Commissioning Tel: 020 8547 5300
Kevin Mitchell, Capability Lead Strategy: Tel: 020 8547 5982
● VCS Strategy & Compact
● Consultation Report and Responses
● Council spend data

D15

ANNEX 1

Grants to Commissioning
Online Consultation Findings
Introduction
A consultation was conducted to gather views from stakeholders in the voluntary and
community sector (VCS) in Kingston on the proposal to transfer from grant based funding to
commissioning. This report provides the findings from one aspect of the consultation, the
online consultation. Other aspects of the consultation include workshops conducted by an
independent organisation and two previous meetings with the voluntary and community
sector.

Methodology
The online consultation was published on Kingston Council’s website and open to all who
wished to express their views. All local voluntary and community groups known to the
Council (approximately 500) and other Council partners were directly emailed with a link to
the consultation and encouraged to forward it on to people receiving their services, staff,
trustees and volunteers.
The consultation ran from 15 May to 15 June 2015.
A copy of the consultation questions can be found in Appendix 1.
A full transcript of all comments received can be found at Appendix 2. The main body of the
report includes summarised comments based on the main themes identified.

1

D16

Demography of Respondents
Respondents included residents, VCS employees, VCS trustees, VCS volunteers and
people who receive services from a voluntary organisation. Out of the 148 respondents, 62
responded as residents, 45 on behalf of a VCS organisation they work for, 34 on behalf of a
VCS organisation they are a trustee of, 29 on behalf of a VCS organisation they volunteer for
and 6 on behalf of a VCS organisation they receive services from. Please note that
respondents were able to choose more than one respondent type.
Respondents were largely white (71%, 105), with 14% (20) from an ethnic minority
background.

32% (47) of respondents were in the 55-64 age group. The next largest group was the 45-54
group with 25% (37). This means more than half of respondents (57%, 84) were between 45
and 64. 14% (20) each were between 35-44 and 65-74.

2

D17

Overall response to the proposed change
A total of 148 individual responses were received, of which 38% (56) said they did not
support the move at all. However, when adding together responses that expressed support
from “a little extent” through to “a large extent”, a total of 62% (92) expressed some form of
support for the proposal. 9% (13) of respondents said they supported it to “a large extent”,
16% (22) to a “moderate extent”, 17% (26) to “some extent”, and 20% (29) to “a little extent”.

There are no significant differences between the types of respondents, compared with each
other and compared to the total for this question. All groups are more likely to have chosen
the option for no support, than any of the other options expressing from a little to a large
extent of support.

3

D18

Respondents were asked to provide commentary on the extent they agreed or disagreed
with the approach.
Evidence the commissioning approach works
Respondents commented on the lack of available information to show that the
commissioning approach works. Some stated that they had not seen any information that
this had benefited other authorities and if there was evidence it should be included with the
proposal whilst others thought that available evidence from national sources did not support
this approach. The cost of implementing was also seen to be an issue and some
questioned whether commissioning would lead to better outcomes. One respondent thought
that the introduction of a commissioning approach would have a detrimental effect on
funding, saying “There is clear evidence that Grants produce a gearing of 4:1 funding
levered into the borough. Local Voluntary and Community Groups have consistently argued
against such a move at all the workshops, at all meetings and at the Voluntary Sector Board.
This voice has been ignored”.
Local organisations will suffer
Respondents thought that commissioning would threaten the existence of small, local
organisations, particularly those that are run by volunteers. These were perceived to run
essential services for people who had complex needs. Some respondents thought the
process would favour larger, commercial organisations and national organisations would
have resources to bid and would exclude local groups.
It was thought these bigger, competitive companies would win tenders and push out smaller,
local organisations. Respondents feared that commercial organisations measure their
success by profits whilst the voluntary sector measures them by the effect they have on the
people they work with. They thought this would result in a loss of local knowledge and trust
that has developed over many years which would disadvantage the local community. Some
respondents thought that the commissioning process would not support emerging needs and
4

D19

new objectives and would reduce creativity and innovation amongst local organisations. It
was also felt that the commissioning process would have a negative effect on co-operation
and partnership working which organisations had successfully used to design services that
met local needs rather than acting against each other.
Other comments
Respondents also thought the process would lead to increased costs for organisations and
RBK; there should be grants for organisations to cover core costs; the current grant system
is more flexible and should be kept or amended; have alternatives such as service level
agreements been explored and the commissioning contracts may be short term.

5

D20

Principles:

The survey asked how respondents felt if the overall pot if money would remain the same as
in the previous years’ grants programme. Out of a 147 responses, 45% (67) felt it was
“satisfactory”, 28% (41) said it was “unsatisfactory” and 22% (32) thought it was “excellent”.
5% (7) answered “don’t know”.

Apart from Volunteers and those that receive services from a VCS organisation, other types
of respondents, including VCS employees, trustees and local residents were more likely to
answer it was “unsatisfactory” rather than “excellent”, however the largest response across
all respondent types was “satisfactory”.

6

D21

The majority of respondents (51%, 76) are unsatisfied with this proposal. 30% (44) thought it
was “satisfactory” and 15% (22) felt it was “excellent”.

The responses by the individual types mirror the overall response to the proposal. The
majority of VCS employees (53%, 24) and trustees (62%, 21) said the proposal is
“unsatisfactory”.

7

D22

Respondents were largely satisfied with the proposal that the bidding process will be open,
fair and flexible, with 64% (95) people saying this was excellent or satisfactory. 26% (39)
said they were unsatisfied with this, while 7% (11) chose “Don’t Know” as their option.

Volunteers are the largest group at 43% (12) who thought the proposal was “Excellent”. VCS
employees, local residents and service users were most likely to say this was “Satisfactory”,
while trustees were the only group of which the majority (42%, 14) said this was
“Unsatisfactory”.

8

D23

43% (63) of respondents said the above statement was “Satisfactory”, while 16% (23) said it
was “Excellent”. A total of 28% (41) said the proposal was “Unsatisfactory”, while 9% (14)
answered “Don’t Know”.

The individual respondent group responses largely mirrored the total response to this
question, with the preferred option for most groups being “Satisfactory”. Only VCS
employees chose “Unsatisfactory” (39%, 17) more than “Satisfactory” (36%, 16).

9

D24

The vast majority of respondents at 83% (123) said they found this proposal “Excellent”
(47%, 69) or “Satisfactory” (36%, 54). Only 9% (13) of respondents thought this was
“Unsatisfactory” and 4% (6) chose “Don’t Know”.

Most respondent groups said this pledge was “Excellent”, with only VCS trustees saying this
was “Satisfactory” (50%, 15) more than it was “Excellent” (33%, 10). 60% (27) of VCS
employees and 59% (16) of volunteers said this was “Excellent”.

10

D25

On the Principles sections of the questionnaire, respondents were asked for reasons if they
said the considerations were unsatisfactory and how they could be improved.

Bidding process
Many respondents commented that it would be difficult for smaller organisations in the
voluntary sector to prepare competitive bids against larger, commercial organisations that
would be more used to writing tenders; listing human resources, capacity, time, IT and
expertise as potential issues. Organisations often relied on volunteers and wondered how
they would be empowered to tender and what kind of bid writing support would be provided
by the Council? Some respondents thought that the process could put smaller organisations
at risk of closure if they did not receive funding. One respondent commented that

“Not sure how small voluntary organisations who rely mainly on their volunteers to
seek resources/funding can be empowered to bid with competitive tenders who are
obviously successful businesses whose main objective is to make money”

Competition over collaborative working
Respondents thought that the commissioning process would lead to organisations
competing against each other; this was seen to be detrimental. Organisations stated that
they always tried to work in a collaborative way, complimenting each other to make the best
use of resources rather than competing against each other in a tendering process. It was
thought that if organisations were competing against each other it could damage working
relationships and services.

Loss of local knowledge and innovation
Respondents also thought that the commissioning process may lead to out of borough
organisations delivering services that meet the contract specification rather than the needs
of local people. It was felt that commissioning would not allow organisations to develop and
deliver services that adapted to the changing needs of the community and would reduce the
ability of organisation to develop their own initiatives. Potentially organisations from outside
of the borough may be delivering services in a locality which they were not as familiar with
as local organisations; this could lead to a loss of local knowledge, experience and bespoke
services.

11

D26

Evidence the current system is not working
Some respondents commented that they felt there was no evidence to support the current
grants system was not working or that a competitive tendering process would provide
greater value for public money. Some wondered who would pay for the changes whilst
some organisation stated that “the most recent reports from NHS England, Audit
Commission and The Big Lottery all now support grants over commissioning process”.
Others thought that the current system of grants should be retained or at least included as
part of a commissioning approach.

Other comments
Other comments were also received stating the need for more information; how and who will
decide on the outcome areas; annual reviews or contracts may be too regular and a few
respondents suggested commissioners should visit existing providers.

12

D27

Grants

The most common response chosen in regards to this statement was “Satisfactory” (45%,
66), with an equal number (23%, 34) choosing “Excellent” and “Unsatisfactory”. 9% (14)
chose “Don’t Know”.

The responses by respondent type reflected the responses made overall. “Unsatisfactory”
was the second most common response for all types apart from for VCS trustees, of whom
33% (10) chose “Excellent” as their second most common response, compared to 17% (5)
for “Unsatisfactory”.

13

D28

83% (122) of respondents said the creation of the grant was either “Excellent” (40%, 59) or
“Satisfactory (43%, 63). Only 13% (19) said this was “Unsatisfactory”. 4% (6) chose “Don’t
Know”.

VCS service receivers were the only group who were largely unsatisfied with the grant, with
50% (3) choosing “Unsatisfactory”. All other groups’ first choice was either “Excellent” or
“Satisfactory”.

14

D29

The largest proportion of respondents (49%, 72) said this proposition was “Unsatisfactory”.
26% (38) chose “Satisfactory” and 18% (27) said this was “Excellent”.

38% (11) of VCS volunteers chose “Satisfactory”, making them the only group to make this
their first choice. All other groups largely chose “Unsatisfactory”, with the majority of
residents (53%, 33) and VCS employees (58%, 26) choosing this option.

15

D30

On the Grants sections of the questionnaire, respondents were asked for reasons if they
said the considerations were unsatisfactory and how they could be improved.

Individual councillors managing community grants
Many respondents commented that they did not think it was appropriate to access
community grants through a local councillor contact. Organisations stated that the process
should be independent and transparent and based on an organisation’s ability to plan and
deliver services. One group commented that “I do not believe that councillors should
manage community grants; as they represent certain political views this could lead to certain
charities or community organisations being chosen over others. This process should be
independent, open, non-political and based on evidence and need”
Some thought it could lead to a potential source of conflict for councillors whilst others
thought groups may lose out if they are not on the political agenda. Some questioned how
groups would be able to access councillors and how the overall balance in outcome areas
would be achieved. A few respondents suggested these grants could be decided by a
Committee.

More clarity on transition fund
Some respondents stated they needed more information about the transitions fund. Areas
such as how big the fund would be, which organisations could apply, who would be eligible,
what happens after two years of transition funds, would groups have to close and would
funding be sustained were all points that needed clarification. Respondents also wanted to
know if people deciding the funding had sufficient information about all the groups in the
borough to make informed decisions.

Keep the existing grant system
A few respondents commented that the current grants system should be retained. This was
seen to be important particularity for smaller organisations that would be unable to survive
without a grant. Another suggestion was for a mixed system of funding where grants would
remain the main funding stream but would be complimented by the Council commissioning
for specific needs that were not being met by the voluntary sector.

Other comments
Respondents also commented hat they thought the grant options need to be more
transparent, some needed more information about the options, some thought it would lead to
more bureaucracy and would lead to organisations competing against each other while a few
respondents thought that the decision to move to a commissioning process had already
been made.

16

D31

Further Questions
Respondents were also asked two open text questions for further suggestions:

1. Based on your knowledge of the VCS, could you suggest the top three
measures that we could implement to reduce this risk?
The most popular suggestions were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintain the current grant system
Support and training for organisations to commission and obtain future funding
Support organisations to work in a collaborative way, working together or partnership
working
Grants for smaller organisations for fixed costs, such as rent and salaries
Implement commissioning in transitional/phased in approach
Support long standing organisations and small charities
Evaluate services based on the needs of the community and the number of people
benefiting from the service
Ensure commissioners have a comprehensive understanding of the voluntary sector
so they can make evidence based decisions
Ensure the process is transparent
Work with smaller organisations as there is a risk they may disappear
Have grants as well as commissioned services or grants for under a specified
amount of money
Work with the voluntary sector to develop future policies
Prioritise or ring fence money for certain organisations
Ensure larger organisations do not overshadow smaller groups
Retain locally trained staff
Value local services over out of borough service providers
Review the timetable

2. Are there any other implications of the council moving from a grants
applications to a commissioning approach that you would like to
highlight?
As with the previous questions there were a few main issues that respondents highlighted.

A grant system allows the voluntary sector to respond to local need with
innovative services
Respondents thought that if services are commissioned then the voluntary sector would not
be able to identify the needs in the community and access funding to meet those needs. By
moving to a commissioning model, respondents thought they could lose the independence to
respond to the needs of the communities they work with every day.

17

D32

Difficulty for smaller organisations to bid so may lose funding
Respondents wanted the Council to recognise the difficulties smaller organisations may
have in the bidding process. Smaller organisations provide discrete services to small
cohorts of people who may otherwise rely on Council services. It was felt preparing bids
would be resource intensive and smaller organisations would find it difficult to survive. Some
respondents commented on capacity issues for smaller organisations such as VAT and
quality marks.

Loss of local experience
Respondents thought that if large organisations with more resources from outside the
borough were commissioned some voluntary organisations may not able to deliver services
and their local knowledge, experience and trust of working in the local area would be lost
and levels of service provided could be undermined.

Competition rather than co-operation
Some respondents thought that commissioning would lead to increased competition
between local organisations and feared this would lead to a breakdown in relationships.
Some thought that if organisations have to compete against each other they would not be
able to collaborate together to develop local services which would have a negative effect for
service users.

Grants attract other funding
Some respondents thought that the grant system attracted funding from other organisations
such as the Lottery. Some stated that often the value of the grant is multiplied by other
sources of funding, goodwill and the value of volunteers' time and commitment which they
believed would not happen under a commissioning approach.

Other comments
Some respondents wanted to know how commissioners would up-skill smaller organisations
to compete in the bidding process and what support, advice and guidance would be
available. Others had concerns about increased bureaucracy, how the tenders will be
evaluated and whether it would take account of social value and where the evidence is that
commissioning works. Many individual suggestions were also recorded.

18

D33

ANNEX 2

Grants to Commissioning
Online Consultation Findings
Introduction
A consultation was conducted to gather views from stakeholders in the voluntary and
community sector (VCS) in Kingston on the proposal to transfer from grant based funding to
commissioning. This report provides the findings from one aspect of the consultation, the
online consultation. Other aspects of the consultation include workshops conducted by an
independent organisation and two previous meetings with the voluntary and community
sector.

Methodology
The online consultation was published on Kingston Council’s website and open to all who
wished to express their views. All local voluntary and community groups known to the
Council (approximately 500) and other Council partners were directly emailed with a link to
the consultation and encouraged to forward it on to people receiving their services, staff,
trustees and volunteers.
The consultation ran from 15 May to 15 June 2015.
A copy of the consultation questions can be found in Appendix 1.
A full transcript of all comments received can be found at Appendix 2. The main body of the
report includes summarised comments based on the main themes identified.

1

D34

Demography of Respondents
Respondents included residents, VCS employees, VCS trustees, VCS volunteers and
people who receive services from a voluntary organisation. Out of the 148 respondents, 62
responded as residents, 45 on behalf of a VCS organisation they work for, 34 on behalf of a
VCS organisation they are a trustee of, 29 on behalf of a VCS organisation they volunteer for
and 6 on behalf of a VCS organisation they receive services from. Please note that
respondents were able to choose more than one respondent type.
Respondents were largely white (71%, 105), with 14% (20) from an ethnic minority
background.

Respondents by ethnicity
71%

White

14%

16%

BAME

No response

32% (47) of respondents were in the 55-64 age group. The next largest group was the 45-54
group with 25% (37). This means more than half of respondents (57%, 84) were between 45
and 64. 14% (20) each were between 35-44 and 65-74.

Respondents by Age Group
32%
25%

14%

14%

9%
1%
16-24

5%

25-34

1%
35-44

45-54

55-64

2

65-74

75+

No
response

D35

Overall response to the proposed change
A total of 148 individual responses were received, of which 38% (56) said they did not
support the move at all. However, when adding together responses that expressed support
from “a little extent” through to “a large extent”, a total of 62% (92) expressed some form of
support for the proposal. 9% (13) of respondents said they supported it to “a large extent”,
16% (22) to a “moderate extent”, 17% (26) to “some extent”, and 20% (29) to “a little extent”.

Support for Grants to Commissioning
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
To a large
extent

To a moderate
extent

To some
extent

To a little
extent

Not at all

There are no significant differences between the types of respondents, compared with each
other and compared to the total for this question. All groups are more likely to have chosen
the option for no support, than any of the other options expressing from a little to a large
extent of support.

Support for Grants to Commissioning by
Respondent Type
70%
60%

As a resident

50%
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40%
30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

10%
0%
To a large To a
To some To a little Not at all
extent moderate extent
extent
extent

3

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

D36

Respondents were asked to provide commentary on the extent they agreed or disagreed
with the approach.
Evidence the commissioning approach works
Respondents commented on the lack of available information to show that the
commissioning approach works. Some stated that they had not seen any information that
this had benefited other authorities and if there was evidence it should be included with the
proposal whilst others thought that available evidence from national sources did not support
this approach. The cost of implementing was also seen to be an issue and some
questioned whether commissioning would lead to better outcomes. One respondent thought
that the introduction of a commissioning approach would have a detrimental effect on
funding, saying “There is clear evidence that Grants produce a gearing of 4:1 funding
levered into the borough. Local Voluntary and Community Groups have consistently argued
against such a move at all the workshops, at all meetings and at the Voluntary Sector Board.
This voice has been ignored”.
Local organisations will suffer
Respondents thought that commissioning would threaten the existence of small, local
organisations, particularly those that are run by volunteers. These were perceived to run
essential services for people who had complex needs. Some respondents thought the
process would favour larger, commercial organisations and national organisations would
have resources to bid and would exclude local groups.
It was thought these bigger, competitive companies would win tenders and push out smaller,
local organisations. Respondents feared that commercial organisations measure their
success by profits whilst the voluntary sector measures them by the effect they have on the
people they work with. They thought this would result in a loss of local knowledge and trust
that has developed over many years which would disadvantage the local community. Some
respondents thought that the commissioning process would not support emerging needs and
new objectives and would reduce creativity and innovation amongst local organisations. It
was also felt that the commissioning process would have a negative effect on co-operation
and partnership working which organisations had successfully used to design services that
met local needs rather than acting against each other.
Other comments
Respondents also thought the process would lead to increased costs for organisations and
RBK; there should be grants for organisations to cover core costs; the current grant system
is more flexible and should be kept or amended; have alternatives such as service level
agreements been explored and the commissioning contracts may be short term.

4

D37

Principles:
The overall pot of money would remain the same as that in the
2014/15 grants programme
Excellent

22%

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

45%

[No Response]

28%

5%1%

The survey asked how respondents felt if the overall pot if money would remain the same as
in the previous years’ grants programme. Out of a 147 responses, 45% (67) felt it was
“satisfactory”, 28% (41) said it was “unsatisfactory” and 22% (32) thought it was “excellent”.
5% (7) answered “don’t know”.

The overall pot of money would remain the same as that in the
2014/15 grants programme
70.00%
60.00%

As a resident

50.00%
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40.00%
30.00%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20.00%
10.00%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

0.00%
Excellent

Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Don't know

Apart from Volunteers and those that receive services from a VCS organisation, other types
of respondents, including VCS employees, trustees and local residents were more likely to
answer it was “unsatisfactory” rather than “excellent”, however the largest response across
all respondent types was “satisfactory”.

5

D38

Voluntary and community organisations would be empowered to bid with
competitive tenders to deliver the services that best meet the needs of
local people
Excellent

15%

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

30%

Don't know

51%

4%

The majority of respondents (51%, 76) are unsatisfied with this proposal. 30% (44) thought it
was “satisfactory” and 15% (22) felt it was “excellent”.

Voluntary and community organisations would be empowered to bid
with competitive tenders to deliver the services that best meet the
needs of local people
70%
60%

As a resident

50%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40%
30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

10%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

0%
Excellent

Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Don't know

The responses by the individual types mirror the overall response to the proposal. The
majority of VCS employees (53%, 24) and trustees (62%, 21) said the proposal is
“unsatisfactory”.

6

D39

The bidding process will be open, fair, competitive and most
importantly, flexible to the needs of the range of the Voluntary and
Community Sector organisations
Excellent

Satisfactory

27%

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

37%

[No Response]

26%

7% 2%

Respondents were largely satisfied with the proposal that the bidding process will be open,
fair and flexible, with 64% (95) people saying this was excellent or satisfactory. 26% (39)
said they were unsatisfied with this, while 7% (11) chose “Don’t Know” as their option.

The bidding process will be open, fair, competitive and most
importantly, flexible to the needs of the range of the Voluntary and
Community Sector organisations
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

As a resident
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

Volunteers are the largest group at 43% (12) who thought the proposal was “Excellent”. VCS
employees, local residents and service users were most likely to say this was “Satisfactory”,
while trustees were the only group of which the majority (42%, 14) said this was
“Unsatisfactory”.

7

D40

Grants are currently allocated to different 'outcome areas' (such as
environmental projects, advice and information and disabled people).
We would look to replicate this allocation of money to different
outcome areas under the new commissioning process
Excellent

Satisfactory

16%

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

43%

[No Response]

28%

9%

5%

43% (63) of respondents said the above statement was “Satisfactory”, while 16% (23) said it
was “Excellent”. A total of 28% (41) said the proposal was “Unsatisfactory”, while 9% (14)
answered “Don’t Know”.

Grants are currently allocated to different 'outcome areas' (such as
environmental projects, advice and information and disabled people).
We would look to replicate this allocation of money to different
outcome areas under the new commissioning process
60%

As a resident

50%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40%
30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%
10%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

0%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

The individual respondent group responses largely mirrored the total response to this
question, with the preferred option for most groups being “Satisfactory”. Only VCS
employees chose “Unsatisfactory” (39%, 17) more than “Satisfactory” (36%, 16).

8

D41

The social value aspect of proposals will be highly regarded in the
evaluation of the bids
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

47%

[No Response]

36%

9%

4% 4%

The vast majority of respondents at 83% (123) said they found this proposal “Excellent”
(47%, 69) or “Satisfactory” (36%, 54). Only 9% (13) of respondents thought this was
“Unsatisfactory” and 4% (6) chose “Don’t Know”.

The social value aspect of proposals will be highly regarded in the
evaluation of the bids
70%
As a resident

60%
50%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40%
30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

10%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

0%
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

Most respondent groups said this pledge was “Excellent”, with only VCS trustees saying this
was “Satisfactory” (50%, 15) more than it was “Excellent” (33%, 10). 60% (27) of VCS
employees and 59% (16) of volunteers said this was “Excellent”.

9

D42

On the Principles sections of the questionnaire, respondents were asked for reasons if they
said the considerations were unsatisfactory and how they could be improved.

Bidding process
Many respondents commented that it would be difficult for smaller organisations in the
voluntary sector to prepare competitive bids against larger, commercial organisations that
would be more used to writing tenders; listing human resources, capacity, time, IT and
expertise as potential issues. Organisations often relied on volunteers and wondered how
they would be empowered to tender and what kind of bid writing support would be provided
by the Council? Some respondents thought that the process could put smaller organisations
at risk of closure if they did not receive funding. One respondent commented that

“Not sure how small voluntary organisations who rely mainly on their volunteers to
seek resources/funding can be empowered to bid with competitive tenders who are
obviously successful businesses whose main objective is to make money”

Competition over collaborative working
Respondents thought that the commissioning process would lead to organisations
competing against each other; this was seen to be detrimental. Organisations stated that
they always tried to work in a collaborative way, complimenting each other to make the best
use of resources rather than competing against each other in a tendering process. It was
thought that if organisations were competing against each other it could damage working
relationships and services.

Loss of local knowledge and innovation
Respondents also thought that the commissioning process may lead to out of borough
organisations delivering services that meet the contract specification rather than the needs
of local people. It was felt that commissioning would not allow organisations to develop and
deliver services that adapted to the changing needs of the community and would reduce the
ability of organisation to develop their own initiatives. Potentially organisations from outside
of the borough may be delivering services in a locality which they were not as familiar with
as local organisations; this could lead to a loss of local knowledge, experience and bespoke
services.

10

D43

Evidence the current system is not working
Some respondents commented that they felt there was no evidence to support the current
grants system was not working or that a competitive tendering process would provide
greater value for public money. Some wondered who would pay for the changes whilst
some organisation stated that “the most recent reports from NHS England, Audit
Commission and The Big Lottery all now support grants over commissioning process”.
Others thought that the current system of grants should be retained or at least included as
part of a commissioning approach.

Other comments
Other comments were also received stating the need for more information; how and who will
decide on the outcome areas; annual reviews or contracts may be too regular and a few
respondents suggested commissioners should visit existing providers.

11

D44

Grants
Create a transition fund for the first two years, after the commissioning
approach is put in place, to support specific organisations on a case by
case basis
Excellent

23%

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

45%

23%

9%

The most common response chosen in regards to this statement was “Satisfactory” (45%,
66), with an equal number (23%, 34) choosing “Excellent” and “Unsatisfactory”. 9% (14)
chose “Don’t Know”.

Create a transition fund for the first two years, after the
commissioning approach is put in place, to support specific
organisations on a case by case basis
60%
As a resident

50%
40%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

10%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

0%
Excellent

Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Don't know

The responses by respondent type reflected the responses made overall. “Unsatisfactory”
was the second most common response for all types apart from for VCS trustees, of whom
33% (10) chose “Excellent” as their second most common response, compared to 17% (5)
for “Unsatisfactory”.

12

D45

Create a discretionary grant to support emerging needs (as described in
the current grant guidance)
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

40%

Don't know

[No Response]

43%

13%

4%1%

83% (122) of respondents said the creation of the grant was either “Excellent” (40%, 59) or
“Satisfactory (43%, 63). Only 13% (19) said this was “Unsatisfactory”. 4% (6) chose “Don’t
Know”.

Create a discretionary grant to support emerging needs (as described in
the current grant guidance)
60%

As a resident

50%
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

40%
30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of

20%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

10%
0%
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

VCS service receivers were the only group who were largely unsatisfied with the grant, with
50% (3) choosing “Unsatisfactory”. All other groups’ first choice was either “Excellent” or
“Satisfactory”.

13

D46

Create a small community grant which will be accessed directly
through a local councillor contact
Excellent

18%

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

26%

Don't know

49%

7%

The largest proportion of respondents (49%, 72) said this proposition was “Unsatisfactory”.
26% (38) chose “Satisfactory” and 18% (27) said this was “Excellent”.

Create a small community grant which will be accessed directly
through a local councillor contact
70%
60%

As a resident

50%
40%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you work for

30%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you are a trustee of
On behalf of a VCS organisation
you volunteer for

20%
10%

On behalf of a VCS organisation
you receive services from

0%
Excellent

Satisfactory

Unsatisfactory

Don't know

38% (11) of VCS volunteers chose “Satisfactory”, making them the only group to make this
their first choice. All other groups largely chose “Unsatisfactory”, with the majority of
residents (53%, 33) and VCS employees (58%, 26) choosing this option.

14

D47

On the Grants sections of the questionnaire, respondents were asked for reasons if they
said the considerations were unsatisfactory and how they could be improved.

Individual councillors managing community grants
Many respondents commented that they did not think it was appropriate to access
community grants through a local councillor contact. Organisations stated that the process
should be independent and transparent and based on an organisation’s ability to plan and
deliver services. One group commented that “I do not believe that councillors should
manage community grants; as they represent certain political views this could lead to certain
charities or community organisations being chosen over others. This process should be
independent, open, non-political and based on evidence and need”
Some thought it could lead to a potential source of conflict for councillors whilst others
thought groups may lose out if they are not on the political agenda. Some questioned how
groups would be able to access councillors and how the overall balance in outcome areas
would be achieved. A few respondents suggested these grants could be decided by a
Committee.

More clarity on transition fund
Some respondents stated they needed more information about the transitions fund. Areas
such as how big the fund would be, which organisations could apply, who would be eligible,
what happens after two years of transition funds, would groups have to close and would
funding be sustained were all points that needed clarification. Respondents also wanted to
know if people deciding the funding had sufficient information about all the groups in the
borough to make informed decisions.

Keep the existing grant system
A few respondents commented that the current grants system should be retained. This was
seen to be important particularity for smaller organisations that would be unable to survive
without a grant. Another suggestion was for a mixed system of funding where grants would
remain the main funding stream but would be complimented by the Council commissioning
for specific needs that were not being met by the voluntary sector.

Other comments
Respondents also commented hat they thought the grant options need to be more
transparent, some needed more information about the options, some thought it would lead to
more bureaucracy and would lead to organisations competing against each other while a few
respondents thought that the decision to move to a commissioning process had already
been made.

15

D48

Further Questions
Respondents were also asked two open text questions for further suggestions:

1. Based on your knowledge of the VCS, could you suggest the top three
measures that we could implement to reduce this risk?
The most popular suggestions were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintain the current grant system
Support and training for organisations to commission and obtain future funding
Support organisations to work in a collaborative way, working together or partnership
working
Grants for smaller organisations for fixed costs, such as rent and salaries
Implement commissioning in transitional/phased in approach
Support long standing organisations and small charities
Evaluate services based on the needs of the community and the number of people
benefiting from the service
Ensure commissioners have a comprehensive understanding of the voluntary sector
so they can make evidence based decisions
Ensure the process is transparent
Work with smaller organisations as there is a risk they may disappear
Have grants as well as commissioned services or grants for under a specified
amount of money
Work with the voluntary sector to develop future policies
Prioritise or ring fence money for certain organisations
Ensure larger organisations do not overshadow smaller groups
Retain locally trained staff
Value local services over out of borough service providers
Review the timetable

2. Are there any other implications of the council moving from a grants
applications to a commissioning approach that you would like to
highlight?
As with the previous questions there were a few main issues that respondents highlighted.

A grant system allows the voluntary sector to respond to local need with
innovative services
Respondents thought that if services are commissioned then the voluntary sector would not
be able to identify the needs in the community and access funding to meet those needs. By
moving to a commissioning model, respondents thought they could lose the independence to
respond to the needs of the communities they work with every day.

16

D49

Difficulty for smaller organisations to bid so may lose funding
Respondents wanted the Council to recognise the difficulties smaller organisations may
have in the bidding process. Smaller organisations provide discrete services to small
cohorts of people who may otherwise rely on Council services. It was felt preparing bids
would be resource intensive and smaller organisations would find it difficult to survive. Some
respondents commented on capacity issues for smaller organisations such as VAT and
quality marks.

Loss of local experience
Respondents thought that if large organisations with more resources from outside the
borough were commissioned some voluntary organisations may not able to deliver services
and their local knowledge, experience and trust of working in the local area would be lost
and levels of service provided could be undermined.

Competition rather than co-operation
Some respondents thought that commissioning would lead to increased competition
between local organisations and feared this would lead to a breakdown in relationships.
Some thought that if organisations have to compete against each other they would not be
able to collaborate together to develop local services which would have a negative effect for
service users.

Grants attract other funding
Some respondents thought that the grant system attracted funding from other organisations
such as the Lottery. Some stated that often the value of the grant is multiplied by other
sources of funding, goodwill and the value of volunteers' time and commitment which they
believed would not happen under a commissioning approach.

Other comments
Some respondents wanted to know how commissioners would up-skill smaller organisations
to compete in the bidding process and what support, advice and guidance would be
available. Others had concerns about increased bureaucracy, how the tenders will be
evaluated and whether it would take account of social value and where the evidence is that
commissioning works. Many individual suggestions were also recorded.

17

D50

Appendix 1 - Questionnaire

18

VCS grantsD51
applications to commissioning approach

1 VCS grants applications to commissioning approach
Commissioning principles

Commissioning is about achieving the right outcomes by deciding what service is needed,
how it should be delivered, and which public, private or third sector organisation should
deliver it with effective use of resources.

Below are listed the key principles on which the commissioning approach is based. How
do you rate them?
(please select one answer for each question)
Excellent Satisfactory Unsatisfactory
The overall pot of money would remain the
same as that in the 2014/15 grants
programme.
Voluntary and community organisations
would be empowered to bid with
competitive tenders to deliver the services
that best meet the needs of local people.
The bidding process will be open, fair,
competitive and most importantly, flexible
to the needs of the range of the Voluntary
and Community Sector organisations.
Grants are currently allocated to different
'outcome areas' (such as environmental
projects, advice and information and
disabled people). We would look to
replicate this allocation of money to
different outcome areas under the new
commissioning process. This will be
regularly reviewed, most likely annually.
The social value aspect of proposals will
be highly regarded in the evaluation of the
bids.

Don't
know

1

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D52approach
If you think that any of the considerations are unsatisfactory, please tell us how we could
improve them.

2

VCS grantsD53
applications to commissioning approach
Grant support options
Although it is expected that the majority of the grant budget will be transferred to the commissioning
pot, we are exploring the possibility of keeping a small proportion of the grant budget to serve a
number of functions.
What are your views of the following suggestions?
(please select one answer for each question)
Excellent

Satisfactory Unsatisfactory

Don't know

Create a transition fund for the
first two years, after the
commissioning approach is put
in place, to support specific
organisations on a case by case
basis.
Create a discretionary grant to
support emerging needs (as
described in the current grant
guidance).
Create a small community grant
which will be accessed directly
through a local councillor
contact.

3

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D54approach
If you think that any of the functions are unsatisfactory, please tell us how we could improve
them?

4

Overall, to what extent do you agree with the proposal of moving from a grants applications
to a commissioning approach?
(please select one answer)
To a large extent .......................................................................................................................
To a moderate extent ................................................................................................................
To some extent .........................................................................................................................
To a little extent ........................................................................................................................
Not at all ...................................................................................................................................

VCS grantsD55
applications to commissioning approach
Please tell us why?

5

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D56approach
Reducing the risk of a commissioning approach
Even with an appropriate commissioning approach in place, there is a chance that some
organisations that currently receive grants will not be funded in the future, putting potentially valuable
organisations in a difficult financial position. The Council has a role in supporting a well-developed
and robust voluntary sector to ensure provision of essential services.
Based on your knowledge of the VCS, could you suggest the top three measures that we
could implement to reduce this risk?

6

VCS grantsD57
applications to commissioning approach
Are there any other implications of the council moving from a grants applications to a
commissioning approach that you would like to highlight?

7

About you
Are you responding:
(please select all that apply)
As a resident .............................................................................................................................
On behalf of a VCS organisation you work for .........................................................................
On behalf of a VCS organisation you are a trustee of ..............................................................
On behalf of a VCS organisation you volunteer for ..................................................................
On behalf of a VCS organisation you receive services from ....................................................
What is the name of the organisation?

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D58approach
Postcode
Your postcode will help us to analyse the responses. It will not be used to identify you personally
or your individual property.
If you do not live in the borough but are responding on behalf of a VCS organisation, please
provide the organisation's postcode.
Please tell us you postcode

Equalities monitoring
The Council will use the information provided below to ensure services are developed to meet the
needs of all the community.

8

We know that the monitoring questions are personal and private. We treat the information in a
sensitive and confidential way as required by the Data Protection Act.

VCS grantsD59
applications to commissioning approach
How would you describe your ethnic group?
(please select one answer)
White
English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British ...................................................................
Gypsy or Irish Traveller .............................................................................................................
Irish ...........................................................................................................................................
Other white ...............................................................................................................................
Mixed
White and Black Caribbean ......................................................................................................
White and Black African ...........................................................................................................
White and Asian .......................................................................................................................
Other Mixed background ..........................................................................................................
Asian or Asian British
Bangladeshi ..............................................................................................................................
Chinese ....................................................................................................................................
Indian ........................................................................................................................................
Korean ......................................................................................................................................
Pakistani ...................................................................................................................................
Tamil .........................................................................................................................................
Other Asian background ...........................................................................................................
Black or Black British
African ......................................................................................................................................
Caribbean .................................................................................................................................
Other Black / African / Caribbean background .........................................................................
Other ethnic groups
Arab ..........................................................................................................................................
Other .........................................................................................................................................
Prefer not to say
I prefer not to say ......................................................................................................................
Other, please tell us

9

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D60approach
Do you have any physical disability, mental health condition or illness lasting or expected
to last 12 months or more?
(please select one answer)
Yes ............................................................................................................................................
No .............................................................................................................................................
Prefer not to say .......................................................................................................................
What is the nature of your physical disability, mental health condition or illness?
(please select one answer)
Physical / Mobility .....................................................................................................................
Mental Health ...........................................................................................................................
Hearing .....................................................................................................................................
Speach .....................................................................................................................................
Vision ........................................................................................................................................

10

Learning Disability ....................................................................................................................
Health diagnosis .......................................................................................................................
Other .........................................................................................................................................
I prefer not to say ......................................................................................................................
Other - please tell us

Are You…?
(please select one answer)
Male ..........................................................................................................................................
Female ......................................................................................................................................
I prefer not to say ......................................................................................................................

VCS grantsD61
applications to commissioning approach
Which of the following age categories do you fall into?
(please select one answer)
Under 16 ...................................................................................................................................
16-24 ........................................................................................................................................
25-34 ........................................................................................................................................
35-44 ........................................................................................................................................
45-54 ........................................................................................................................................
55-64 ........................................................................................................................................
65-74 ........................................................................................................................................
75+ ...........................................................................................................................................
UNDER 16? By pressing submit at the end of this questionnaire, you will be confirming that you
have been given permission by a parent or guardian to complete this survey.

11
How would you describe your religion or belief?
(please select one answer)
Buddhist ....................................................................................................................................
Christian (all Christian denominations) .....................................................................................
Hindu ........................................................................................................................................
Jewish .......................................................................................................................................
Muslim ......................................................................................................................................
Sikh ...........................................................................................................................................
No religion ................................................................................................................................
Prefer not to say .......................................................................................................................
Any other religion ......................................................................................................................
Other - please tell us

VCS grants applications to commissioning
D62approach
What is your sexual orientation?
(please select one answer)
Heterosexual ............................................................................................................................
Bisexual ....................................................................................................................................
Gay ...........................................................................................................................................
Lesbian .....................................................................................................................................
Other .........................................................................................................................................
Prefer not to say .......................................................................................................................
Other - please tell us

12

D63

Appendix 2
- Full transcript of all comments received in the consultation
Principles - why? - If you think that any of the considerations are
unsatisfactory, please tell us how we could improve them.
Comments
Another key principle should be to ensure that commissioning does not put in danger the
sustainability of a robust local voluntary sector. Annual review yes, annual contracting no.
What work has the Commissioning Team done to come out and see the work at grassroots
at present to be able to determine how to deliver the services that best meet the needs of
local people in a more effective way than is being done at present? Before Commissioning is
rolled out, the Commissioners need to invite themselves and visit the organisations that
already benefit from grant funding so that they have an understanding of the work that is
already being done and whether Commissioning will make a significant difference and a
positive impact rather than a negative one. Despite inviting a Commissioner to come and
see the work that the organisation that I work for - twice - there has never been an
acknowledgement. This does not give confidence that the bidding process will be fair and
flexible. I am not convinced that Commissioning empowers the Voluntary Sector - there can
be effective partnership working where standards are raised without an overhaul of the
current system. Are commercial companies able to bid for tenders too? This will be
detrimental to the local voluntary sector by undercutting initially and losing local knowledge
and expertise. If Adult Social Care money allocated to organisations currently through
Supporting People, becomes part of commissioning, will certain vulnerable groups ie non
priority single homeless, be funded?
Concerns that this will exclude small, charitable organisations (e.g. local choir) that have
previously depended on small-scale grants from the council and provide valued community
services. I cannot see how we would fit into a commissioning process or have the resources
to participate.
It will be very hard and expensive for local voluntary organisations to prepare a bid in a
competitive tender against commercial organisations.
The danger with competitive tenders is that you lose the localism aspect- grants enable and
ensure local charities meeting local needs. Competitive tenders are a competition for
winning contracts and outside agencies come into the borough , promise the earth win the
tender and do not commit as a local charity would.
It is unclear what is meant by 'will be empowered'. The grants model does help lever in
additional match funding that can significantly increase value for money by delivering higher
quality and more widely accessible services to more people than is possible under contract.
How many average volunteers do you think can understand the jargon above? What do you
mean by social value? On a commonsense interpretation of what it means I would hope all
proposals you fund have social value. A competitive tendering process sets one charity
against another rather than encouraging them to work together. If your assessment is that an
organisation is not delivering an appropriate service then surely constructive advice would
be appropriate. Trying to prove outcomes may be appropriate in some circumstances but in
others it can distort what is being done or be impossible for a small charity to do.
2. This is an excellent aim - I've ticked unsatisfactory because it needs a clear plan and
resourcing to ensure organisations are empowered
1) Voluntary sector organisations should not be forced to compete with each other for funds
as this wastes scarce resources which should be spent on delivering core services, not
administering funding bids. Also, competing for funds risks damaging the ethos of cooperation between voluntary agencies. 2) What will be the impact of the annual review of
outcome areas on projects that need more than one year to show results?
19

D64

The pot (and therefore the grants) is not very large.
RBK haven't funded mental health in any significant way. I don't understand the 4th question
NO 1. The overall pot of money should increase as voluntary sector organisations are
excellent value for money NO 4 A three year allocation helps organisations plan and deliver
far more effectively
Question one: the 'pot' of money is very meagre as it is and Question 4: I don't understand
the question
It is not clear what will be involved in empowering voluntary groups to bid- we need more
information about this and also about what steps will be taken to retain the current
cooperative approach to work in the VCS and avoid the non cooperative style of competition
as this wastes resources at a time of funding cuts How will outcome areas be decided? Will
proper attention be paid to cross cutting issues like equality and diversity and information
and advice and how would the work of the CVS be classified? Also, how will areas be
reviewed annually and what impact will this have on services? If this means that all services
will be contracted for one year only, then how does this fit with the Compact and what steps
will be taken to safeguard services that need more than one year's stability - what impact
assessment has been done on this?
Satisfactory IF this process is open and fair, allowing access to all rather than those who are
most experienced / skilled in bidding and if the allocation of funds to various outcome areas
is maintained.
The pot of money should stay in step with inflation at least.
It is essential that the local environment is not lost from the pot. While the pressure on local
adult and children services is recognised the environment well maintained and improved
benefits everyone.
It is not clear what 'competitive tender' means - may be beyond small organisations. What
will be the different outcome areas - this is not clear either?
Needs are growing rapidly placing a disproportionate burden on vcs organisations who also
often lack capacity to effectively compete for tenders.
In these days when other budgets are of necessity being cut, allowance should be made for
any inadvertent but harmful gaps in provision to be filled by potentially increased grants from
the voluntary sector. The "best needs" of local people might well be met by different
organisations working complementarily to each other rather than them having to compete to
provide. What safeguards will there be put on decisions made as to fairness and openness?
Review grants paid in support of core costs e.g. rent to private landlords for voluntary
organisation and provide a community hub from council property. The savings would go
directly to the bottom line
Not sure how small voluntary organisations who rely mainly on their volunteers to seek
resources/funding can be empowered to bid with competitive tenders who are obviously
successful businesses whose main objective is to make money. Do we realistically believe
that with all the cuts RBK is having to make these small voluntary organisations are going to
get council officers to support them with writing bids and be empowered to write good
enough bids? Taking note of the fact that many volunteers do not have English as their first
language - how fair and just is it going to be that they have the language skills/jargon
needed?
Community organisations can hardly put in competitive bids for funding, when they are
already underfunded and rely on staff giving 120% of their time and effort to provide the
quality of service they already achieve. Before Commissioning is started the Commissioning
Team must visit existing charitable service providers to establish what services are required
and agree areas where services can be tendered. The bidding process can only be fair if the
Commissioning Team has first established a clearly defined requirement, which can only be
achieved by consultation with existing service providers.
I would need to know exactly what competitive tenders means and who would be able to
apply would it be limited to local organisations or open to everyone
The needs of communities is missing e.g. ensuring council spends 'for' communities.
20

D65

Appalling set of questions that only people in 'the know' would understand. Why not state
what you actually propose to do & stop doing, instead of this vague ambiguous nonsense.
Competitive tendering alongside the private sector will be hard for most small local
organisations to achieve. Private or national not for profits will not have the important local
networks to be effective. Danger of losing all or part of an effective local voluntary sector.
It is unsatisfactory to expect groups such as ours, an ME Support group run by people who
have the illness, to be involved in a probably laborious process of tendering. The idea of the
tenders being competitive is not a good one; it suggests that the awards may well go to the
organisations who are best placed to present their causes in a professional manner rather
than the organisations who are most in need.
Competitors who are skilled at bidding will be benefitted, independently of the actual value of
their work. Risk of making processes automatic and negative effects on clients and service
users
This method of funding seems more appropriate for larger organisations with more
impressive range of resources and smaller organisations who do a lot of invaluable work are
likely to be left out of the running simply because they do, not have the resources and
manpower to compete for commissioning on a level playing field.
The pot of money has remained the same for the past few years, meaning that voluntary
sector organisations are struggling to pay staff and keep existing projects afloat and cannot
even offer a small cost of living increase. Even a small uplift would ensure that voluntary
organisations can retain staff and ensure their expertise, knowledge and skills aren't lost.
I do not believe that the grants pot should remain the same. It should be reduced in line with
targets for the Council.
I do not necessarily disagree with the principles but do not believe that an objective
approach has been adopted so far and I am concerned about how the needs of local people
be assessed. Should consultations such as the 'Voice of the Customer' be used to decide on
local services then I am concerned that the real needs of the thousands of people needing
any kind of support, will not be acknowledged. The approach to 'commission' advice and
information has not be thought through and a thorough understanding of what already exists
and where demand lies should have preceded any approach to the CAB. In my experience,
social value has been a mere tick box and not at all evaluated. I have attended council
meetings in the past where best value around grants has been questioned and a preference
given to continuing to give grants to organisations who have not complied with the
conditions. I would welcome more accountability and an outcome approach to
commissioning or continuing the grants programme. There has been no evidence of demand
informing the grants process and I would welcome a change.
Most small charities provide bespoke services that have been born out of community
concerns. Moving to a commissioning style will alter the balance of power towards the local
authority who will Decide what is needed and then ask for charities to bid for the work. In
effect, charities will become an extension of local authority services and no longer have the
creative, innovative, ability to start new projects according to need.
We are a small self help support Group for people with ME and their families. We have no
staff or office and there is no way we could bid for tenders. in the proposed arrangement this
would exclude us from the grants process. In the past RBK has awarded us small grants
towards the costs for instance of our newsletter and telephone helpline. last year we
received a grant towards the costs of a survey of our members. One of the key issues
coming across in this was the social isolation experienced by people with ME. We need to
be able to afford to continue supporting members and small flexible grants need to be
available for us to do this.
I strongly believe that the pot of money to voluntary organisations that support people should
be given priority. Environmental issues are extremely important as they enhance the amenity
and health of all of our lives. However, I have a son and husband who are the autistic
spectrum and rely greatly on the support of [name] who have both received funding grants
from the LA. My daughter also attends [name] and all need continuity of support. I am greatly
21

D66

concerned that charity support will be cut to the disabled and vulnerable who have already
been on the receiving end of RBK cuts as our family has repeatedly discovered e.g.The
Family Support workers for disabled children team was drastically cut and the criteria for
support made much more narrow and only for a limited timescale. People with autism do not
stop being autistic and require ongoing support as do their families. When the support to
families changes it is very detrimental to their health and well being because it takes time to
build relationships and trust and time for people to understand specific needs etc. It is also
extremely damaging to the stability of people with autism when changing are forced upon
them through cutbacks. Cuts have also been made to Aiming high grants, short breaks
respite and achieving for children services. It concerns me that saving money and being
competitive is more important than continuity of support and that the pot of money to existing
"outcome areas" are likely to be reassigned under the new commissioning process. Disabled
and vulnerable people should always be a priority and changing the process to a
commissioning stance is likely to mean that some vital charities/voluntary organisations lose
funding. As a family we have witnessed that charities such as [names] are being inundated
with new referrals to take up the slack caused by Authority cut backs in support. The social
aspect point is difficult to understand what impact it might have as the language used is very
vague and does not use clear English to describe what is meant by the terminology used.
As an Arts organisation, providing cultural services, it is difficult to see how competitive
tendering could be applied, We do not have "competitors". If not awarded a "contract", we
would continue to provide cultural services to the community at zero cost to the Council, but
of a lower quality.
Voluntary sector/Charities are struggling to manage to do what they are doing now while
being aware that they are needed to do yet more.
The money should increase with inflation. Voluntary and community organisations have
worked together for decades and Kingston should not lose the co-operation and can do
attitude of its loyal organisations who have built up great working relationships with other
local organisations to provide shared services and a one stop shop for clients. If a
competitive bidding process is introduced this will inevitably put the organisations that
currently work so well together in competition against each other and damage working
relationships and therefore services. Voluntary and community organisations should not be
forced to compete against each other. This can only make things worse for the organisations
and service users. Small organisations do not have the time, resources, IT accessibility or
skills nor knowledge or experience of how to compete a bid and will give up trying. Without a
grant they will not survive and the important service they provide for groups who are already
disadvantaged - eg disabled people will be lost as private companies do not have the
specialised skills to provide these services. If bidding is introduced the people who know
how to fill in the submissions will win although they may not be the best people for the job. If
private and/or outside organisations are allowed to bid and undercut local organisations to
get the money they will not provide such a comprehensive service and the local knowledge
and expertise will be lost. There needs to be sustainability and continuity not chopping and
changing the rules and "outcome area" every year depending on who is in office at the time.
Local voluntary sector and community organisations should be supported and not forced to
spend more time on admin when they are primarily set up to help people with a hands on
approach and one to one service.
How can a voluntary organisation make a competitive bid? It seems odd to pit one charity
against another in a competitive situation, when charities have different guiding principles
and different areas of activity. They should not compete, but complement each other. Often
there is a need for more than one organisation to deliver the same service, in a different
way, or to a different community. This does not empower charities to meet the needs they
themselves uncover in their work in the community. It does not enable them to develop
groundbreaking or innovative approaches to problems. In the private sector, huge amounts
of time and resources are wasted by multiple companies submitting tenders when only one
will be chosen. It will be a deliberate waste of donors' money to invite multiple bids when you
22

D67

will only be commissioning one of them.
The premise of these questions is based on a move to commissioning which I feel is an
inefficient basis voluntary sector both for the council and the third sector
My concern is that so much time is spent in the bidding process that it has serious impact on
the actual work of the smaller voluntary organisations. If it is essential for bidding to be
carried out, then the council should have a support system to enable small (and possibly
very skilled and motivated) organisations to manage the process
There should be mine money available. Additionally voluntary sector cannot compete with
bigger profit making organisations for bid tenders
The current overall pot of money does not deal with the current social issues in Kingston. It
is not clear what will be involved in empowering voluntary groups to bid- we need more
information about this and also what steps will be taken to continue the cooperative
approach to work that we currently have within RBK. By bidding under competitive tender
(with commercial organisations), the principles and values fundamental to the third sector
are undermined. There is no evidence to suggest that grants are an inefficient route to
funding social projects or that competitive tender provides greater value for public money
How can the tendering process be open, fair and competitive when the services offered are
so discrete and niche? Only certain organisations with specialities in certain areas will be
able to bid for specific services that are being put out to tender. How will the outcome areas
be determined? How will any negative effects to the various user groups such as the
disabled or BME Groups be assessed? When will the Equality Impact Assessment be
undertaken? Areas that are not political â€œhotâ€ topics are unlikely to be provided the
opportunity to bid or tender for funding to undertake their vital work within the community If
commissioning is undertaken annually, will voluntary groups have to tender every year? This
would require capacity and resource to be taken away from frontline service delivery to fulfil
the bureaucracy required to participate in the processes and severely undermine small, yet
currently viable voluntary establishments
Voluntary organisations are already stretched to breaking point. They would be forced to rely
more on voluntary labour which can be troublesome to manage and unreliable. The current
system is working so why fix something which isn't broken? What information has already
been gathered to prove this is necessary and that the current system needs to be changed?
Are commercial companies able to bid? If so this will have a huge negative impact on the
voluntary sector.
Good to know it is staying the same, but, in reality, with the Government cutbacks deepening
social problems in the next few years, there will be a greater need for this fund to be
developed. The Overall pot of money should be increased. This approach makes a
fundamental mistake. It assumes that Kingston Council is in the best position to discover and
assess overall needs, and this system is likely to prevent creative and innovative solutions to
problems being funded. My suggestion is that a mixed approach is by far the best. One that
commissions specific projects researched by the Council, and a pot of similar size that could
be bid for by voluntary organisations with ideas that spring from their own experience on the
ground, and that fit the skills and personnel they have in place. This is likely to result in
projects that are far more efficient and effective, even if the overall parameters are not to a
specific spec of the council's making.
- Not clear about the rationale/necessity of changing from grants to commissioning? Commissioning would lead to competition rather than current (potential for) collaboration.
Collaboration makes better use of limited resources. - 'Services that best mee
I think that commissioning is likely to lead to a waste of scarce resources in terms of the
bureaucracy involved in the contractual cycle, and also to detrimental competition between
members of the VCS rather than the collaborative environment currently in place.
The overall pot should it remain the same would in effect be reduced as it is not linked into
inflation. Voluntary and Community organisations have consistently argued against
competitive tenders putting forward collaborative and partnership approaches. There is no
evidence that contracting as opposed to Grant Aid produces better outcomes. There is no
23

D68

evidence of enhanced performance management. The process of commissioning if
fragmented across different areas of the council will be at a much higher cost, create waste
and risk duplication. Social Value should be a given not a question.
We are small organisation that has been delivering services tailored to certain community .
We cannot compete with bigger organisations that have the structure , the capital and
bidding know how in place . We think that if services are commissioned to larger
organisation , then our community will not get the services offered by smaller charities. Our
community members have expressed their optimism about the commissioning of services to
include larger organisation that have better chance to win the bidding but can deliver little to
the community.
1. The pot of money should be increased despite the cut backs. This enables various people
to develop skills and be employed. 2.The Voluntary and Community organisations have
knowledge of their people a lot better and they are in a position to solve and support them in
various ways. They also have trust from the community. Lots of organisations mainly work
with volunteers, the grants offer flexibility which is also cost effective for RBK. 3. Bidding
processes are never fair. They are not flexible and they aim to cut smaller organisations out
of the system will not consider their financial capacity. Because smaller organisation have
not been able to build their capacity due to lack of funding, bidding will not be suitable for
them. Bidding also attracts people from outside the borough and this causes confusion since
RBK will favour outside organisations since they have lots of money. Commissioning does
not allow local groups to develop according to changing needs in order to continue to
support RBK in the achievements of its objectives. 4. Organisations can still be given the
opportunity to work on various 'outcome areas'. When grants are given to communities you
can receive more outcomes than commissioning. For example; when the care was
commissioned the public encountered lots of problems with the way their care is being
provided.
There needs to be more information on how community groups would be 'empowered'. Will
there be 'bid writing' support for example? Some smaller organisations, which may be highly
skilled at delivering the work may lack the capacity to write a competitive and thorough
tender application, which by no means mean that they are not the best organisation to
deliver the support needed/ address needs identified.
As the chair of Trustees of a small, largely self-funding, charity which makes very occasional
applications for grants, I feel that the shift to an emphasis on commissioning means that
voluntary bodies are only likely to derive benefit when following the demands of pre-decided
Council priorities. It therefore will reduce the ability of such organisations to develop their
own initiatives. Of particular concern to us ( an arts organisation) is that such a shift will lead
to an even greater concentration of council support in the centre of Kingston to the further
detriment of other areas of the borough.
I think those responsible should come and see for themselves the work that the voluntary
organisations are doing. Some organisations are tiny but deliver an excellent value for
money services. Some organisations are so small, they don't have teams of people available
to produce tenders. Those who apply for grants would see their workload increased. The
council were supposed to be strengthening their commitment to the voluntary sector.
I am concerned that if the overall pot of money remains the same this will not allow for new
situations arising which require funding. re competitive tendering this does not sound like it
would 'empower' voluntary organisations but would in fact be an additional burden on
overstretched bodies that are already struggling to provide their services with limited means.
A bidding process is a fairly onerous business and any unsuccessful bid would result in a
complete waste of the bidders resources - these resources would then need to be made up
from other sources of funding. Re bidding process - I am concerned that a competitive
bidding process will discourage the growing trend for local voluntary organisations to
cooperate with each other - this trend has been incredibly helpful to all concerned saving
time and resources when dealing with mutual clients. Re outcome areas - I am concerned
about this because sometimes services do not have one clear outcome which can be
24

D69

evaluated independently of other overlapping or related outcomes. Therefore it will surely be
quite difficult to maintain the range of specialist services available in the borough if only a
very generic range of outcomes are catered for in the commissioning process.
Concern as to whether voluntary sector will be able to bid successfully under this new
arrangement
Although the overall pot of money will be the same, there is no clarity or security as how to
how the money will be allocated. How our voluntary organizations are going to be
empowered? Buy whom and when? And isn't too late considering the commissioning
process is round the corner. Our organisation has a very clear idea of how to meet the
needs of our clients (see needs assessment report on our website). We are already
delivering services that are needed for local people. There is no evidence at all that the
changes are necessary and that the corporate grant system is not working. Though
competitiveness big private organisations will be invited to parachute into Kingston and
deliver in the locality about which they know nothing. Who is deciding on outcome areas?
How have the most vulnerable in the borough been consulted about the local outcome?
Adopting a formal tender process that charities should enter into in such a way decreases
the amount of money available to spend on the need. The change is therefore a net
decrease in the funds available to be used by the applicants - regardless of outcome. Formal
tender bidding processes will add an additional burden on charities that are already overstretched in resources. Tender processes in the private sector are based upon the likely
commercial gains made through the winning of the bid. The willingness for companies to
enter multiple tenders are balanced on the win/loss rate of such bids. The costs of all bids
are hence funded only by those where the applicant is successful. No such commercial gain
is available to charities as re-payment for their willingness to participate - making each
application, an un-funded cost to the charity. Failed bidders, who may offer very competitive,
highly valued services for future bids can only enter a finite number of tenders for reasons of
investment cost. Lost tenders are likely to drive these charities away from entering more
formal bids - or into other districts where the evaluation of their work and proposed funding is
not through competitive tender. Experienced bidders in the private sector are aware that on
many occasions the ideal target for the contract is put up against less-than-ideal, selected
competitors in order to satisfy the rules of the scheme. This creates both a false tender
process and poor value for the beneficiaries of the fund through the extra costs of both
running the scheme and bidding for the contract. Tender processes rely upon the tenderee
to know exactly what is required from the tenderers in order to appraise responses. In many
cases, projects and proposals generated by charities are conceived and initiated
independently. There is a high risk that these ideas will not be generated through formal
tendering processes. Charities in the UK provide an immeasurable benefit to social care and
society as a whole. Tender processes are often driven through qualitative and quantitative
measures that can very easily fall short of the mark in understanding the value a project or
entity can bring. There are better ways to streamline charity funding and prevent abuse than
through formal tender schemes. Simple due diligence steps and investment-style 'first
Tuesday' events can provide a bridge between tender processes and entrepreneurialism.
My concern is that the smaller charities will be at a disadvantage as the will not have the
human resources to spend the time and energy to spend on the bidding process. Also, this
process sounds very prescriptive - the council set the agenda and projects taking away the
ability of charities to create the projects needed to meet the needs of the people they work
with. It worries me that the wonderful work that the charities do in Kingston is going to be put
at risk because of needs perceived by those in power and not those actually working in the
real world.
It is much more difficult for smaller organisations to manage overheads and spread costs,
because contracts are likely to be over a longer term than previous grant funding the overall
pot of money ought to reflect a long term view. Voluntary bodies are at a disadvantage in
having a much smaller workforce who may not be in a position to navigate through the
process of tendering, bidding and winning contracts. VCS provide a range of much needed
25

D70

advice and support to local people and have provided these services via grant funding that
has been earmarked for the purpose.
The overall pot of money would remain the same as that in the 2014/15 grants programme:
Whilst this on the face of it sounds a great idea, grants have been at a standstill for many
years and this does not take into account increases taking place in society and the impact of
inflation. There is also a high demand for services in the VCS sector and this increased
demand does not take into account grants which have remained the same for years.
Voluntary and community organisations would be empowered to bid: There is very little
information on how small VCS groups will be empowered to bid against huge Private sector
organisations The bidding process will be open, fair, competitive: There is abundant
evidence that when small organisations compete with large Private or Voluntary sect
organisations the small ones loose out. It is worse for BME-led organisations Grants are
currently allocated to different 'outcome areas': On the face of it this is very good. But we are
aware that issues such as Equalities, Hate crime, community engagement, cohesion and
development are very difficult to quantify. Funders are also very reluctant to commission in
areas where there is disadvantage, Refugee and Asylum and benefit related issues This
survey is design to force the participant to answer questions in a particular way. It is
designed to prevent you from commenting further and unless you tick unsatisfactory you will
not get the chance to comment further!
The fact that the overall pot of money will remain the same offers no security to the voluntary
and community organisations who have been relying on corporate grants to fund their core
cost I welcome the idea that the voluntary and community organisations 'would be
empowered to bid with competitive tenders, but it is not clear how and most importantly
when, considering the timescale is very tight [name] has been developed following needs
assessment of refugees, asylum seekers and migrants in the borough. It delivers outcomes
relevant to the action plan of the current Kingston Refugees and Migrants Strategy endorsed
by 15 strategic partners in Kingston and the borough itself. In other words we already deliver
services that meet the needs of local refugee population It is great that the bidding process
will be flexible to the needs of local VCS. But it is not clear how. The fact that it will be
competitive is directly against the ethos of our sector which achieves best results when
working in partnership and cooperation [name] is a holistic services with cross butting areas
of work, such as advice and information, counselling services, integrational services etc.
Who will decide on the new outcome areas? Who was consulted about it? How have the
users been consulted, especially the isolated, vulnerable ones? Does that mean that the
level of bureaucracy for a small organisation like hours will be difficult to manage? Annual
review will mean even less stability than now. What tool will be used to decide the social
value of an organisation? How will the uniformity of the process be ensured?
The issue is how the money will be used. There may be some organisations which become
vulnerable as they may not receive grants consistently to provide a continuing service.
It is unclear what the current pot of money is. Also, if people tick unsatisfactory, does that
mean the pot should be higher or lower under commissioning?
The current overall pot of money does not deal with the current social issues in Kingston. It
is not clear what will be involved in empowering voluntary groups to bid- we need more
information about this and also what steps will be taken to continue the cooperative
approach to work that we currently have within RBK. By bidding under competitive tender
(with commercial organisations), the principles and values fundamental to the third sector
are undermined. There is no evidence to suggest that grants are an inefficient route to
funding social projects or that competitive tender provides greater value for public money.
How can the tendering process be open, fair and competitive when the services offered are
so discrete and niche? Only certain organisations with specialities in certain areas will be
able to bid for specific services that are being put out to tender. How will the outcome areas
be determined? How will any negative effects to the various user groups such as the
disabled or BME Groups be assessed? When will the Equality Impact Assessment be
undertaken? Areas that are not political topics are unlikely to be provided the opportunity to
26

D71

bid or tender for funding to undertake their vital work within the community If commissioning
is undertaken annually, will voluntary groups have to tender every year? This would require
capacity and resource to be taken away from frontline service delivery to fulfil the
bureaucracy required to participate in the processes and severely undermine small, yet
currently viable voluntary establishments.
Current overall pot of money doesn't deal effectively with Kingston's current social issues.
Insufficient info on how voluntary groups will be empowered to bid. Bidding by competitive
tender along with commercial organisations undermines principles and values fundamental
to voluntary organisations. Evidence needed to prove competitive tender provides greater
value for public money. Info needed on how breakdown of outcome areas to be determined.
Info needed on how any negative effects on user groups to be assessed, e.g. people with
disabilities. Info needed on when Equality Impact Assessment to be undertaken. If reviewed
annually, info needed on whether voluntary groups will have to tender annually.
"Overall pot of money" - the pot of money should be increased, at the least, to reflect
changes in inflation “Competitive tenders for services" - VCS organisations should be
empowered to approach RBK with proposals for services or action areas rather than relying
on RBK to define the services that are required.
Large organisations could possibly deliver at a lower price because of economies of scale
but would lack local knowledge. The process can be improved by a high rating being given in
the tender process to existing local organisations
What are the plans for empowering voluntary organisations like ourselves to bid with
competitive tenders? Kindly note that charities such as ours rely on volunteers to do these
tasks and for many English is not their first language so how fair/just will it be to rely on the
bidding process to get funding for such an important project? Profit making companies who
are likely to have this expertise are surely going to have better chances.
The preamble indicates that this change is brought about by financial pressure and the need
to save money. There is no recognition that greater investment in good voluntary sector
services can bring about cost savings and better services Whilst voluntary sector
organisations need to be competitive and efficient, preparing competitive bids against each
other is a major exercise and distraction of management, and not necessarily a good use of
limited time and resources.
Commissioning has its place in local funding arrangements, particularly on the delivery of
front line services but without Corporate Grants such service delivery becomes
impracticable. It is important to retain a Corporate Grants programme as part of a
commissioning approach to allow the voluntary and community sector (VCS) to continue to
thrive. Corporate Grants allow the VCS in Kingston to deliver vital services, which has the
ability to reduce the pressure on the council. This is particularly valuable in areas such as
advice; for example [name] is able to deliver advice services to refugees and asylum
seekers in the borough and often prevent them needing more costly services in the future,
for example around mental health. Capacity to deliver this service has increased only
through the stability that a Corporate Grant can bring.
How will voluntary and community organisations be empowered? Most do not have capacity
or expertise to bid effectively with other organisations. Will the council provide help to
voluntary and commercial organisations to tender? What about funding - tendering will take
time and money that is scarce and would be better put to providing services. It is a
significant burden to have to tender, particularly if he tender is unsuccessful When will the
voluntary and community organisations be empowered? Many are close to the end of their
contract and making them go through a tendering process leads to massive uncertainties
and risk, particularly for those with employed staff Voluntary and community organisations
deliver services that meet needs, have often commissioned and participated in needs
assessments, and deliver services that meet strategic needs cost effectively. What about
services to communities that cross cut areas? For [name], services are provided to refugees
and asylum seekers that will cut across many outcome areas. How will this work across
commissioners? And how will providing services to a targeted community work?
27

D72

Keeping the amount available for these types of projects is unsatisfactory as it does not take
into consideration any costs of living increases, such as rent and utilities and any salary
costs.
Concerned that smaller voluntary organisations could get squeezed out of the
commissioning process by bigger better resourced organisations.
The overall pot of money would remain the same as that in the 2014/15 grants programme
Unsatisfactory The current overall pot of money does not deal with the current social issues
in Kingston. Voluntary and community organisations would be empowered to bid with
competitive tenders to deliver the services that best meet the needs of local people.
Unsatisfactory It is not clear what will be involved in empowering voluntary groups to bid- we
need more information about this and also what steps will be taken to continue the
cooperative approach to work that we currently have within RBK. By bidding under
competitive tender (with commercial organisations), the principles and values fundamental to
the third sector are undermined. There is no evidence to suggest that grants are an
inefficient route to funding social projects or that competitive tender provides greater value
for public money. The bidding process will be open, fair, competitive and most importantly,
flexible to the needs of the range of voluntary and community sector organisations Not sure
How can the tendering process be open, fair and competitive when the services offered are
so discrete and niche? Only certain organisations with specialities in certain areas will be
able to bid for specific services that are being put out to tender. ï¶ Grants are currently
allocated to different â€˜outcome areas. We would look to replicate this allocation of money
to different outcome areas under the new commissioning process. This will be regularly
reviewed, most likely annually. Not sure How will the outcome areas be determined? How
will any negative effects to the various user groups such as the disabled or BME Groups be
assessed? When will the Equality Impact Assessment be undertaken? Areas that are not
political topics are unlikely to be provided the opportunity to bid or tender for funding to
undertake their vital work within the community. If commissioning is undertaken annually, will
voluntary groups have to tender every year? This would require capacity and resource to be
taken away from frontline service delivery to fulfil the bureaucracy required to participate in
the processes and severely undermine small, yet currently viable voluntary establishments
Very confusing process, unsettle for our clients (refugees and asylum seekers) group. How
VSCs going to be empowered? Isn’t too late for that? We are already meeting the needs.
Bidding process don't work for VSC organizations as it encourage competitiveness rather
cooperation. How have the most vulnerable in the brought not been consulting about the
outcome?
The move from grants to commissioning places smaller local groups at grave risk of closure
if they are not able to receive core funding for their activities. Core funding enables charities
to fund their office overheads and (in the case of anything larger than the very smallest 'lowmaintenance' organisation), to fund the invaluable time input of staff members. This staff
input allows the organisation to have the basic stability it needs to then fund-raise and run
successfully. Very few sources of charitable funding allow for inclusion of core costs. If
sufficient safeguards are not in place in any proposed tendering process then local voluntary
sector groups, which are best placed to serve the needs of local vulnerable people, will be
set to lose out massively.
Where there are areas of grant provision or commissioning that are essentially the
community expressing itself, then a process that pits fledgling or small local charities against
national charities with marketing departments is likely to result in stifling local initiative. Ring
fence some areas for local groups only, or retain those areas in a grant process.
There is no evidence of a need to change. In fact, the most recent reports from NHS
England, Audit Commission and The Big Lottery all now support grants over commissions
process.
Where is the evidence to show that these changes will improve the situation? The system
works well as it is now. Who will pay for these changes and how much will it cost to
implement them? It seems to me that your statements above are misleading. The spirit of
28

D73

each statement above should already be observed. If it's not, then the question is why not?
Your statements should highlight the real changes that would take place with the introduction
of competitive tenders rather than grants.
Competitive tenders means that local small voluntary organisations will be excluded resulting
in a loss of local wealth and knowledge. External organisations will not be delivering services
that meet the needs of local people but the needs of the contract specification only. New
organisations need time to build up knowledge and rely on the local organisations to help
them with this. Based on experience external organisations tend to be more inflexible and
deliver what has been agreed - a pure business approach. Whereas local voluntary
organisations have a range of business models, are flexible and most importantly of will
always have the customers’ needs at the core of their work. To review the programme
annually suggests that funding will only be on a yearly basis unlike under the new
arrangements where the funding is for 3 years subject to monitoring conditions being met
allowing some stability.
The needs of the local community have increased therefore the 'overall pot' shouldn't remain
the same. Competition is ok if there’s a level playing field as regards manpower and other
resources. Some charities are surviving on little resource particularly small charities where
e.g. there are no economies of scale. It what way is this 'empowering'? 'Competition" in the
process of applying for funding to help e.g. families with mental health issues? How is this
appropriate? Annual reviews are too regular. Some of the needs charities help with can only
be properly assessed/reviewed over a much longer period, e.g. 2/3yearly.
What evidence is there that commissioning would improve the services presently provided
by grants? Will not an open bidding process allow non local organisations to bid low and
then renegotiate once the contract was up and running by which time local voluntary
organisations could have been forced to lose staff and therefore not be able to compete in a
renegotiation. Highly regarded does not necessarily mean taken into account
Leaves the bidding process open to non local large organisations that are not interested in
the borough's future development. How can a bidding process be flexible. Highly regarded
means nothing if it doesn't influence the outcome.

29

D74

Grants options - why? - If you think that any of the functions are unsatisfactory,
please tell us how we could improve them?
Comments
Why? Best to keep funding transparent.
How will this work? The voluntary sector need to be consulted with more information to make
sure the wider needs of the borough are properly represented. Where is the centralized
control?
A 'small community grant' is likely to work for those organisations that are too small to be
able to bid for contracts, but this could help to support 'grass roots' activity on a very local
level, which would be a good thing. However, funding criteria needs to be set so that it
doesn't exclude those mid-range organisations that have a higher income but still struggle to
compete with larger more well resourced ones. This could create a 'two-tier' voluntary sector
that makes it harder for organisations to grow.
i am a great believer in explaining what one is doing to ones local councillors but what
happens to the charity that can't for any reason access councillors?
I'd rather see this funding allocated through a central process, as a councillor-led scheme is
more open to bias of personal contacts
What kind of projects would the community grant be used for? Using individual councillors in
this way risks creating inequalities between one council ward and another.
It is unsatisfactory to have a system which relies on individual Cllr patronage. I do not have
enough information about what the transition fund would be or how it would be accessed or
what problems it would seek to address to be able to comment on this option
Local councillor contact allows for conflict of interest and bias of certain organisations. This
was all too prevalent under the Lib Dems.
It should not be about which group a councillor knows/ supports
Surely this is going against the principles of being open, fair and equitable.
Community grant process insufficiently transparent.
Grants should be decided by a committee, not one person.
The community grant needs to be advertised effectively and to everyone who could possibly
want to access it. Not necessarily at a councillor's discretion, but should be judged
objectively.
How big/small will the transition fund be. Will the people deciding the specific organisations
on a case by case basis have all/enough info/knowledge about all the groups in the borough
to make informed decisions? From past experiences it is clear that some groups are
favoured more than others - the case of those who shout loudest get heard? A similar
thought about accessing through a local councillor - favouritism comes to mind! Not all
groups have close links or contacts with councillors- it might be a question of who you know
rather than what service you are providing?
Obtaining small community grants through local Councillor Contact will be open to abuse
and would place Councillors in a difficult position. All applications should be through the
Commissioning Team and open to scrutiny even if they are supported by a local Councillor.
Ensuring fairness in the allocation needs to be protected esp re: relationships with
Councillors. Councillors are busy and may make decisions based on past relationships. A
successful grant should not be based on how well an organisation builds relationships with
people but how good the organisation is at delivering (planning) its services. This work
needs to be centrally aligned.... it could create divergence (unfairness) across organisations.
Tell us exactly what you are talking about - instead of 'Council Speak'
30

D75

I'm concerned about the transparency of this process and that this might become more a
networking process rather than a response to need
In terms of the principles listed above, any change to be made in how the council/statutory
partners conduct themselves, we would expect them to behave to a given standard, which is
reflected here. The use of the term 'expected' above, suggests that decisions to move the
grants to the commissioning pot has already been made. Nothing in the preamble to this
survey states the evidence that moving to a commissioning budget creates a vibrant,
sustainable voluntary sector, whereas the evidence for keeping a grants programme which
allows for a creative approach to developing innovative solutions, to develop new ways of
working, to reach seldom heard members of society who can provide insight about local
issues and provide local solutions to local problems, is well supported by bodies including
NVACA and NHS England Grants should be seen as part of the commissioning approach
not as something outside of it and therefore of less value Grants allow organisations to be
responsive and flexible. The provision of core funding through the grants programme allows
organisations to build capacity through bring in additional funding to the organisation and
into the local economy. It keeps services local
According to what criteria that grant will be assigned? Definitely against this measure. It is a
potential source for conflict. It does not sound fair and probably it is not fair. It is a very
shocking suggestion.
There needs to be a fairer method of funding smaller organisations which is not just limited
to emergency handouts. Once the transitional arrangements have expired the smaller
organisations will be simply squeezed out of the running.
A transition fund might help out an organisation for a short period of time, but it will not
prevent that organisation having to compete with other companies and a decision still could
be made to award a contract to a private company if they saved more money. I do not
believe that councillors should manage community grants; as they represent certain political
views this could lead to certain charities or community organisations being chosen over
others. This process should be independent, open, non-political and based on evidence and
need.
Why is this accessed via a councillor?
These suggestions are trying to pacify those that don't see commissioning as the way
forward.
Widen the contact points
It seems by the above wording that the decision has already been made, however to create
a transition fund would be unacceptable as would having a grant for emerging needs
because: there needs to be a ring fenced ongoing pot of money/funds to continue to support
charities that provide help to the disabled, their families and the vulnerable in our society. I
repeat because it is so important that families have continuity of services.
Don't see why grants. Move all to commissioning approach.
Grants should be kept, especially for the small organisations who cannot bid or survive
without the Councils grant. If the money is the same why are you making organisations do
more paperwork to tender for services they provide instead of keeping the grants process as
it is and enabling them to get on with the job rather than be overwhelmed with bureaucracy
when they are already overstretched? A local councillor should not be able to decide who
gets money alone. How many councillors do voluntary work and know what is involved? This
is very dangerous and will be unfair to the councillors and groups applying for money.
Councillors will inevitable chose their own favourite outcome area to give money to. It will not
be a fair and equal process. Funding needs to be via a central process with a group of
unbiased people deciding objectively who receives what.

31

D76

I can understand that the council might identify needs that it would like the voluntary sector
to meet, but I think it would be disastrous to do away with the grant system. A mixed system
would be better - grants would remaining the main way of funding, but allow the council to
commission for specific needs that are not covered by charities under the grant system.
Commissioning should only be used to fill the gaps left by grant-funded work.
Again, the premise is a move to commissioning rather than a consultation on the efficiency
of grant Vs commissioning. Third sector organisations are by nature small and challenged
for funding, spending money on competing annually for funds is not a good use of their
money and the uncertainty in business management that it creates can only be de-stabilising
for what are effectively "small businesses"
Creates red tape
This creates patronage and cronyism.
Vital services to groups and functions that are not as vocal or popular (such as disabled
people, people with substance misuse problems and advice and advocacy) may miss out as
they are not on the political agenda
How will this be implemented? Will voluntary organisations be asked?
Transition fund should be permanent. The other two provisions sound like the kind of things
that would be underfunded, and involve too much of a "who you know" culture in the council.
this sounds biased and vital services to groups that are not as vocal/popular may miss out
as they are not on the political agenda.
The Grant Budget should not be transferred to a commission pot making all above questions
unsatisfactory.
With all due respect to Councillors, handing individual elected members direct control on
funds in the way suggested would put them in a difficult position and lead to a less objective
analysis of need.
Are all the needs within the borough being properly represented? Core costs for voluntary
organisations are extremely difficult to fundraise for. Most grant-making trusts want to give
money to a tangible project. A key feature of the way things are currently done is that it
allows for small voluntary organisations to cover some of their core costs.
Re transition fund proposal - this is a very nebulous proposal as it stands - it is very difficult
to be in favour of an idea when there is no information about the size of this fund, which
organisations might stand to benefit or what sort of services it would be aiming to support
specifically - surely the jury must remain out on this idea until more detail is supplied? re
small community grant idea - this sounds dangerous! For an individual councillor to have the
power to award grants seems to invite conflicts of interest at the very least and possibly
worse.
What is the transition fund going to be about? who is going to decide how much money is
going to which transition fund and who will be eligible for it? Conflict of interest will be an
issue.
These measures - if they are to remain, defeat the object of the Tender process initiative.
The operation of the transition fund in parallel to the tender process creates both additional
cost to be born by the tax payer through the support of two systems.
I don't agree with the commissioning process for the voluntary sector. The three options
above are just a sweetener because it has been decided that commissioning is the chosen
way. In the end this has more to do with the council being in control and setting their own
agenda depending on their perceived set of needs and what matters and what doesn't.

32

D77

Create a transition fund for the first two years: There is a presumption that a decision on
commissioning has already been taken! A transition fund also presumes that this will aid
groups which are unsuccessful to transition to closure or find other funding. What happens
after two years of transition funds? Do groups close? Create a discretionary grant to support
emerging needs: this arrangement is only viable now because it funds very small activities
Create a small community grant which will be accessed directly through a local councillor
contact: This puts huge power in the hands of individual Cllrs who may only fund people who
agree with them. Campaigning, advocacy and independent groups will face bias. Recent
description of funding to VCS groups as 'gifts' means a majority of VCS groups will be seen
as unnecessary and therefore undeserving of these 'gifts'
Although the transition fund is a good idea in order to avoid a potential closure of some local
organisations, there is no clarity about it - how big is the fund going to be, which are these
'specific organisation' that will be entitled to apply. It is difficult to sustain a meaningful
fundraising strategy with that information missing I don't think a grant system through a
patronage of a local councillor is a good idea. It encourages nepotism and conflict of interest
There may not be support for a range of provision. Lack of flexibility may cause reduction in
funding.
First of all, these ideas will be like a drop in the ocean. Secondly, it is not clear what the
answer options imply. If the commissioning system is in place, any grants would still be
welcome, as some grants is better than none. That doesn't mean that I'm in favour of a
transition fund, discretionary or community grant, or anything similar, just that it would be
better than nothing. In other words, if I tick excellent, does that mean I want a community
grant (for example) in itself, or that I would like it if there was a commissioning system in
place?
This sounds very biased and flavour of the month to me- if it is not one of the Councillors’
favoured organisations Vital services to groups and functions that are not as vocal or popular
(such as disabled people, people with substance misuse problems and advice and
advocacy) may miss out as they are not on the political agenda. It could possibly be made
part of the Health and Well-being Board where a larger group of people would have a say
over who can access the bids.
Info needed on criteria required to qualify for funding. How will this be decided? Access
through local Councillor contact could result in partiality. Politics could play an inappropriate
part. If there's to be transparency, grants should not be awarded by individuals. If grants are
to be accessed via individual Councillors, how will an overall balance in outcome areas be
achieved?
The local councillor route is inappropriate and brings in patronage to what should be an
independent process
Who decides on which specific group to support. Do Councillors have full information of all
the voluntary organisations in the borough? How much equity is there likely to be if
Councillors have certain groups they would favour. Would we be at the mercy of the local
councillors and how can we be sure it won't be biased..
It is the basic premise, that the majority of the budget will be transferred to commissioning,
that is unsatisfactory.
This sounds like an unnecessary distraction and "feel good" opportunity for well-meaning
councillors Re the Overall opinion on the move, the benefits demonstrated in other boroughs
are limited and the grants system still works well in Kingston. It isn't broke so don't fix it.
Whilst the proposals to create a discretionary grant and community grant are welcome, a key
role of Corporate Grants is to provide organisations stability to allow them a degree of
flexibility to deliver vital services (as noted in the answer to the previous question). A small or
discretionary grants programme could reduce this stability meaning that organisations have
less capacity to respond to emerging needs.
33

D78

As it stands the transition fund approach is too vague. What specific organisations will be
eligible for it? What will be done to ensure sustainability of an organisation that benefits from
the fund and delivers goo services beyond the two years? Accessing small community
grants trough a local councillor leads to a large risk of a patronage approach to funding
Create a transition fund for the first two years, after the commissioning approach is put in
place to support specific orgs on a case by case basis. Not sure How will this be decided?
What will be the criteria for qualifying for this funding? It is disappointing as the survey is predisposed to the commissioning process, so if this is the case I would strongly lobby for a 3
year transition as Year 1 = chaos. Year 2 = bedding down. Year 3 = first year of learning.
Create a small community grant which will be accessed directly through a local councillor
contact Unsatisfactory This sounds very biased and flavour of the month to me- if it is not
one of the Councillorsâ€™ favoured organisations Vital services to groups and functions that
are not as vocal or popular (such as disabled people, people with substance misuse
problems and advice and advocacy) may miss out as they are not on the political agenda
Who is going to decide which organization is eligible? Conflict of interest
The small community grant accessed directly through a local councillor contact runs the risk
of being extremely difficult administer fairly. How will access to this funding be determined?
For imaginative community initiatives the local Councillor is not always the person who has
the most innovative ideas. The first two answers follow your presumption in the way you
have phrased the question that a commissioning system is coming. Therefore, we have
answered, for instance, that a transition fund is an excellent thing IF the commissioning
system comes in. What we would like to answer here, but the form of the questionnaire
prevents us, is that a commissioning system may be much worse than a grants system.
Nevertheless, we have answered as you request - IF a commissioning system is introduced,
THEN a transition fund is a good idea.
Current grant situation enables our voluntary and community sector to thrive through cooperation rather than competition.
I would repeat my remarks from the first page.
Transition fund to support specific organisations on a case by case basis - which specific
organisations? How will the case by cases be determined? As this is a transition fund there
will only be a limited amount of funds available this is extremely concerning with some
organisations unable to have any funding available to them when they most need it.
Emerging needs currently has an upper limit of Â£3,000 but because of the increasing
demand in recent years on this funding stream the amount actually awarded is of a much
lower limit. The demand will increase further and as a result many organisations may not
have a chance of accessing the fund at all. Community grant - this relies and puts the onus
on local organisations having a relationship with local councillors. For larger organisations
where councillors maybe trustees (non voting or in their own personal right) they already
have a connection/relationship established but for smaller organisations this is not the case
and they will be forced to spend time on establishing relationships with councillors alongside
delivering services, running their organisations and fundraising. This is not a transparent
system. Putting in place 3 new alternative sources of grants/funding which will be a small pot
as mentioned above will be costly for the council in terms of administration and bureaucracy.
I'm not sure but accessing through a local councillor contact does not seem open and
transparent
Any system that relies on an individual councillor's largesse cannot be democratic.
Patronage is rarely fair.

34

D79

Agreement - why? - Please tell us why?
Comments
Different rules apply to commissioning. grants i.m.o are simpler
What evidence is there that the Voluntary and Community Sector are not producing excellent
outcomes already and value for money? For example, the [name] are already producing
excellent results. My concern is that money will be diverted and spent on a Commissioning
Team to shake things up and break up a model that is already working. I have not been
convinced that Commissioning will not be to the detriment of smaller organisations who will
not be able to compete. I am not convinced that the message of Commissioning has
reached everyone. Although monitoring and delivering positive outcomes are a positive and
necessary thing, these can be achieved through tweaks of the present system. The
voluntary sector has always worked on a tight budget so the likelihood is that organisations
are already doing "more for less". To be able to bid for a tender when the pot of money that
goes to the Voluntary Sector remains the same, means that there will be even more focus on
using volunteers to achieve results. This is concerning.
Voluntary organisations are very different to commercial organisations which offer a service
to the council such as rubbish collection etc and to treat them in the same way is
unacceptable. These organisations don't measure themselves on profit, but rather on the
effect of the people they help, and often that output is immeasurable. You can measure the
efficiency of a service contractor. I don't think it's unreasonable of the council to put out a list
to the whole borough which states that these are the areas that the council budget can't
currently stretch too and we would love our voluntary organisations to cover this gap for us.
Be specific. Write a wish list and don't be afraid to say no to people who are applying for
money for a very closed and not particularly vulnerable group. Do we need language clubs?
Do we need cricket boards? Or do we need to care a bit more for those in our community
with mental health issues? I also would like to see something in writing which states that only
organisations within the borough will benefit from this money. Outside organisations have
been brought in before and in my opinion they never quite hit the mark. They may be
cheaper but there is something about living in a place which means you just get it. I also
think that the voluntary organisations are much more likely to have their ear to the ground
than the council in terms of what vulnerable people in the area need. They work with them
every day. For me this change is the council saying "we know better than you what the
people you help need" and that's a bit insulting. I fear that this change will result in some
vulnerable people losing their voice.
Unlikely to be able to access it, will skew budget towards larger organisations with more
resource to participate.
I think it will be too onerous a task for organisations like [name] that are run entirely by
volunteers.
local councils should ensure local charities are encouraged and supported to meet the
needs of local people, competitive tender cannot and does not do this and the local people
that loose out
If the voluntary/charity sector is to survive and continue to provide much valued services that
would otherwise not exist, the sector must become more collaborative and willing to work in
partnership with other organisations to design services that meet local needs rather than
acting against each other, giving rise to a duplication of effort that will result in smaller
organisations being unsustainable. The commissioned services model will encourage a
competitive culture within the voluntary sector that will ultimately not prove sustainable for
many small organisations and risks the loss of some valuable services.

35

D80

(i) Destruction of cooperative efforts Commissioning on an outcome area by outcome area
basis will inevitably weaken and may poison the inter-relationships and cooperation between
the voluntary sector organisations within the Borough. Much has already been achieved by
these organisations in improving their ability to meet the needs of clients through crossreferrals and joint working to improve efficiencies. These gains and also the scope for future
improvements will be put in jeopardy by a bidding process that sets them against each other
and threatens some with financial ruin if they fail to replace their grant funding. By winning
commissions at the expense of their existing partners. (ii) Weakening of even the successful
bidders Ongoing voluntary work requires long-term funding over a spread of interconnected
activities. The Council's statement that it will review outcome areas annually suggests that
commissioning contracts would have a short time horizon. Furthermore, they would in many
cases cut across the inter-connected activities currently undertaken by the organisations that
win the contracts, by supporting some activities while withdrawing funding from others. Both
these consequences, implicit in the Council's proposals, would damage the quality and
efficiency of even those organisations that win the commissioning contracts.
Cannot really see what the difference is. It is just different terminology with extra funds to
cover the transition.
It provides a marketplace open to major national suppliers who will have access to resources
to bid which will act to exclude local organisations. Those suppliers will extract funds from
the Borough to Kingston's loss.
This is probably too complicated a system for smaller charities
for the reasons given in the panel on section 1
The grant system is not broken and so do not try to fix it by going down the commissioning
route. Research the failed efforts of other councils and the organisations that have been lost
to communities due to this flawed process.
Where a Local Authority has no Statutory duty to provide services to disadvantaged people
within the community but wish to support charitable service providers working with
disadvantaged people with non-priority needs, then the Local Authority could request
applications for funding and agree with the charity provider the need, the scope and the
outcomes to be achieved, as is currently working quite well under the Supporting People
arrangement. With a little bit of adjustment the existing system would be quite satisfactorily
amended to give the results required.
Too much competition will chock small community organisations
Can't understand what the hell you are on about
I think that a competitive tender is appropriate for the business environment, but completely
inappropriate for the charity sector where communities are often struggling with illness and
lack of funding and are not necessarily equipped to operate in a competitive market.
For the reasons already stated.
I don't understand really what it is all about and how it will work and affect our volunteer run
club.
I believe that it will encourage bigger private companies to competitively bid for voluntary
sector contracts and push out smaller organisations who have had no or little experience of
commissioning, and who will not have the resources or experience to bid for these contracts.
I am deeply concerned that saving money will become the overriding factor, rather than the
value for money which the voluntary sector has offered for years; this is evident in other
boroughs where large companies have taken on voluntary sector contracts, sometimes with
little or no presence in the actual borough. This is of huge disadvantage to the local
community who will lose out of organisations with an intrinsic understanding of the different
issues that affect local people, and who can respond creatively.

36

D81

It will reduce creativity and innovation amongst local charities who will look elsewhere for
funding thus creating a disconnect with the local authority. Small charities will suffer as a
result of these changes and will not feel supported by the local authority.
I believe an emphasis will be put on whether a service is essential and time and again
support to the disabled and vulnerable are cut because they are easy targets and not seen
as essential. However when you have disabilities in your own family you know that these
charities can be life savers and provide stability when you have their support and nowhere
else to turn to. They often have specific knowledge of disability that more general services
are not aware of and are unable to understand. I also believe that there will be a tendency to
engage and fund the lowest bidder of services and this will lose the built up knowledge and
trust that has been developed with the existing charities over several years and losing this
continuity is harmful and damaging to the disabled and their families.
There is no evidence to show there is a need for change, in fact there is significant backing
from reputable organisation showing that the current system in fact does work very
effectively. There will also be increased bureaucracy and greater competition locally
between organisations instead of cooperation. The flexibility of grants which allows the
sector to pull additional money will be removed by a system that imposes a rigid
commissioning system.
As a performing arts organisation, we are not in a position to bid competitively.
The commissioning process will place a heavier administrative burden on voluntary
organisations than the grant applications process, with a longer and more laborious bidding
process, often with multiple stages, that will be particularly difficult for smaller organisations
to engage with. Moving to a commissioning approach restricts the voluntary sector in setting
the agenda for service provision. If the council is deciding which services to commission then
the voluntary sector organisations who work on the ground daily will no longer have the
same voice when identifying needs in the community which that particular charity feels they
can address (because of its particular set objectives, its experience and expertise) and
accessing funding to meet those needs. With the grants process, a voluntary or community
group can identify acute needs and then devise an innovative piece of work to meet that
need and then approach the council for funding. Under commissioning, it will be harder for
voluntary organisations to make their voices and the voices of their supporters and
beneficiaries heard regarding work that the council should be funding. Commissioning
process will not place enough emphasis on the social value added by Kingston's voluntary
and community sector. Commissioning is a competitive process and any decision on
awarding contracts made in a climate of drastically reduced local government spending is at
risk of commissioners losing sight of social value in their pursuit of best value.
Commissioning will threaten the existence of many local, especially small, organisations that
are run by a handful of volunteers but reach and are essential for many who have complex
problems or disabilities because the volunteers that run the organisations may not
understand the jargon or have access to computers or have the IT skills or know how to
word applications to meet the Council's commissioning criteria. They do not have the
resources or necessary skills to fill out forms but are the best people to provide the specialist
services needed to help their particular client group. They will not know about commissioning
"opportunities" if they don't have a computer and will give up trying to apply for money if they
don't understand the jargon or have the IT skills. Commissioning will mean these
organisations will fold and the clients will be even further isolated from society. If
commissioning is introduced it will destroy the co-operative work between the voluntary
sector organisations within the borough. If they have to compete against each other to win
commissions at the expense of their now partners instead of working together as they do
now, it will damage their relationships and will have a detrimental effect on the valued joined
up community services and the clients will suffer. They have achieved so much with cooperation and joint working - to introduce commissioning would ruin that and be a disaster
for everyone. Private companies would be skilled at tendering for commissions but once they
37

D82

win a contract they are likely to cut corners and make savings at the expense of the service
and clients. They do not have the local knowledge or know the clients - relationships take
years to build. Some of the phrases in questions on this consultation are not clear to
volunteers so having to bid for a commission would be a real challenge for some. This would
jeopardise their success if they don't answer the question fully because they don't
understand exactly what is being asked of them (what do you mean by social value?). They
would miss out on vital funding that makes the difference between survival and having to
close for good. The best way to help people is to encourage the voluntary sector
organisation to continue to work together rather than forcing them to compete against one
another to provide services. They are already overstretched with few resources - making
them spend more time on administration which could be used to deliver services is not the
way forward.
Please see above. I chair [NAME] which provides essential services for mainly vulnerable
groups in the borough. The organisation runs on minimal overhead costs and a move to
commissioning would only add to our costs of providing the service. I see only negatives and
no benefits to a move to commissioning
I cannot see the advantages. It is clear from your papers that it is a response to government
cuts - wouldn't it be more honest to say that is a necessary evil.
Whilst some commissioning may be inevitable - generally the grants making approach is the
fairest and best way for local voluntary and community groups - who are I daily contact with
constituents to provide the services needed by those constituents. They also provide value
for money service.
Has there been research on the current situation to investigate how it is working or not
working? My concern is that a good proportion of the money be spent on running a team to
change something which doesn't need to be changed? Smaller organisation may suffer
badly as they struggle to compete. Why can’t the present system be altered slightly? Why
throw away the baby with the bath water?
I am not convinced that commissioning alone leads to better outcomes, and consistent
changes in providers leads to a distinct alone lack of community cohesion, and fragmented
service delivery.
For the reasons previously stated, plus greater flexibility available from the grants system in
service development e.g. in meeting new projects and needs rather than requiring strict
adherence to the terms of the contract that would likely be required under a commissioning
environment.
No evidence that better outcomes will be achieved. The increased bureaucratic process will
be costly for everyone - the Council, Kingston's residents and the Voluntary and Community
Sector. There is clear evidence that Grants produce a gearing of 4:1 funding levered into the
borough. Local Voluntary and Community Groups have consistently argued against such a
move at all the workshops, at all meetings and at the Voluntary Sector Board. This voice has
been ignored.
We think that voluntary services should not be commercialized. Services should not be
money oriented but purely voluntary and charitable. Commissioning the services will affect
and eliminate small and medium size charities in the Borough.
Commissioning does not allow time for staff development and cannot support emerging
needs and new objectives.

38

D83

This will mean that most of the tenders will be won by organisations that have the capacity to
write successful bids - it will mean unfair/ uneven competition for smaller organisations that
don't have that capacity as they are on the ground providing the support. The contracts/
services will end up being run by a handful of bigger, private sector organisations that may
lack the local knowledge necessary to deliver a successful service. This will thwart smaller
community groups coming together to address needs in a highly, skilled and personal
manner.
It will be much harder for voluntary organisations to have a voice and may be destroyed by
larger profit-making organisations.
Because even the fact of changing to the proposed new system is likely to result in
increased costs for all involved, including RBK, which must mean that there will be less
money available to deliver outcomes for some of the voluntary sector's very vulnerable
clients. As mentioned above a competitive process is very likely to destroy the useful links
that are currently building between the various voluntary bodies in Kingston and which are in
the interests of both RBK, the clients and the voluntary bodies themselves.
This centralises matters taking opportunities away from local voluntary organisations
There is no evidence that there is need to change. Local voluntary sector has been
delivering successfully for many years using the grant system. Bureaucracy costs or
administration costs
As per the previous answer.
I think I've already explained in my previous comments!
Because of the lack of evidence that the move to the commissioning system will be
beneficial and plenty of evidence that it did not work in other boroughs and additional
evidence from authoritative sources such as NHS England, the Big Lottery and NAVCA that
grants are essential in order to maintain a flourishing local voluntary sector Because I am
concerned about the funding of [NAME] core cost from April 2016 Because contract delivery
will be inflexible and will not give us time and space to lever additional funds into the
borough from outside sources Because it is a competitive process and will create (it already
has) unhealthy relationships amongst otherwise cooperative and harmonious local VCS and
this will directly affect the outcomes for the local population benefiting from our voluntary and
community organisations Because it will encourage parachuting of big organisations with
financial robustness impossible for small and immediate local charities to achieve. Such
organisations lack the essential element to deliver local outcomes - years of local knowledge
and awareness
The voluntary sector should be collaborating, not competing. This system will be highly in
favour of large organisations, at the expense of local ones which have a history of expertise,
experience, local knowledge and have worked hard to gain trust in the community.
It may be appropriate in some circumstances so I would have ticked "to a little extent" but
the questionnaire then would not have let me add my reservations in this box. The risks of a
complete commissioning approach are: -it is more difficult for organisations to leverage
commissioned contracts to obtain additional funding for projects from other charitable
sources - it increases the expense for voluntary organisation in order to submit commercial
tenders - it gives a price advantage to large non-local organisation that have economies of
scale but no local connection or knowledge - unless there is a core grant to local
organisations to cover core costs (e.g. a director and rent) organisations would struggle to
fund these out of allocations of overheads to individual contracts - it turns voluntary nonprofit making organisations into commercial businesses which is detrimental to the
community and to the service that the Council will get

39

D84

Commissioning will mean organisations have to put resource into the process; will threaten
the social capital established in the borough of many organisations; and may result in loss of
volunteers and other sources of funding. The greater competition locally will have an
adverse effect on local cooperation and partnership There is no evidence that
commissioning is better than grants. Most recent reports (NHS England, Audit Commission,
Big Lottery) support grants over commissioning
We have not yet had the reassurance that small organisation, largely run by volunteers, will
have proper access to the process. And we are concerned that innovative projects that
would not normally be commissioned by the Council, but were imaginative and socially
useful ideas coming from the local community will no longer have access even to start-up
funding. "Emerging needs" does not seem to cover some of these. Community grants to be
accessed via a local councillor could pre-empt borough-wide initiatives?
There is no evidence. VSC were doing excellent work for many years by using the grant
system.
The retention of grants at the smaller level is a good thing, but it is the loss of the larger core
funding which is the biggest worry. What safeguards can be included to ensure the local
voluntary sector doesn't lose out?
A commissioning process favours large organisations that are financially secure enough to
be paid once they've delivered the outcomes. The existence of small local organisations
might be jeopardised because of this.
Extra cost of implementation and lack of evidence to show any real advantages.
Where are contracts and SLA's in this process? These are just as robust as commissioning?
I would prefer the grants system be maintained. I believe commissioning systems have
many difficulties and perverse consequences
The proposal is not backed by any evidence from other councils that have followed this
route. If in fact such evidence is available, then it should be included in the proposal.
I have not seen any information that there has been benefit to councils that have adopted
this approach

40

D85

Reducing risk - Based on your knowledge of the VCS, could you suggest the
top three measures that we could implement to reduce this risk?
Comments
Cut the in house bureaucratic language and attitude of the Council and VCS Initiate real
outreach into the community to establish needs rather rely on the "professional" voluntary
industry Provide examples of just how other Boroughs have delivered this approach to
funding.
work with a strong and effective VCS work with established and successful VCS don’t know
a third reason
A sustainable and robust local community and voluntary sector in the Kingston area should
be a key principle. If an organisation is assessed to be valuable and delivering outcomes to
a good quality then the Council's actions should not put it in financial jeopardy. The Council
needs to consider the implications of awarding contracts to organisations with no long term
commitment to the Kingston area.
1. Commissioning has its own rollout agenda without ensuring that all organisations have
had a good chance to be 'ready' for its implementation - KVA have only just got the ball
rolling on the 'New Futures' aspect of the VCSS and has not yet filtered down to all
organisations. The Voluntary Sector is not ready for Commissioning and therefore the
planned rollout for next year will create chaos. Review the rollout timetable. 2. Ensure that
Commissioners have a better idea of what is happening on the ground - why not visit all
organisations who receive a grant. It does not feel as though the Commissioning Team are
initiating any contact with the voluntary sector. There is no problem holding meetings with
those who represent the Voluntary Sector on the various boards. However, direct contact
with organisations who struggle to get their voice heard also has to be achieved. 3. Phase in
Commissioning to make sure it works in Kingston.
Make sure you make informed, evidence based decision(s)... All groups are doing 'good
work', but you need to qualify this, are they having/making an impact? Are they delivering
outcomes...? what is the size of the difference they make? Who else can do what they are
doing... 'bangs for buck' is a factor....
Voluntary organisations are often good at delivering their output but not necessarily good at
going through a competitive process. I think you would need to provide support to these
organisations and very clear but simple directions in what it was that you were looking for. I
agree that a transition period would be needed. I also think that some guidance on
alternative funding would be good as the vast majority of these organisations are worth
keeping in the borough. It could be that some of the people who have been applying for
grants never really needed too but they just don't know enough about funding revenues to
be able to use an alternative.
ensure that there are still grants available as well as commissioned services
keep grant system for very small organisations
1. I don't believe the system should move entirely towards commissioning. For some
organisations/groups this may not be necessary or appealing. It may also cause excess
pressure and stress to a new group that isn't as established. Also, having some funds
available that is 'easier' and quicker for a group to acquire is vital. 2. Groups should be
encouraged to share and exchange resources / personnel / skills. In some cases the loan of
a piece of kit or specialist advice from a local resident (who might be a professional
volunteering for another group) might be invaluable. 3. Hmmmm. Can't think of a third. I think
point 1 is crucial though!
Set up the transition fund as in your proposal.

41

D86

Making sure that someone is accessible/appointed within the council to help and support
local charities/community groups with funding applications outside the borough. Appoint
someone within RBK whose job would be to liaise with the voluntary sector groups and find
out what they need which would help with outside funding. Encouraging service user
engagement and linking support groups with service provision to provide a better outcome
which would save money in the long term.
keeping a grant system for core activities have a lead in period for change grants for
partnership working to help with competitive tendering
1. Try to identify the likely organisations that may lose funding with the change in approach
and work with them to identify other ways of sustaining their work, either through other
income streams or partnership working. Develop a 'partner matching' service to strengthen
chances of being able to compete for contracts as part of a consortium bid. 2. Ensure VCS
involvement in setting RBK commissioning guidelines to ensure that not only the larger
organisations are able to compete to deliver services. 3. Create a forum for commissioned
providers to share learning and best practice in delivering public services under contract.
1) Tenders are checked thoroughly, and fairly scored according to community need and
benefit. Therefore where a tender is for critical services that benefit the community this
would generate a priority score. 2) Alternatively valuable voluntary organisations that are
identified as required and beneficial to the community could be allocated a set proportion of
the budget, then the remainder could be divided accordingly based on a fair scoring system
according to benefit to the community. 3) Possibly link to ability to raise own funds, holding
stalls at other charity fairs and fates to raise awareness of service. Look at match funding if
the organisation can raise X amount, the fund will match it / make up the difference to reach
the whole amount.
Look to see if there is overlap in the local voluntary sector, This requires that you have a
clear picture of what local charities do. Make it clearer what the council priorities are and
which charities are fulfilling these. Think how the council with statutory obligations will fulfil
those obligations if some charities disappear.
1) Commissioners working very closely and over time to understand client needs and to
ensure commissioned projects meet these needs 2) Support to ensure organisations are
'commissioning ready' 3) All possible measures to value local services over out of borough
providers
By assisting smaller voluntary organisations to work in partnerships with larger ones so that
their clients do not suffer the potential loss of their often unique experience and skill set.
Small organisations don't have the capacity to be able to administer commissioning, and as
a result would be excluded from the tendering.
Sounds like a decision has already been made Organisations need 'core funding' as well as
specific funding. Commissioning would have to make sure that this is included Many small
organisations don't have the manpower to administer commissioning
1. Consultation with organisations about what services are possibly not suitable for a
commissioning based approach and how else this might be funded. 2. Education and
training about commissioning - Do organisations propose projects they believe to be
valuable? Do Councils set priorities and how do they decide those? How much flexibility is
built in to respond to changing needs? How to write persuasive proposals? How to deliver on
commissions? Outcomes and measurements might have positive and negative effects, how
do we deal with that? Are there examples of how it works well in other local authorities? I
think voluntary organisations might have a lot of questions. 3. Where you have several
organisations tendering in the same sector you could ask them to consider sharing or
partnering in the work. Guards against undue favouritism and could lead to more robust
outcomes as organisations are often lacking in expertise, person power or other resources.

42

D87

1. Funding is forward looking and stable to enable VCSs to plan ahead and create stable
and professional services 2. Commissioning should favour local organisation who know and
understand their populations rather than bigger outside organisations being parachuted in 3.
Funding from grants help attract outside funding from other Trusts and Foundations.
Commissioning will not.
By supporting partnership working so that smaller groups are not lost, but are retained under
the support of a larger group
1: There should be a significant period of adjustment. To suddenly leave an organisation
with no funds could have detrimental results. 2: Quality assure all deliverers - so that
valuable organisations are supported, and not over-shadowed. 3: There must be a fair
playing field when it comes to producing the tenders. Some groups will not be able to
articulate so well in writing what they do in practice. Others are great orators who could sell
ice to an Eskimo, but reality shows are less successful in delivery. 4: All conflicts of interest
must be declared when it comes to assessors looking at tenders.
In the first year, provide support to smaller organisations who need more support as they
don't have the infrastructure of large organisations so that there is a diversity of providers.
There is a 'social value' in having providers and not just large regional / national
organisations, measures should be put in place to ensure local providers are awarded some
of the contracts. Have an evaluation strategy for the bids that is price and quality (quality
measures could in part be linked to local issues)
Provide different kind of support to those groups E.g. Fundraising or business development
Re: sustainability Smaller grants to more organisations
Don't change.
Transition arrangements.
Give added weight to bids which will result in retention of funds within RBK. Properly weight
added social value in bids.
Encourage merger and or proper partnerships Support market development Shared back
office function developed
Keep the same system as we had
Transition planning involving vcs Vcs capacity building Community innovation / future needs
small grant fund run as a light touch lottery to build capacity / develop new services
While maintaining adequate governance, 1) avoid unnecessary administrative hurdles. For
example if data is entered into a website by volunteers then also enable some change
mechanism to allow errors to be corrected and multiple volunteers to contribute. 2) Avoid
arbitrary qualification requirements. For example don't require sports clubs to have "clubmark" if they are running fine without it. 3) Advise organisations that are largely dependent
on grants on how they might reduce the dependency.
Abandon this idea Failing this, a comprehensive cross party study of the likely implications of
the proposals to be followed through by a similar follow up investigation of to extent to which
those implications are actually realised as a review of the allocations and their effects on the
service provided by organisations both funded and not funded by the new procedure
Abandon the commissioning approach. The wording of this question implies that this is a
done deal which is the wrong approach to win over the voluntary sector.
Not take cost as the main consideration in awarding grants Equal weight expertise social
and cost. Some value cannot be quantified Have VCS representatives on the awarding
panel
Keep in place key personnel who are familiar with the work of groups operating in the
Borough, so that an on-going dialogue can be maintained. To be clear and transparent as to
what is required from groups for the changeover. That currently funded groups are kept in
the loop of the changeover process.
43

D88

Please do not put all your eggs in one basket by picking the big Voluntary Org's to
speak/work on behalf of the many smaller organisations as they do not have the expertise
that they claim and services will suffer. Working together is good and should be encouraged
but not to the extent of losing the groups identity as the richness of the varied groups in
Kingston is what gives RBK a special place where we are all happy to live/work and enjoy
the fruits of our labour. Giving contracts/licences to the lowest bidder in relation to cost
should not be the criteria. Localism is definitely positive.
Organisation need help putting their case and a person with knowledge should be made
available to help and manage expectations
1. The Commissioning Team must work closely with the voluntary sector to confirm the
essential services and the details of the service so that bids can be requested on an agreed
quantified specification. 2. All voluntary sector services are not fully funded by the Local
Authority, therefore it must be made clear to the voluntary sector what they are precisely
bidding for? 3. As one can only bid for defined specification, the Local Authority has the
responsibility to establish the services it requires and detail the specification and give
guidance on the percentage of funding they are prepared to give?
1) Offer advice to organisations as to where future funding could be found. 2) Give clear
explanations as to why funding was no longer being offered, with guidance as to how an
organisation could change its offer and become again one that could be supported. 3) Offer
a timetable for review of the position.
Use community data to protect the right services.
By still having a proportion of funds available as grants for specific projects. Retain the
Neighbourhood grant scheme
Prioritise organisations such as disabled people support, children’s support etc. Monitor any
new commissions.
Nope
A transition period is a good idea An informational/advisory role in helping organisations
seek other sources of funding Helping put local organisations in touch with each other to
share resources
Ensure that the process of tendering is clear and not too onerous for local organisations with
limited resources Be aware that a commissioning approach often ignores the need for basic
infrastructure support (ie rent, management costs, basic running costs. These need to be
factored in to specific commissioned 'projects'. Build some flexibility into the system so that
valuable organisations and good community relations are not put at risk.
1. Invest in the support needed to move towards greater co production - define as
developing an active relationship between staff and service users as co-workers, and from
the perspective of communities as engaging the assets that exist within communities to grow
the core economy, building social networks, because people’s physical and mental wellbeing depends on strong, enduring relationships. The core economy is made up of all the
resources embedded in people’s everyday lives Time, energy, wisdom, experience,
knowledge and skills. 2. Be smarter about how such co production can be delivered the
need to be more outward facing and look to develop community hubs and develop a one
stop shop model to support engagement across Kingston’s communities. In addition this
would allow the development of a strong volunteer base to support communities build
resilience through well trained and resource staff support 3. To build capacity in the borough,
through training and development around building community assets and recognising that
communities have the capacity to build resilience and reduce reliance on formal care and
support. 4. Provide support to the VCS sector through grant aid to be a voice, to carry out a
role in representation, for capacity building organisations to be able to bid for funding and be
able to be commissioned to deliver services. 5. Continue to support VCS organisation
through grant aid to allow them to generate additional income from external funders,
providing an increased return on investment in the sector, which is not possible through a
44

D89

contacts only approach.

1- Ensure that those orgs with a long and strong presence in the community are supported.
2- Keep a client focussed approach: taking into consideration the number of service users
benefitted by the services, including their dependent relatives/ families, as well as how the
services provided support or aid the independence and health of the clients. 3- Pay attention
to how the measures will benefit clients and citizens in terms of health, independence and
ultimately generation of income. 4- Distribute the support to the different organisations
applying a fair criteria in terms of balancing the core services of the different organisations.
Make specialist provision for the organisations that fall into this category by maintaining a
grants system for Smaller amounts and smaller organisations I.e. A two tier system.
Make sure that clubs that are giving a service to disabled people a priority.
1. Commission transparently and effectively. This will give organisations an equal chance to
bid for contracts. 2. Provide guidance to VCS on how to apply elsewhere for funding. 3.
Provide management support to VCS and training.
The council need to have a better understanding of the functions and outcomes of the
voluntary organisations, as well as their value for money the voluntary organisations need to
be involved at the early stages of developing commissioning plans The council could meet
all organisations that may be affected to understand the impact
Ensure that smaller organisations have an element of infra-structure costs to operate Invest
in the skills of the voluntary sector so that they can demonstrate that they have the
appropriate skills to deliver alongside their core service I.e. Evaluation skills, user
engagement, research skills, training, monitoring against outcomes etc. Transition period using officers in council to develop / mentor skill set needed in vol sector getting fit for
purpose and if need to re-position the org
1. Don't move to a commissioning approach. 2. Continue to support small charities with
grants. 3. Ensure that this option is not just a way of gaining power and control, using local
goodwill to do the councils bidding.
Continue the grants scheme at least in part. continue to support KVA who provide valuable
training and assistance for small groups like ourselves limit any commissioning to local
organisations with their local knowledge
1. Measure social impact delivered by VCS groups against RBK's prioritised, matched aims
and objectives 2. Ensure an effective appeals process is in place and utilised before any
grants are slashed 3. Make absolutely certain that services being considered can be
effectively commissioned and grants are not being removed as a nod to politically set criteria
Listen to the Voluntary organisations particularly new ones
Have a ring fenced pot of money specifically for the charities who support the disabled, their
45

D90

families and other vulnerable people. It is of considerable importance that continuity of
services are put before saving money and this should be built into the decision making
process of who to fund. Also recognise the devastating harm that can happen to families
who lose adequate support from charities that they have built a rapport with. This is
especially important for charities who support autistic people and for families with children
who need stability in the support they receive e.g. our son has built up a good relationship
with his support workers at Kites via Enhanceable and they help him with his social
communication, life skills and socialisation. Without Kites he would be more isolated as there
are not many groups he can access easily and he would not have the expert help of people
who are experienced with working with people on the autistic spectrum. In the past we had
several changes to the support our family received via the local authority e.g. when he grew
older he lost his portage help, he had a family support worker who we then lost because of
cutbacks and changes to criteria, changes in SALT support and OT etc. and each time he
lost support or it changed to a new person he was devastated and it took him several
months to recover. These changes affected his health and ability to learn which in turn
affected the rest of the family.
Exclude arts grants from the commissioning process.
Transitional relief, but on basis of shortest period possible. Money compulsorily taken from
me through taxation should be spent on core services, not given away to third sector.
A re-evaluation of who have been supported for a long time is necessary. Evaluation of the
reach of the services provided - both in an acute sense and a broad one.
Keep grants Honour old agreements/provide other support - eg provide free use of
buildings/facilities Advise groups of other possible funding avenues
Fund more than one organisation to do the same work among different sectors of the
community e.g. a church organisation and a secular organisation, or a daytime and an
evening service. It's good for the community to have a choice of services, depending on their
needs and preferences.
Clarity on requirements and certainty of funding to allow the organisations to plan and
manage their business. Keeping administrative overheads to a minimum i.e. not move to
commissioning
transitional or tapered funding rather than a cliff face approach
Consider the implications for small companies / groups in having the manpower and
resource to be able to participate in the commissioning process.
1. Support with making the bids - otherwise you will just get good bidders taking the grants.
2. Some real research by the commissioners into the voluntary sector in Kingston
Do not adopt commissioning
- Allow applications through nesting organisations such as Kingston Arts ïƒ˜ Nurture and support Partnership Working to enable smaller voluntary groups who
represent the needs of discrete cohorts of the local population to be recognised, and
supported, if viable. ïƒ˜ Recognise that especially for smaller organisations that fixed core
establishment costs need to be recognised within project set ups for emerging agenda
issues. This could perhaps include the opportunity to have grants between Â£10,000 and
Â£100,000 that are performance managed closely to assure delivery, rather than smaller
piece meal >Â£5000 grants. ïƒ˜ Nurture and support Partnership Working with the voluntary
sector by enabling access to market to Kingston residents through RBK publications,
website
Voluntary sector has not had enough time to plan for this. Research needs to be done so
there is a better understanding of what is currently being produced. Introduce it gradually.

46

D91

1. Proper programme of consultation about the specific things current grant receiving bodies
are involved in. I know that VCS organisations can suffer from being stuck in their ways and
sometimes be resistant to new ways of doing things (as much as councils can be!). This
consultation will need to be robust about these organisations being more professional in their
outcomes and reactive for the future, but also preserving the experience, insight and drive of
the organisations currently working under the grant system. 2. Creative thinking from the
Council's end on how some projects actually work better across disciplines, rather than
within single-issue areas. Splitting up the funding areas tends to create unhealthy
competition between the sectors and cut out organisations and projects that work across the
boundaries. 3. Voluntary sector organisations tend to have strong but very unique cultures -which makes the swapping of personnel and volunteers between them difficult. Some
thought might be given to how the good will of volunteers and staff might be redeployed if
grants are awarded to new or different organisations.
1 Maintain a grants system for essential services 2 Provide 5 year funding to reduce
bureaucracy. 3 Fund services to provide services within a broad range to meet changing
priorities., thus retaining quality locally trained knowledgeable staff
1.Nurture and support Partnership Working to enable smaller voluntary groups who
represent the needs of discrete cohorts of the local population to be recognised, and
supported, if viable. 2. Recognise that especially for smaller organisations that fixed core
establishment costs need to be recognised within project set ups for emerging agenda
issues. This could perhaps include the opportunity to have grants between Â£10,000 and
Â£100,000 that are performance managed closely to assure delivery, rather than smaller
piece meal >Â£5000 grants. 3. Nurture and support Partnership Working with the voluntary
sector by enabling access to market to Kingston residents through RBK publications,
website et al.
The best way to reduce the risk would be NOT to move to a commissioning approach. You
imply that the switch to commissioning is supported by all parties and VCS providers. I don't
believe that this is the case. Furthermore, I understand that the currently agreed local policy
of a grants-based system was extensively discussed and endorsed by both the main Parties
relatively recently. I see no evidence that the current system is flawed, nor any compelling
financial or other rationale for switching to a commissioning system.
By not moving away from Corporate Grants the Council will not - put valuable organisations
at risk - put provision of essential services at risk Retain Corporate Grants and contract
services over and above the current position.
A 'one-stop' non-biased advisory facility to anyone exploring grant options.
1- Evaluate the services of organisations and the need of organisations currently receiving
funding and then award grants accordingly. 2- large organisations should not be allowed
overshadow the smaller ones , therefore getting the bigger grants. 3- Listen to the voices of
community members; listen to their needs ; they are the beneficiaries who have the say of
what support and services they need. Put consultation in place. Act according to the
consultations outcomes
1. Continue with the provision of Grants to the organisation and promote more capacity
building. 2. Develop an organisation/committee that includes local community members to sit
in with RBK grant making bodies during the allocation time to ensure provision of essential
services.
Provide support for smaller community groups to source/ successfully apply for other
sources of funding Support community groups practically to pool together to create an
organisation that can successfully write bids and address needs Ensure that ability to deliver
a s service that is tailored to the local community and in touch with local needs is taken into
account when evaluating tenders.
Abandon the move to more commissioning. Make criteria for grant aid clearer and better
publicised Make existing grant aid to voluntary bodies transparent

47

D92

1. Make sure the council come and see what it's like actually working in the Voluntary
organisations on a daily basis. 2. If the voluntary organisations go under because of
commissioning, you run the risk of having inadequate services supplied by organisations
who do not have a relationship/good reputation within the community. Charities that deal
with PEOPLE need to know that they will actually be looked after and treated with dignity,
not just treated as a person being processed. 3. Some of the small but essential parts of the
voluntary organisations services will disappear as they are not cost effective, but which
might be a lifeline for someone, because at the moment the people who work in the
voluntary organisations are doing it because they care not because it's just a job.
1. The corporate grants program should be retained (see decisions by National Lottery, NHS
etc) 2. In the interests of all (see above) encourage cooperation not competition 3. Look for
increased European funding?
Retain the corporate grant programme. Don't rush into a change because it can cause loss
of many voluntary organisations especially small ones. Support the voluntary sector to pull in
European money into the borough.
I doubt that you can do anything
Don't go down the commissioning route. The voluntary sector is just that and needs to retain
its independence. Listen, really listen to the voluntary sector before any decision is made.
1. Having provided grants to established organisations for several years, the Royal Borough
of Kingston should be able to work out a THRESHOLD NEED for every organisation it had
supported in the past. There should be a proviso - a CONDITIONAL CLAUSE IN THE
CONTRACT with the new commissioning body (commissioning agent) that if the new
amount of grant provided by them falls below this threshold, they must revise their
ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY. 2. The Voluntary sector receives an indicative budget
(grant) that reflects the need of the population receiving a service as accurately as possible.
SAFEGUARDING the MINIMAL NEED must be a CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION. 3. The
BUDGET FORMULA of the commissioning body should be based on RESEARCH using
standard tools and obtaining the LATEST DATA from the community it is going to provide a
service.
Maintain a full grant system Ensure limited bureaucracy meaning projects can focus on front
line services
Small organisations deserve protection through a mechanism where they can work in
Partnership with identified sectors Vulnerable, disadvantaged and disenfranchised
community-led groups need to cluster under an umbrella which enables those communities
to have a voice and deliver services to those communities The unintended consequence of
losing a mass of good groups who once they disappear will not be replaced should be
avoided
Keep the Corporate Grants Programme Ensure funds available for the fixed cost Ensure
timeliness and clarity of information about the process Work with the commissioners to
encourage integrated balanced commissioning process Support the sector to successfully
access European funding
1.Identify those most at risk 2. Provide accessible information and support to those
organisations 3. Communicate in a jargon-free clear way
Maintain a grant system for core organisations.
Develop a long-term strategy: charities and voluntary organisations are restricted because
every few years they have to wait and see if they can continue their work. Keep the grants
system. Stop making decision based on conservative/neoliberal ideology, but also think of
the consequences in practice.

48

D93

ïƒ˜ Nurture and support Partnership Working to enable smaller voluntary groups who
represent the needs of discrete cohorts of the local population to be recognised, and
supported, if viable. ïƒ˜ Recognise that especially for smaller organisations that fixed core
establishment costs need to be recognised within project set ups for emerging agenda
issues. This could perhaps include the opportunity to have grants between Â£10,000 and
Â£100,000 that are performance managed closely to assure delivery, rather than smaller
piece meal >Â£5000 grants. ïƒ˜ Nurture and support Partnership Working with the voluntary
sector by enabling access to market to Kingston residents through RBK publications,
website et al.
Provide more information and training to those organisations about commissioning
approach.
Enable smaller voluntary groups who represent the needs of discrete cohorts of the local
population to be recognised, and supported, if viable. Fixed core establishment costs need
to be recognised within project set ups for emerging agenda issues. Consider inclusion of
some grants between Â£10,000 - Â£100,000 that are performance managed closely to
assure delivery, rather than smaller piecemeal Â£5000 grants. Support partnership working
with voluntary organisations by enabling access to market to Kingston residents through
Council publications, website etc.
1. Conduct a thorough examination of the value of these organisations to the community,
relying not just on financial measures 2. Continue to support organisations the community
considers to be valuable even though their services may not be those that RBK considers it
should commission 3. Provide administrative support for organisations that may find the
bidding process complicated or off-putting
1 The council should identify key organisations that it wants to ensure continue and provide
grants to fund their basic needs e.g. rents, key salaries etc 2 Or identify such key
organisations and continue with grants rather than commissioning for their services 3 In the
tender, specify that the winner will have to fund certain organisations and use them for the
provision of the required services
Ensure that current providers who have proven to have met the needs of their service users
do not fail because of the bidding process. Ensure that all decision makers have ample
knowledge of the organisations they will decide to fund/commission. Ensure that all the
communities (mainly from BME sector) have equal access to services because of their
specific needs.
Keep the grants system with some additional commissioning. Carefully evaluate the social
value of the various organisations so that the pot is shared among those who meet genuine
need. Work with the VCS in developing policies rather than deciding on them without
consultation.
1. Don't move to Commissioning if you are putting at risk potentially valuable organisations.
2. If they would be put at risk by the proposed system, the current grants and monitoring
process ought to flush out and sort out any non-performing organisations. You don't need
the excuse of "new Commissioning" to sort out what ought to be done.
If there is to be a move towards a commissioning approach, retaining a strong Corporate
Grants element within it will help to limit risk and ensure a vibrant VCS. In addition, any
changes to the process should be clearly outlined to the VCS as early as possible in order to
give organisations time to fully prepare. Ideally, changes should be outlined at least a year in
advance.
For organisations that have a track record of providing significant, sustainable services, have
a core grant to fund fixed costs (e.g. salary for key posts, rent) Provide assistance to
voluntary and community organisations to ensure they have the capacity for commissioning,
and ensure they are not at a competitive disadvantage compared to other organisations
Ensure information about the process is provided clearly and in a timely manner

49

D94

Ensure that there is no duplication of services - advice services are duplicated across a
number of different charitable organisations when this could be centralised by referring to
one agency.
An open and transparent Commissioning/tendering process, well advertised via The Council
website and, e g, [NAME] - Training in navigating The system and filling in application forms,
budgeting etc. for organisations that might tender for Council work - Re
Nurture and support Partnership Working to enable smaller voluntary groups who represent
the needs of discrete cohorts of the local population to be recognised, and supported, if
viable. ïƒ˜ Recognise that especially for smaller organisations that fixed core establishment
costs need to be recognised within project set ups for emerging agenda issues. This could
perhaps include the opportunity to have grants between Â£10,000 and Â£100,000 that are
performance managed closely to assure delivery, rather than smaller piece meal >Â£5000
grants. ïƒ˜ Nurture and support Partnership Working with the voluntary sector by enabling
access to market to Kingston residents through RBK publications, website et al.
Retain the cooperative grants program. No rush to make change, it will effect VCS Specially
smaller one .
It is of the greatest importance that local innovation and excellence is supported by the grant
or commissioning process. It is imperative to avoid the risk that large non-local charities step
in to seize opportunities that have been created by local initiative. It is important that the
Council develops continuing relationships with local people who are successful in making
new things happen for the community. You must avoid the danger that each commissioning
event is a "snapshot" in which the sexiest bidder of the moment sways the Council
committee. The Council must foster local talent - that is at the heart of a thriving community.
The process adopted - grant or commissioning - has the power to support local initiative or
undermine it. You must support local people. These three replies are the heart of what we
have to say in response to your questionnaire. We have, of course, responded to all your
other questions as well, but giving a "thumbs up" or a "thumbs down" to propositions that
reflect commitments you are already in the process of making are much less informative to
you than the three imperatives above. Please give them weight in your considerations.
Maintain the current grant process and do not go ahead with a change to a commissioning
process.
Maintain or increase present grants. Maintain present grant system. Commit fully to
"supporting a well-developed and robust voluntary sector".
The council may say it has a role in supporting a well developed and robust voluntary sector
but in reality organisations will be left unsupported especially the smaller ones who will not
be involved in commissioning or are excluded from the process for one reason or another. 1.
All organisations receiving grants 1 year’s extension on current funding levels so that the
voluntary organisations have time to seek alternative funding 2. An extension means that
council and voluntary sector can have an open dialogue and be fully involved in the
commissioning intentions/plans. This process can be seen as a start of the process but is
rushed and not well thought out. If the council adheres to the Voluntary Sector Strategy and
the Compact endorsed by all political parties then they should treat the voluntary sector as
equal partners. 3. Contracts with SLA's have not been mentioned and must be explored as
another alternative. These have not been mentioned
Extra protection/help for small but vulnerable local charities who are recognised within the
community as providing a vital and long established service Employment of Commissioners
who know Kingston’s needs, history, charity sector thoroughly and give preference to local
charities providing local services wherever possible Extra help for charities who are at risk of
extinction through no fault of their own e.g. by offering transitional funding plus e.g. financial
support/advice around other funding sources
Transition fund listening to those organisations ensuring whatever process adopted is not
overly bureaucratic and supports good working relationships (not adversarial ones)
50

D95

Ensure that the lead in time for the commissioning is such that VCs would, with your help, be
commissioning ready.
Don't do it.
Training and support to prepare smaller voluntary organisations and groups for
commissioning processes Help small organisations find suitable buddies if being a sub
contactor to a larger organisation will allow their bid to be considered within the
commissioning parameters. Live training on the commissioning website, dummy runs.

51

D96

Other comments? - Are there any other implications of the council moving
from a grants applications to a commissioning approach that you would like to
highlight?
Comments
The risk that an in house bureaucracy will be replaced by a public sector model in the
voluntary sector
Voluntary Sector Organisations need to know that Commissioning does work. It would be
good to hear of success stories from other boroughs where it is already in place and hear
from another commissioning team/voluntary sector organisation to understand how it can
work - to the benefit of the local people, maintaining a healthy Third Sector and where a
Council feel they are getting value for money despite having to make efficiencies.
Be clear and consistent... Be robust and fair... Currently commissioning is poorly done, it
needs to change, there are far, far too many people doing commissioning... you need to
dramatically reduce the number of commissioners - it's too much of an industry in and of
itself.
I have highlighted these on the previous page. I would also add that for vulnerable people
having their 'service provider' chopped and changed is unsettling and not helpful to them.
People who need support also need consistency. I am a storyteller [NAME] and have
benefited from one of these grants myself. However I also work with [NAME] and have not
only seen but been involved in working with their vulnerable families. I see the difference that
an organisation like that can make. I also work with achieving for children helping families
with issues. These families benefit from the voluntary sector organisations as it's only by
working with them that you realise they even have an issue.
Potential loss of local services which know the sector Loss of flexible, creatively-run services
and use of volunteers, which rarely tick the corporate boxes, required of commissioning
I think that if the council are genuinely trying to attract and encourage more community
groups to take ownership of aspects of their community etc then things should be made as
easy and straightforward as possible. Some groups might lack an individual accustomed to
such applications and be put off by excessive bureaucracy. Also, there may be times when a
group is set up overnight in response to an event and money is needed quickly. I have just
set up a community group myself and realised how crucial the early stage is in engaging
people. Without a small amount of money to progress, it's hard to publicise events, print
leaflets, buy basic tools. An injection of cash boosts morale and shows people that the
council are behind them. That is massively important.
I wouldn't want to see a reduction in the overall budget.
I am happy to be involved and consulted and this process should become common practice.
Grants have invested money over many years to the voluntary sector- through a competitive
tendering process these organisations could then lose out . how does this investment loss
equate with saving money or using money in an effective and efficient way as promised by
tendering
I have some concerns about strictly defined outcomes that some contracts require that don't
take account of broader social value. I would want to see how the Social Value Act is being
incorporated into the commissioning process and that not everything is about awarding
contracts to the lowest bidder.

52

D97

I have a couple of questions: 1) The allocation of small community grant for use by councillor
- Will guidance be issued for its use? What sorts of things will this be used for? Christmas
lights to brighten Tolworth Broadway, Hook Parade Support local celebration of key events poppies for remembrance etc. 2) Will the transition fund be allocated on a case by case
basis? Or based on submission of a tender following the fairness rules for benefitting the
community? 3) Will there be guidelines for the discretionary fund so that emerging needs
supported are evaluated for their beneficial impact to the community. Charities supported
with ways to generate own income from fundraising to encourage them not to be dependent
on getting grants year on year to maintain existence.
The grant approach already absorbs resources that small volunteer run charities don't have.
Is there a risk that commissioning will be worse? Couldn't the council make more of its
facilities available eg if council offices are unused at the weekend charities could use them
for training events.
Please see reply to why I am against the commissioning process.
I am broadly in favour of moving towards commissioning as long as: - The council is as
transparent as possible, with information provided as far ahead as possible - Tenders are
well-considered - Commissioning can result in grants as well as contracts
What is the reason for this change? How will it save money? I am concerned that the money
available will be reduced by the inevitable administrative costs of running the commissioning
approach.
I cannot understand how organisations can collaborate together if they are in competition for
the same pot of money.
It will mean that VCS will be competing with each other rather than working together. It also
will affect how VCSs are viewed by other funders such as Trusts and Corporates. The result
is that they can be at risk of not being able to attract other funding. A mixture of
commissioning and grants would be more sensible. Emerging Needs are a different story.
I would expect the pilot year to have a development approach so that officers are consulting
with service providers, data can be gathered on both sides to refine the process. We need to
find out what worked and what did not work, and why. We might need to alter what
performance indicators we use as measurements etc The voluntary sector is always
changing because of the interests and skill set of the volunteers as well as the needs of the
sector. A prescriptive or top down approach does not look as if it will work entirely well in this
regard ... so this would be my main consideration were I the person to implement
commissioning.
Commissioning must never be the sole approach to supporting VCS. Grants are important in
being able to access funds for core costs and/or specific activities that arise during the
course of any commissioning or sudden unforeseen needs. If commissioning is to be taken
forward then we must ensure that the services already running are funded or if needed,
closed. For example, [name] receives a nominal amount from the statutory services to
provide the services we do for over 90 adults. By commissioning we would expect that all the
services we provide will be commissioned formally.
1. Beware the dangers of 'lowest compliant bid'; public sector procurement is bedevilled by
the difficulty of writing RFP's, selection criteria/measurements and ITT's. All too often the
process delivers the wrong answer. The 'smart money' procurers select the provider on
quality and business approach and then work with the selected provider to get the right
economics. 2. I do not expect the Council’s employees to be very good at this process for
many years, if ever. 3. Beware the politicians getting involved

53

D98

I would like clarity about the VAT implications and also about the ratios for bidding for
contracts in relation to current turnover- in case either of these issues result in unintended
consequences of excluding groups from the commissioning process.
Yes. Grants applications tend to be informed by what the people (ie community) knows it
needs; commissions are dictated by authority figures who are often quite removed from what
is happening on the ground. It's unclear who determines the needs.
The process needs to be transparent and after the first year when the budget is maintained,
should not just turn into a cost cutting strategy. As noted above, some organisations may
need support during the transition to the new approach.
no
Don't have enough knowledge to comment.
The loss of local input to outside big players who don't have or quickly lose touch with the
community it serves. There will be an inevitable drive for efficiency at the expense of quality.
Difficult for smaller organisations - what exactly will commissioning entail??
Increased risk of exclusion of vulnerable groups from volunteering and local support due to
changes and as a result increased costs to council
Some volunteers have poor IT skills and so applications might be best assessed by a
combination of written applications and council visits to the organisations. It might be
necessary for the council to facilitate the merging of providers in some sectors (not relevant
for my org).
Established voluntary organisations doing a decent but "niche" job no longer able to operate
successfully. New organisations, or organisations identifying a new need, having difficulty
"breaking through" the barrier of established grant allocation, perhaps through not being able
to put together as "professional" bid due to lack of experience for the procedures involved.
Years ago this was mooted but the council stepped back when it was highlighted that the
council would have to take some projects back into their ownership. There is a huge risk that
failed support projects will land back with the council.
Some VOs will need expert support to write bids at no cost
We have concern about whether the commissioners will be aware of the options available,
including groups that serve the Borough, but may not be located within the borough.
I am fearful that by trying to save money and offering contracts through commissioning to the
people putting the lowest bid will have detrimental effects on services and our community.
We would not go to a Chinese pharmacy to get medicines on the cheap so why would one
consider commissioning local services to all in sundry - just because they say they will
charge less?
Unfair lobbying
Not sure but the system should be reviewed at least every two years
Under the Grant application system charitable organisations apply for a contribution for their
charitable services and rarely apply for full funding of their services. Under the
commissioning approach charitable organisations would bid for the full costs based on a
detailed specification of requirements, produced by the Local Authority, together with
achievable outcomes for providing those services. The Local Authority would then decide
what percentage of support they will contribute towards those services. The change in the
process will place a much higher burden on the Council than over the Grant system and also
costs in monitoring the new system.

54

D99

1) I wonder if there would be an appeals process if the council were to decide not to offer a
commission. 2) I would like reassurance that if a decision were taken to stop funding us in
future, that our organisation would be told. 3) Links with a wide range of nursing homes and
day centres across the borough are long-standing and we are often told how much people
look forward to seeing us again, and I would like to think that a commissioning process
would be very helpful to us in our aim to organise regular input, usually annual but
sometimes more frequent.
Explaining 'outcomes' to local bodies. Building a shared understanding (between Council
and VCS) about timescales required to secure, deliver and/so monitor outcomes.
it will require too much professionalism and money which small community groups cannot
afford.
My experience is limited to environmental field and am concerned that if whole scheme goes
to commissioning it is likely that vital work for nature conservation/biodiversity would not be
'commissioned', we tend to apply for small grants for individual sites where the
commissioning process would seem unwieldy.
Yes, but I can't write them here
Commissioning approaches can lead to statutory authorities micro managing organisations
through overbearing performance indicators and quality monitoring. Thus could lead to a
loss of valuable volunteers and staff who are uncomfortable working in an over regulated
environment. The value of the voluntary sector has always been its client centred approach
and flexibility, as well as a creative ethos. With a grants system, the value of the grant us
multiplied by other sources of funding, goodwill and the value of volunteers' time and
commitment. A rigid commissioning approach risks losing much of this.
There will be some organisations where by virtue of the uniqueness of their service there will
be no competitor to provide a competitive bid. I believe I represent one - the Maldens and
Coombe Conservation Areas Advisory Committee - that works with the RBK planning
department to provide comment on planning applications in conservation areas. While we
have limited needs for funds, a commissioning approach would not be relevant to our future
requests for financial support. Provision for such organisations should be recognised.
As A Voluntary Group [name] the grant helped us with rent enabling subscriptions to remain
at a reasonable level. With Commissioning I do not think that something like this would be
covered as we do not need to bid for work.
The VCS has shown itself to be supportive of engaging with the commissioning agenda and
willing, as far as resource will permit, to contribute to the planning and delivery of vital
services in the borough. The provision of the corporate grant has allowed organisation to
develop a market position that keeps funding for services in the borough for the benefit of
local people and the benefit of the local economy, providing volunteering and employment
opportunities as well as addressing local needs. Moving away from Corporate Grants
exposes the sector to competition from non-Kingston based organisations, who may be
looking to take funding from the Kingston commissioning fund, providing employment to
support the work from a different geographical location, depriving Kingston of employment
opportunities and creating a disconnect between service delivery and those in receipt of
services. There is concern that moving to a commissioning approach will limit the value for
money as commissioning involves additional bureaucracy and extensive compliance
arrangements which will add to the cost of contracts. A move to a commissioning approach
risks breaching the collaborative nature of the sector, which has developed over many years
as organisations are set to bid against each other in a competitive market risking
duplications and raising the cost of contracts.

55

D100

If it means we may not get a Grant in future I don't think it a good idea unless someone can
explain that we will actually benefit from it.
There is a serious risk that voluntary sector organisations will not be able to collaborate or
respond to newly identified needs, if they are to compete with one another. There is a
danger that organisations will bid for contracts that might not have been in their remit, but in
order to keep afloat they will feel compelled to cast their net wider. There is also a concern
that the network that currently exists will fall apart if these organisations become
competitors, and this will reduce any joint working or mutual support which is detrimental not
just for the organisations themselves, but also for their service users.
I think this is a good idea. The Council needs to follow a transparent process on doing best
for residents. While I understand that VCS have a part to play, I do not believe that
taxpayer's money should be donated to charitable organisations in the way it has been done
in the past. With further cuts on the horizon, the Council always needs to ensure value for
money and that services are effective. The Council and the organisations themselves need
to get better at demonstrating results and commissioning sounds like the way to do it.
The process of preparing tenders will be onerous for many organisations I have seen large
organisations win many contracts and much of their 'evidence of success' is not
substantiated, consequently, a poor service is provided and smaller, local organisations
have to close Long-term financial security would be a benefit and may offer a more robust
approach to funding services that are good value and are meeting the needs of local people.
Orgs that are in contact with marginalised groups have the clear advantage of being the 'way
in' to these groups. However, they might not have the skill set to deliver the outcome we
need to commission. May need to commission one org to up skill the org that works with the
client group we need to access- not always straight forward when working with hard to reach
groups that have multiple barriers to access.
Yes, selling off the silver springs to mind.
Despite RBK's attempts to re-educate the VCS to accept commissioning as opposed to
grants, revisit all parts of the VCS to ensure the process has been fully understood and is
appropriate.
You will reduce the chance of innovative and new initiative approaches to problems and
services
Yes - the need for effective performance and outcome measures. If you cannot measure the
effectiveness of commissioned services, you should not be commissioning it.
Potential problems with charities budgeting, with uncertainty how long the commissioning
period will last. Serious risk that charities will not obtain funding if their core work ie service
does not fit in with what the council sees as a needed service.
Some valuable organisations get little if no support currently as it is and are already in a
difficult financial position. A re-evaluation of who is actually providing Kingston with services
that the council are not providing is essential, especially with the new redevelopments of the
town causing a homing crisis for some of them. The council need to step up to support those
who have not been a drain on resources and are now facing a bleak future.

56

D101

Loss of local knowledge and expertise if private companies take over from voluntary and
community sector organisations. Breakdown of relationships between organisations if they
compete against each other and detrimental effect for service users. Waste of resources
having to bid for commissioning which could be used on providing services to those who
need them most. People who are already disadvantaged will suffer more hardship and social
exclusion if their small but very important club closes. If the organisation does not come
under a priority area for councillors/the council it may miss out unfairly.
By moving to a commissioning model, charities lose the independence to respond as they
see fit to the needs of the communities they work with every day. Instead of being an act of
charity, their work becomes a tool of big government.
The council should consider the costs they will have to bear in implementing a
commissioning system. I suggest liaising with Richmond who have planned unsuccessfully
to introduce commissioning to the transport sector for a number of years. As well as creating
uncertainty within the voluntary sector, this has undoubtedly led to nugatory costs for
Richmond
-How will the council support small companies / groups that use the funding to secure other
funding to be skilled to participate in commissioning?
I am not an expert in this field - just an interested local person who supports a number of
local charities etc
You WILL lose local expertise
All viable voluntary organisations are keen and willing to demonstrate how robust and
efficient their establishments are, and demonstrate the value for money of their services. It is
essential that RBK recognises that smaller local voluntary organisations offer discrete
services, sometimes to very small cohorts of the local population, who would otherwise be
socially excluded or over dependent on social services. Any back office functions required to
fulfil commissioning processes will do so to the detriment of frontline services offered to the
local Kingston population. The council must recognise and understand this within their
processes, so that the local voluntary sector offering that includes smaller organisations
continues to serve Kingston. The consultation is not clear about the different options
available in commissioning. I do not think this consultation makes it clear that a contract may
not be the only way to commission services. Will you only be using contracts or will there be
other ways for the voluntary sector to be paid for the vital services they provide for the
Council? Grants also seem to be viewed in a very negative light and if they are given the
same robust monitoring procedures that exist elsewhere (such as the Big Lottery and City
Bridge) they will provide the Council with the necessary proof that the work that is being
done is meeting certain standards and reaching certain groups of people which could then
be reported back to the elected officials and the general public. There are also other
implications of using contracts which would limit the ability of smaller organisations to bid
such as current turnover being too low or being a new charity with no references or financial
history. There are also other capacity issues such as VAT registration and quality marks
which all require more staff time and capacity which may not be possible for smaller charities
with limited staff and capacity. We are also not aware of the weighting of social value to cost
in any upcoming tenders. In other boroughs cost was weighted 70% and quality was only
worth 30%. We have had no indication as to how the tenders will be evaluated and what we
need to be doing to be contract ready.
Reassurance that commissioning does actually work. How has it worked elsewhere?
Successes and failures?

57

D102

As explained earlier -- my fear is that a lack of innovation and creativity will be inherent to
this approach. Committees and structures are just not good at this. It comes more from
voluntary sector entrepreneurs, who would most likely be starved of funding under this
approach.
With commissioning the focus/input often moves from front line delivery to demonstrating
compliance. Community organisations often deliver additional services beyond the spec as
they are rooted into and value the local community. Once local organisations lose funding,
their wider community benefits are also lost forever. Often we will only appreciate these
additional benefits when they disappear, leaving a gap in service.
All viable voluntary organisations are keen and willing to demonstrate how robust and
efficient their establishments are, and demonstrate the value for money of their services. It is
essential that RBK recognises that smaller local voluntary organisations offer discrete
services, sometimes to very small cohorts of the local population, who would otherwise be
socially excluded or over dependent on social services. Any back office functions required to
fulfil commissioning processes will do so to the detriment of frontline services offered to the
local Kingston population. The council must recognise and understand this within their
processes, so that the local voluntary sector offering that includes smaller organisations,
continues to serve Kingston. The consultation is not clear about the different options
available in commissioning. I do not think this consultation makes it clear that a contract may
not be the only way to commission services. Will you only be using contracts or will there be
other ways for the voluntary sector to be paid for the vital services they provide for the
Council? Grants also seem to be viewed in a very negative light and if they are given the
same robust monitoring procedures that exist elsewhere (such as the Big Lottery and City
Bridge) they will provide the Council with the necessary proof that the work that is being
done is meeting certain standards and reaching certain groups of people which could then
be reported back to the elected officials and the general public. There are also other
implications of using contracts which would limit the ability of smaller organisations to bid
such as current turnover being too low or being a new charity with no references or financial
history. There are also other capacity issues such as VAT registration and quality marks
which all require more staff time and capacity which may not be possible for smaller charities
with limited staff and capacity. We are also not aware of the weighting of social value to cost
in any upcoming tenders. In other boroughs cost was weighted 70% and quality was only
worth 30%. We have had no indication as to how the tenders will be evaluated and what we
need to be doing to be contract ready.
- High cost of commissioning process - Possibly poorer service provision; less flexibility in
responding to emerging local needs - Competition vs. cooperation amongst local
organisations; poor use of scarce resources - Local jobs for local people endangered
See above.
Many public bodies warn against this process eg the Audit Commission, NHS England,
Lottery, Trust and Foundations. The process risks the loss of all the skills and experience
that lies with those officers within the Council who have developed a sound knowledge of the
Voluntary and Community Sector in Kingston. By taking this fragmented approach not only
will it be costly but it will be managed by those who have little or no experience in working
with the sector. Again wasteful of time and resources at a time of austerity in public
spending.
Many small organisations in the Borough will close as a result of this commissioning.

58

D103

1..Voluntary services should not be commercialized but money allocated appropriately to
cater for charitable services. Grants provide environment where there is opportunity for local
people to collaborate and share ideas which makes the best use of scarce resources and
saves money. 2..Avoid high overheads in terms of bureaucracy which requires compliance
with EU legislation and is cumbersome and expensive to set up and run. An example; is
where various organisations are created to run the same outcomes thus providing high costs
and unable to cater for the local services.
It will mean some smaller community groups not being able to deliver a service anymore and
that local expertise will be lost, meaning some community members will become even more
marginalised, with no organisation able to provide the same level of expertise
Volunteering in a charity is a positive and worthwhile activity for many people. It gives a lot of
members of the community a purpose. Please don't get in companies who are always after
competitive advantage in the marketplace. What will all the UNPAID volunteers for these
organisations do? You cannot really measure and quantify adequately the value volunteers
add to society. Without them, the charities would need grants the same size that an
commercial venture will charge.
I feel that additional funds currently pulled in by voluntary organisations in Kingston are likely
to be lost if the various Directors/Trustees are spending vastly increased amounts of time
preparing bids for basic funding. The large amounts of additional funding currently
benefitting the borough as a whole are likely to be drastically reduced because there will just
not be time for this funding to be pursued as it is at the moment .
There is a risk a high percentage of voluntary organisations for which the commissioning is
inappropriate. Commissioning is inappropriate for engaging volunteers - the invaluable
resource of voluntary organisations. For every Â£1 that Kingston voluntary sector is given
from RBK at the moment, additional Â£4 are brought from outside. This will not happen with
commissioning. The ethos of the voluntary sector will disappear.
There is a danger that tiny specialist charities will be unable to compete with "the big boys"
in putting together bids.
Some of the Voluntary Organisations have been successfully functioning in Kingston for
several years with the help of the RBK funding (grants) providing invaluable service to the
elderly in the community. The RBK should device a strategy to safeguard these
organisations from becoming insolvent in the 'unpredictable' move to a commissioning
process.
The need to ensure that services which target or are frequently used by Black, Asian and
Minority Ethnic communities are not disadvantaged by the process of commissioning.

59

D104

There has not been any evidence shown which says grants do not work and Commissioning
works. The present situation in Kingston where there is very strong Partnership working will
be lost because groups will have to compete with each other. There are sectors which will
not fit into any Commissioning programme/schedule and those groups will be lost forever.
There are practical things which funded groups take part in which are paid for by no one.
Commissioning means groups will have to put monetary values on every action/activity they
perform to show value for money. So those intangible activities will be lost. RBK moved from
a series of funding/commissioning departments to a unitary grants unit to save cost. It seems
to want to go back and recruit very expensive commissioners commissioning a lot of small
projects without evaluating how expensive all this is going to be. What will be more efficient
and suit the VCS groups is a GRANTS PLUS system where there are grants to compliment
Commissioning so that all the work done presently can continue and all the variety of
commissioning contracts not uniformly managed within RBK are brought together to give
equal opportunity to all to seek to be commissioned to deliver services if the fit the
specification.
There is a real threat that many organisations will disappear as a result of the switch to
commissioning The process is costly and very bureaucratic The rigidness and inflexibility of
a contract might take us away from our mission and values We will not have the time to work
on attracting additional funds to Kingston
Larger outside agencies e.g. national groups with large resources could 'push out' smaller
local based agencies that have very limited resources
Local community groups offer more value to the council in general.
large organisations with more resources will come from outside to compete with local
organisations. A lot of local knowledge, experience and trust will be lost. Moreover, if you
lose people that have been working in the local area for a long time, you lose that expertise
and will never get it back.
All viable voluntary organisations are keen and willing to demonstrate how robust and
efficient their establishments are, and demonstrate the value for money of their services. It is
essential that RBK recognises that smaller local voluntary organisations offer discrete
services, sometimes to very small cohorts of the local population, who would otherwise be
socially excluded or over dependent on social services. Any back office functions required to
fulfil commissioning processes will do so to the detriment of frontline services offered to the
local Kingston population. The council must recognise and understand this within their
processes, so that the local voluntary sector offering that includes smaller organisations,
continues to serve Kingston. The consultation is not clear about the different options
available in commissioning. I do not think this consultation makes it clear that a contract may
not be the only way to commission services. Will you only be using contracts or will there be
other ways for the voluntary sector to be paid for the vital services they provide for the
Council? Grants also seem to be viewed in a very negative light and if they are given the
same robust monitoring procedures that exist elsewhere (such as the Big Lottery and City
Bridge) they will provide the Council with the necessary proof that the work that is being
done is meeting certain standards and reaching certain groups of people which could then
be reported back to the elected officials and the general public. There are also other
implications of using contracts which would limit the ability of smaller organisations to bid
such as current turnover being too low or being a new charity with no references or financial
history. There are also other capacity issues such as VAT registration and quality marks
which all require more staff time and capacity which may not be possible for smaller charities
with limited staff and capacity. We are also not aware of the weighting of social value to cost
in any upcoming tenders. In other boroughs cost was weighted 70% and quality was only
worth 30%. We have had no indication as to how the tenders will be evaluated and what we
need to be doing to be contract ready.

60

D105

Small grant ( less than Â£6000pa) for amateur or special voluntary organisation may be
exempt from commissioning processes.
The Council's monitoring of grants has not been sufficiently robust. If this were to be
improved, contracts may not be the only way to commission services. Use of contracts could
limit ability of smaller organisations to bid. Existing turnover could be too low or lack of
references or financial history as a new charity. Also capacity issues - VAT registration and
quality marks requiring staff time and capacity which would be limited for smaller charities.
With the potential for many more contracts to be awarded, transparency is paramount. With
applications no longer being granted via the Committee system by elected representatives,
how will Council taxpayers know how public money is to be spent?
1. There should be an open approach to determining which services are to be
commissioned. VCS organisations and the local community should be involved in the
determination of the services to be commissioned it should not be a decision for RBK alone
Most voluntary organisations can obtain additional funding from local businesses and other
charities. If they become, effectively commercial organisations, it is likely to be much more
difficult to leverage this (especially if the contractor is not local) so it could end up costing the
Council more in the long run It might introduce a significant element of competition between
local organisations who may start to muscle in on the remit of others in the bidding process
Non-local tenderers may win if price is the key issue, driving out the local connections and
may find it more difficult to recruit volunteers
As highlighted earlier we are hopeful that it won't be the expert bidders who provide optimum
satisfaction for our service users. The worry is that organisations that have no local
demographic knowledge might put in the best/cheapest bid and possibly not meet the needs
of local people. There is no information on the period of the commissioning offer e.g. if the
commissioning of service would be for 1,3, or five years. This in itself will have implications
for costs/human resources, sustainability, motivation and advancement of the services.
1. That the commissioning process will place a heavier administrative burden on voluntary
organisations than the grant applications process, with a longer and more laborious bidding
process, often with multiple stages, that will be particularly difficult for smaller organisations
to engage with. Especially those without dedicated fundraising staff. Furthermore, if the
process is not designed with enough consideration given to the key differences between the
voluntary sector and the public and private sectors (where the commissioning model is more
established) this will lead to a process that is not fit for purpose if the council seeks to build
voluntary sector provision. 2. A key feature of the existing grants model is the facility for the
council to contribute to the core costs of voluntary organisations doing valuable work in the
borough. We would stress the importance of the council retaining this facility regardless of
what services it chooses to commission as it is often a lifeline for local charities. 3. Moving to
a commissioning approach restricts the voluntary sector in setting the agenda for service
provision. If the council is deciding which services to commission then the voluntary sector
organisations who work on the ground daily no longer have the same voice to identify needs
in the community and access funding to meet those needs. With the grants process, a
voluntary or community group could see an acute need and devise an innovative piece of
work to meet that need and then approach the council for funding. Under commissioning, it
will be harder for voluntary organisations to make their voices and the voices of their
supporters and beneficiaries heard regarding work that the council should be funding. 4. We
are concerned that the commissioning process will not place enough emphasis on the social
value added by Kingston's voluntary and community sector. Charities strengthen
communities, place decisions in the hands of stakeholders and local people and give people
an opportunity to volunteer, enriching their own lives as well as the lives of others. Anyone
familiar with Kingston's voluntary sector will know that it is one of the things that makes
61

D106

Kingston a great place to live and work. Commissioning is a competitive process and any
decision on awarding contracts must take into account a wide array of factors however, in a
climate of drastically reduced local government spending, we would still urge commissioners
not to lose sight of social value in their pursuit of best value.

The grants system brings a large amount of money into the borough from the Lottery, the
EU, Trusts etc. The move to commissioning is bound to reduce this so that ultimately
services will suffer if the Borough does not take up the slack. Some of the best work in the
Borough is initiated by the VCS before being formally commissioned because of proven
success. If the move goes ahead this possibility will disappear. Eventually I can foresee that
with this move to commissioning the large national organisations will eventually take over as
local organisations succumb to the financial problems that will come from not receiving
corporate grants, resulting in poorer - and very likely in the end pricier - service for residents.
Waste of time, waste of resource, distraction of focus from the main purpose of the
organisations to serve clients' needs, uncertainty, demotivation.
Moving entirely towards a commissioning approach has potential costs, both financially and
in terms of effectiveness, from a lack of flexibility. Kingston Voluntary Community Sector
Strategy says that: â€˜various impact assessments show that a Â£ invested in the VCS can
bring up to 8 times that amount. A Corporate Grants programme allows the VCS to generate
income and bring additional money into the borough. Figures from KVA show that RBK pays
Â£1.2M in Corporate Grants each year and the voluntary and community sector locally lever
an additional Â£4M in other grants. The stability Corporate Grants provide gives VCS
capacity to seek these additional grants and bring money into the borough. For example,
Refugee Action Kingston have recently pulled in a grant of almost Â£0.25m through the Big
Lottery Fund which would not have been possible without the support and flexibility a
Corporate Grant Provides. Grants also help to meet RBK corporate objectives by their
flexible nature, stimulating partnership and new ideas/approaches. A prescribed
commissioned process does not facilitate this level of flexibility and can limit innovation.
Grants can also offer value for money by limiting bureaucracy.
The grants system enables the VCS to thrive, be attractive to volunteers, draws in funding
from other donors and builds significant social capital in the borough. A commissioning
approach will put all this at risk, particularly the huge benefit from the volunteers. Contracts
will more likely result in provision solely of contracted activity, and will reduce the flexibility of
an organisation to respond to constantly changing needs. It may also compromise the ability
of an organisation to stay close to their mission and values
Making bids for funding is resource intensive, and smaller charities are going to be less well
placed to put in effective bids which means small niche organisations will struggle to survive.

62

D107

There may well be unintended consequences of this top-down approach which is very
different from the community-based bottom-up approach of many voluntary groups. Some,
along with the local commitment and services they offer, may disappear simply because they
are mainly run by volunteers - which should mean they can offer good value but may also
mean that they lack the capacity for a complex and competitive tendering process.
All viable voluntary organisations are keen and willing to demonstrate how robust and
efficient their establishments are, and demonstrate the value for money of their services. It is
essential that RBK recognises that smaller local voluntary organisations offer discrete
services, sometimes to very small cohorts of the local population, who would otherwise be
socially excluded or over dependent on social services. Any back office functions required to
fulfil commissioning processes will do so to the detriment of frontline services offered to the
local Kingston population. The council must recognise and understand this within their
processes, so that the local voluntary sector offering that includes smaller organisations,
continues to serve Kingston. The consultation is not clear about the different options
available in commissioning. I do not think this consultation makes it clear that a contract may
not be the only way to commission services. Will you only be using contracts or will there be
other ways for the voluntary sector to be paid for the vital services they provide for the
Council? Grants also seem to be viewed in a very negative light and if they are given the
same robust monitoring procedures that exist elsewhere (such as the Big Lottery and City
Bridge) they will provide the Council with the necessary proof that the work that is being
done is meeting certain standards and reaching certain groups of people which could then
be reported back to the elected officials and the general public. There are also other
implications of using contracts which would limit the ability of smaller organisations to bid
such as current turnover being too low or being a new charity with no references or financial
history. There are also other capacity issues such as VAT registration and quality marks
which all require more staff time and capacity which may not be possible for smaller charities
with limited staff and capacity. We are also not aware of the weighting of social value to cost
in any upcoming tenders. In other boroughs cost was weighted 70% and quality was only
worth 30%. We have had no indication as to how the tenders will be evaluated and what we
need to be doing to be contract ready.
High risk too loose the VCS services if the commissioning system is in appropriate.
commissioning process will effect money coming from outside.
There are areas in the life of the community - parts of the life of Kingston that make us shine
as a successful community - that do not emerge from finding the cheapest of several
competitors, but emerge from initiatives bubbling up from committed, enthusiastic people in
the community. Also, it is not a commissioning committee of the Council that comes up with
new ideas to make the community alive - it is people with ideas and energy that do that. The
grants system placed people like that in the position of having to explain and "sell" their new
ideas in order to convince the Council to allocate funds. The commissioning process may
reverse that - it may leave it to the Council to initiate a bid for something the Council deems
worthwhile. That would be a recipe for stifling the sort of initiatives that makes Kingston
special
Inflexible nature of commissioning will compromise [name] - as outlined in my previous
answers.
Smaller voluntary organisations with local expertise could be squeezed out by larger
organisations with promises of economic advantage, which could prove to be false in any
case. Levels of service provided could also be seriously undermined.

63

D108

Loss local knowledge/experience Increased competition amongst local organisations
Fragmentation of the local voluntary sector Decrease in partnership/collaborative working
Only the larger organisations will have any influence locally as they will have the resources
to establish and maintain relationships with commissioners and therefore a large gap in
councils knowledge Consultations will only be based on large organisations who have
relationships with the council officers/commissioners Lots of data/information will be
unavailable to officers/commissioners as small organisations will not have the resources to
feed this back or the knowledge of who to feed back to Loss of trust with council
officer/commissioners
Extra pressure and workload for charities who as it is survive on a shoestring with limited
resources Too much autonomy in the hands of the Commissioners
Organisations with a history of working well with each other may no longer be able to do so
Many VCs are able, thanks to the core costs grant, to attract funding from grant giving
organisations, thus generating income and employment for the borough. With
commissioning available to non local organisations, successful bidders would have no
reason to seek other funds purely for the borough.
Danger that contracts would be awarded to non local organisations, who would be looking
for commercial gain rather than long term benefits to the community.
Reporting for smaller commissioning pots to be realistic and in line with the sum involved.

64

D109

ANNEX 3

Voluntary sector focus
groups (Grants to
Commissioning)
For Kingston Council
June 2015

Mill House,
North Street,
York, YO1 6JD
01904 632039

www.qaresearch.co.uk
Company registration: 3186539

D110
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 2

Contents
1.
2.
3.
4.

5.
6.

Introduction 3
Aims and objectives 3
Methodology 3
Key findings 4
4.1
General observations on the proposed changes
4.2
Advantages and opportunities
5
4.3
Disadvantages and risks
7
4.4
Solutions
10
4.5
Questions
10
Conclusions 12
Appendix
13
6.1
List of participating organisations
13

Project
number:
Title:

4

STAKE04-7114
Project title – Grants to Commissioning Focus groups
S:\ProjectFiles\R\Royal_Borough_of_Kingston\STAKE04-

Location:

7114_RBK_Voluntary_Services_Research_2015\Reports\7114_reportv1.
doc

Date:
Report
status:
Approved
by:
Authors:

June 2015
1st Draft
Kerry Watson
Kay Silversides & Vicky Peace

Comments
:
This research has been carried out in compliance with the
International standard ISO 20252, (the International Standard for Market and Social research), The
Market Research Society’s Code of Conduct and UK Data Protection law

D111
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 3

1.

Introduction

Kingston Council commissioned Qa Research to conduct a series of focus groups with
representatives from the voluntary and community sector as part of a wider consultation
on proposals to change the current grants application process to a commissioning
approach.
This report outlines the key findings from the focus group discussions.

2.

Aims and objectives

The purpose of the focus groups was to seek to understand the following:
How the proposal will affect individual organisations
The impact on individual organisations/the wider Voluntary Sector
Perceived risks of implementing the preferred option
Capturing any other suggestions for an alternative approach (e.g. something the
Council may not yet have considered).

3.

Methodology

Focus group participants were recruited from various sources. Five focus groups were
recruited from a list of organisations that have received grant funding (provided by
Kingston Council), and a database of voluntary and community sector organisations
provided by Kingston Voluntary Action. A mix of participants were recruited to the groups
to include those in receipt of different grant types (small, emerging needs, community
investment) and some who had not received any grant funding from the council.
One focus group was recruited from a list of strategic partner contacts (provided by
Kingston Council). Strategic partners have already been involved in initial discussions with
the Council and have a more detailed knowledge of the strategic context for the proposed
changes and are likely to already have some knowledge about the principles of
commissioning, therefore it was more appropriate for this group to meet together to
discuss this context.
The six groups were held over the period Thursday 11th and Friday 12th June and included
a total of 62 participants. A list of participating organisations is included in the Appendix.
This report includes anonymous verbatim quotations from focus group participants. Focus
group discussion guides are available on request.

D112
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 4

4.

Key findings

4.1

General observations on the proposed changes

Overall, the majority of participants were very concerned about the proposed changes and
the potential impact on their organisations. There was also discussion within the groups
around the recent change in council leadership and it was apparent that this was a period
of uncertainty and change for many participants.
Concerns were expressed in relation to the consultation process itself with several
participants commenting that as they understood it the decision to move to a
commissioning process had already been made. This concern was particularly strong
amongst Strategic Partners who referred to the Voluntary Sector Strategy and previous
discussions at various meetings where they had indicated their support in principle for
commissioning but had clearly stated a preference for an enhanced Corporate Grants
process or ‘Grants Plus’ approach and this had been included within the Voluntary Sector
Strategy;
“A previous review of the voluntary sector grants system indicated that there was
a need to improve the process so in March 2014 the Voluntary Sector strategy was
launched, and signed up to by the Council, supporting what we would call
Corporate Grants Plus.” (Group 6)
Linked to the perception that the decision had already been made, were concerns that the
Council had not articulated a clear rationale for the proposed change – this was expressed
in all of the groups. It was not clear to participants what was ‘wrong’ with the current
system and what the evidence base was in support of the claim that a commissioning
approach would deliver more and better quality outcomes;
“Better quality outcomes? – does this suggest that the current ones are
atrocious? (Group 2)
“Where is the evidence that what we are doing isn’t working?” (Group 1)
“What is the flaw in the current system that they [the Council] are seeking to
remedy? And where is the evidence that the proposal to remedy it will be
effective?” (Group 6)
Strategic Partners and other participants commented that if specific shortcomings were
apparent in relation to the delivery of services or outcomes then these could be addressed
through revisions to the existing process and that a move to commissioning was not the
only way in which to address this.
Furthermore, participants were keen to learn more about the cost implications of the
proposals, specifically how much it was likely to cost to implement these changes and
whether this cost (in the context of limited local authority funding) would negate any
potential benefits that might be derived from making the changes. In particular, the
creation of several commissioning areas (presumably with individual commissioners
rather than a central unit) was seen as an approach that was likely to be costly;

D113
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 5

“If the responsibility for dishing out money is going to be peppered out throughout
the organisation will there be the skills there and how much does that cost to
identify different people as commissioners and equip them with the skills?” (Group
6)
Concerns were also expressed about the online survey running as part of the
consultation. Some participants commented that they felt the questions were ‘leading’
respondents towards a supportive response;
“The survey is misleading…everything is presented as isn’t this wonderful this will
happen?” (Group 1)
“The online survey is flawed with leading questions… you are commenting on
something that has been decided and how it will impact on you not whether or not
you want it and whether you agreed with it. I know that some organisations haven’t
completed it because they didn’t want to tick satisfactory or unsatisfactory, they
wanted to register a comment in the middle”. (Group 6)
It is important to note that understanding of the concept of ‘commissioning’ and how this
differed from a grants model varied within the groups. Some participants represented very
small organisations that had only ever received small grants from the Council (and other
funders) and had not been exposed to a commissioning process before. Some
participants (including Strategic Partners and larger organisations) had a more detailed
understanding and actual experience of commissioning processes.

4.2

Advantages and opportunities

Participants were asked to identify the potential advantages/opportunities and
disadvantages/risks for their organisations that could arise from the proposed changes.
Generally, participants found it difficult to identify many advantages and opportunities;
however those (from larger organisations) who had experience of or a more detailed
understanding of commissioning approaches were more likely to see the proposed
changes as an opportunity, but there was an appreciation that smaller organisations
would need significant support;
“For us this is an opportunity…so organisations like us and those much bigger will be
ready for this…we’ve got to support smaller groups to be part of this. Not just a day’s
workshop, you need to hold their hand.” (Group 5)
Specific examples identified included the opportunity for consortium bidding and
organisations working together to improve services and this could involve economies of
scale in service delivery. There was also a view that commissioning could lead to greater
accountability from service providers along with an opportunity to demonstrate tangible
outcomes.
“If we were seeing a tender for day care services for example we would expect to see
one of the key criteria in that being local knowledge and a history of supporting the
communities of Kingston…that’s already an obstacle to the bigger organisations…it’s
a strength of our current providers and I think it’s important that we focus on it rather

D114
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 6

than skewing the debate to ‘well it’s all a big threat’…there’s everything to gain it’s
about how you commission” (Group 4)
Some participants felt that commissioning approaches had the potential to address
service duplication and fragmentation. Other opportunities noted included the potential for
long term planning and more sustainability for organisations with longer contracts (e.g. 3-5
years). There was also some acknowledgement that commissioning approaches had the
potential to offer more predictability around the funding process with a known budget by
sector/outcome area.
However, most participants found it difficult to identify the potential benefits of
commissioning for their organisations with a feeling that this was something that larger
organisations would derive most benefit from.

4.3

Disadvantages and risks

The main themes arising from the discussions on perceived risks and disadvantages of
the proposed move to commissioning are outlined below.
Loss of funding
The most significant concern expressed by participants was the risk that their organisation
would not receive funding under the proposed system and would be at risk of closure as
they were squeezed out by larger charities; this feeling was particularly acute amongst the
smaller organisations.
Participants frequently mentioned the importance of (and their reliance on) the Council’s
grant funding in covering the core costs of their work. Having their core costs covered
allowed organisations the time to freely explore opportunities for additional funding, and
for some the existence of the grant had been crucial in their ability to lever funding from
other sources;
“[Grants] allow us the latitude to go out to other places to try and get money…if the
grant goes then this is going to be the death knell.” (Group 2)
“If we have got corporate grants then we have got the time to make the
partnerships to put in bids for contracts…but this takes time.” (Group 6)
Some participants found it difficult to see how their organisations would ‘fit in’ under a
commissioning model in terms of demonstrating outcomes to the degree required by
commissioners, and in terms of general ‘appeal’;
“We offer a service that is offered on a daily basis, we can’t track somebody’s
progress, a commissioning model doesn’t suit what we do at all….unless we
change what we do substantially.” (Group 1)
“We’ve looked for external funding but as soon as you mention the word church,
you might as well cut your throat. There is no funding for church based
organisations.” (Group 4)
Competition vs. collaboration

D115
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 7

Although a minority of participants could see that commissioning approaches could have
the potential for collaborative working the majority felt that increased competition in the
voluntary sector (via the use of competitive tendering) would not be a positive change.
Overall, there was consensus that the voluntary sector in Kingston worked well in
collaboration at the moment however participants were concerned that this willingness to
collaborate and support each other would be at risk under a commissioning model;
“We need an environment that promotes collaboration, not competition.” (Group
3)
“Competition defeats what we are about and our ethos.” (Group1)
Specific risks identified included larger organisations coming in and ‘swallowing up’ the
smaller voluntary and community sector organisations. Participants also expressed
concerns about organisations from outside of the borough coming in to deliver services.
There was a view that this could lead to a reduction in the quality of services due to the
absence of an established relationship with beneficiaries and a general ‘work to contract’
approach adopted by some larger organisations. Several participants cited the example of
Richmond as a borough which had chosen to adopt a commissioning approach with, what
they perceived to be, limited success;
“Richmond has lost that local focus, that added value that local organisations can
bring. An out of borough contractor will come in and deliver to the letter the
contract but will not add value.” (Group 2)
“My worry is that larger charities don’t have a consistent staff base and those
relationships with people [beneficiaries] don’t develop.” (Group 3)
“We could have collaboration with commissioning but underpinned with a
corporate grants process, if you take the underpinning out then we are only
competing.” (Group 6)
“From experience in Richmond it is that a lot of the local charities who have been
running for many many years and they know the local client group and quite often
the staff are able to work more effectively with their local client base because they
know them…but they get taken over by bigger national companies.” (Group 4)
If organisations were to be required to work collaboratively on bids it was felt that
organisations needed more knowledge about what other organisations in Kingston were
doing, e.g. a ‘map’ of local activity. It was also acknowledged that Kingston Voluntary
Action has an important role to play here in supporting networking and collaboration and
that work was underway to enhance collaborative working;
“KVA have set up this kind of informal consortium arrangement and are inviting
the voluntary sector to be part of that, they’ve got this accreditation opportunity, so
I think it’s happening.” (Group 4)
Capacity

D116
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 8

Another issue that arose frequently in the group discussions was capacity. It was evident
that some organisations had little or no experience of commissioning approaches, and
would find it difficult to access the skills required to participate in a more complex
procurement exercise;
“If you are in a small organisation how are you supposed to put together a three
year plan with full cost recovery?” (Group 2)
“There are still bigger players and the bigger players often have more resources,
people to do applications, they have more capacity to do all the statistics…whereas the smaller ones who are providing good services…my fear is we are going to
lose the really small ones because it’s just going to be too much.” (Group 4)
Other concerns raised included a lack of specific experience in entering into legal
agreements to deliver services, and the VAT implications;
“I would be fearful of supporting their statements…they give us three year funding
and then they sue us, we are a charity! Would they give us a probationary period
and see how we perform and then extend it?” (Group 4)
Irrespective of the prospect of a change to commissioning and the potential for more
stringent bidding and monitoring requirements it was apparent that some smaller
organisations had a general lack of capacity in terms of bidding for funding per se.
Preserving the ‘local’
Overall, the view was expressed that in the move to a commissioning approach there was
a risk that detailed local knowledge and established relationships could be compromised.
It was felt that the current system allowed for a ‘bottom up’ approach in that voluntary
sector providers could approach the Council with their detailed knowledge of the needs of
specific communities in order to apply for grant funding. However it was perceived that a
commissioning approach would have a tendency to be ‘top down’;
“We feel ownership of all the things that we do, if someone else is imagining the
need you do not get that ownership in the community.” (Group 3)
“One of the risks that the council will need to monitor is that the voice of the small
player who has been invited because of their local knowledge that that doesn’t
then get lost, that they are named only for the bidding process.” (Group 4)
Generally, participants appreciated that a commissioning approach would include
engagement with service providers and service users and this was seen as crucial in
designing services that would result in high quality outcomes. Participants were keen to
know more about how this engagement process would work and were also keen to work
with the Council in developing this;
“That process of engagement really matters; it needs to be fit for purpose…the
richness of local understanding should be preserved.” (Group 3)
The preservation of local focus was also seen as an important factor in retaining volunteer
motivation. Participants were concerned that a commissioning process that was perceived

D117
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 9

to be ‘removed’ from communities might demotivate volunteers, as a sense of ownership
was something that many volunteers valued;
“Outcomes driven by the council will lose local volunteers.” (Group 2)
There was also some discussion around the proposal to create a small community grant
which would be accessed directly through a local councillor contact. Several participants
questioned to what extent this would be an objective process in that there would be a risk
that political motivations could influence the decision;
“That idea that you get a small community grant via a local councillor, there isn’t
anything objective or transparent about that is there? I really don’t like the idea of
that.” (Group 5)

D118
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 10

Innovation
Another recurring theme in discussions was that of innovation and the perception that a
commissioning approach would inhibit this. Generally, it was acknowledged that the
voluntary and community sector (in Kingston and more generally) was often the source of
innovative projects which were ideally suited to grant funding as a way of piloting these
approaches;
“The Council have traditionally been quite innovative and I think this might make
them less so…you get more measurement of outcomes under commissioning but I
am not sure you get better outcomes.” (Group 2)
“We have had one off grants for creative things that the Council would not think of
doing and certainly won’t think of doing in the future…for example a community
choir, it was a real asset to Kingston but I can’t imagine in a million years that this
would be commissioned.” (Group 3)

4.4

Solutions

Generally, participants found it difficult to offer many alternative solutions, largely due to a
need to know more about the finer detail of the proposals (particularly the exact amount of
funding that would move to the commissioning pot) and the perceived lack of clear
rationale/evidence base for change. However, strong views were expressed that more
consideration could be given to refining the current system with a view to improving
outcomes (e.g. through the use of a ‘grants plus’ model), and that a predominantly
commissioning based approach was not the only way in which to achieve this.
Several participants spoke about how commissioning models in the voluntary sector had
worked in other areas and also about recent evidence produced by Big Lottery Fund and
NHS England (which makes the case for the coexistence of grant funding alongside a
commissioning approach), and felt that the Council needed to take this into account.
“Evidence from other areas - pan London – where they have gone into
commissioning is that a couple of years down the line everything that we had
anticipate happening has happened… all these unintended consequences. The
systems have been far more expensive, and not as robust or local focused.”
(Group 6)
Other solutions proposed by participants included taking steps to increase the size of the
grant funding pot by applying for European funding for example, and although this would
require initial investment in the skills to secure this funding this may provide long term
benefits. Other suggestions included building the capacity of voluntary sector
organisations to develop alternative business models e.g. social enterprise, or to seek
social investment.

4.5

Questions

D119
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 11

Participants raised a range of questions within the group discussions. Generally there was
a feeling that more information was required on the finer details of how the proposed
approach would work in practice. The following questions arose most frequently:
What is the evidence base for change? What is the current grants system not
delivering that would be enhanced under a commissioning approach?
Has the council considered alternatives such as grants plus or the learning from
other boroughs that have adopted commissioning models?
Will the change result in cost savings to the Council, and if so how?
Will the cost of implementing these changes outweigh any likely savings?
Exactly what proportion of the grant budget will be allocated to transition fund,
discretionary emerging needs grants, and small community grants?
What will be the process for accessing the transition fund, emerging needs funding
and small community grants?
How will the engagement (with service providers and recipients) element of the
commissioning process work? Will voluntary sector organisations have an
opportunity to have a say on the development of this process?
How will a commissioning approach seek to preserve the innovation that exists in
the sector?
Have the thematic areas for funding been decided yet? Will organisations have an
opportunity to influence this? What will happen to cross-cutting issues?
What capacity building support for organisations will be available and who will
provide it?
Will the findings of this consultation be made available to the voluntary and
community sector, and when?

D120
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 12

5.

Conclusions

It is evident from the focus group discussions that voluntary and community sector
organisations feel very strongly about the proposals and are concerned about the impact
on their own organisations and on that of the voluntary sector as a whole. Larger
organisations seem more likely to see the proposals as an opportunity.
A key issue of concern appears to be the perceived lack of (or communication of) the
rationale behind the proposals, e.g. the evidence base in support of a change to a
commissioning approach and the associated cost implications of this.
It is apparent that the understanding of and experience of commissioning is variable,
particularly for the smallest organisations who find it difficult to relate this concept to their
organisations. It was evident from discussions that organisations would appreciate clarity
around the amount of funding that may still be available on a grant basis and the process
for accessing this.
Organisations are also concerned about their capacity to participate under a
commissioning model with many identifying a lack of skills in costing proposals and
preparing tender submissions, along with a lack of experience in contracting and the
associated legal and financial implications e.g. VAT.
Organisations are keen to have an opportunity to influence how the market engagement
element of a commissioning approach will work, in particular how local knowledge will be
used and how the freedom to innovate will be retained.

D121
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 13

6.
6.1

Appendix
List of participating organisations

Organisation

Group

Kaleidoscope

1

Kingston Pensioners Forum

1

Kingston Tamil School

1

Refugee Action Kingston

1

Kingston Upon Thames Festival of the Performing Arts

1

Kingston Rotary

1

Kingston Samaritans

1

River Thames Boat Project

1

Story Storks Heritage

1

Kingston Churches Action on Homelessness

1

Kingston & Richmond M.E. Group

1

Kingston Tour Guides

2

Kingston Somali Community Association

2

Street Pastors

2

Digital Drama

2

Royal British Legion

2

Home Start Kingston

2

Kingston Community Furniture

2

Balance CIC

2

South West London Environment Network

2

Recovery Initiative Social Enterprise

3

Kingston Food Bank

3

Spartan Swimming Club for the Physically Disabled

3

Kingston Surbiton and District Cheder

3

Kingston Gujarati School

3

Alfriston Day Centre (Kaleidoscope Project)

3

TAG Youth Club for the Disabled

3

Kingston Environment Centre

3

Transition Town

3

Hestia Housing & Support

3

Global Arts Kingston

3

Crossroads Care Richmond & Kingston

4

Kingston & Malden Scout & Guide Band

4

Healthwatch Kingston Upon Thames

4

Kingston Bereavement Service

4

Kingston & Surbiton Labour Party

4

D122
Kingston Council, Focus Groups, June 2015
Page 14
Milaap Multicultural Day Centre

4

Theatre for All

4

Grow Baby/ Kingston Vineyard Church

4

Kingston Environment Centre

4

Kingston Biodiversity Network

4

Relate

4

Mind in Kingston

4

African Positive Outlook

5

Kingston Advocacy Group

5

Dyscover

5

Victim Support

5

Saturday FAB Club

5

Aurora Health Foundation

5

Islamic Resource Centre

5

Kingston Art

5

Get Connected Helpline

5

Global Arts Kingston

3

Kingston & District Welcare Association

6

Creative Youth

6

Kingston CAB

6

Addiction Support & Care Agency

6

Kingston Race & Equality Council

6

Kingston Centre for Independent Living

6

St Peter's Hall Kingston

6

Kingston Voluntary Action

6

Kingston Carers Network

6

D123

ANNEX 4
FULL EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM B
Function being assessed:
To adopt a policy which changes the management and administration of the
current corporate grants programme to a commissioning approach from April
2016:
£1,052,650 of current grants allocation will be transferred to commissioning
budgets in 2016/17
£100k will be retained for transition funding in 2016/17
£120k will be retained for discretionary grants up to £3k each (emerging needs)
£50k will be retained for small grants up to £750 each
Existing grant commitments for 16/17 and 17/18 will continue to be honoured
Is this a new function or a review of an existing function?
It is a review of an existing function of how Voluntary and Community Sector
has been supported through a grants programme. The Council has been
operating a Commissioning model for a number of years and this change is
proposing to widen the scope of commissioning to include budgets previously
managed through the corporate grants programme, while retaining a small level
of grants.
What are the aims/purpose of the function?
This is a proposed policy change in the way that the Council's current Corporate
Grants programme is administered. The current programme has £1,583,700
allocated through an application process. It is proposed that this amount is
transferred into Council budgets so that activities can be commissioned based
on outcomes, need and priorities. This will be undertaken by Lead
Commissioners across the Council based on outcome-areas. It is proposed that
transition funding is retained to support the change, and also a proportion of
small grants is retained.
The Council will retain £100k from the overall budget of £1,583,700 for transition
funding (for 16/17 and 17/18). This will be allocated on a case by case basis
through an application process. This can be used for intermediary funding while
organisations prepare for commissioning, including capacity building.
The Council will retain £120k a level of discretionary grants for emerging needs
which will be a maximum of £3k per year (note that currently there around 44
applications for this).
The Council will also retain £50k per year from the existing corporate grants
budget for small grants under £750 per grant (note that there are currently 22
applications per year).

D124

The administration for the small and emerging grants programme will be
developed on the basis of officer delegated decisions and member oversight.
The process will be transparent and criteria published.
Commissioning decisions will follow the approach set out in Contract Standing
Orders and Scheme of Delegation, which requires officers with appropriate
authority to consult with members for decisions over £100k. The Council
currently allocates grants through the Committee process.
The Council will allocate this to appropriate Commissioning budgets for
agreement at Autumn budget.
Is the function designed to meet specific needs such as the needs of minority
ethnic groups, older people, disabled people etc?
The proposed function is to provide funding through the commissioning
framework rather than the current corporate grants programme except for
discretionary grants for emerging needs and small grants programme to the
Voluntary and Community Sector post April 2016. Transition funding (for 16/17
and 17/18) will be available on a case-by-case basis.
The current grants programme covers a wide variety of areas e.g. arts, culture,
health, social care, homelessness, refugees, advice provision, adult and
children’s services.
The wide variety of services provided by this sector will cover all the protected
characteristics within the Equality Act, community cohesion agenda and socio
economic disadvantage faced by the individuals and families in the community.
The Voluntary and community sector organisations provides a multitude of
services to a wide variety of services users who live in the borough and others
eg people working in Kingston or students who are also able to use the services
of these organisations. The organisations within the VCS have both employees
and a large volunteer base in many instances.
The Voluntary Sector Strategy, Compact and Commissioning Framework are
the guiding principles through which the current system operates to support this
sector. A larger proportion of the services provided currently are through the
commissioning model accounting for approximately £13 million. The Voluntary
and Community sector has always played a critical and crucial role within the
borough through the grants programme for services that was not commissioned
to meet the needs of individuals and families.
The change in policy is expected to raise challenges for the VCS organisations,
and this will need to be managed to ensure fair access to opportunities, and to
mitigate negative impact on any groups or individuals.

D125

What information has been gathered on this function? (Indicate the type of
information gathered e.g. statistics, consultation, other monitoring information)?
Attach a summary or refer to where the evidence can be found.
Statistics include the total value and type of the Grants, and also the total value
that the Council provides (through grants or commissioning) to VCS
organisations. This is monitored through the Strategic Business function.
A series of workshops (Nov 2014 and February 2015 were undertaken whereby
the Council and VCS jointly discussed definitions and key terms around
commissioning and grants, and set out a direction in which the Council seeks to
move to more effective Commissioning. This included two workshops on how
the Council commissions and presentation/information to set out some key
developments and plans from various commissioners within the Council. In
addition, organisations were asked how and when they would see themselves
involved in the commissioning process and where improvements could be
made. The VCS have also discussed progress of Commissioning through New
Futures and New Futures 2 conferences.
A formal consultation process took place in May/June 2015 which included an
on-line consultation and a series of focus groups for VCS.
A total of 148 responses were received from residents, VCS employees, VCS
trustees, VCS volunteers and services users within the sector. Of this 56 (38%)
respondents were not in favour of the proposed change whilst 13 supported the
change to a large extent. Taking into account all the responses to this change it
would seem that 92 responses (62%) were in favour to some extent
In addition to the online consultation a series of focus group were undertaken by
an external company which included 62 participants from the voluntary and
community sector who were in receipt of grants and some who were not
recipients of grants.
The full findings of the consultation and focus groups are attached to this impact
assessment and committee report and a summary of the borough’s equality
data as Annexes 1-4
Does your analysis of the information show different outcomes for different
groups (higher or lower uptake/failure to access/receive a poorer or inferior
service)? If yes, indicate which groups and which aspects of the policy or
function contribute to inequality?
If the proposed changes are implemented and the grants programme comes to
an end there is some concern that there might be an impact on equality groups,
a strong view was expressed that the current system should remain with some
changes and the commissioning process could run alongside.

D126

Due to the financial challenges faced by the Council even if the grants
programme remained there are uncertainties on the amount of funding that will
be available for the sector in the long term.
An important point is that even in this proposed change the current allocated
funds to grants programme is being safeguarded and moved into the
commissioning pot.
As such the difference will be in the future identification of commissioned
services and which directorates will have this responsibility.
The greatest impact within the sector will be felt mainly in the core funding that
is provided to the organisations to function and deliver their services to their
services users who in many instance are the most vulnerable within the
borough.
The concern is that if the VCS are not core funded they will cease to exist and
therefore not be available to bid for commission based service delivery. This
could radically reduce the size of the voluntary sector and have an adverse
impact on certain groups.
The voluntary and community sector have also brought a larger amount of
money into the borough from other sources. There is great concern that the
potential loss of this funding through the commissioning process could be
devastating to the existence of some of these organisations and by default to
the services users.
Inevitably the increased competition within the sector as well as other providers
could have a potential negative impact if larger external organisations wins in
the process and delivers the service to the detriment of long established local
groups with a loss of local knowledge and expertise.
Capacity of groups to compete and work in this environment and the ability of
vulnerable clients to access services causes concern to the sector.
Are these differences justified (e.g. are there legislative or other constraints)? If
they are, explain in what way.
If the proposed changes are implemented there could be a potential negative
impact on the voluntary and community sector within the borough. This is due to
the fact that in a commissioning and competitive procuring process groups may
not succeed and individual groups may cease to exist.
Whilst the impact for the existing voluntary or community group may be
potentially negative if this were to happen it does not mean the impact on a

D127

service user will be the same as that of the group. This is because the services
could be delivered by another provider and therefore the service user should not
experience any difference in service delivery which to a large extent is the most
important factor.
The outcomes budget is currently being formulated and directorates need to be
clear and identify the services that need to be commissioned. The success of
the VCS within the borough is dependent on the outcome of this process and
the capacity to formulate winning bids.
The Council will undertake any Commissioning in line with its obligations for fair
treatment, accessibility and transparency. Specifically, where procurement is
required, it must comply with Public Contracting Regulations 2015. The new
regulations do allow for some flexibility, particularly for ‘light touch’ services, and
also will ensure that the Council undertakes up-front engagement in the
commissioning process.
In some cases, there may be consideration to award grants through a
commissioning process if it is deemed that there is no wider market, but the
Council must ensure it demonstrates fairness.
The Council through its commissioning programme will ensure that its statutory
and non statutory obligations will continue to be fulfilled and its public sector
equality duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and
foster good relations within the protected characteristics are discharged in
accordance with legislation.
What action needs to be taken as a result of this Equality Impact Assessment to
address any detrimental impacts or meet previously unidentified need? Include
here any reasonable adjustments for access by disabled people. Include dates
by which action will be taken. Attach an action plan if necessary.
The action identified below will minimise the impact of the proposed changes
and support the Voluntary and community sector in the borough.
Ensure the existence of the Voluntary and community sector within the borough
by closely working with the Voluntary Sector Board Partners (Officers
responsible: Capability Lead - Community and Capability Lead Commissioning)
Monitor the impact of implementing the proposed change on the sector and
review on a quarterly basis for consideration of VCS Commissioning Sub-Group
and VCS Board (Capability Lead - Community and Capability Lead –
Commissioning).
Inclusion of social value within commissioning which was seen as an important

D128

part with the consultation. This includes refresh of the social value toolkit and
consideration of how social value is monitored across the Council (Capability
Lead – Commissioning, and Lead Commissioners).
VCS Strategy & Compact to be reviewed in light of this change (VCS Board)
Continue to develop the capacity for commissioning by the local VCS
(Capability Lead – Community, Capability Lead – Commissioning, working
with KVA)
Commissioning will include funding core costs of organisations where possible
to ensure capacity building (Capability Lead – Commissioning, and Lead
Commissioners).
Commissioning themes are identified in line with Our Kingston outcomes based
projects and appropriate transfer of funding into commissioning budgets
(Strategic Leadership Team, supported by Strategic Business and
Finance)
Ensure commission framework is appropriately used by officers, monitored
through network of communication between KVA and RBK (KVA and
Capability Lead – Commissioning)
Continue with the current commitments (Capability Lead – Community)
Allocate transition funding through a transparent process, to be developed in
consultation with VCS key partners (Capability Lead – Community)
Identify the groups that may be impacted by the proposed changes early and
see how to support them (Capability Lead – Community, Capability Lead –
Commissioning, working with KVA)
Work with the VCS to see how best to monitor whether the change has any
impact on the volunteer base within the borough. (Capability Lead –
Community, Capability Lead – Commissioning, working with KVA)
When will you evaluate the impact of action taken? Give review dates.
End September 2015
End December 2015
End March 2016, and quarterly
Assessment completed by:
NAME Francis Arokiasamy & Chris Morgan
SERVICE – Strategic Business
DATE 22 June 2015

D129

D130

ANNEX 5
Summary of Kingston Equality Data
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames is home to many diverse communities. This section
provides a background on the different groups of residents that live in the borough.
Gender and Age
According to the latest Mid Year Estimate (2013) from the Office of National Statistics (ONS), the
population of Kingston is 166,793. 51% of residents in Kingston are female and 49% are male.
Kingston has a slightly raised proportion of younger residents aged 0 to 24 (32.2%) when compared
to both London (31.6%) and England (30.5%). 54.7% of residents in Kingston are aged between 25
and 64. The proportion of over 65s in Kingston (13.1%) is lower than in England (17.3%) but higher
than in London (11.4%).
Ethnicity
In line with London and England, the majority of Kingston’s residents are from a White ethnic
background (74.5% as of 2011). However, Kingston’s BAME population (25.4%) is 14.8 percentage
points lower than across London, but 10.8 percentage points higher than in England. The only broad
BAME group in Kingston that departs from this pattern is the Black/African/Caribbean/Black British
group (2.5%), for which the proportion of residents is lower than in both London and England. The
proportions of other broad BAME groups in Kingston are: Asian/Asian British (16.3%),
Mixed/Multiple ethnic groups (3.9%), and other ethnic groups (2.7%). The three largest BAME
subgroups in Kingston are Indian or British Indian (15.5%), Sri Lankan (9.8%) and Korean (8.3%).
Religion or Beliefs
According to the 2011 Census, the proportion of Kingston residents who have no religion (25.7%) is
higher than across London (20.7%) and England (24.7%). The majority of Kingston’s residents are
Christian (52.9%), followed by Muslim (5.9%) and Hindu (4.7%). Other stated religions included
Buddhist (1.1%), Sikh (0.8%) and Jewish (0.5%).
Marital/Civil Partnership
In line with national trends, a larger proportion of Kingston’s residents (aged 16 and over) are
married (46.0% as of 2011) than single (39.4%). However, this trend is reversed in London. 0.3% of
Kingston’s population are in registered same-sex civil partnerships. 14.4% are separated, divorced or
formerly in a now legally dissolved same-sex civil partnership, or widowed or are surviving partners
from a same-sex civil partnership.
Disability
Data from the 2011 Census shows that 12.4% of residents in Kingston are limited either “a little” or
“a lot” in day-to-day activities due to a long term health condition or disability. This percentage is
lower than those for both London (14.2%) and England (17.6%). As of November 2014, 4,416 (2.6%)
residents in Kingston were claiming the Care Award of DLA (lower, middle or higher rates) or the

D131

Daily Living Award of PIP (standard or enhanced). 4,098 (2.5%) residents were claiming the Mobility
Award of DLA (lower or higher rates) or the Mobility Award of PIP (standard or enhanced).
Sexual Orientation
The Government is using the figure of 5-7% of the population which Stonewall feels is a reasonable
estimate. However, there is no hard data on the number of lesbians, gay men and bisexuals in the
UK as no national census has ever asked people to define their sexuality.
Pregnancy or Maternity
There were 2775 conceptions in the borough in 2013.
Data Sources: Gender and Age (ONS 2013, cited by GLA 2015), Ethnicity, Religion, Marital/Civil Partnership
(Census 2011, cited by Nomis 2015), Disability (Census 2011, cited by Nomis 2015), (DWP 2014, cited by Nomis
2015), (DWP Stat-Xplore 2015), Stonewall.

E1

Appendix E

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
Grants to Voluntary Organisations: Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grants
2015/16 and Community Investment Fund Update
Report by Executive Head of Organisational Development and Strategic Business
Purpose
To set out proposals for the allocation of grant support to voluntary organisations under the
Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grant strand for 2015/16 and to regularise a previous
year’s grant award from the Community Investment Fund
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Adult Social Care, Health and Voluntary
Services and the Lead Member for Policy
To RESOLVE that 1.

Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grant aid be offered to the voluntary
organisations for 2015/16 as set out in Annexes 1 and 2

2.

the award to Surrey Tamil School be agreed; and

3.

the arrangements for the allocation of Small Grants be noted.

Key Points
A.

Despite cuts elsewhere in the Council, the Administration agreed to retain Emerging
Needs and New Initiatives Grants and Small Grants for 2015/16, to emphasise their
support for the local Voluntary and Community Sector.

B.

Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grants are annual grants for one-off projects
or pump-priming/development activity which can include a contribution to
overheads. Organisations would be expected to have considered how their project
contributes to priorities in the Kingston Plan, to Service Area priorities or to priorities
they have identified themselves. In addition they need to have thought about how
the activities might be sustained or have developed an appropriate exit strategy.

C.

Focusing on Emerging Needs and New Initiatives is intended to encourage
organisations to think about developing activities to meet new and changing
circumstances. Applications for repeat funding will not be encouraged, although
there could be exceptions made for events or activities that occur on a regular
basis.

D.

This is the final year of the Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grant strand as it
currently stands. In the light of decisions to be taken in relation to the Grants to
Commissioning initiative being brought to this same Committee, work will need to
be undertaken to identify what grant strands might be appropriate for the future
against this potentially changing background.

E.

It was agreed by the Administration that a budget of £50,000 would be available for
the Emerging Needs and Small Grants strands in total (Small Grants are agreed
under Strategic Directors’ delegated authority.)

F.

E2
The Community Investment Funds awards 2014/15 identified a misunderstanding
on the 2013/14 funding awards which it was agreed should be rectified to honour
the view that a three year commitment had been made.

Context
1.

The Administration has emphasised its support for the local voluntary and
community sector and proposals are being brought to this Committee relating to the
way funding might go to the voluntary sector in future to be implemented from the
financial year 2016/17.

2.

It was agreed that the Emerging Needs and New Initiatives and Small Grant
programmes should be launched at the end of December 2014 with a closing date
of 27 February 2015 for funding in 2015/16.

3.

Applications were invited using the guidelines and application forms that were
agreed following the Grants Review in 2012, updated to take account of changes in
the Kingston Plan and Service Area priorities.

Budget and applications
4.

It was agreed by the Administration that a budget of £50,000 would be available for
the Emerging Needs and Small Grants strands in total for 2015/16. (Small Grants
are agreed under Strategic Directors’ delegated authority).

5.

Forty four applications have been received for the Emerging Needs Grants (with
one organisation submitting two applications). The total request was for £118,983.

6.

Eighteen applications have been received for Small Grants, totalling £13,772, one
of whom had also applied to Emerging Needs. In the past, approximately £10,000
has been set aside for Small Grants. These are decided under Strategic Directors’
delegated authority.

7.

The extent of over-subscription has made decision making difficult and reduced
awards or no awards have had to be made in a number of cases.

8.

A table summary of applications for Emerging Needs and New Initiatives is included
at Annex 1 and more detail of the applications, which the Policy and Finance
Committee is asked to approve, are provided in Annex 2.

9.

This is the final year of the Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grant strand as it
currently stands. In the light of decisions to be taken in relation to the Grants to
Commissioning initiative being brought to this same meeting, work will need to be
undertaken to identify what grant strands might be appropriate for the future against
this potentially changing background.

Community Investment Fund (CIF)
10.

In 2013/14 Surrey Tamil School applied for a CIF Grant and understood that it had
been awarded three year funding at £4,000 per annum. However, it had been
informed that the 2013/14 funding would be for one year only, pending a review of
all funding to community language schools. When the School re-applied in 2014/15
it only received £2,500 again as an annual award. The Surrey Tamil School sought
a review of the original decision and the agreement it had signed.

11.

E3
There is no evidence to suggest the decision was mis-administered. However, in
light of the school planning its three year programme based on its understanding of
three year commitment by the Council, it is felt this position should be regularised
so that the School is not disadvantaged.

12.

The Surrey Tamil School would receive the remainder of its three year funding
£5,500 in 2015/16 following which the School’s grant would come to a natural end
and it will need to apply for any future funding under the commissioning process.

13.

The Surrey Tamil School is the only organisation that has sought a review of a grant
decision and therefore it is not anticipated that other claims will be submitted
following this decision given the time that has elapsed since the original decision.

Timescale
14.

When decisions have been made on the allocation of grants to individual voluntary
organisations, the voluntary organisations will be informed. The grant payments will
be made as soon as possible after receipt of signed terms and conditions.

Resource implications
15.

Despite cuts elsewhere in the Council, the Administration agreed to retain the
Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grants and Small Grants for 2015/16 with an
overall allocation of £50,000. This is within the overall baseline budget agreed at
the Policy and Finance Committee on 12 February 2015 for grant aid to voluntary
organisations in 2015/16.

16.

The CIF award to Surrey Tamil School is available within the base budget in
addition to the 2015/16 allocation identified in the above paragraph.

Risk assessment
17.

Assessment of the grant applications has been made against the criteria which has
been in place for two years and has been publicised on the website.

Equality Impact Assessment Implications
18.

The Voluntary Sector Grants programme has ensured that the distribution of its
available funds has been undertaken in a fair and appropriate way. In this process
due consideration has been given to the public sector equality duty to eliminate
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations for the
benefit of communities in the borough. The recommendations that have been made
by officers in awarding the grants to organisations have been carried out carefully to
benefit as many people as possible.

Environmental Implications
19.

There are potential environmental benefits from encouraging voluntary
organisations to adopt environmental good practice. The grant application process
requires applicants to set out their approach to good environmental practice
including their approach to recycling and transport options as well as the use of
equipment and lighting. In addition, there are some applications that focus on
environmental issues and activity.

E4

Legal Implications
20.

Grant aid for the grants contained in this report may be authorised under the
following Local Government Acts:

21.

Section 65 of the Health Services and Public Health Act 1968 which empowers the
local authority to make grants to voluntary organisations in the Health and Social
Services field who are providing a service which a local authority must or may
provide or who are promoting or publicising such a service or similar one, or giving
advice on how such a service or similar one can best be provided. In the case of
Kingston CABS, a percentage of its activities are broader than those covered by the
above authority, therefore, part of the grant is authorised under Section 137 of the
Local Government Act 1972, which gives the local authority power to incur
expenditure in the interests of their area which is not otherwise authorised.

22.

Section 19 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 gives local
authorities power to provide premises for the use of clubs or societies having
athletic, social or recreational objectives; to make recreational facilities available
free or at reduced charges to such people as they think fit and to make grants or
loans to help voluntary bodies provide recreational facilities of a kind which the local
authorities have power to provide. This covers recreational facilities inside and
outside of the local authority.

23.

Section 145 of the Local Government Act 1972, relating to the provision of
entertainment, which gives local authorities the power to contribute towards the
expenses of anything necessary or expedient for the provision of entertainment of
any nature, and for the development and improvement of the Council’s
understanding and practice of the arts.

Background papers – held by author of the report - Jill Darling - Team Leader Voluntary
and Community Sector
Jill.darling@kingston.gov.uk Tel: 020 8547 5124
•

Applications and background information

E5
Annex 1
Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grants

EMERGING NEEDS AND NEW INITIATIVES
Grant Applications 2015-16

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

Arts
Antoni Ruschil Violin Maker
Art of the Puppet Ltd
BalletBoyz Ltd
Creative Youth
Digital Drama
Global Arts Kingston
YMCA London South West
Community Language and Culture
Al Furat School
Greek School of St George
Kingston, Surbiton and District Cheder
Malayalam Arts & Sports Society
Environment
Kingston Environment Centre
(Tolworth Medieval Manor)
Kingston Environment Centre
(Hogsmill Community Garden)
Kingston Permaculture Reserve
River Thames Boat Project
South West London Environment Network
Infrastructure Support
Voluntary and Community Sector Strategic
Partners under the umbrella of
Kingston Voluntary Action
Play
Chessington Kids Club
Social Welfare – Adults
Addiction Support and Care Agency (ASCA)
Aurora Health Foundation
Centre for Community Development
Fastminds
Fircroft Trust
Independent Yemen Development Ltd
managing MENA Women Project
Kingston Pensioners Forum
Learn English at Home (LEAH)
Recovery Initiative Social Enterprise (RISE)
Recovery Initiative Social Enterprise (RISE)
Roundabout Drama Therapy
Saheli

Emerging Needs and
New Initiatives Grant
awarded 2014-15

Application
amount
2015-16

draft
recommend
-ation

n/a
n/a
n/a
£1,500
£2,000
n/a
n/a

£2,000
£3,000
£3,000
£2,100
£3,000
£2,250
£3,000

£0
£0
£1,700
£0
£1,700
£1,300
£1,800

n/a
£1,500
£1,500
n/a

£3,000
£3,000
£3,000
£2,937

£0
£450
£900
£900

n/a

£1,800

£1,620

n/a

£3,000

£0

n/a
£1,500
n/a

£3,000
£3,000
£3,000

£0
£1,300
£1,800

n/a

£3,000

£2,700

£1,800

£1,905

£1,620

£2,000
£2,500
£1,500
n/a
n/a

£2,413
£3,000
£3,000
£3,000
£3,000

£1,300
£1,300
£900
£1,300
£900

n/a

£2,229

£900

£1,000
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
£500

£1,000
£2,997
£2,997
£2,933
£2,961
£3,000

£900
£900
£900
£0
£0
£450

E6
Annex 1
Emerging Needs and New Initiatives Grants

EMERGING NEEDS AND NEW INITIATIVES
Grant Applications 2015-16
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

Social Welfare – Advice and Information
African Positive Outlook
Kingston Somali Community Association
Theatre for All
Social Welfare – Children
Kingston Carers’ Network
Refugee Action Kingston (RAK)
Sport
Quilombo UK (formerly Axe Capoeira UK)
Spartan Swimming Club for the Physically
Disabled
Tourism and Events
Kingston Pound Community Association
Kingston Race and Equalities Council
(KREC)
Kingston Tour Guides
Rotary Club of Kingston upon Thames Dragon Boat Race
Rotary Club of Kingston upon Thames
Trust Fund
Young People
Kingston Street Pastors
Oxygen
SUB-TOTAL

Emerging Needs and
New Initiatives Grant
awarded 2014-15

Application
amount
2015-16

draft
recommend
-ation

£1,500
£2,000
n/a

£3,000
£2,841
£3,000

£0
£1,300
£0

n/a
£1,500

£2,510
£3,000

£1,300
£900

£1,000

£3,000

£0

£3,000

£3,000

£2,700

n/a

£2,000

£0

£2,500

£3,000

£2,250

£1,600

£1,900

£1,300

£500

£1,250

£450

n/a

£3,000

£450

n/a
£2,000

£3,000
£2,960

£0
£1,800

£118,983

£39,990

ANNEX 2
EMERGING NEEDS AND NEW INITIATIVES GRANT APPLICATIONS 2015/16

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ARTS
Antoni Ruschil
Violin Maker

n/a

Antoni Ruschil set up his business as a violin
maker and restorer in 2015, based in Kingston, to
supply musicians with violins, violas, cellos and
baroque instruments, as well as providing
services for instrument repair and restoration.
Activities will also include workshops and
demonstrations on instrument making.

It is recommended that the owner makes contact
with local business support through Kingston
Chamber of Commerce.

The grant request is for £2,000 to support the
development of the business as outlined in the
Business Plan.

Recommendation: No grant

E7

Art of the Puppet
Ltd

As a small private business, with no constitution or
management committee, Antoni Ruschil Violin
Maker is not eligible for grant aid for voluntary and
community organisations.

n/a

Art of the Puppet Ltd was set up as a charity in
1979 (and is also a limited company) to support
two international puppet festivals in 1979 and
1984. The organisation presents innovative
quality theatre with a view to raising the status
and profile of the marionette. The company has
an active educational policy and runs a
programme of work in schools, reaching large
numbers of children every year. Since 1984, the
charity has worked in partnership with
Movingstage, its trading arm, supporting mainly
educational activities promoted by the Puppet
Theatre Barge.

The barge is based in Westminster but runs a
summer season in Richmond involving 50 public
performances and there is no information about
how many people from Kingston have attended.
Whilst dementia is an important issue, it appears to
be a new topic for Art of the Puppet and would also
be a new audience since their work has focused on
children.
It is recommended that the organisation contacts
Adult Social Care in Kingston and makes links with
the dementia strategy – perhaps they could explore
ways in which the barge could visit Kingston and/or
how Kingston residents could be specifically

1

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
The grant request is for £3,000 to develop a
theatre production to engage with carers of
people affected by dementia.

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
targeted.
Recommendation: No grant

This is expected to contribute to the following
outcomes:
•

BalletBoyz Ltd

Improved wellbeing of those affected by
dementia and their families.
n/a

BalletBoyz is a registered charity and a dance
and film company which tours nationally and
internationally.

The RBK Arts Commissioning Manager is
supportive of this application which has good links
into the cultural strategy priorities.

The grant request is for £3,000 to help with the
early development of a 3 day Dance Film Festival
to be held in Kingston in 2016. The event will
include screenings, workshops and a film
competition. The grant would be used in 2015 to
create a plan of work, explore partnerships,
produce a brief/proposal for presentation to
further partners and sponsors and begin the
implementation of a fundraising strategy.

In a 2013 survey, 98% of BalletBoyz audiences
rated the company as ‘excellent’.
The Dance Film Festival will help to raise
Kingston’s profile as a vibrant cultural centre and
benefit the local economy. An Emerging Needs
and New Initiatives Grant of £1,700 is therefore
recommended to contribute towards the initial
planning and development of the project during
2015 and begin to implement a fundraising strategy

This is expected to contribute to the following
outcomes:
2

E8

The award winning BalletBoyz charity is relatively
new to Kingston, having moved into its own studio
in the borough in 2012 and is potentially of great
benefit to Kingston with its high quality, high profile
events, European partners and TV commissions.

In 2013/14 the company produced and delivered
20 films with an estimated TV audience of
1,125,000 people.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Creative Youth

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Residents engaging in recreational,
educational and social activities

•

Bringing high quality events to Kingston and
raising Kingston’s profile as a cultural centre

•

Showcasing dance films and forming part of a
digital strategy to increase access to high
quality dance

•

Enhanced community cohesion and benefits
to the local economy.

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
for a 2016 Dance Film Festival in Kingston.
Recommendation: A grant of £1,700

2015/16
CIF grant
£18,000
2015/16
Strategic
Partners
£3,000

Creative Youth now works all year round with
young people and adults and contributes to
Kingston’s place shaping agenda and cultural
ambitions. Their creative approach, together with
the relationships they are forging with funders,
collaborators and commissioners, has the potential
to bring many cultural benefits to the borough.
However, the project for which they are seeking
funding is very similar to the one proposed by the
YMCA, which has been discussed with the Arts
Officer.

The grant request is for £2,100 to establish a
group of young artists who will act as peer
educators and target hard-to-reach young people
facing disadvantage in RBK to become part of the
project and participate in a final showcase.

Because of the pressure on the budget, it is
suggested that Creative Youth makes links with the
YMCA to see how they can work together on this
valuable initiative.

This is expected to contribute to the following

Recommendation: No grant
3

E9

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

Creative Youth is a registered charity formed in
2009. The organisation works with young people
aged 5-26 years old and helps them to realise
their potential through the arts: developing young
people by equipping them with the skills and
confidence to succeed in business and the arts
and celebrating the achievements of young
people in the arts worldwide during the
International Youth Arts Festival. They are the
Voluntary Sector Strategic Lead for Arts and
Culture.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

outcomes:
•
•
•
Digital Drama

Increased community integration and
cohesion
Four emerging artists accessing work
experience
20 participants accessing options for further
training/education in their chosen field.
2014/15
EN and NI
£2,000
2014/15
Nbhds £750
(£188 each)

The grant request is for £3,000 towards
research/development for new artistic projects,
publicity, website development, social media
marketing to enable Digital Drama to develop new
projects to give more opportunities for more
people to volunteer, participate and benefit from
their activities.

The Arts Commissioning Manager is supportive of
this application since the grant would enable further
projects to be developed. Excellent feedback was
received from the VE Day remembered events.
The organisation works closely with the community
through libraries and other contacts they have
made during their time in the borough.

Outcomes include:

Digital Drama includes people of all ages and
backgrounds and provides numerous volunteering
opportunities for people as a way to improve the
physical mental health of all. As individuals, the
staff of Digital Drama also volunteer within the
Kingston community, specifically working with
young refugees for Refugee Action Kingston.

•

Recommendation: A grant of £1,700

Capacity building for the organisation to
develop its offer working with partners such as
Global Arts Kingston, the Rose Theatre,
Anstee Bridge and several schools
4

E10

Digital Drama is a multi-media production
Community Interest Company (CIC) which was
set up in 2013. The company works with multigenerational and diverse communities to share
stories and experiences thus connecting people
through creative media projects.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Global Arts
Kingston

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Kingston residents will be able to volunteer,
take part in workshops and learn from audio
installations

•

Promoting a sense of belonging and
community cohesion.

Global Arts was formed in 2001 and is constituted
as an un-incorporated association and is
registered as a charity.

•

Participatory and educational arts projects
celebrating the shared experience of heritage

•

Workshops, discussion groups and campaign
action to represent diverse communities
locally

•

2015/16
CIF
£14,500

Global Arts has worked hard over the last few
years to develop its organisational capacity and the
Arts Officer is supportive of this application.

The project offers BME artists and community
practitioners to develop their practice in a safe and
inclusive environment, with a focus on working
collaboratively and cross culturally.
This will result in the development of a team of
local artists and practitioners who can deliver more
work for Global Arts Kingston and other RBK
organisations and groups.
It is hoped that this will lead to a long-term ongoing
programme of professional development for young
BAME artists in Kingston, working across different
cultures.

Showcasing and celebrating the arts and
heritage of Kingston’s ethnic minority
communities and bringing them to the widest
5

E11

An annual programme of exhibits, showcases
and performances

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

Global Arts Kinston has a good track record of
working with other groups and supporting inclusive
activities and this application reflects this approach.

The activity is BAME-led with a focus on opening
up culture and traditions from different
backgrounds for all to enjoy thus ensuring
community cohesion as understanding and
respect develops between people and
communities that might not otherwise interact.
Global Arts Kingston’s work includes:
•

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

possible audience.
The grant request is for £2,250 for a pilot project
involving setting up an ensemble of 5 BAME
artists, who are in the early stages of their
careers, to work collaboratively over 3 months
with a particular focus on identity and diversity.
Outcomes include:
A space to develop new work, initially led by
the topic of identity and diversity

•

Development of project ideas and a
professional support network

•

Local artists equipped to deliver more work

•

Improved community cohesion.

E12

YMCA London
South West

•

The YMCA London South West is a registered
charity and company whose main activities
include supported and move-on housing, gym and
fitness facilities and engagement work with young
people.

2014/15
CIF
£3,000

This application aligns well with the Arts and
Cultural Strategy. The YMCA is acting as an
umbrella organisation for other groups to work
collaboratively with each other.
The project will work with young people and
community groups in different settings, targeting
the more marginalised with the aim of giving them
an opportunity to respond to their local environment
in different neighbourhoods.

The grant request is for £3,000 towards ‘Our
Town’ dance/health promotion activity aimed at
young people and community groups to celebrate
the history, diversity and characteristics of the
borough’s different neighbourhoods through sitespecific dance performances at local festivals or

Young people would be offered the opportunity to
6

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
events.

attain the Bronze Arts Award as part of the
programme as well as benefitting from the physical
and psychological impact of movement. The
programme would also be linked to the
development of Kingston Youth Dance Company
and the YMCA’s volunteering programme.

Outcomes include:
Improved mental and physical wellbeing of
participants

•

Introduction to the benefits of dance and
movement

•

Increased confidence and self esteem

It is recommended that Creative Youth join with
YMCA to pursue the activities outlined in their
application.

•

Place shaping and pride in celebrating local
diversity, vitality and history.

Recommendation: A grant of £1,800

£18,350

Total
recommend
ed

£6,500

2014/15
CIF (one
year only)
£3,000

Al Furat School has moved to a base in Sutton,
although Kingston residents still use the school.
However, the Sutton base does change their
eligibility for Kingston funding.

COMMUNITY LANGUAGE AND CULTURAL
Al Furat School

Al Furat School was formed in 1994 and
developed a constitution in 2008, to provide a
service to children, youth and families from ethnic
backgrounds. The service is delivered at Stanley
Park High School in Carshalton and includes
teaching Arabic community language, culture and
art to children aged 4-16 years old, providing a
social platform for students’ families, social and
cultural events, and debating integration and
addressing social and domestic issues.

In the light of this and changes to focus away from
supporting non-English community language
teaching, no grant is recommended.
Recommendation: No grant

The grant request is for £3,000 to contribute to
7

E13

Total Arts Bid

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

part of the ground rent of the school property to
be hired and staff pay. If these expenses are
covered, the capital raised from the school fees
charged to the parents will be available to fund
other essential initiatives.
Outcomes:
To teach cultural language to children aged 416

•

To become a hub for people of ethnic minority
backgrounds to socialise and not feel isolated

•

To provide a service to the youth within ethnic
minority groups where they will be able to
preserve their culture through language but at
the same time be able to integrate with the
wider community.

E14

Greek School of
St George

•

The Greek School of St George was founded in
1964 to teach Greek language, culture, music and
dance to children and adults on Saturday
mornings.
The grant request is for £3,000 to contribute
towards the running costs of the school including
teachers’ salaries, rent, utilities, equipment,
stationery and other expenses.

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

The School continues to promote Greek language
but there is little evidence provided of shared
cultural events and links with Global Arts Kingston
(as advised in 2014/15). The Council is no longer
able to continue to fund non-English community
language teaching and any future grant support is
likely to focus on inclusive community activities.
The Greek School of St George is encouraged to
continue to seek funding from other sources. A
reduced grant is recommended to support this

Outcomes:
8

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Kingston,
Surbiton and
District Cheder

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

transition.

Success of pupils in GCSE and A Level
examinations.

Recommendation: A grant of £450
2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

Kingston, Surbiton and District Cheder was
formed in 1957 and currently has 25 children and
young people up to the age of 18. The Cheder
provides education in Jewish studies and offers
activities for children of all ages from a drop-in
centre for parents with babies and toddlers to
young people aged 15-18 learning leadership
skills.

Malayalam Arts
and Sports
Society

•

Participation in multi-faith events

•

Promotion of inclusion and community
cohesion.

In the light of changes in the funding environment
generally, it is important that the Cheder develops a
funding strategy that takes account of these
challenges.
Recommendation: a grant of £900
n/a

The Malayalam Arts and Sports Society was set
up in 2009 to promote and advance education
and the values of South Indian Malyalee Culture
and Arts, to promote integration and community
9

The Malayalam Arts and Sports Society works with
ECET, Global Arts Kingston and KREC and
contributes to the planning and delivery of the
Carnival. This is a new group working hard to

E15

The Cheder is encouraged to join the mailing list of
the Council’s Equalities and Community
Engagement Team (ECET) to receive its monthly
newsletter which includes details about community
events and funding information.

Outcomes:
Promotion of learning, tolerance and
integration in the community

The Kingston, Surbiton and District Cheder is
involved in multi-faith events such as the Holocaust
Memorial Day and inter-faith concerts and makes a
significant contribution to community cohesion.
However, the Council is no longer able to continue
to fund non-English community language teaching
and any future grant support is likely to focus on
these kinds of inclusive community activities.

The grant request is for £3,000 to help cover the
cost of premises, utilities, staffing, educational
trips, books and other resources including
educational software.

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

cohesion, provide language, cultural and music
classes, as well as sports leisure and recreational
activities.

engage the community and provides activities
around Malayalam arts and culture which are not
available in mainstream provision.

The grant request is for £2,937 to cover part of
premises hire costs, tutors wages and to
purchase sound equipment, to support their multicultural and musical events.

These activities provide opportunities to signpost
people to other services and the Society is
committed to working with other agencies in the
borough.

Outcomes include:

The Group normally hires sound equipment for
every event at a cost of £300. The purchase rather
than hire of equipment would be more cost
effective and the Group has the technical expertise
within its members to operate and maintain the
equipment.

•

Meet increased demand for language and
culture classes

•

Self reliance in sound equipment

•

Greater opportunities to promote aims for
integration and community cohesion.

Recommendation: A grant of £900
Total
recommend
ed

£11,937

£2,250

ENVIRONMENTAL
Kingston
Environment
Centre

2015/16
CIF
£15,000

Kingston Environment Centre, formed in 2012, is
a not-for-profit company limited by guarantee. It
is in the process of applying for registered charity
status.
The grant request is for £1,800 for the installation
of a security gate at Tolworth Medieval Manor to
10

RBK owns the freehold for this site and if gates are
in place, this will open up the land for public use,
providing a local green amenity and a revitalised
area in terms of grassland and flora and fauna.
The Green Spaces Service Manager is supportive
of the application, particularly since the Lower Mole

E16

Total Community
Languages Bid

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

include the removal of vegetation, the removal of
a bund and the installation of the gate.

Project Group is involved in doing the work and has
a good track record of delivery.

Outcomes include:

A question was raised about how this fits with the
potential development of a Country Park on this
site and whether this proposal should be part of the
bigger development. However, the addition of
gates at this point would enable the site to be
opened up immediately whereas the potential for a
Country Park is still some way in the future.

•

Cattle able to graze on the site

•

Grassland sward improved

•

Increase in grassland flora and butterfly
numbers

•

Easier access for land management

•

Freed up costs of mowing.

In the light of this a grant is recommended to bring
this site to valuable public use.

Kingston
Environment
Centre
(Hogsmill
Community
Garden)

2015/16
CIF
£15,000

Kingston Environment Centre (KEC), formed in
2012, is a not-for-profit company limited by
guarantee. It is in the process of applying for
registered charity status. The Hogsmill
Community Garden is a project of the
Environment Centre and aims to create a garden
for the local community and promote
environmental awareness and knowledge of the
natural world.

2015/16
KT Nbhd
£750

The grant request is for £3,000 to provide walling,
a poly tunnel, seating, site preparation and a pond
liner.
11

Although this project aligns with the Green Spaces
Strategy, there are concerns about the Hogsmill
Community Garden’s capacity to run this project. It
needs to develop greater capacity and needs more
volunteers. An application to Kingston Town
Neighbourhood Committee has recently been
agreed which should provide some start up
funding.
Kingston Environment Centre and the Hogsmill
Community Garden Project is encouraged to seek
advice and support from Kingston Voluntary Action
and Go Kingston Volunteering.

E17

Recommendation: A grant of £1,620

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
Outcomes include:

Kingston
Permaculture
Reserve

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

Recommendation: No grant

•

Provision of an open green educational space
for the community, disabled people, schools
and the university to enjoy

•

Pond, raised beds, paths, seating, poly tunnel

•

Raising of plans from seed and wild life area.
n/a

Although this a good site and interesting work is
going on, there are concerns with issues over the
lease and even more importantly, concerns over
the safety and practicality of the site to
accommodate large numbers of children.
There is very little information in the application
about what activities will be available, who will be
running them and what outcomes they will achieve.

The grant request is for £3,000 to provide 300
summer holiday activity days for school children.

In addition, schools in Kingston do a lot of
gardening work with children.
Recommendation: No grant
River Thames
Boat Project

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

The River Thames Boat Project is a registered
charity set up in 1988. They provide accessible
days and residential trips and educational
activities on board their specially adapted and
accessible barge, the Richmond Venturer,
including activities relating to the environment.
Their users are mainly school children and

Over the years the River Thames Boat Project has
been successful in providing a high quality and
memorable river experience for its users and is
always adapting its offer to meet new challenges.
This new project demonstrates a development of
the service provided and offers an opportunity for

12

E18

Kingston Permaculture Reserve is an
unincorporated association originally set up in
1992 but re-formed in 2005. Its main aim is to
manage in line with permaculture principles
(growing food sustainably and with low resources)
and its activities take place at their site at
Tolworth Allotments.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
vulnerable and/or socially isolated members of
the local community including people with mental
and physical disabilities and older people. The
boat is based at the Barge Dock, Thames Side,
Kingston but travels up and down the Thames
between Windsor and Putney.

residents to engage with a world-wide project on
monitoring water quality and offers them a chance
to reach out to the wider global community and see
their contribution to the bigger picture.
The River Thames Boat Project has a good track
record of engaging users and this project
contributes to objectives in the Kingston Plan
including Objective 3: Protect and improve the
quality of our local environment, Objective 9:
Support people to be independent and Objective
10: Encourage people to take an active part in the
social and cultural life of the community.

The grant requested is £3,000 towards their Eco
Venturers programme (formerly called “One
Planet Living”) which will enable up to 100 local
people to take part in a worldwide citizen science
project run by the EarthWatch Institute, that aims
to better manage and protect freshwater quality.

South West
London
Environment
Network

The boat may need to find a new mooring when the
Gloriana comes to Kingston.

Increased understanding of local freshwater
ecosystems

Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

•

Contribution to a global citizen science project

•

Increased interest and knowledge about
science

•

Opportunities for residents to engage in
recreational, educational and social activities.

The South West London Environment Network
(SWLEN) became a registered charity in 2012. It
was previously known as Richmond Environment
Network which was formed in 2004.
13

n/a

SWLEN has an excellent track record of work in
Richmond in tackling fuel poverty and providing
hands-on help to help residents understand what
they can do to save energy.

E19

Outcomes include:
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
The organisation’s key activities include
promoting energy saving for households and notfor-profit organisations by carrying out energy
assessments, providing advice and holding
events.

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
As an independent organisation, SWLEN does
work that the energy companies do not do and
works closely with residents, including encouraging
Energy Champions in Cambridge Road and
Malden Manor. SWLEN needs to work with Public
Health and ‘Thinking Minds’ to make sure that there
is no duplication in what they are doing. It would
also be useful to contact TransitionTown Kingston,
who did some similar work last year.

The grant request is for £3,000 to work with
Cambridge Road Estate Residents Association
and the Malden Manor Community Project to
promote the benefits of saving energy, and to
carry out 40 home energy checks between
October 2015 and April 2016.

Recommendation: A grant of £1,800

Outcomes include:
Residents become more aware of the
potential to save energy costs

•

Individual homes will save on energy costs
and CO2 emissions

•

Homes will be warmer.

E20

Total
Environmental
Bid

•

Total
recommend
ed

£13,800

£4,720

VCS INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT
Voluntary and
Community
Sector Strategic

Kingston Voluntary Action (KVA) chairs the
network of local Voluntary and Community Sector
(VCS) Strategic Partners. KVA is the umbrella
14

n/a

This application relates to KVA acting as coordinator/facilitator for the engagement of VCS
organisations in themed events focusing on

ANNEX 2
Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16

Partners under
the umbrella of
Kingston
Voluntary Action

organisation supporting the whole of the VCS in
Kingston, providing advice, guidance and training
on a wide range of issues.

different dedicated weeks, eg Mental Health, Later
Life, etc.
Feedback from the Enjoying Later Life Festival
showed that there was an interest in these ‘festival’
themed events delivered at different times of the
year.

The grant request is for £3,000 to stimulate the
co-ordination and promotion of activities for
different themed ‘festivals/events’ to include the
cost of venue hire, publicity and volunteer
expenses working through the VCS sub-sector
leads, eg for older people, carers, BME groups,
etc. These themed events raise awareness of
VCS provision in Kingston and encourage people
to be involved.

Total
Infrastructure
Support Bid

Improved overall health and reduced health
inequalities

•

People supported to be independent

•

People encouraged to take an active part in
the social and cultural life of the community.

Recommendation: A grant of £2,700

£3,000

Total
recommend
ed

£2,700

Chessington Kids Club was formed in 1992 and
operates from Castle Hill Primary School. The

2014/15
EN and NI

Chessington Kids Club (Holiday Club Play
Scheme) offers quality childcare provision in a safe

PLAY
Chessington Kids
Club

15

E21

The success of these events depends on coordinating and publicising existing activities rather
than developing new ones. KVA, as the VCS
Strategic Partner for infrastructure, will work with
the relevant other Strategic Leads and Council
officers to support the planning and delivery of
these festival events.

Outcomes include:
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
group runs a term time breakfast club, after
school club and a holiday club play scheme which
runs during Easter and summer holidays. A
range of activities for children aged 4-11 are
offered to meet all of the children’s individual
needs. Children with learning difficulties,
behavioural problems and any other special
needs are encouraged to participate and integrate
with all children.

A grant of £1,905 is requested to help fund 2-3
Support Workers for the Holiday Club play
schemes, so that children with special needs
including disabilities, challenging behaviour and
various forms of autism, can be offered places.
Chessington Kids Club will fund the balance of
cost and extra workers as needed.

More children with extra support needs can
attend

•

Children will develop skills and interact
socially with able bodied children

and caring environment and provides respite care
during the school holidays for parents/carers and
the Service Area Officer supports the application.
This is a good play scheme that integrates children
with disabilities and also includes many children
from low income households. There is a high
demand for places and many children return on a
regular basis.
Positive verbal and written feedback is received
from parents, carers and children that attend the
play schemes. Ofsted rates the organisation as
‘good’ with good safeguarding arrangements and
well-trained staff.
There is evidence that extra support workers are
needed as there is increased demand from parents
and carers who are seeking respite care during the
school holidays. The Support Workers provide the
necessary stability, skills and extra support to
enable the children who have special needs to
develop at their own pace whilst attaining their
individual aims.

Outcomes include:
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

The organisation works closely with the Early Years
Service and are an active member of the Kingston
out of school network and participate in Kingston
Summer Splash Programme offering places for
social services referred children and vulnerable
16

E22

The majority of children that attend the play
schemes come from local disadvantaged areas,
low income backgrounds and single parent
families. There are a total of 50 children who use
the after school club and between 22 and 29
children who access the play schemes each day.

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding
£1,800

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
children.

Support works have the necessary skills to
enable children to attain their individual aims.

The scheme’s reserves remain at a very modest
level and a grant is recommended to cover the cost
of support workers for the play scheme enabling
them to offer places to children from Kingston with
disabilities and other special needs.

Recommendation: A grant of £1,620
Total Play Bid

£1,905

Total
recommend
ed

£1,620

2014/15
EN and NI
£2,000

ASCA provides a range of valuable support to
people who suffer as a result of the misuse of
alcohol and other substances and also provides

SOCIAL WELFARE – ADULTS
Addiction
Support and Care
Agency (ASCA)

Addiction Support and Care Agency (ASCA) is a
registered charity and company limited by
guarantee, established in 1990. ASCA aims to
17

E23

Receiving the grant will mean that children with
extra needs will be able to access the play
schemes. They will benefit by being given the
opportunity to develop skills, particularly interacting
socially with able bodied children and how to
express their own individual needs. The support
workers provide the necessary stability and skills to
enable children to attain their individual aims. If
this grant were not available, the Club could
perhaps apply for other funds such as ‘Aiming High’
which is targeted at disabled children.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
support those who misuse alcohol and drugs,
their partners, relatives and friends through the
provision of counselling, group work, assessment,
advice and information services. Some of their
specialist services include a young person’s
outreach alcohol project, probation partnership
alcohol project and carers’ support service.
ASCA’s head office is in Richmond but it also
operates from an office in Ditton Road, Surbiton.
The charity works closely with the Kingston Drug
and Alcohol Team, CMHT, Social Services,
Kaleidoscope and the Probation Service.

Expected outcomes are:
•

Increased engagement with more people

•

Provision of more ‘out of hours’ appointments

•

Alleviate the waiting list

•

Provide quick access to assessment and
counselling

2015/16
Strategic
Partners
£5,000

preventative services. ASCA works in a genuinely
strategic way with close links to RBK, particularly
through the SPAD (Drug and Alcohol Team) and
with Kingston schools and with the Community
Wellbeing Service.
This service, run by ASCA, fills a specific gap not
addressed by other addiction services: the families
and carers of addicts are commonly overlooked,
especially as the carers themselves often do not
see themselves as carers.
ASCA has already increased its services to run on
Saturday mornings but these sessions are now
over-subscribed as are the existing evening
services.
Extension of the service to Thursday evenings will
offer access to those who cannot access sessions
in the day, which is particularly helpful for those
who are maintaining employment or those who are
seeking work and have to attend appointments
during the day.
Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

18

E24

A grant of £2,413 is requested towards the cost of
extending their operational hours to Thursday
evenings for those with an alcohol and/or drug
misuse problem and their carers and family
members. This would include advice and
information, assessments and one-to-one
counselling.

2015/16
CIF
£5,000

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Aurora Health
Foundation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

Meet the demand on current evening slots.
2014/15
EN and NI
£2,500

Aurora Health Foundation is a registered charity
and company limited by guarantee that provides
specialist therapeutic services for adults abused
in childhood, which can have a long lasting
detrimental effect on their health and emotional
wellbeing. The organisation is based in Kingston
Vale and has 45 users aged 18-65, a third of
which come from Kingston.
Aurora’s services include:
Counselling

•

Complementary therapies

•

Group support

•

Training and support services to other
healthcare agencies to help build their
capacity to work effectively with victims.

Aurora is intending to increase its capacity to be
able to deal with more clients (75 as opposed to the
current 50 – a third of whom come from Kingston).

Evidence-based research studies have shown the
need for the service, eg by NSPCC; Aurora has
also conducted locally based research that shows
over 70% of victims are referred to the voluntary
sector.
The grant request is for £3,000 to contribute to
essential overheads including rent to increase the
19

Kingston Wellbeing Service is somewhat reluctant
to make formal referrals to Aurora and there are
concerns about the cost of the service (though it
does offer concessions) as well as the use of
trainee counsellors as supervisors. The charity is
an organisational member of the British Association
for Counselling and Psychotherapy and the
Survivors’ Trust.
However, there is a need to increase peer support
locally for vulnerable groups so it is recommended
that a grant of £1,300 is awarded, towards the
group support services provided by Aurora.
It is also recommended that the Aurora Health

E25

•

Aurora Health Foundation provides a specialist
service for a group at high risk of mental health
problems. Research evidence suggests that
tackling sexual abuse is a national priority and
various government reports highlight the degree of
unmet need in this area and the long-lasting harm
that the experience of child sexual abuse can have
on adult survivors.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

This is expected to contribute to the following
outcomes for their clients:

Foundation continues to work with RBK/NHS
Mental Health Services, particularly in the changing
funding environment, to decide on jointly agreed
outcome measures and with Kingston Voluntary
Action in terms of capacity building.

•

Reduced risk of self harm and suicidal
thoughts

Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

•

Reduced depression, stress, anxiety, panic
attacks, etc.

•

Increased optimism and self-coping skills
regarding flashbacks and panic attacks

•

Increased well-being, confidence and social
integration

•

Employment/occupational/educational
prospects

•

Increased trust in others.

capacity from approximately 50 to 70 survivors of
childhood abuse.

E26

Centre for
Community
Development

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

The Centre for Community Development (CCD) is
a humanitarian organisation committed to
supporting poor and disadvantaged people and
marginalised communities. Although the main
focus is the Tamil community, it partners with
other communities in Kingston working with ethnic
minorities. Its main activities include:
•

Elders Empowerment Programme

•

Tamil Women Development Forum

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500
2014/15
KT Nbhd
£750

The Centre for Community Development has good
reach into the Tamil community and works closely
with the Council’s ECET, who are supportive of the
application. Their Elders Empowerment
Programme provides a wide range of activities and
was highlighted as a good example in the Annual
Public Health Report for Kingston in 2013 which
focused on older people.
The organisation reports an increased need for its

20

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
•

services and is planning to extend the hours of the
drop-in service and physical fitness sessions as
well as developing new activities as requested by
users. These include additional trips/outings using
RaKAT for house-bound members as well as
organising home visits to those identified by
members of the community and Adult Social Care.

Healthy Mind Project.

The grant request is for £3,000 to contribute to
the Elders Empowerment Programme to meet
growing needs. Their activities include a drop-in,
physical fitness activities, cognitive training,
computer skills, home visits and befriending.

Recommendation: A grant of £900

Outcomes include:
Increased self confidence

•

Promotion of self care and healthy lifestyle
choices

•

Reducing isolation

•

Improved mental and physical wellbeing

•

Encouraging different communities to work
together.

E27

Fastminds

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

2014/15
KT Nbhd
£750

Fastminds was formed in 2013 and aims to
provide support for adults with Attention Deficit
Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) whether they are
diagnosed or not, in order to improve their quality
of life and improve understanding of the
challenges presented by ADHD in the wider
community.
Fastminds meets weekly at Queen Mary’s Hall,
Cambridge Gardens and twice a month on Friday
21

Fastminds provides a valuable service to local adult
residents living with ADHD – not only have the
numbers doubled but they are also receiving
increasing referrals from other organisations such
as ADDISS (the National Attention Deficit Disorder
Information and Support Service) and MIND.
It is estimated that between three and four percent
of the adult population suffers from ADHD. Using
figures from the 2011 census this would equate to

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

approximately 3,750 – 5,000 adults living with the
condition in RBK. This suggests that demand for
the services provided by Fastminds (currently the
only organisation in the borough) will continue to
increase.

evenings at the New Malden Baptist Church. The
membership has doubled in the past 12 months
from 12 to 25, seven of who come from outside
the borough.
The grant request is for £3,000 towards providing
outreach support, advice and information as well
as offering the opportunity to engage in creative
projects such as the ‘Smile for Health’ Project.

Fastminds is encouraged to continue to work with
local commissioners and other service providers in
the context of the changing funding environment.

Outcomes include:

Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

•

Improved self-awareness, communication and
acceptance of ADHD and its impact

•

Improved understanding of the strategies to
help people manage the condition

•

Reduced isolation through peer support

•

Support to engage with medical profession if
undiagnosed to access an assessment.

E28

Fircroft Trust

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

The Fircroft Trust is a registered charity working
in Kingston with adults living in the community
with moderate to severe mental health problems
and/or learning disabilities. The service includes:
•

A Resource Centre for over 90 adults living in
the community

•

Residential care for 8 adults with complex
needs and Supported Living for 15 tenants at
22

2015/16
CIF
£7,000
2015/16
Strategic
Partners
£6,000

The Fircroft Trust is the only centre based service
provider in Kingston for people with both learning
difficulties and mental health problems. This is
particularly useful for people coming out of hospital
and for those who find it difficult being out in the
community. The services the Trust provides are
well established but also continually evolve to meet
users’ needs.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
Fircroft’s main RBK funding is for residential
services and they have to work hard to raise funds
for activities for their day users. Mental health
support in the community is a priority and it is
valuable to increase and extend positive activities
for people, in line with the Active and Supportive
Communities Strategy being implemented by Adult
Social Care.

Firs Court in Chessington.
The Fircroft Trust is also the Voluntary Sector
Strategic Lead for mental health.
The grant request is for £3,000 to provide
sessional staff to relieve the increasing demands
on staff time due to increasing numbers of people
with complex mental health problems requiring
support in the community. This would enable
more people to receive help, particularly those
with a need for one-to-one support.

Fircroft is encouraged to continue to work with local
commissioners in the light of the changing funding
environment.
Recommendation: A grant of £900
n/a

Independent Yemen Development Ltd is a
company limited by guarantee set up in 2012.
Activities include women-only exercise classes,
sewing, outings, coffee mornings, provision of
healthcare information and support for finding
employment. The group aims to link women from
minority ethnic groups, in particular from the
Middle East and North Africa and Asia, with local
services and to reduce the isolation they often
experience due to language and cultural barriers.
The grant request is for £2,229 to help get this
new group’s activities started and, on the basis of
its uptake, to assess its viability and the value of
23

The organisation’s activities take place at the
Milaap Centre for women from minority ethnic
groups, in particular from the Middle East and
North Africa. They work closely with ECET who
are supportive of their work to reduce isolation,
particularly for women, and to be able to work with
them to address their health and wellbeing needs.
Independent Yemen Development Ltd’s work fits
well with the Refugee and Migrant Strategy and
Public Health priorities to reduce social isolation
and improve health and wellbeing amongst socially
excluded and disadvantaged groups, who have
particular needs in relation to mental health,
English language, housing, employment and

E29

Independent
Yemen
Development Ltd
managing MENA
Women Project

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Kingston
Pensioners’
Forum

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

the service it provides.

access to services and information.

Outcomes include:

Recommendation: A grant of £900

•

Reducing isolation

•

Improving wellbeing, confidence and self
esteem.

A grant of £1,000 is requested towards running
costs and hall hire for the monthly meetings and
other activities of the Forum and to promote its
activities to new members.

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,000

The Kingston Pensioners’ Forum is an important
organisation for older residents of Kingston. Its
meetings have regularly attracted around 50 people
and these numbers are increasing. The meetings
not only provide a social function but also serve to
inform older people about issues that affect them
with speakers invited from local statutory and
voluntary organisations.
The Pensioners’ Forum is an important group for
consultation and engagement but it is encouraged
to continue to extend its membership amongst
BME communities and to consider joint working/
joint events with other groups/communities.
The organisation provides a good network of
support as well as being a valuable source of
information and a forum for debate. The Forum
works collaboratively with other organisations in the
borough and has extended its membership to
ethnic minority groups through its links with KCIL,
Kingston CAB and other agencies.

The Forum provides a focus for older people to
reduce isolation and enables them to get their
voices heard in shaping services and influencing
local plans.

24

E30

Kingston Pensioners’ Forum is a consultative and
social forum for older people in Kingston which
was set up in 1994 and forms part of the Greater
London Forum for Older People. Its role is to
debate needs and concerns on local and national
issues to feed in to local and national activities, as
well as to provide social activities for its members.
Kingston Pensioners’ Forum holds monthly
meetings at the URC and organises occasional
trips and regular special events.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

Recommendation: A grant of £900
Learn English at
Home

Learn English at Home (LEAH) is a registered
charity formed in 1996. LEAH recruits and trains
volunteer tutors to give English lessons to
residents from ethnic minority communities who
for cultural, domestic or other reasons are unable
to attend outside classes.
The organisation works with over 500 people with
low levels of English offering services such as:

2015/16
CIF
£18,000

LEAH has an excellent track record as a provider of
English teaching, particularly for isolated and
disadvantaged groups.
These classes would be run by LEAH volunteers,
who are trained to teach ESOL and they would take
place when the parents are dropping off their
children at school in the morning. A crèche would
be provided for adults with young children.

One to one English tuition

•

Group conversation classes

•

Fitness classes

•

Outings and social activities

As a pilot this would enable LEAH to refine their
offer to schools, which could then potentially be
funded through the schools. Enabling parents to
engage with their children’s schools can have a
significant impact on their children’s achievements.

•

Information about local services.

Recommendation: A grant of £900

The grant request for £2,997 is to support the
piloting of a functional literacy class, based in two
primary schools in Kingston to focus on reading
and writing skills.
Outcomes include:
•

Improved communication between parents
and their children’s schools
25

E31

•

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Recovery
Initiative Social
Enterprise (RISE)

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

2015/16
CIF
£4,000

Anecdotal evidence suggests that the Polish
community is having difficulty in integrating and
accessing local services.

Parents better able to complete forms and
reply slips, read letters and reports and help
children with written work.

Recovery Initiative Social Enterprise (RISE) was
formed in 2011 and is a user-led social enterprise
delivered by individuals who have experienced
substance misuse, addiction and mental health
problems.

However, there are some concerns about the
extent of RISE’s diversification and capacity.

The grant request is for £2,997 to support RISE
Unite which is intended to promote the integration
of Kingston’s Polish community. The grant is
requested to contribute to venue hire,
refreshments and overheads for engagement
events at the Community Cafe.

Whilst it is important to be responsive to new
needs, it is also vital to recognise the importance of
signposting to existing services.

Outcomes include:

Recommendation: A grant of £900

•

Improve the life of vulnerable people from the
Polish community in Kingston

•

Reducing isolation

•

Improve access to information, advice and
26

RISE is encouraged to continue to work with KVA
on developing its business strategy.

E32

The organisation has developed its range of
activities to include walking, peer support,
wellbeing workshops, women’s peer support, arts
and crafts, drama therapy, photography, music,
poetry and a Community Cafe.

In the 2011 Census 1,919 residents had Polish as
their first language and ECET agrees there is a
need for support for this community, as referenced
in the Refugee and Migrant Strategy.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

services.
Recovery
Initiative Social
Enterprise (RISE)

Recovery Initiative Social Enterprise (RISE) was
formed in 2011 and is a user-led social enterprise
delivered by individuals who have experienced
substance misuse, addiction and mental health
problems.
The organisation has developed its range of
activities to include walking, peer support,
wellbeing workshops, women’s peer support, arts
and crafts, drama therapy, photography, music,
poetry and a Community Cafe.

This is RISE’s second application focusing on
marginalised and socially excluded people (18+)
including students. The intention is to run five
community projects comprising Arts and Crafts,
Learning English, Environmental Activities, Access
to Creativity and Holistic Personal Development.
These will take place once a week over 33 weeks
and it is estimated that they will reach 75 people.
However, because of budget constraints and
concerns about whether RISE is over-stretching
itself, it is only possible to fund one of their
applications.
In the light of this and the greater priority of the
needs of the Polish community, no grant is
recommended.
Recommendation: No grant

The work has focused on Alpha Road, Surbiton
and Norbiton and concentrates on basis skills
such as confidence, language and wellbeing.
Outcomes include:
•

Providing opportunities for people to achieve
their potential and improve their quality of life

•

Individuals taking responsibility for themselves
27

E33

This grant request is for £2,933 to support a
project called Community Access to Education
(CAtE) designed to address the essential life skill
needs of people over 18 in Kingston, who are
poor, marginalised, socially isolated or excluded
and who may have poor wellbeing.

2015/16
CIF
£4,000

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Roundabout

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Tackling health inequalities.

Roundabout is a registered charity that provides a
drama therapy service that is accessible to
everyone in the community. Roundabout Drama
Therapy provides psychological, educational and
artistic benefits to a wide range of disadvantaged
people throughout Greater London.

n/a

It is recommended that Roundabout be referred for
a Neighbourhood Grant and that links be made with
the Adult Social Care Services to support this
initiative.

Increased ability to express and explore
feelings

•

Improved social interaction skills

•

Increased capacity to deal with anxiety.

Recommendation: No grant
2014/15
EN and NI
£500

Saheli was established in 1989 to provide social
and cultural activities and provide on-going
support for isolated, vulnerable and lonely
women, mainly from the Asian community. Its
28

Saheli provides a safe environment where
members have the freedom to express themselves.
The organisation is adapting to the changing
environment by providing support for digital

E34

Discussions with Amy Woodgate staff have
revealed that this has proved to be a worthwhile,
valued experience by the residents, but Amy
Woodgate is unable to provide the drama therapy
sessions from its own resources.

Outcomes include:
•

Roundabout is the largest charity of its kind and the
only organisation in the UK to offer tailor-made
professionally facilitated drama therapy sessions to
such a wide range of clients, including nurseries,
schools, day centres and residential settings.
Dementia is a growing and difficult issue and new
approaches to helping people cope are to be
welcomed.

The grant request is for £2,961 to fund one of the
drama therapists to work with residents of Amy
Woodgate Residential Care Home. Drama
therapy allows people to explore their
imaginations and use their social skills to
communicate and can help people with dementia
to reduce anxiety and depression and increase
confidence.

Saheli

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
developments. Saheli has been making more effort
to raise funds through charging for coach trips and
events as well as through membership fees.

activities include lectures by clinicians, dieticians
and health specialists as well as cultural events,
computer classes and mobile phone training for
the elderly.

It is even more important, given the changing
funding environment, that Saheli continues to seek
advice and support from Kingston Voluntary Action
on building its capacity and potentially finding other
sources of funding.

The grant request is for £3,000 to support
creativity workshops to provide women and
children with the opportunity to engage in
recreational, educational and social activities,
thus contributing to their quality of life.

Recommendation: A grant of £450
Outcomes include:
Members will adopt a healthy lifestyle

•

Members gain confidence and are
encouraged to take part in social and cultural
events

•

Members will have a better understanding of
technology

•

Members will become more independent.

E35

Total Social
Welfare – Adults
Bid

•

£32,530

Total
recommend
ed:

£9,750

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

APO has worked in partnership with a range of
agencies over a number of years and many of the
people who use APO’s services are on low

SOCIAL WELFARE – ADVICE AND INFORMATION
African Positive
Outlook

African Positive Outlook (APO) was established in
1999 and is a registered charity. It was founded
as a community response to the health and social
29

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
care needs of people from the African community.
The organisation supports approximately 350 per
annum and it is based in Kingston Town Centre
but also operates at venues around the borough.
Its main activities include, mental health
awareness, drug and substance misuse including
Khat prevention advice, sexual and reproductive
health awareness, care skills training and a drop
in service.

•

Help with access to on-line support

•

Support for job or training search.

This project builds on work previously undertaken.
Evidence suggests that members of the Somali
community still have a poor understanding of the
welfare reforms and may be ill prepared for the
impact and may be reluctant to seek advice from
KCABs and KCIL.

However, although it is recognised that members of
the Somali community are more likely to seek
information and advice from people who can speak
their language, it is also important that the different
agencies work together more closely to find out
how the barriers to access can be reduced rather
than create separate services for different
communities.

Outcomes include:
•

Better understanding of welfare reforms for 60
residents from local African and other BME
communities

•

Access to courses and help with schemes
such as Debt Relief Orders, the Lodgers
Scheme and the Rent Deposit Scheme

Welfare Reform is complex in terms of legislation
and process and setting up a new service would be
very demanding.
In the light of this, and pressures on the budget, it
is recommended that no grant is awarded to APO
and that the Somali community should be

30

E36

One to one and group advice sessions

incomes and have relatively poor English language
skills and often have health related issues.

APO has committed to invite a representative from
KCABs to its group sessions and refer people on to
them and other agencies as required.

The grant request is for £3,000 to enable APO,
working with the Kingston Somali Community
Association, to engage a part-time project worker
to address issues emerging from the Social
Welfare reforms by providing:
•

2015/16
CIF
£10,500

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
signposted to kiaa and KCABs through the
Kingston Somali Community Association. (see
below)

Improved money management skills and
employment skills.

Recommendation: No grant
Kingston Somali
Community
Association

2014/15
EN and NI
£2,000

The work currently carried out by KSCA focuses
on delivering a range of services mainly for
refugees, migrants and ethnic minorities,
particularly for Kingston’s Somali Community and
those at risk of domestic violence or crime, to help
them integrate into the broader community.
KSCA’s services include educational support for
young people, training, interpreting and
translation, advice, workshops on a range of
topics including healthy eating, ICT, citizenship
classes and dementia awareness, as well as
sports and social events and trips.

KSCA is the only voluntary agency that exclusively
provides services for the Kingston Somali
Community. It strives to meet individual and family
needs whilst tackling social isolation by inculcating
British culture and way of life. The focus is on
helping users to acquire skills, access mainstream
services and help them to integrate themselves into
local communities by forming constructive social
relations.
KSCA’s services are accessed by approximately
300 users which, according to a survey carried out
by KSCA, covers most of the people of Somali
living in Kingston, many of whom live in social
housing.
Through supporting and signposting clients to
specialist services KSCA will help them to improve
their quality of life. KSCA recognises the
importance of working with other agencies as part
of Kingston Information and Advice Alliance (kiaa)
and the CAB.
KSCA is also applying for other funding streams

31

E37

Kingston Somali Community Association (KSCA)
is a registered charity which was formed in 2006.
It was registered as a company limited by
guarantee in 2008. KSCA provides educational,
youth, care and support services for residents of
the Royal Borough of Kingston. Services are
currently provided by volunteers who see clients
by appointment at the Richard Mayo Centre in
Kingston and also at Queen Mary’s Hall in
Cambridge Gardens.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
and has submitted a joint application with African
Positive Outlook to BBC Children in Need. It is
also recommended that KSCA seeks further
support from Kingston Voluntary Action to help
them to become more self sufficient and
sustainable.

A grant of £2,841 is requested towards core costs
and the provision of an information, advice and
guidance (IAG) service to the Somali Community
in Kingston.
KSCA provides signposting to other services and
helps refugees and asylum seekers to access
mainstream services.

In the light of budget constraints, a grant of £1,300
is recommended towards core costs and the
delivery of an Information and Advice Service.

The key outcomes that will be achieved are:
More people from the Somali community will
be empowered to seek employment or
employment training so they can get out of
welfare dependency

•

More Somalis will access services such as
education, training, health, housing and other
essential services

•

More Somalis will play a more active role in
the life of Kingston’s community.

Recommendation: A grant of £1,300

E38

Theatre for All

•

2015/16
CIF
£5,000

Theatre for All is a registered charity formed in
2007. It is a theatre company that promotes
community arts, including an arts festival in New
Malden and various other projects including
concerts, performances, seminars and
workshops.
Theatre for All has now set up and is running a
32

This is a new venture for Theatre for All and has
been developed following responses from
businesses in the Korean Community to a
Metropolitan Police Service questionnaire asking
what they wanted from the Police Service.
Information is provided on a wide range of issues
from driving and the Highway Code to reporting
domestic violence and immigration queries –

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

new Korean Information Centre (KIC) which is the
subject of this application.

Theatre for All says that it has asked Refugee
Action Kingston to provide this.

The grant request is for £3,000 towards the
running costs of a Korean Information Centre,
which has been running since February. The
grant would go towards staff fees, promotional
products and the training of volunteers. This is
intended to be a one-stop centre for members of
the Korean community to address civil concerns
and promote integration and community cohesion.

As a new provider of information (rather than
advice), Theatre for All has made contact with other
local organisations so that it can signpost people
with specialist enquiries to them. This aspect of
quality assurance is vital and it is recommended
that Theatre for All joins the Kingston Information
and Advice Alliance (kiaa) so that it is part of the
network of information and advice providers in the
borough.

The Centre will also provide English lessons to
support those who cannot speak English.

Recommendation: No grant
Total Social
Welfare – Advice
and Information
Bid

Total
recommend
ed:

£8,841

£1,300

SOCIAL WELFARE – CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
Kingston Carers’
Network

2015/16
CIF
£25,000

Kingston Carers’ Network (KCN) is a registered
charity formed in 1992. The organisation
provides a range of independent advice and
33

KCN works with a range of statutory and voluntary
organisations and has developed their services to
meet the vision and outcomes of the National

E39

However, there are concerns that this is not core
business for Theatre for All and may be potential
duplication – it is important that Theatre for All
works with existing advice and information
agencies rather than setting up another service.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
support to adult and young carers of people in
Kingston with illnesses and disabilities, aiming to
reduce social isolation and promote their
involvement in the development of local services.

2015/16
Strategic
Partners
£6,000

The grant request of £2,510 is to take 60 young
carers (age 8-11 and age 12+) to Three Peaks
Outdoor Pursuit Centre near Farnham in Surrey.
The activity programme on the two days includes
ropes, survival techniques, life saving and team
building.

Young carers are particularly vulnerable and KCN
has always worked hard to support them so that
they have a life outside caring. Young carers are
always involved in the design and delivery of
activities and services.

Building positive relationships
Developing confidence and self esteem
Increasing peer support
Providing a break from caring responsibilities

Recommendation: a grant of £1,300

Refugee Action Kingston (RAK) is a registered
charity providing a range of services in Kingston
including:

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,500

•

Advice and Information

•

Learning Centre

2015/16
CIF
£45,000

•

Healthy and Active Living

•

Counselling support

•

Young People’s Project and Summer Play
Scheme

This is a popular service which has outgrown its
origins as part of RAK’s Time Bank and there is
good evidence to suggest that this kind of
homework club makes a significant contribution to
the wellbeing of the children and young people
involved.
The development of the RAK Homework Club and,
in particular, its element of getting refugee children
and non-refugee children together enables better
understanding between children from different

34

E40

Refugee Action
Kingston

Carers’ Strategy. They are the only organisation
dedicated to carers’ wellbeing in the borough.

These activities focus on building confidence and
resilience for young carers which are important
components of their ability to cope with their caring
responsibilities. Service area officers are
supportive of this approach and would encourage
KCN to evaluate the activity as part of the evidence
base for their work.

Outcomes include:
•
•
•
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
•

Time Bank

•

Promoting the rights of refugees and asylum
seekers and networking with other agencies.

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
cultures and encourages greater acceptance of the
newcomers. By more local children engaging in
the scheme, mutual awareness, support and
exchanges will grow.
Recommendation: A grant of £900

The grant request of £3,000 is to further develop
the Homework Club that was started through
RAK’s Time Bank. The demand for this has
grown and now needs a co-ordinator and a more
suitable room. A homework club benefits
vulnerable children whose parents often cannot
help them with their homework.
Outcomes include:
Help to improve children’s English

•

Increased achievement in other subjects
including maths

•

Becoming more confident and settled in the
local community.

E41

Total Social
Welfare –
Children and
Young People Bid

•

£5,510

Total
recommend
ed

£2,200

Quilombo UK (formerly Axe Capoeira UK), is
being set up as a not-for-profit organisation to

2014/15
EN and NI

Quilombo has been formed out of Axe Capoeira UK
as a not-for-profit arm of its business. The

SPORT
Quilombo UK
(formerly Axe

35

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16

Capoeira UK)

bring people together to unite the community and
create a shared set of values, promote mutual
respect in the community and educate about race,
diversity and equality, and to offer development
opportunities to people from local communities.

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding
(as Axe
Capoeira)
£1,000

The grant request is for £3,000 to help Quilombo
UK build stronger foundations to develop their
work. In particular they are requesting:
£754 to offset the cost of four children
undertaking their training

•

£600 towards the launch of Quilombo UK to
raise the profile of the organisation

•

£1,684 for volunteer expenses, training and IT
costs.

This is expected to contribute to the following
outcomes:

Spartan
Swimming Club
for the Physically
Disabled

•

Greater awareness of the organisation and its
activities

•

Children supported on their programmes.

2014/15
The Spartan Swimming Club is a registered
EN and NI
charity that was established in 1954. It provides
£3,000
specialised swimming instruction and water
enjoyment for physically disabled people
regardless of age, race or type of physical
disability. The club has 65 service users aged 1436

organisation has now moved into Siddeley House
in Canbury Park Road and is increasing its number
of volunteers.
It is still not clear whether this is a business or a
charity and it is also unclear how this fits with the
original Axe Capeoira.
Although this organisation appears committed to
working with the community there are concerns
about funding individuals and a launch event. In
the light of these issues and constraints on the
budget no grant is recommended on this occasion.
Quilombo UK is encouraged to work with the
Sports Commissioning Manager for Active Kingston
on how its work can align with local priorities.
Recommendation: No grant

The swimming sessions organised by Spartan
Swimming Club provide a sociable and accessible
sporting activity for local physically disabled people.
This includes specialist assistance to disabled
swimmers that is unavailable during mainstream
swimming sessions.

E42

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
80 of whom all but seven are residents of the
borough. The Club meets every week at the
Malden Centre Pool in New Malden.

Pool use was given to Spartan Swimming Club for
free until 1992 but since then it has been charged
directly. The RBK grant used to cover the full cost
of pool hire but since project grants were capped at
£3,000 and pool hire costs increased, the grant has
not covered the full costs.

A grant of £3,000 is requested for the continuing
use of the Malden Centre Pool for the Club’s
disabled swimmers.

The work of the Spartan Swimming Club makes an
important contribution to improving overall health
and reducing health inequalities, supporting people
to be independent and enabling people to take an
active part in the social and cultural life of the
community.

Outcomes include:
disabled people enabled to access
mainstream community services

•

increased social integration between users
and volunteers

•

increased wellbeing for disabled people

•

reduced isolation

•

increased independence

•

carers have a period of respite.

The Club has adopted the child protection policy of
the Halliwick Association of Swimming Therapy,
which also covers vulnerable adults.
A grant of £2,700 is recommended and, as
mentioned in previous years, the Club will have to
consider actively fundraising and/or increasing
charges to meet the shortfall. It is recommended
that it contacts Kingston Voluntary Action for help
and support in seeking additional sources of
funding, in the light of potential changes to the
funding environment.
Recommendation: A grant of £2,700

Total Sport Bid

£6,000

Total
37

£2,700

E43

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding
recommend
ed:

Grant Request 2015/16

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

TOURISM AND LEISURE
Kingston Pound
Community
Association

The Kingston Pound Community Association was
founded in 2014 although the project started in
2012 to develop, establish and promote a local
currency for use within the borough of Kingston.
The Association is looking to establish itself as a
Community Interest Company.

n/a

Establishing local currencies are intended to
promote community spirit and wellbeing by keeping
local spending truly local and so benefitting the
local community and economy.
The Association held a trial at the Surbiton Food
Festival involving 139 people and 40 local
businesses and now has 34 businesses signed up
and willing to accept the Kingston Pound.
However, there are concerns that this has too
strong a business focus for this grant strand and
The Kingston Pound Community Association is
encouraged to seek funding from other sources,
possibly through the Chamber of Commerce.
Recommendation: No grant

Kingston Race
and Equalities
Council (KREC)

Kingston Race and Equalities Council (KREC) is
a registered charity formed in 1976. It promotes
racial equality and diversity in the borough and
works against racial discrimination. Events KREC
organises include the Kingston Carnival and Bike
Across Cultures. The charity is based at Neville
House, Eden Street.

2014/15
EN and NI
£2,500
2015/16
CIF
£48,000
2015/16

38

The Kingston Carnival has been one of the biggest
attractions on Kingston’s annual calendar of
events, offering the whole community the chance to
take part in a fun, colourful spectacle and music
both as participant and observer. The Carnival has
continued to grow in recent years, in partnership
with Global Arts – which posed security problems in
2014 so that the event did not take place.

E44

The grant request for £2,000 is for funding for an
Electronic Pilot in 2015. This would include
£1,000 for the set up of text payment systems,
£500 for shop window stickers and display and
£500 for promotional leaflets to raise awareness
about the Kingston Pound and the role it plays in
supporting the local economy and community.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16
A grant of £3,000 is requested towards the cost of
the Kingston Carnival 2015 and other equalities–
related events including ‘Bike Across Cultures’,
Black History Month, LGBT and Disability History
Month events in 2015. The Carnival takes place
in Kingston Town Centre in the summer and Bike
Across Cultures takes place in Richmond Park.

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding
Strategic
Partners
£6,000

Promoting diversity, culture, inclusion,
integration and mass participation through a
celebratory festival
Encourage engagement particularly from
young people

•

Run workshops and educate communities
from diverse cultures

•

Promoting Kingston as a place to come and
enjoy the cultural heritage.

However, it is recognised that it is becoming more
difficult for the Carnival to cover its costs and so
KREC is exploring other funding opportunities for
making this important event more sustainable.
A grant of £2,250 is recommended to be used for
the Carnival and KREC is encouraged to continue
to work with KVA and other local groups to explore
ways to sustain the Carnival in the longer term.
Recommendation: A grant of £2,250

Kingston Tour
Guides

2014/15
EN and NI
£1,600

Kingston Tour Guides was formed in 1991. They
organise walking tours of Kingston and Surbiton
town centres for individuals and groups/clubs.
Talks and walks are delivered by volunteers.
They have 19 volunteer guides and average
around 1,000 users per year.

This service was originally provided by RBK before
being handed over to this group of well trained and
dedicated volunteers who provide the service for a
modest cost.
Kingston Tour Guides are largely self-financing
and, through a network of volunteers, inform

39

E45

•

There is a commitment to support the Carnival in
2015, so long as the necessary health, safety and
security issues are resolved (in line with RBK
requirements for an appropriate Risk Assessment
prior to the event taking place).
KREC works closely with RBK, the Police, Kingston
University, Kingston College, Global Arts, KVA,
Kingstonfirst and many of the borough’s black and
minority ethnic organisations.

Outcomes include:
•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

residents and visitors alike of the rich history of the
borough.

A grant of £1,900 is requested towards the cost of
publicity in 2015/16. This includes the cost of
advertising as well as the production of leaflets
promoting the walks and talks to both individuals
and groups and website maintenance.

Customer feedback, including from long term
Kingston residents, identifies a lack of awareness
about the availability of themed walks and
highlights the need for continued publicity.

Outcomes include:
Increased awareness of Kingston’s rich
heritage

•

People taking an active part in the life of the
community

•

Promotion of Kingston as a destination of
choice.

Charges are £5 per person for regular Sunday
walks with reductions for large groups and children
under 12 going free. Meetings are open to all
members. Walks are suitable for pushchairs and
wheelchair users.
Key partners include Friends of Kingston Museum
and Heritage Service, Kingston upon Thames
Society, Kingston First and RBK.
A grant of £1,300 is recommended to continue to
support the work of the Kingston Tour Guides and
their volunteers.
Recommendation: a grant of £1,300

Rotary Club of
Kingston upon
Thames
(Dragon Boat
Race)

2014/15
EN and NI
£500

The Rotary Club of Kingston is a registered
charity, established in 1923, providing financial
support and voluntary help to local charities,
youth and voluntary organisations and residents
in the borough. It organises events, such as the
annual Dragon Boat Race on the River Thames.
40

The Dragon Boat Race that takes place on the
Thames each summer is now a well established
annual event and an important part of the Council’s
Celebrate the River Festival. The event
encourages people to visit the borough with
approximately 800 people participating as well as

E46

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16

A grant of £1,250 is requested towards the cost of
health and safety provision for the annual Dragon
Boat Race. In particular, the grant will help pay
for toilets, disabled facilities and first aid cover.
The event will take place in the summer of 2015,
as part of the Council’s Celebrate the River
Programme.
Outcomes include:
An enjoyable day’s entertainment for residents
and visitors

•

Free team place for Kingston Young Carers

•

Participation in social and cultural life and
sporting activities.

an estimated 3,000 spectators. It also has the
added benefit of encouraging people to try a new
physical activity and raises significant sums for
good causes – last year over £50,000 was raised
for charity.
The Rotary Dragon Boat Event is supported by
local businesses and community groups in a great
day of fun showing Canbury Gardens and the River
Thames at their best. Local groups are also able to
have stalls at Canbury Gardens, adjacent to the
event.
The Neighbourhood Manager is very supportive of
this fixture in the calendar, Dragon Boats are
eagerly awaited by all participants and spectators,
showing the river and Canbury Gardens to best
advantage while raising money to benefit local
causes.
As usual, a copy of the Risk Assessment must be
provided prior to the event taking place.
The Dragon Boat Race is not financially dependent
on RBK funding, however, a further grant of £450 is
recommended. This is in effect a token amount
that helps ensure some of the health and safety
costs are covered and also demonstrates good will
to the Rotary; without their involvement and hard
work this event could not take place.

41

E47

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Grant Request 2015/16

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

Recommendation: A grant of £450
Rotary Club of
Kingston upon
Thames Trust
Fund

Kingston Rotary Club is a registered charity set
up to give financial and voluntary help to local
charities, youth and voluntary organisations and
residents of Kingston.
The grant request is for £3,000 towards the cost
of delivering the 2015 Kingston Rotary
WinterFest, involving a range of activities
between 1 December and 6 January.

2014/15
Nbhds
£1,500
(KT £750 /
SOTB £250 /
M&C £250 /
Surbiton
£250)

The WinterFest was first developed in 2014 and
builds on the previous annual installation of the
Christmas tree outside Bentalls. Last year 30 local
charities collected £14,000 over the period.
It is recommended that a grant of £450 is awarded
to be used for health and safety measures.
A Risk Assessment should be carried out prior to
the event and shared with RBK and Kingstonfirst.

Outcomes include:
Participation in social and cultural life and
sporting activities

•

Encouraging tourism

•

Promotion of various charities and other
groups taking part.

Total Tourism and
£11,150
Leisure Bid

Recommendation: A grant of £450

Total
recommend
ed:

£4,450

YOUNG PEOPLE
Street Pastors
Kingston

2015/16
Street Pastors Kingston (operating under the
CIF grant
umbrella of Oxygen who manage their finances)
was launched in 2005. Their main activities are to £3,000
care for vulnerable people in the borough’s night
42

This is an interesting new initiative that mirrors the
success that Street Pastors Kingston have
achieved in Kingston Town Centre.

E48

•

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Grant Request 2015/16
time economy, to interrupt anti-social behaviour
and restore peace. Trained and uniformed
volunteers work in groups of four patrolling areas
designated by the church, local authority and
police on Friday and Saturday nights. They offer
directions, conversation, comfort, protection as
well as giving out flip flops, bottles of water and
space blankets if needed. Interactions are mainly
with individuals who are users of Kingston’s night
time facilities but the team also liaise with the
homeless. One of the volunteers is first aid
trained and carries a first aid kit.

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation
The student population in Kingston is a significant
one and this kind of support is likely to be beneficial
when combined with Kingston College’s existing
support services.
Street Pastors Kingston are also planning to make
applications for additional funding to the Church
Urban Fund and to Kingston College but the
outcome of these is unknown. The total cost for
training 20 volunteers is £4,000.
However, in the light of pressure on the budget and
whether Kingston College should be funding this,
no grant is recommended.
Recommendation: No grant

Outcomes include:

Oxygen

•

Support available to students during their free
time

•

More formal relationship enrichment classes

•

Improved relationship between college and
local businesses

•

Potential involvement in Prevent work

•

Mentoring for students in anger management.
2014/15

Oxygen is a registered charity, set up in 2001, to
43

Oxygen’s Knife Crime Project was successfully

E49

The grant request is for £3,000 to train 15 (out of
20) volunteers to work as College Pastors in
Kingston College, to work alongside the student
services department during the day time.

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding
EN and NI
£2,000

Grant Request 2015/16
deliver a range of programmes and activities,
which are open to any young person in Kingston
upon Thames. These include:

2014/15
Small
£500

Room 1 - an after school club in secondary
schools running five evenings a week

•

Urban Nites - a youth outreach programme in
New Malden

•

Rock Solid - a network of youth clubs based in
churches in New Malden and Kingston

•

Kingsnympton Youth Club

•

Developing Leaders Programme

•

Apprentice Programme

•

Youth enterprise initiatives

•

Community Cafe

•

Man and Boy Project (with fathers and sons)

•

Street Pastors.

2015/16
CIF
£3,000
2015/16
Strategic
Partner
£6,000

piloted at Southborough School in 2014 and the
School has requested that it be repeated there.
Using a peer education approach brings a number
of benefits in terms of credibility and also provides
young people with an opportunity to acquire a
qualification and to demonstrate their commitment
to their communities.
Oxygen works with a range of statutory and
voluntary organisations in the borough, including
RBK’s Youth Support Service and Family Learning
Service, KVA, the YMCA, the Metropolitan Police
and Churches Together.
Although Oxygen is a Christian project, its work is
open and welcoming to any young person in the
borough and the organisation has policies on
safeguarding for children, young people and
vulnerable adults as well as health and safety.
Oxygen’s work has a significant effect on the lives
of young people and this project has the potential
to impact on everyone in the community.

Oxygen engages approximately 250 users per
week aged between 11 and 18 years. All
beneficiaries either reside within Kingston or
attend a Kingston school.

Recommendation: A grant of £1,800

A grant of £2,960 is requested to fund a youth led
development of their Knife Crime Awareness
Project. The aim of the Project is to develop a
44

E50

•

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

ANNEX 2

Organisation

Previous
grant/other
RBK grant
funding

Officers’ comments and grant recommendation

£5,960

Total
recommend
ed:

£1,800

£118,983

Overall total
recommend
ed

£39,990

Grant Request 2015/16
core group of peer educators to develop a
resource pack on the topic of knife crime to be
potentially replicated across all secondary schools
in Kingston.
Outcomes include:

Total Emerging
Needs and New
Initiatives Grants

Educating young people about the dangers of
knife crime

•

Using peer education to raise awareness of
the issue in local schools and youth groups

•

Providing a valuable qualification to the peer
educators.

45

E51

Total Youth Bid

•

F1

Appendix F

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
Annual Equalities Update
Report by Executive Head of Organisational Development and Strategic Business

Purpose
To receive the annual summary of progress in the implementation of equalities in
service provision and employment.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Treasury, Finance and HR
To RESOLVE that 1. Progress in the 2014-15 action plan be noted; and
2. The equalities objectives for the next year outlined in the 2015-16 action plan be
endorsed.

Key Points
A. The Council’s second Equality and Community Cohesion Strategy 2013 – 2016
and annual action plan was approved by the former Policy and Resources
Committee in June 2013.
B. The public sector Equality Duty places a general duty on public bodies and
others carrying out public functions to ensure that the needs of individuals are
taken into account when shaping policy, in the delivery of services and in relation
to employment and employees.
C. Members have an important role in scrutinising the equality impact of decisions
taken by the Council. This Committee receives annual reports providing a
summary of progress on the implementation of equalities in service provision and
employment which is set out in our Equality and Community Cohesion action
plan. The Committee also receives a midyear RAG rated action plan to map
progression reaching objectives. A midyear report went to this Committee in
February 2015. Our progress over the last year is detailed in our 2014 – 2015
action plan at Annex 1 and our equality objectives for next year are outlined in
our 2015 – 16 action plan at Annex 2.

F2

D. Significant actions to improve equalities and community cohesion over the last
year are set out in the following paragraphs.
EQUALITY AND COMMUNITY COHESION STRATEGY ACTION PLAN
1. Progress on equalities is monitored through the achievement of targets detailed
in our Equality and Community Cohesion Strategy action plan. A summary of
some of the main achievements during 2014 – 15 are set out below:
2. Kingston has reinvigorated and further promoted its staff equalities groups,
including a new carers group, which has resulted in increased membership.
3. The Kingston Domestic and Sexual Violence Strategy was launched in
December 2014 with the aim of all those at risk to be 'free from fear' by 2017.
4. The Older People Mental Health Strategy has been developed which has a focus
on dementia friendly communities,
5. The equalities implications of the service and budgetary proposals within the
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015-16 have been reviewed.
6. There has been a reduction in the gap in attainment between boys and girls
achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE
7. There has been an improvement in the early identification of child sexual
exploitation through the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).
8. A number of equalities events have taken place through the year:
● Black History Month Staff Event – October 2014 - Organised with
Kingston Race Equality Council and the BME Staff Group . The event included a
talk by Kurt Barling who has worked as a senior broadcaster at the BBC on the
importance of role models and we heard music from a Korean harpist.
● Disability History Month - December 2014, organised with KCIL and
Disabled Staff Group. The theme of the event was visual impairment and we had
a speaker from the Thomas Pocklington Trust and a presentation from the
Parliament for People with Visual Impairment in Kingston.
● LGBT History Month: The LGBT staff support groups from both
Richmond and Kingston boroughs joined forces to host two events. A concert
delivered by the Richmond Symphonic Concert Band at the Normansfield
Theatre in Teddington, was very well attended by staff and other partners.

F3

● Holocaust Memorial Event - ' Keeping the Memory Alive' - a civic
commemoration service on the 70th anniversary of the liberation of AuschwitzBirkenau concentration camps was hosted by Kingston Interfaith Forum on 1
February.
● International Women's Day – We celebrated International Women’s Day
on 26 March and heard from Elaine Miller, Fundraising Manager for Love
Kingston about her inspirational journey, both professionally and personally, to
achieving success.
● National Carers Week – We will be celebrating National Carers Week
with a staff event on 11 June hosted by the Carers Staff Group.
9. Objectives to improve equalities and community cohesion detailed in 2015-16
action plan include:
i.

Further monitoring of the impact of the Welfare Reform Act in relation to all
equality strands.

ii.

Kingston data team to maintain and refresh data on website to include all
equality strands to enable service commissioners to be able to undertake
EQIAs in an informed way.

iii.

Programme and project management toolkit refined to make it easier to do
equality assessments at all points in the process.

iv.

Manage the corporate grants programme in line with any changes that
emerge from the Grants to Commissioning consultation taking account of
equalities issues and community cohesion.

v.

Broaden the choice of foster care placements so that looked after children
can be placed in safe and stable placements closer to their home.

vi.

Increase looked after children's participation in their statutory reviews and
their active involvement in care planning.

vii.

Provide books in a number of different languages to reflect community
need, including books in Korean supported by links developed with the
Korean Cultural Service.

viii.

Ensure that Bookstart is delivered via Health Visitors to 95% of babies and
toddlers in the Borough.

F4

ix.

Increase participation of groups that traditionally participate less in sport
and physical activity such as women and girls, older people, disabled
people and young people at risk.

x.

Ensure at least 90% of service users have either an adequate or good
knowledge of the funding reform aspects of the Care Act by March 2016.

THE EQUALITY ACT 2010 AND THE EQUALITY DUTY
10. The Equality Act 2010 came into force on 1st October 2010. The Act covers
discrimination because of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation. These categories are now known as “protected characteristics”. The
public sector Equality Duty came into effect from 5th April 2011. It places a duty
on public bodies and others carrying out public functions to ensure that the needs
of all individuals are taken into account when shaping policy, in the delivery of
service and in relation to employment and employees.
11. Councils are required to publish equality objectives annually and we have
refreshed our objectives in our updated Equality and Community Cohesion
Strategy 2013-2016.
EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION
12. The Council collects staff monitoring information for the six equality strands of
race, gender, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age covered by
the Equality Framework for Local Government.
13. An overview of the current equalities workforce analytics is set out below:

F5

•

Age
Analysis of Staff by Age Band - March 2015
65 and over,
3.82%

16 to 24, 5.59%
25 to 34,
18.95%

55 to 64,
21.57%

45 to 54,
28.78%

35 to 44,
21.29%

We continue to see a mature workforce with over half the Council’s staff outside
schools over age 45, although there the gradual trend towards better
representation of younger staff is continuing.
•

Ethnic Background

Outside schools the percentage of the workforce from ethnic backgrounds has
shown a further increase and is now 20.4%, which compares reasonably
favourably to the 2011 census figure of 24% for ethnic minority communities in
the borough. Outside schools 11.4% of staff earning £50K (fte) or over are from
an ethnic minority background.
Analysis of Staff Outside Schools by Broad Ethnic
Group(known backgrounds) - March 2015
BME, 20.42%

Non-BME,
79.58%

•

Gender

F6

The Council continues to employ a high proportion of women – about two-thirds
outside schools. . Outside schools 49% of staff earning £50K (fte) or over are
female.
Analysis of Staff Outside Schools by Gender (March
2015)

Male, 36.8%

Female, 63.2%

•
Disability
Almost 5% of the Council’s staff outside schools have declared that they have a
disability (where information is held), which shows a small increase, and is
consistent with information from the staff survey. Outside schools about 4% of
staff earning £50K (fte) or over have declared a disability.
Analysis of Staff Outside Schools by Disability (Where
Known) - March 2015

Disabled, 4.7%

Not disabled,
95.3%

•

Sexual Orientation

F7

We know that we have under-reporting of our data on sexual orientation of staff,
with about 50% still unrecorded. We are working with the LGBT Staff Network to
try to improve this figure.

Analysis of Staff Outside Schools by Sexual Orientation
(Where Known) - March 2015
Heterosexual,
98.7%

Lesbian, 0.3%

Gay, 1.0%

•

Religion or Belief

There is under-reporting of data on religion or belief of staff, with 54%
unrecorded.
Analysis of Staff Outside Schools by Religion or Belief
(Where Known) - March 2015
Christian, 65.4%

Jewish, 0.2%
Hindu, 2.0%
Buddhist, 1.4%
Sikh, 1.1%
Other, 3.6%

•

Muslim, 4.3%
No religion,
22.0%

Percentages of Staff Made Redundant in 2014/15 by Equality Strand

F8

In terms of equality strands, analysis of staff made redundant in the last financial
year shows that women staff (47.5%) and disabled staff (3.6%) were represented
in lower proportions than their proportions in the workforce as a whole (63.2%
and 4.7% respectively).
BME staff (23.6%) and staff aged 45 and over (80.4%) were represented among
redundant staff in higher proportions than their representation in the workforce as
a whole (20.4% and 50% respectively).

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
14. The functions of the authority need to be discharged in accordance with equality
legislation. The scrutiny of RBK’s Equality and Community Cohesion Strategy
and action plan helps us to demonstrate compliance.
RISK ASSESSMENT
15. By complying with our equalities duties we are minimising the risk of legal
challenge.
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS
16. An impact assessment has been carried out on the Equality and Community
Cohesion Strategy.
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
17. There are no environmental implications

CONCLUSION
18. We are making good progress on equalities through the achievement of
targets detailed in our Equalities and Community Cohesion Strategy action plan.
We have held a range of events this year to celebrate equalities. We have
ensured that we have undertaken full Equality Impact Assessments on the
significant change projects that are taking place and will continue to do so.
Background papers held by Author of the report: Marie Gadsden 020 8547 5152/
marie.gadsden@rbk.kingston.gov.uk
•

Equality Framework for Local Government 2009

ANNEX 1
KEY: (ES&CC) Equality Strand & Community Cohesion- A=Age, D=Disability, G=Gender including Transgender, M/CP = Marriage & Civil
Partnership, Pregnancy & Maternity, R=Race, RB= Religion or Beliefs, SO= Sexual Orientation, CC = Community Cohesion, All =All Strands & SE=
Socio Economic Deprivation

Equality Objectives and Community Cohesion
Action Plan 2014 – 2015

Organisational Development and Strategic Business
No

Action

1

ALL

2

ALL

3

ALL

4

Lead
Responsibility &
Timescales

Monitored By

Programme of refresher equalities training for
managers on Equality assessment’s, monitoring
and managing staff from equalities groups.

Link to Statutory
Returns, Key
Strategies &
Plans
Destination
Kingston,
OD Service Plan

HR Manager
2014-2015

Equalities Board

Promote better self declaration especially in
relation to religion or belief and sexual
orientation using self-service on iTrent.

Destination
Kingston,
OD Service Plan

HR Manager
2014-2015

Equalities Board

Destination
Kingston,
OD Service Plan
Destination
Kingston,
OD Service Plan
Destination
Kingston,
OD Service Plan
Engagement
Strategy

HR Manager
2014-2015

Equalities Board

HR Manager
2014-2015

Equalities Board

HR Manager
2014-2015

Equalities Board

Capability Lead
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

Member training to comply with responsibilities
under the Equality Act and embed their scrutiny
role; particularly for new Members
D,R,G, Reinvigorate and further promote Staff
SO
Equalities Groups

5

G

6

ALL

Refresh our carer-friendly HR Policies to
support the provisions of the Care Act
Implement the Engagement Strategy and
ensure equalities issues are monitored and
work towards improving engagement with the
hard to reach and isolated groups

RAG Rating and
comments on action
G=Green, A=Amber,
R=Red
400 managers scheduled
to attend equalities
training during January
and February
All staff have been
reminded to update their
equalities records on
iTrent.
Undertaken following
elections and further
training planned
Further promotion
undertaken and increase
in membership achieved.
Achieved and new carer
groups set up for staff
with good uptake.
‘Objective’ management
platform has been
procured and is now
being used – managed

F9

ES &
CC

ALL

Evaluate the successful shift to digital channels
to ensure equality of access to all.

Web Strategy

Capability Lead
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

8

G

Develop a Kingston strategy to address
domestic and sexual violence, and promote the
core duty to tackle ‘violence against women and
girls’ and wider domestic and sexual violence
issues throughout RBK.

Safer Kingston
Plan

Safer Kingston
Partnership
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

9

ALL

Implement our Welfare Reform plan
Refresh the Welfare Reform Equality
assessment, monitor the impact in relation to all
equalities strands and implements action plans
to mitigate impact.

Welfare Reform
Plan

Team Leader
Data & Information
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

10

ALL

Implement Kingston Data, our refreshed
Observatory of data for the borough including
equality data

Kingston Plan

Team Leader
Data & Information
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

F10

7

by communications
team. Corporate
protocols for
engagement and
consultation are being
developed. Deputy
leader due to take report
on Consultation and
Engagement Strategy to
committee in May
Use of digital channels
are monitored
continuously by Contact
Centre Manager and
monthly report on digital
channel use are provided
to the Performance &
Customer Experience
Board
Strategy developed and
launched. The work
stream will be monitored
and progress reported to
Kingston Safer
Partnership.
Equality Assessment
refreshed every 6
months, reported to the
Welfare Reform Board
and incorporated into
action plans to mitigate
the impact of Welfare
Reform changes
Kingston Data website
went live on 1 July 2014.
The site includes a
section on equalities
data and a specific
equalities report giving
information for every
equality strand

ALL

Develop and implement the Action Plan for the
Voluntary and Community Sector Strategy and
refreshed Compact so that their principles and
outcomes are embedded into practice and
promote equality and community cohesion
including commissioning activities.

Commissioning
Framework
Community
Engagement
Strategy
Service Plans

Team Leader
Voluntary &
Community
2014-2015

Action Plan
Steering Group
Voluntary Sector
Board

12

ALL

Manage the Corporate Grants programme in
line with the need to take account of equalities
issues and community cohesion in the way that
funds are allocated and monitored.

Voluntary Sector
Strategy
Service Plans
Destination
Kingston

Capability Lead
2014-2015

Senior Business
Analyst

13

ALL

To address the needs of socially excluded and

Joint health and

Capability Lead

Team Leader

Four sub-groups taking
work forward, including
the Compact,
Commissioning and
Community
Engagement. Progress
reported to the Voluntary
Sector Board. As part of
their work, any impact of
changes in
policy/process evaluated
against equalities issues
and community
cohesion. Strategy will
need to be reviewed in
the light of any changes
arising from the
consultation on Grants to
Commissioning.
Commitment to honour
grants previously
awarded to the end their
agreements. Emerging
Needs grants launched –
recommendations will
take account of
equalities and
community cohesion.
Any changes to the
Grants programme after
15/16 will need to be
considered in the light of
equalities issues. The
consultation on Grants to
Commissioning has now
started and will need to
take account of
equalities issues.
Work is ongoing on

F11

11

disadvantaged communities

wellbeing strategy
action plan

2014-2015

ALL

To ensure equalities issues are monitored and
addressed through our Programme and Project
management approach and toolkit with the use
of equality assessments at the appropriate
points in the process.

Kingston Plan,
Destination
Kingston, Service
Plans

Capability Lead
2014-2015

15

ALL

To ensure that equalities issues are monitored
and addressed throughout Commissioning
approach with the use of the Commissioning
Framework and Equality assessments at the

Kingston Plan,
Destination
Kingston, Service
Plans

Capability Lead
2014-2015

different areas to
address the needs of
socially excluded
communities through
Refugee, Asylum &
Migrant needs
assessment & through
the new R& M Strategy
2015- 2020, the Malden
Manor project, the
Sustrans Active Travel
for health programme,
training practice mangers
to register socially
excluded groups. Work
undertaken to respond to
the needs has been
incorporated into the
Annual Public Health
Report.
Team Leader
Ongoing training in the
Transformation/Pro RBK Project
gramme
Management Toolkit
Management
includes the requirement
for Equality
assessments.
Ongoing monitoring and
reporting of the corporate
priority programmes
includes the production
of EQIAs at appropriate
stages of projects.
Equality to be
incorporated into design
process of new RBK
transformational
programme.
Team Leader
Commissioning
framework has equalities
Commissioning
included at appropriate
points throughout the

F12

14

Community
Development

appropriate points in the process.

cycle. Procurement
includes equalities as
part of selection and
award process and
contracts management
framework requires
ongoing monitoring of
equalities

Health and Adult Care
16

ALL

Integration of Services and Multi
disciplinary working in line with the Better
Care Fund.
To develop a multi disciplinary approach to
supporting people most in need of health and
social care services in Kingston. This
approach will develop:

Action
• Set up Kingston Together Kingston
Integrated Commissioning
Collaborative.
• Develop time scales and action plan
for 14/15.
• Embed an equality analysis in the
action plan to identify any emerging
impact on protected groups.

Executive Head of
Adult Social care
Lead Officer
Kingston CCG
Director of
Integrating Care
Kingston CCG
2014-2015

Health and Well being
Board

This initiative has further
developed into the
customer journey project
undertaken by C3 and
will now feed into the
Kingston Co ordinate
Care programme
remodelling the customer
journey. This equality
objective will be carried
forward into the Equality
Plan objectives for
2015/16
Time scales and action
plan completed
An equality analysis will
be completed as
appropriate as part of the
future customer journey
redesign work

F13

Ø a single point of access
Ø more joined-up and person-centred
care and support to local people
Ø care and support being offered closer
to and in the home to avoid admissions
to hospital and long term residential or
nursing care

Integrated service
plan for adult
social care,
Kingston CCG
and Public Health
Better Care Fund
Plan
Annual Public
Health report :
Older People in
Kingston Living
well in Later Life
Joint Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy
Kingston at Home
programme Case
for Change
Destination
Kingston 20142018
Kingston Plan Our Vision for
2020

17

D,A,G

Mental health and older people
To review older people mental health services
as a key part of the Case for Change and re
commissioning agenda so that services
improve the mental health and wellbeing of
older people valuing mental health and
ensuring that future services are
commissioned, designed and delivered to
achieve key outcomes of:
Ø
Ø

Ø

Action
• Complete a comprehensive review of
older people mental health services
• Develop an Older People Mental
health Strategy which focuses on a
global approach to commissioning
across a wide range of partners with a
focus on developing dementia friendly
communities.
• Progress partnership working with
service users and carers to help
develop future models of mental health
service delivery

Service Manager
Adult Social Care
2014-2015

Health and Wellbeing
Board

A review has been
completed
This objective will be
carried forward into the
Equality Plan objectives
for 2015/16
An Older People mental
health strategy has been
completed as part of the
Case for Change and
equality issues will be
considered as part of
future remodelling of
services.
A communication plan
was developed and will
be progressed as part of
the future modelling of
services.

F14

Ø

No Health without
Mental health
Kingston CCG
Commissioning
Intentions
( 3.1 ; 7.3.8)
Joint Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy
Integrated service
plan for adult
Dementia services which can offer
advice and support within primary care social care,
Kingston CCG
and acute settings
and Public Health
Timely community based approaches
for those with more complex and more
problematic mental health needs
including those living with dementia
Align with Adult Social care ensuring
that a new model embraces
personalisation, with access to
reablement and support networks
within the community.
Support to carers

18

ALL

Safeguarding
Safeguarding and Deprivation of Liberty in line
with the requirements of the Care Bill This
creates a legal framework so key
organisations and individuals with
responsibilities for adult safeguarding can
agree on how they must work together and
what roles they must play to keep adults at
risk safe.
• Consolidates the role of the
Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board
(SAPB)
• Introduces duty to conduct case
reviews
• Broad eligibility criteria for adult
safeguarding

Care Act latest
update
LGA Care and
Support
Implementation

Service Manager
Safeguarding
2014-2015

A review has been
completed and a number
of changes were made to
facilitate better use of
resources and an
improved customer
experience.
Safeguarding
promotions Lead

Safeguarding Adults
Partnership Board
Work has been
completed by Children
services and there is
now roll out of
champions within teams

To develop the relationship with children’s
social are to address the needs of child on
parent violence and the development of the
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub.

Safeguarding board has
new terms of reference.

Subject to the publication of the regulations
associated with Care Act
• LGA independent Chairs group to
review the London wide adult
safeguarding policy
• SAPB training group to plan a
promotion and training plan in June
2014

An independent chair will
be appointed in 2015/16.
Training needs analysis
has been completed and
procurement is in
progress for 2015/16

LGA Making

Service Manager

F15

Action
To complete a review of the allocation of
resources across all parts of the partnership
providing adult safeguarding services.

Making Safeguarding Personal which aims to

Safeguarding Adults
Partnership Board

facilitate a shift in emphasis from processes to
a commitment to improve outcomes for people
at risk of harm in order to
o develop a real understanding of
what people wish to achieve,
o record their desired outcomes
o see how effectively these have
been met.
o explore how to support people
at risk of harm to resolve the
circumstances that put them at
risk.
o
Mental Capacity Act 2005

Safeguarding
Personal

The SAPB successfully applied for grant
support to promote the use the Mental
Capacity Act 2005. This will be used to
• Develop and publish leaflets for adults
at risk, carers and staff across the
partnership
• Deliver a conference in the autumn of
2014

Team Coordinator
Safeguarding and
Mental Capacity
Act Team
2014-2015

Safeguarding Adults
Partnership Board

Making Safeguarding
Personal has been
incorporated into
safeguarding training.
A series of workshops
will take place in 2015/16
which will include a focus
on making safeguarding
personal
Leaflets have been
produced
A conference took place
in 2014
Practitioner workshop
took place led by

F16

A series of practitioner lead workshops were
delivered as part of the Practice Development
scheme. This was underpinned by the briefing,
advice information and consultation provided
by SAMCAT.
London
Safeguarding
We have continued to promote the Deprivation Adults Board
of Liberty safeguards (Mental Capacity Act
Improvement
2005 amended by the Mental Health Act
Programme
2007).
2013/14 Local
Development
Action
Facilitation Fund
The SAPB has been a “silver member” of the
project throughout 2013/14. A series of
outcome-focused questions were developed
which will be built in the implementation of as
revised IAS upgrade in 2014.

Safeguarding

•

safeguarding adult co
ordinator..

Deliver practitioner workshops

Develop an action plan to address deprivation
of liberty in registered provider establishments
and community settings.

An options paper has
been completed to
address the ongoing
need for a sustainable
supply of Best Interest
Assessors.
An application for a
Government grant will be
submitted July 2015 for
training of Best Interest
Assessors

19

ALL

Care Act
To respond to the requirements of the Care
Act in order to develop:
Ø an equitable process in relation to care
accounts and systems which enable
people to have their needs assessed
Ø respond to the requirements of the
Care Act to assess a carer’s own
needs for support
Ø embed revised eligibility to care and
support and assessments which are
appropriate, proportionate and fair
Ø develop comprehensive accessible
advice and information so people can
get the information they need to make
good decisions and help people to
understand how care and support
services work locally, the care and
funding options available, and how

Care Act
LGA Care and
Support
Implementation

Executive Head of
Adult Social Care

Senior Leadership
Team

Service Manager
Adult Social Care
2014-2015

DMT

The Care Act has been
implemented.
The Care Act
programme has
delivered its key
objectives.

F17

This training need has
been incorporated into
the training plan for
2015/16

people can access care and support
services

20

ALL

objective will be carried
forward into the Equality
Plan objectives for 2015/16

Care Act programme
Phase 1 is now complete

Ongoing and will be part
of business as usual
Destination
Kingston 20142018
Integrated
Service Plan for
Adult Social
Care, Kingston
CCG and Public
Health

Executive Head of
Adult Social care
DMT

Change Improvement
Board

Service Manager
Adult Social Care
Project Lead
Strategic Business
2014-2015

F18

Action
• Contribute to the Council Care Act
Steering Group from an adult social
care perspective indentifying any
impact on service users and carers
• Indentify a Service Lead to develop a
service action plan in the light of the
further passage of the Bill through
Parliament.
• Evaluate statutory guidance once
published in the line with Adult Social
care’s equality objectives.
Resource reduction
To meet the substantial reduction in funding to
Adult Social Care as part of the overall
reduction to the Council budget while at the
same time continuing to meet the eligible
needs of service users and carers to enable
and support them to live independently in their
own homes.
To continue to deliver improved outcomes and
cost efficiencies, making the best use of our
resources for the maximum benefit of people
who use services.
Action
• Set up a Change Improvement Board
with terms of reference and
governance arrangements
• Produce equality assessment on any
proposed projects during the
diagnostic stage to identify any
potential impact on those within
protected groups.
• Develop review mechanisms to embed
ongoing equality analyses for
identified projects if agreed and
implemented

A second phase Care
Act Phase 2 Funding
reform plan has been
completed. This equality

Change Improvement
Programme Board with
terms of reference and
governance was set up.
Work produced through
this programme will feed
into the Kingston Co
ordinated Care
programme remodelling
the customer journey
EQIAs completed as
necessary
Regular feedback loop to
DMT and the Equalities
Steering group has

•

21

ALL

Feed regularly into DMT and the
Equalities steering group to monitor
and identify any emerging themes
Annual commissioning review in terms of
equality objectives (direct commissioning
and social enterprise)
To develop an approach to commissioning
which enables the Adult Social Care to assure
itself that equality is embedded throughout
access and delivery of services and that any
impact on protected groups is identified and
addressed.
Action
•

taken place

One Council
Commissioning
Framework
Guidance on
Human Rights for
the
Commissioners
of Home Care

Executive Head of
Adult Social care

Equalities Board

Equalities
Steering Group
2014-2015
The Equalities Steering
group has used the bi
monthly meetings to
challenge itself on
service changes.

The Equality Steering Group to
annually review commissioned
services using intelligence gathered
within the service, from commissioners
and from partner social enterprises.

Analysis of data has
taken place when
information has been
available.

F19

Finance
22

ALL

Ensure Consultation with residents &
stakeholders is programmed into the Medium
term Service & Financial Planning and
Budget setting process
Ensure that equality implications are taken
into account for Service and Budgetary
decisions in the MTFS / budgeting process.

Destination
Kingston 2014-18

23

ALL

24

ALL

Overall equality assessments of service &
budget changes to be carried out – to assess
no groups are affected disproportionately.

Destination
Kingston 2014-18

25

ALL

Bailiff Review

Kingston Plan
Objective 4
Sustain & Share
Economic

Destination
Kingston 2014-18

Director of Finance
/ Head of OD &
Strategic Business
2014-2015
All Directors &
Heads of Service /
Service Managers
2014-2015
Director of Finance
/ Head of OD &
Strategic Business

Director of Finance
2014-2015

SLT and Policy &
Resources

Undertaken through the
All In One Survey

SLT and Policy &
Resources

Equality Impact
undertaken in Budget
process

SLT and Policy &
Resources

Initial impact undertaken
and further equality
assessment will be
undertaken as necessary
by service areas
Work to be planned for
15/16

Head of Revenues &
Benefits

26

ALL

Review the local Council Tax Reduction
Scheme

27

ALL

Review the implications for the Crisis Fund
and Community Care Fund as a result of the
funding cut.

ALL

All engagement with residents and
communities will incorporate meaningful
consideration of equalities and community
cohesion.
Action:
- Krisp – comprehensive representation
of the community
- Green Spaces Strategy review
consultation
- Energy Strategy review (includes fuel
poverty project)
- LIP. “Local Implementation Plan”
- CIL Communities infrastructure levy
- SPD – Supplementary Planning
Development
- Kingston Futures consultation on key
site Development Briefs
- Housing Strategy review engagement
and consultation
- Kingston Town Area Action Plan
review consultation

Prosperity
Kingston Plan
Objective 4

Director of Finance
2014-2015

Head of Revenues &
Benefits

Kingston Plan
Objective 4

2014-2015

Head of Revenues &
Benefits

Housing Strategy
Kingston Futures
Local
Implementation
Plan
Kingston Town
Area Action Plan
Green Spaces
Strategy

Service Managers
2014-2015

Place Equalities SubGroup

A report went to the 4th
July Policy and
Resources Committee
and agreed. Action
completed.
Draft report completed
but pended to December
waiting for the
Governments final
decision on funding.

Place
28

Place DMT

F20

Relevant teams for
each target.

Good progress made so
far.
The Green Spaces
Strategy review
consultation was open to
all and included a webbased questionnaire and
an interactive evening
event.
LIP consultation has
taken place as normal,
as well as wide
consultation on the North
Kingston development
brief. Consultation is just
beginning on the Eden
Quarter development
brief. All development
briefs are available in
different languages and
formats for consultees.
The Housing Strategy is
working to a longer
deadline and will
incorporate the All in

One survey responses.
In the meantime, forums
have been set up for
hard to reach groups,
which will create an
enhanced basis for
consultation on the
Housing Strategy.

Work has now started on
the drafting of the
Housing Strategy with a
Housing conference in
Feb 2015, to garner
ideas, concept and
themes of for key
stakeholders. The
conference was attended
by those with commercial
interests; Members; local
community groups
including voluntary
sector and homeless
groups; other providers

F21

KRiSP is now
established it is made up
of 13 tenants and
leaseholders. The
membership reflects the
broader female/male and
tenant/leaseholder make
up for Kingston. This
does not however extend
to the BME ratio. At the
next round of recruitment
an increased focus will
be given to increasing
the number of BME who
apply for post on the
scrutiny panel.

of housing locally and.
Kingston social tenants
were represented by the
Resident Federation and
KRiSP.
Further engagement with
stakeholders is planned
along with an Equality
Impact Assessment, but
this will not take place
until Sept/Dec.
Consequently this action
will be rolled forward into
2015/16.
29

ALL

Equalities will be embedded throughout all
new strategies and policies developed by
Place.
Action:
- Housing Strategy 2016-20
- Green Spaces Strategy review
- Waste service review
- Parking
- Highway safety
- Kingston Town Area Action Plan
The services provided by Place will be
equally accessible to all residents and service
users, and this will be embedded in all Place
commissioning and transformational activity.
Action:
- Examples of the integration of
equalities into the delivery of service –
procedures used rather than on case
by case basis.
- Equality assessments of new or
changed services.
- Appropriate communication methods
related to service delivery as required.
- Housing Strategy review

Housing Strategy
Kingston Futures
Kingston Town
Area Action Plan
Green Spaces
Strategy

Service Managers
2014-2015

Housing Strategy
Kingston Futures
Kingston Town
Area Action Plan
Green Spaces
Strategy

Service Managers
2014-2015

Place Equalities SubGroup
Place DMT
Relevant teams for
each target.

Place Equalities SubGroup
Place DMT
Relevant teams for
each target.

The development of all
strategies in Place has
incorporated
consideration of
equalities. Improved
recycling service is still
ongoing and EQIA work
still needs to be
undertaken.

There are significant
commissioning projects
ongoing in Place this
year, and each shows
evidence that steps have
been taken to ensure the
resulting services will be
accessible to all
residents and service
users.
The Housing Strategy
update is per point 28
above. This action will

F22

30

ALL

-

Older People’s Housing Service
review
Housing Service re-design and
service improvement.
Parks & Open Spaces perceptions will
be tested through Green Spaces
Strategy review.

need to be rolled forward
for 2015/16.

For the above reasons –
the embedding element
of Action 30 will roll
forward for 2015/16

F23

Housing has now
completed a review of
Older and Vulnerable
persons housing. This
has resulted in a change
in housing model, which
adopts a model that
allows for greater
flexibility in the stock
portfolio through the
creation of ‘life time’
homes. Where properties
are readily able to
accommodate each
phase or physical
change of the individual’s
life – recognising the
need for increased
support in terms of aids,
access and use in later
years. This is now being
embedded into
procurement and
commissioning practises
in 2015/16. Additionally,
the review has resulted
in 10% of lifetime
properties being built in a
way that allows for easy
access into and within
the property for
wheelchairs.

31

ALL

Management of the Council’s estate will take
into account equalities issues, particularly in
relation to disability

Service Managers
2014-2015

Place Equalities SubGroup
Place DMT
Relevant teams for
each target.

Access audits are
undertaken as and when
required, with the
majority of Council
owned premises already
complaint with Equality
legislation.
Recent audits have been
undertaken at the Dukes
Centre and the lower
ground floor of Guildhall.
A disabilities audit has
been carried out of all
communal facilities in the
Council’s Housing
estates. The results of
this will be incorporated
into the future investment
programme.
Full accessibility and
usage audits have been
undertaken on residential
properties as part of the
Better Homes works.
This work has also
included a review and
audit of accessibility via
lifts.
There is an ongoing
review of garage
accessibility.
There has been a
change to the sheltered
accommodation
specification model to

F24

Action:
- Full Access Audits to Council owned
premises will be undertaken, including
those in green spaces.
- Improvements will be made to the
Council’s property portfolio, where
possible, in order to improve access
to staff and visitors including those
with disabilities.
- All opportunities to let or dispose of
Council properties will be advertised
as widely as possible thus ensuring all
parts of the community are aware of
the opportunities.
- Accessibility of Council homes via
adaptation to dwellings/ communal
parts and new build requirements

Housing Strategy
Kingston Futures
Equality and
Community
Cohesion
Strategy

allow in train and future
development up to a
more accessible
standard in support of
the ‘Life Time’ home
programme.
Kingston has been able
to continue its access to
disability facility grant
which has meant a
continued commitment to
DDA works across the
stock and DDA
compliance in communal
areas.

As these actions relate to
the ongoing Better
Homes programme
suggest Action 31 is
rolled forward for
2015/16
32

ALL

Staff will understand our equality duties and
community cohesion objectives and will be
able to integrate requirements into all aspects
of Place’s work.
Action:
- Equality assessments undertaken
- Training completed
- Activities undertaken to support staff

Equality and
Community
Cohesion
Strategy

Service Managers

Place Equalities SubGroup

2014-2015
Place DMT
Relevant teams for
each target.

Equalities assessments
have been undertaken
as required.
Planned work in this area
by the Equalities SubGroup has not been

F25

There is a huge
commitment to the
advertising of garages
earmarked for disposal in
and amongst the local
community – to allow
community groups to
take advantage of
possible sales.

-

-

33

ALL

by the Place Equalities Sub-Group.
Integrate the Equalities and
Community Cohesion Strategy into
Induction process for new staff.
Workshop sessions for Housing staff
being provided by Strategic Business
to ensure full understanding of
process.

Housing Strategy
Kingston Futures
Equality and
Community
Cohesion
Strategy

Service Managers

Place Equalities SubGroup

2014-2015
Place DMT
Relevant teams for
each target.

As part of the Housing
Transformation
Programme as staff have
moved into new roles
and new starters have
joined
teams/departments the
Council’s commitment to
equalities and inclusion
has been reinforced or
trained in line with
council policy
Some data has been
collected through the
consultations
undertaken. This will be
analysed in the coming
months.
The equalities impacts of
lettings are reviewed on
a regular basis.
Equalities data gathered
is considered as part of
the production of the
annual Lettings Plan.
Commitments to collate
and report on key
statistical data –
including CORE and
ELASH have been
successfully completed
for 2014/15.
Submissions have been
within agreed deadlines
and there has been no
adverse feedback on the
quality of information

F26

Data related to equalities monitoring and
improvement will be collected and assessed
appropriately.
Action:
- Report of data collected – what was
collected and when, how it was
analysed and used.
- Green Spaces Strategy review
consultation.
- Annual reporting of lettings/
nominations to new tenants through
CORE (Continuous Recording of
Lettings and Sales in Social Housing)

progressed, but will be
undertaken in the second
part of the year.

provided.

Cultural Services and Lifelong Learning
34

ALL

Ensure Decant of services addresses equalities
strands, particularly with regard to access for
older people and those with disabilities

Good Life Project
Phase 3 PID

Project Officer
2014-2015

Good Life Project
Phase 3 PID

Head of Adult
Education
2014-2015
Project Officer
2014-2015

Equality Assessment for Kingston Adult
Education elements of decant
35

ALL

36

D, A,
CC,
R, RB

Ensure through Equality assessment that phase
3 re-commissioning of Good Life Services take
account of and plan for the needs of target
groups
Ensure RideLondon event plans make
appropriate provision for target groups

Equality issues were
taken into account in the
change process

Executive Head of
Culture & Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

Good life programmes
had equality issues taken
into account

Project Officer
2014-2015

Executive Head of
Culture & Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

Work was undertaken to
ensure appropriate
equality consideration
with programme

A CAMHS professional
joined the Multi-Agency
Team in the SPA to
triage CAMHS referrals
in 2013.
The MASH
arrangements and MultiAgency Sexual
Exploitation (MASE)
group are used
effectively to identify
children and young
people at risk of child
sexual exploitation.
This is a key project

Children’s Services
37

A,D

37

A,G,
R,SE

39

A,D

Implement the Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Review including embedding emotional
mental health triage in the Single Point of
Access teams

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

Assess the impact of the Multi-Agency
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) in Kingston and in
Richmond to improve early identification of child
sexual exploitation

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

Extend the choice of post-16 education

Children and

Achieving for

Lead

F27

Executive Head of
Culture & Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

provision, including for young people with SEND

Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Children 20142015

Commissioner
Children Services

ALL

Secure sufficient childcare places for
disadvantaged two year olds in line with
statutory requirements

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children 20142015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

41

ALL

Roll out Viewpoint for children subject to a Child
Protection Plan, Looked After Children and
children and young people affected by
substance misuse to shape and improve the
service.

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

42

A,D

Implement the Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities Reform

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

F28

40

identified in the Business
Plan for 2014-17 but is
not due for completion
until March 2017. Work
will commence during
2015-16.
There has been an
increase in the places
secured for
disadvantaged two year
olds as indicated in the
Childcare Sufficiency
Assessment.
The Viewpoint survey
has been extended to
these target groups and
the findings from the
surveys are being
reported to the
Performance Board to
shape service
improvements.
There are a number of
projects that will be
delivered as part of the
implementation of the
Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities
Reform. Of these, the
AfC Local Offer has been
published and will be
improved in partnership
with children, young
people and families over
the coming 12 months;
personal budgets have
been available to parents
who request them from 1
September 2014;
schools are being
supported to embed the

A,D,
SE

Agree specific Education, Employment and
Training pathways into adulthood for young
people with Special Educational Needs and
Learning Disabilities/Difficulties

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

44

ALL

Ensure a higher percentage of children eligible
for Free School Meals achieve a good level of
progress in the Early Years Foundation Stage
(EYFS)

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

45

A,G

Support schools to reduce the gap in attainment
between boys and girls achieving 5 or more A* C grades at GCSE including English and Maths

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

F29

43

new SEND Code of
Practice and further work
will be undertaken during
2015-16; and the single
assessment process and
education, health and
care plans are in the
process of being
established. These
projects will complete by
March 2017.
This is a key project
identified in the Business
Plan for 2014-17 but is
not due for completion
until March 2017. Work
will commence during
2015-16.
In 2013, 36% of FSM
pupils achieved at least
the expected standard in
all of the Early Learning
Goals at the EYFS. In
2014, this had increased
to 43% (England
average 45%). Further
action will be taken to
improve this going
forward
Action to narrow the
attainment gap between
boys and girls at school
is being led by the
School Performance
Alliance for Richmond
and Kingston (SPARK).
SPARK brings together
schools from across both
boroughs with the aim of
continually raising
standards and improving

46

A,R

Support schools to reduce the achievement gap
between BAME pupils (split by ethnicity) and
their peers achieving the expected levels at
GCSE (5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE
including English and Maths)

Children and
Young People’s
Plan 2013 -2017

Achieving for
Children
2014-2015

Lead
Commissioner
Children Services

F30

provision.
In 2013/14 the gender
gap was 9.2 percentage
points in Kingston. This
is less than the England
average of 10.1
percentage points.
Girls
RBK 82.7%
England 61.7%
Boys
RBK 73.5%
England 51.6%
Action to narrow the
attainment gap between
BAME pupils and their
peers at school is being
led by the School
Performance Alliance for
Richmond and Kingston
(SPARK). SPARK brings
together schools from
across both boroughs
with the aim of
continually raising
standards and improving
provision.
The 2013/14
achievement gap
between different ethnic
groups is higher than
comparisons with
England averages,
however, attainment of
Kingston pupils is higher
in all groups than the
England figures.
White: 74.6%
Mixed: 75.9%
Asian: 91.7%
Black: 64.9%

All Pupils: 78.3%

F31

F32

ANNEX 2
KEY: (ES&CC) Equality Strand & Community Cohesion- A=Age, D=Disability, G=Gender including Transgender, M/CP = Marriage & Civil
Partnership, P/M= Pregnancy & Maternity, R=Race, RB= Religion or Beliefs, SO= Sexual Orientation, CC = Community Cohesion, All =All
Strands & SE= Socio Economic Deprivation

Equality Objectives and Community Cohesion Action Plan 2015-2016
Organisational Development and Strategic Business
No

1

2

3

4

ES &
CC

Action

A,D,G
M/CP,
P/M,
R,RB,
SO
A,D,G
M/CP,
P/M,
R,RB,
SO
ALL

Staff survey 2015 to be analysed by equalities
group

SE/
ALL

Link to
Statutory
Returns, Key
Strategies &
Plans
Destination
Kingston
OD Service Plan

Lead
Responsibility &
Timescales

Monitored By

HR Manager
2015 -2016

Equalities Board

Improve Annual Employment Monitoring
Report by equality strands

Destination
Kingston
OD Service Plan

HR Manager
2015 -2016

Equalities Board

Equalities Training for staff and members

Destination
Kingston
OD Service Plan
Joint Strategic
Needs
Assessment,
Health and Well

HR Manager
2015 -2016

Equalities Board

Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for

Senior
Community
Development
Coordinator for

Localities Strategy and Action Plan -Delivery of
health improvement and community
development initiatives with residents living in
areas of highest deprivation.

Year End Report

F33

Being Strategy
(Addressing the
needs of socially
excluded and
disadvantaged
communities)
Joint Strategic
Needs
Assessment,
Health and Well
Being Strategy

5

R

Refugee and Migrant Strategy 2015-2020

6

ALL

Health Improvement Plan for marginalised
communities

Joint Strategic
Needs
Assessment,
Health and Well
Being Strategy

7

ALL

Community Resilience and Empowerment
Programme (training and developing resident
community champions from socially excluded
and disadvantaged communities)

Joint Strategic
Needs
Assessment,
Health and Well
Being Strategy

8

CC,
D, SE

Commissioned Crisis Support Service for
Refugees and Asylum Seekers

Health and Well
Being Strategy

9

ALL

To ensure that equalities issues are monitored

Kingston Plan,

Community
Development
April 2016

Localities

Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for
Community
Development
April 2016
Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for
Community
Development
April 2016
Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for
Community
Development
April 2016
Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for
Community
Development
April 2016
Capability Lead

Senior
Community
Development
Coordinator for
Marginalised
Groups
Community
Development
Worker for
Marginalised
Groups

Community
Development
Worker

Public Health
Manager for
Inequalities and
Team Leader for
Community
Development
Team Leader

F34

10

ALL

11

ALL

12

13

ALL

14

ALL

and addressed throughout Commissioning
approach with the use of the Commissioning
Framework and Equality assessments at the
appropriate points in the process. This
includes ensuring that impact from as a result
of commissioning decisions is measured and
appropriate action taken.

Destination
Kingston, Service
Plans, Our
Kingston
Programme

2015-2016

Commissioning

Implement Welfare Reform changes in line
with the Welfare Reform Act 2012.
Refresh the Welfare Reform Equality
assessment, monitor the impact in relation to
all equalities strands and implement action
plans to mitigate impact.
Kingston Data team to maintain and refresh
data on the website including all equality
strand data to enable service commissioners
to be able to undertake EQIAs in an informed
way.
To ensure equalities issues are monitored and
addressed through our Programme and
Project management approach and toolkit with
the use of equality assessments at the
appropriate points in the process.
Review the Voluntary and Community Sector
Strategy and Action Plan in the light of results
from the consultation on Grants to
Commissioning and the resulting proposals to
be agreed by the Policy and Finance
Committee in July 2015
Manage the Corporate Grants programme in
line with any changes that emerge from the
Grants to Commissioning consultation taking
account of equalities issues and community
cohesion.

Kingston Plan

Team Leader
Data &
Information 201516

Senior Business
Analyst

Kingston Plan

Team Leader
Data &
Information 201516

Senior Business
Analyst

Kingston Plan,
Destination
Kingston, Service
Plans

Capability Lead
2015-2016

Team Leader
Transformation/
Programme
Management

Commissioning
framework
Community
Engagement
Strategy
Service Plans
Voluntary Sector
Strategy
Service Plans
Destination
Kingston

Team Leader
Voluntary and
Community 201516

Voluntary Sector
Board

Capability Lead
2015-16

Team Leader
Voluntary and
Community
2015-16

F35

15

ALL

16

GR

17

ALL

The Our Kingston Programme takes equalities
issues into account and EQIAs are undertaken
as appropriate ensure informed decisions are
taken.
Deliver Female Genital Mutilation briefing to
Kingston education professionals

Develop One Stop Shop and MARAC
equalities data to enable better analysis and
inform service provision

Destination
Kingston

Capability Lead

Team Leader

Linked to the
DASV prevention
partnership
strategy, DASV
work plan and
SKP
Linked to the
DASV prevention
partnership
strategy, DASV
work plan and
SKP

DASV Strategic
Leads

Domestic and
Sexually
Violence
Prevention
Partnership

End September
2015

Domestic and
Sexually
Violence
Prevention
Partnership

Revenue and
Benefit Service
Plan
Shared ICT
service | 2015/16
service plan
Shared ICT
service | 2015/16
service plan
Contact Centre
Service Plan
Contact Centre
Service Plan

Head of Revenue
and Benefits
October
Joint Head of ICT
March 2016

Head of
Revenue and
Benefits
Joint Head of
ICT

Joint Head of ICT
March 2016

Joint Head of
ICT

Service Manger
Contact Centre
Service Manger
Contact Centre

Service Manger
Contact Centre
PaCE Board

Policy & Finance
Committee

Service Manger
Contact Centre

Policy &
Finance/PaCE

End July 2015

DASV Strategic
Leads

Finance
18

ALL

Implement the Pensions Self Service systems
for employing authorities and scheme
members
Enable flexible working options to support
enhanced work life balance for all staff.

19

ALL

20

D

Provide appropriate tools for users with
accessibility requirements

21

ALL

22

ALL

23

ALL

Review of Interpreting Services to ensure best
value and cost efficient service
Face to Face service provision review in line
with shift to Digital Services, including Housing
Options wizard.
Customer Contact Review by Administration
and implications for location of services

F36

24

ALL

Ensure Consultation with residents &
stakeholders is programmed into the Medium
term Service & Financial Planning and Budget
setting process

25

ALL

Ensure that equality implications are taken into
account for Service and Budgetary decisions in
the MTFS / budgeting process.

Report
Destination
Kingston 201519

Destination
Kingston 201519

Director of
Finance / Head of
OD & Strategic
Business 20152016
All Directors &
Heads of Service
/ Service
Managers 20152016

Board
SLT and Policy
& Resources

SLT and Policy
& Resources

Adult Social Care & Health
26

ALL

Kingston Coordinated Care Programme
i) To have analysed the individual projects
(where defined) that comprise the ‘Kingston
Coordinated Care Programme’, undertaken an
EQIA and made a determination as to any
differential impact for protected groups by Q3
2015/16

ii) To undertake activities as identified in the
EQIA to ensure that the effectiveness of
integrated care is beginning to be experienced
across equalities groups by Q4 2015/16

27

ALL

Dementia Strategy for Kingston
i) To have analysed the ‘Dementia Strategy for
Kingston upon Thames’, undertaken an EQIA
and made a determination as to any
differential impacts for protected groups by Q3
2015/16 (as far as information allows us to do

Kingston’s CCG /
ASC and PH
Integrated
Operating Plan
14/15, 15/16
Joint Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy

Head of
Operations,
Head of
Commissioning,
Transformation
Programme
Manager
Q3 2015-2016

ASC Equalities
Steering Group

Q4 2015-2016
ASCOF (Adult
Social Care
Outcomes
Framework)
Kingston’s CCG /
ASC and PH
Integrated
Operating Plan
14/15, 15/16

Service Manager
Lead for Mental
Health
Q3 2015-2016

ASC Equalities
Steering Group

F37

so)
ii) To have explored how we might determine
whether the ‘estimated’ early diagnosis of
dementia is reflective of Kingston’s
demographic (by Q3 2015/16)
iii) To have commenced activities (by Q4
2015/16) that will begin to close any gaps to
ensure that the early diagnosis of dementia in
Kingston is reflective of the demographic (for
that age group), subject to information from ii)
above being available
28

ALL

Care Act Funding Reform
i) To have undertaken an EQIA on the 2016
Funding Reform elements of the Care Act
(Care Accounts, Charging Policy, Means
Testing, Financial Assessments, Direct
Payments, Appeals) and to have made a
determination as to any differential impacts for
equalities groups by Q3 2015/16

Joint Health and
Wellbeing
Strategy
ASCOF (Adult
Social Care
Outcomes
Framework)

Kingston’s CCG /
ASC and PH
Integrated
Operating Plan
14/15, 15/16

Q3 2015-2016

Q4 2015-2016

Care Act Project
Manager/s
Q3 2015-2016

ii) To have commenced any targeted work
required (by Q4 2015/16) to begin to realise
equality of access to those services as defined
by the Care Act

Q4 2015-2016

iii) To have shared information relating to the
Care Act at a variety of local forums, voluntary
and community groups (e.g. Kingston Interfaith
forum, Kingston LGBT forum) by Q3 2015/16
and for a number of these groups to have
provided Kingston Council with an action plan
describing how they are going to disseminate

Q3 2015-2016
Q4 2015-2016

ASC Equalities
Steering Group

F38

Care Act information in their community by Q4
2015/16
iv) To have promoted Care Act information
events to protected groups and monitored
attendance with a view to it being
representative of borough demographics by
Q4 2015/16

Q4 2015-2016

Cultural Services and Lifelong Learning
29

R, CC

Provide books in a no. of languages other than
English to reflect local community need,
including books in Korean supported by links
developed with the Korean Cultural Centre and
the Korean Information Service

30

D

Provide books in alternative formats such as
Large Print, Spoken Word and e-books and eaudio to ensure those with visual impairment
continue to have access to literature and
information.

31

All

Provide a range of material in digital format to
widen access to resources and services that
can be accessed remotely

32

D, A,
R,

Ensure that housebound residents have
access to library services, resources and

Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services
and Lifelong
Learning Service
Plan, CIPFA
Public Library
Statistics
Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services
and Lifelong
Learning Service
Plan, CIPFA
Public Library
Statistics
Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services
and Lifelong
Learning Service
Plan, CIPFA
Public Library
Statistics
Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services

Team Leader:
Adult Services
and Acquisitions
2015-2016

Strategic
Manager:
Library &
Heritage Service

Team Leader:
Adult Services
and Acquisitions
2015-2016

Strategic
Manager:
Library &
Heritage Service

Team Leader:
Adult Services
and Acquisitions
2015-2016

Strategic
Manager:
Library &
Heritage Service

Lead Officer for
Library

Strategic
Manager:

F39

SE,
CC

information to meet their needs , and in a
range of accessible formats

33

All, D

34

CC,
SE
and D

Ensure that Bookstart is delivered via Health
Visitors to 95% of babies and toddlers in the
borough, including Bookshine and Booktouch
Baby & Toddler packs aimed at children with
visual and hearing impairments and Bookstart
Star packs aimed at children with special
needs.
Ensure that the Heritage learning programme
engages the local community, particularly
those groups underrepresented in the current
user profile

35

ALL

36

ALL

37

G, R

38

D, G,
R

39

D

100% special schools engaged in first access
music programme

40

R,A

Engagement with older, socially isolated BAME Kingston Plan
residents

Ensure decant of services addresses
equalities strands, particularly with regard to
access for older people and those with
disabilities
Equality Impact Assessment to be completed
for Kingston Adult Education 5 year strategy
Undertake assessment of learners to ensure
broad representation of girls/boys and race
with music service
Undertake analysis of students receiving
music bursary to ensure fair representation of
community receiving support

and Lifelong
Learning Plan,
CIPFA Public
Library Statistics
Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services
and Lifelong
Learning Service
Plan, Annual
Bookstart Return

Operations
2015-2016

Library &
Heritage Service

Team Leader:
Services to
Children and
Young People
2015-2016

Strategic
Manager:
Library &
Heritage Service

Kingston Plan,
Cultural Services
and Lifelong
Learning Service
Plan
Kingston Plan
Theme 2,
Objective 5

Heritage Team
Leader and
Borough Archivist
2015-2016

Strategic
Manager:
Library &
Heritage Service

Project Officer
2015-2016

Executive Head
of Culture

Kingston Plan
Theme 2,
Objective 5
Kingston Plan

Head of Adult
Education
2015-2016
Head of Music
Service
2015-2016
Head of Music
Service
2015-2016

Executive Head
of Culture

Kingston Plan

Kingston Plan

Head of Music
Service
2015-2016
Commissioner
Arts 2015-2016

Executive Head
of Culture
Executive Head
of
Culture
Executive Head
of
Culture
Commissioner
Arts

F40

41

DA

42

ALL

43

ALL

Engagement with disabled children & young
people
Work with partners to increase opportunities
and develop programmes that attract groups
who traditionally participate less in sport and
physical activity (e.g. women and girls, older
people, mental health and well-being, BAME,
disabled people and young people at risk.
Monitor the use of the Active Kingston Card.
To be eligible for this card, residents must
meet the following criteria:
• Are aged 60 or over
• Receive jobseekers allowance
• Receive income support
• Receiving Income related allowance
(ESA)
• Are a full-time student in further or
higher education
• Receive carers allowance
• Are an adult/young person registered
disabled or receive a disability benefit
• In foster care or a child looked after by
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames

Kingston Plan

Commissioner
Arts 2015-2016
Commissioner
Active Kingston
2015-2016

Commissioner
Arts
Sports
Commissioning
Manager

Kingston Plan
Theme 3: Safe,
Healthy and
strong

Commissioner
Active Kingston
2015-2016

Sports
Commissioning
Manager

Engagement with residents and communities
will incorporate consideration of equalities and
community cohesion issues .

Kingston Plan
Destination
Kingston
Housing Strategy

Group Managers
2015-2016

Place Equalities
Sub-Group

Waste Service
Manager
2015-2016

Place DMT

Kingston Plan
Theme 3: Safe,
Healthy and
strong

Place
44

ALL

Housing Strategy review engagement and
consultation

Head of Housing

F41

Community Housing Trust board membership
reflects wider housing resident membership
(e.g. gender/age/BME etc )
Reviewing and mobilising the new improved
recycling service will be communicated to all
residents throughout the service change rollout via different channels e.g. social media,
newsletter, web
45

ALL

Equalities will be embedded throughout all new
strategies and policies developed by Place.
Housing Strategy 2016-20

Kingston Plan
Destination
Kingston
Housing Strategy

Commence EQIA on improved recycling
service to ensure that service change does not
have a negative impact

46

ALL

The services provided by Place will be equally
accessible to all residents and service users,
and this will be embedded in all Place
commissioning and transformational activity
Housing Service re-design and service
improvement.
Channel shifting and improving online
accessibility to key information and service
access e.g. requesting repairs
Embedding of key changes arising from the
Housing Transformation programme

Housing
Transformation
Restructure

Group Managers
2015-2016

Place Equalities
Sub-Group

Waste Service
Manager
2015-2016

Place DMT

All Group
Managers
2015-2016

Place Equalities
Sub-Group

Head of Housing

Place DMT
Head of Housing

F42

Increased role for resident via the Community
Housing Trust (CHT)
47

ALL

Management of the Council’s estate will take
into account equalities issues, particularly in
relation to disability

Kingston Plan
Better Homes
Programme
Housing Strategy

Improvements will be made to the Council’s
property portfolio, where possible, in order to
improve access to staff and visitors including
those with disabilities.

Group Managers
2015-2016

Place Equalities
Sub-Group

Technical
Delivery manager

Place DMT
Head of Housing

Waste Service
Manager
2015-2016

All opportunities to let or dispose of Council
properties will be advertised as widely as
possible thus ensuring all parts of the
community are aware of the opportunities.
Accessibility of Council homes via adaptation
to dwellings/ communal parts and new build
requirements
Survey to take place with waste officers and
Veolia to evaluate properties that may have
difficulty with the service
48

ALL

Data related to equalities monitoring and
improvement will be collected and assessed
appropriately
Report on data collected – what was collected
and when, how it was analysed and used.
Annual reporting of lettings/ nominations to
new tenants through CORE (Continuous
Recording of Lettings and Sales in Social
Housing)

Kingston Plan
Housing Strategy

Group Managers
Lead Officer

Place Equalities
Sub-Group

2015-2016

Head of Housing

F43

Survey for Tenants and Residents (STAR),
feedback used to inform service delivery
and/or service improvements with clear action
plans for driving up satisfaction in direct
response to tenants/leaseholder feedback
CHT increasing the opportunities to get
involved from 2015/16 baseline at council/CHT
handover
CHT indicators include an improvement on the
baseline of collection of data against
Kingston’s accepted protected characteristic at
handover with subsequent stepped
improvement year on year for the duration of
the CHT

49

A,D,G
,R

The Environmental Enforcement Fixed Penalty
Notice Pilot will be undertaken in fair and
equitable manner
•

Manifesto
promise

Service Manager,
Green spaces

Environment
Management
Team through
monthly KPI’s

AfC Business
Plan

Associate
Director of Early
Help, 2015-2016

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s

The monitoring information will be
analysed on a regular basis to access
that the the spread of FPN’s appear to
be fair.

Children’s Services (Achieving for Children)
50

ALL

Ensure there are specialist mental health
workers in the Single Point of Access (SPA)
who are able to make timely and appropriate

F44

referrals to CAMHS at the right level.
Implement an annual conversation with
schools to develop joined-up care planning
and support for pupils who receive social care
services
Strengthen systems to identify children at risk
of sexual exploitation and ensure there are
effective preventative services and
interventions in place to support these
vulnerable children
Strengthen safeguarding practice for children
with disabilities

51

ALL

52

ALL

53

D

54

ALL

Strengthen arrangements for the identification
of children who are at risk of harm due to
missing education or being missing from
education

AfC Business
Plan

55

ALL

56

ALL

Broaden the choice of foster care placements
so that looked-after children can be placed in
safe and stable placements closer to their
home
Increase the number of children achieving
permanency in a timely manner through
adoption or special guardianship

57

ALL

58

ALL

Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Children’s Social
Care, 2015-16

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Children’s Social
Care, 2015-16

AfC Business
Plan

Associate
Director of
Special
Educational
Needs and
Disabilities 2017
Associate
Director of Early
Help
2015-2016

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Children’s Social
Care, 2015-16

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Children’s Social
Care, 2015-16

Increase looked-after children’s participation in
their statutory reviews and their active
involvement in care planning

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Children’s Social
Care, 2015-16

Roll out a programme of preventative work for
those at risk of becoming NEET including

AfC Business
Plan

Director of
Education

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services

F45

59

ALL

60

SE

61

D, SE

62

D

63

D

supporting schools to provide careers support
to 16 to 19 year olds with a focus on vocational
opportunities
Ensure there is sufficient apprenticeship and
training provision in place for young people
wishing to follow this pathway when the
participation age is raised to 18 in 2015
Establish an evidence-based programme to
provide care leavers with the skills required for
successful independent living and
employment.
Agree specific Education, Employment and
Training pathways into adulthood for young
people with special educational needs and
learning difficulties.
Publish an improved local offer outlining
services for children and young people with
SEND so that families understand support
available in our area and can have a greater
say over their own support

Support schools to embed the new SEND
Code of Practice through a range of training
and professional development opportunities in
the academic year

AfC Business
Plan

AfC Business
Plan

AfC Business
Plan

AfC Business
Plan

AfC Business
Plan

Services,
2015-16

Children’s
Services

Director of
Education
Services,
2015-16
Director of
Education
Services,
2015- 16
Director of
Education
Services, 201516
Associate
Director of
Special
Educational
Needs and
Disabilities
2017
Associate
Director of
Special
Educational
Needs and
Disabilities
2017

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services
Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services

Lead
Commissioner
Children’s
Services

G1

Appendix G

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
London Living Wage
Report by Executive Head of Organisational Development and Strategic Business
Purpose
To provide information to the Committee to enable it to consider implementation of
the London Living Wage
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Treasurer, Finance and HR
To RESOLVE that 1) the Council adopts the London Living Wage from 1 April 2016, and
implements it by a retrospective payment, the following March, of the
difference between the London Living Wage then in force (pro rata), and
normal basic pay;
2) overtime pay and payments to casual workers be excluded from the
provisions set out in 1) above, in line with the expectations of the Living
Wage Foundation;
3) school governing bodies be encouraged to take similar action; and
4) the policy be regularly reviewed in the light of local government pay
settlements.

Key Points
A.

Although there have been considerable efforts in recent years to improve the
position of the lowest paid staff in local government, at its meeting on 15th
January 2015 Council agreed that this Committee should receive a report on
the implications of adopting the London Living Wage (LLW) for directly
employed and agency staff.

B.

The London Living Wage Campaign was begun in 2001 but has only gained
momentum in recent years. The LLW rate is now £9.15 per hour across both
Inner and Outer London. The Living Wage outside London is £7.85 per hour.
RBK’s lowest hourly pay rate is £8.67 per hour and 272 staff (49 outside
schools (of which 15 in Household Reuse and Recycling Centres (HRRC)),
and 223 in schools) would be in scope of the London Living wage

C.

Four London boroughs (Bexley, Bromley, Havering, and Kensington &
Chelsea) have decided not to pay the London Living Wage, but, as well as a
number of high-profile private sector employers, all other London boroughs
now have a minimum pay rate at LLW level or higher. However, only eleven
boroughs are fully accredited LLW employers, which indicates that seventeen

G2

boroughs are not operating all parts of the LLW commitment (ie extending to
contracts held). Wandsworth is the latest borough to commit to the LLW.
D.

Employers committed to the LLW have no influence over the rate which is set
or the annual increases which are applied to the LLW, and Outer London
employers have higher costs in implementing and maintaining the LLW
because basic pay rates are lower than those in Inner London. Annual
increases in the LLW are consistently outstripping local government pay
settlements. For example, in November 2014 the LLW was increased by 4%
while the equivalent local government pay settlement was for a 2.2% increase
but only for part of the year

E.

In terms of the number of staff affected, the largest potential direct impact of
the LLW for RBK would be in schools. The Corporate Solicitor advises that,
legally, as Local Education Authority (LEA) RBK is the employer of, and
ultimately responsible for all staff in its maintained schools, but that the LEA
can only make recommendations to schools about pay matters, and schools
are not obliged to follow its advice. When governing bodies were considering
implementing the LLW it is inevitable that budgetary pressures would be a
major factor in the decision. There are a number of schools which do not use
the Council’s payroll but which would still be affected. However, information
about costs and numbers of staff involved cannot be obtained in these cases.

F.

Full implementation of the LLW would require RBK to commit, as contracts
come up for renewal, to ensuring all staff employed by contractors providing
services are paid at least the LLW level. Inevitably this would have
implications for the future costs of contracted services.

G.

A number of staff employed by RBK in the Household Reuse and Recycling
Centres would potentially be in scope of the London Living Wage, but this
would depend on the timing of implementation as these staff are due to
TUPE-transfer to the successful bidder in October 2015.

Context
1.

RBK is a member of the Greater London Provincial Council which sets pay
rates for council staff in the Greater London area in line with national
settlements between local authorities and trades unions. Low pay issues
have been recognised by both the national and regional negotiating
committees over a long period, and there have been a number of separate
initiatives to remove the lowest pay points and give pay awards weighted
towards the lowest earners.

2.

In 2004 RBK was an early implementer of the local government ‘Single
Status’ agreement which modernised and considerably improved the
conditions of former manual workers. The latest RBK pay award effective
from January 2015, only the second since 2009, is considerably weighted
towards lower paid staff. The current lowest pay point will removed from
October 2015, and the lowest pay points receive an effective increase of
between 8.3% and 10.1% compared with the general increase of 2.2% to
other RBK staff. RBK’s lowest rate of pay, £8.65 per hour, is now 33% higher
than the National Minimum Wage (£6.50 per hour). No pay increases were
possible between April 2009 and March 2013 because of public sector pay
restraint but, by October 2015 the council’s lowest rate of pay will have

G3

increased by 10.6% on the pre-April 2013 rate, considerably more than the
general pay increase to other council staff in the same period, when some
senior managers saw no pay increase at all between April 2008 and January
2014. As part of the 2014/15 pay settlement, some staff received a lump
sum payment. Staff on the lowest three pay points received payments of
£325, over three times the average payment to other staff.
3.

There are options for bringing all staff in line with the LLW level, but additional
payments under any of these options would be pensionable under the Local
Government Pension Scheme 2014, and would attract employer’s pension
contributions.

Options
4.

The trades unions and the employer’s side have indicated that they wish the
local government pay settlement due from 1 April 2016 to include further
initiatives to improve the position of lowest paid staff, and the first option is to
take no immediate action but to keep the LLW under review in light of future
pay settlements.

5.

Implementing the London Living Wage, or the equivalent level, could be
achieved either by revising basic pay rates, or else by calculating the
difference due and paying this as a one-off, individual payment at the end of
each financial year.

6.

By increasing basic pay rates to the LLW level, the LLW could be most
immediately implemented. However, this would be a contractual change for
staff with consequent implications should the council wish to change its policy.
It would also be the most costly option. It would be impractical to exclude
making payments for overtime and to casual workers at the LLW rate should
this option be chosen although these are not requirements of the LLW as set
out by the Living Wage Foundation. This option would be technically complex
to implement and operate, and have the potential for errors and
overpayments, as it would be necessary to maintain the current range of pay
rates, excluding LLW, to accommodate the needs of schools which chose not
to implement the LLW.

7.

As the rate of increase of the LLW is outside the Council’s influence, and as
future local government pay settlements may further reduce or remove the
difference from the London Living Wage, the Committee may instead wish to
commit to the current LLW level but to be able to reconsider the position
annually. Instead of raising basic pay rates, the best approach to achieving
this would be to calculate and pay to staff within scope a one-off, individual
supplement at the end of the current financial year, and in subsequent years if
re-approved. The supplement would bring salary for basic hours worked up
to the LLW level in retrospect. The supplement would be pensionable but
non-contractual, and not paid to otherwise eligible staff who had worked in the
financial year but left the council’s employment before 31 March. Payment
would not be made for any overtime hours or to casual workers. This option
would have the lowest costs of administration and would allow the greatest
flexibility. This option has been used by other London boroughs including
Richmond, and would be the best option to accommodate the anticipated
position of some schools wishing to follow the council’s LLW policy, if

G4

adopted, and some not. This option could be combined with (1) above for
implementation by 31 March 2017 in light of any national pay initiatives.
Timescale
8.

The suggested timescale is to implement at the end of the financial year
2016/17, depending on any pay settlement reached for that year.
Implementation of the LLW by means of a pay supplement at the end of the
financial year would allow greatest flexibility in the event of any delay in
agreeing a pay settlement.

Resource Implications
9.

The costs of bringing the basic pay of all RBK staff excluding casual workers
are set out in Annex 1. These costs would be approximately the same
whatever the method of implementation, but assume payment would not be
made for overtime or casual hours, and do not include Council contracts. The
costs of implementing for the HRRC (£58,568) are shown for reference
although they would not be incurred if implementation took place after the
expected transfer out of this service in October 2015. The costs of
implementing for schools are also shown (£42,627) although the decision to
implement would be for individual governing bodies. Costs to RBK would be
£49,535 based on current payscales at April 2015.

10.

This costing has been carried out at a detailed, individual level, and offsets a
wide range of additional payments in addition to basic pay. A number of other
factors have contributed to a lower estimate of cost than those previously
made. Firstly, some schools have left the Council’s payroll which will have
reduced the known costs, although the underlying costs remain. Further
restructuring in the 2015/16 local government pay settlement has narrowed
the gap to the London Living Wage in some cases by removing the lowest pay
points. Finally, the Council has introduced new and improved terms and
conditions for the HRRC workforce.

11.

There is currently no allowance for the additional cost of implementing the
LLW for directly employed staff, or future additional costs of new contracts, in
the financial planning forecasts of RBK. If the policy is approved the
additional cost will need to be factored in and it should be acknowledged that
the spending power of commissioning budgets will be reduced accordingly.

Equalities Impact Assessment
12.

Gender – Outside schools and excluding HRRC, 74% of those affected by
implementation of the LLW would be women (women are 65% of the wider
workforce outside schools and excluding HRRC). In HRRC 92% of those
affected by implementation of the LLW would be men (men are 86% of the
wider workforce in HRRC). In Schools 93% of those affected by
implementation of the LLW would be women (women are 89% of the wider
workforce in schools).

13.

Ethnic background - Outside schools and excluding HRRC, 23% of those
affected by implementation of the LLW would be from black or ethnic minority
(BME) backgrounds where backgrounds are known (BME staff are 20% of the
wider workforce outside schools and excluding HRRC). In HRRC insufficient
information is held about staff ethnic backgrounds to make any valid analysis.

G5

In Schools 16% of those affected by implementation of the LLW would be
from BME backgrounds where backgrounds are known (BME staff are 9% of
the wider workforce in schools).
14.

Disability - Outside schools and excluding HRRC, 3% of those affected by
implementation of the LLW would have declared a disability where information
is held (disabled staff are 5% of the wider workforce outside schools and
excluding HRRC). In HRRC insufficient information is held about staff
disabilities to make any valid analysis. In Schools 1% of those affected by
implementation of the LLW would have declared a disability where information
is held (disabled staff are 1% of the wider workforce in schools).

Background papers - None
Author of report – David Ward, HR Lead Consultant. david.ward@kingston.gov.uk/
020 8547 5258

Annex 1
Estimated Costs of Implementing London Living Wage

Non-schools

HEALTH & ADULT SERVICES
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT & STRATEGIC BUSINESS
PLACE

CULTURAL SERVICES & CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING

Adult Care
Business Support
Environment
Housing
Planning & Transport
Cultural Services

PLACE

Environment

SCHOOLS

Primary Schools
Secondary Schools
Special Schools

SUB-TOTAL
Waste
SUB-TOTAL
Schools

SUB-TOTAL

Estimated Annual Cost of Increasing Pay to LLW Level
Basic Cost
Oncosts
TOTAL
£2,121.04
£540.87
£2,661.91
£342.86
£87.43
£430.29
£16,665.89
£4,249.80
£20,915.69
£567.91
£144.82
£712.72
£1,036.61
£264.33
£1,300.94
£18,736.50
£4,777.81
£23,514.31
£39,470.81
£10,065.06
£49,535.86
£46,668.16
£11,900.38
£58,568.54
£46,668.16
£11,900.38
£58,568.54
£28,352.28
£9,781.54
£38,133.81
£2,618.14
£903.26
£3,521.39
£722.82
£249.37
£972.20
£31,693.24
£10,934.17
£42,627.40
£117,832.21
£32,899.60
£150,731.81

G6

GRAND TOTAL

Staff Affected
Headcount
FTE's
5
3.56
1
1.00
3
1.99
1
0.64
5
1.14
20
4.56
35
12.88
14
14.00
14
14.00
161
65.77
9
3.83
4
3.48
174
73.08
223
99.95

H1

Appendix H

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
Internal Audit Shared Service
Report by Director of Finance and the Head of Corporate Governance
Purpose
To seek approval to extend the current shared Internal Audit service with the
London Borough of Richmond, to include the London Borough of Merton
based on the proposal set out in the Business case at Annex A.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Policy
To RESOLVE that 1. The proposal to extend the shared Internal Audit Services with the
London Borough of Richmond (LBR) to include the London Borough of
Merton (LBM), from 1st October 2015 be agreed; and
2. Responsibility for finalising the detailed terms of the shared service be
delegated to the Director of Finance and Head of Corporate
Governance, in consultation with the Lead Member for Policy.

Key Points

A.

The Shared Internal Audit and Investigation Service with the RBK went
live on the 1st June 2012. Since then, the service has continued to
deliver 100% of the audit plan days. Improvements have been made to
standardise the audit processes and implement best practice across
the shared service and relationships with senior officers and members
have been strengthened

B

A number of key objectives and targets were established as part of the
development of the service. Although this delivered some financial
savings, one of the key drivers was to establish a more resilient service
with a larger pool of staff, skills and resources which was better able to
respond to the needs of the Councils. The decision to establish the
shared service between the two councils was taken with the view that
in the longer term, greater efficiencies would be obtained through
further expansion of the service to include other Authorities.

C.

Kingston, Richmond and Merton are members of the South London
Partnership, the group of South London Boroughs which have agreed
to work together where appropriate in delivering new service delivery
vehicles.

H2

D

An independent review was commissioned in 2013/14 which examined
the options for establishing a 4 Borough shared Internal Audit and
Investigations Service with Richmond, Kingston, Sutton and Merton.
Whilst this was not taken forward at the time, recommendations were
made regarding future partnership working.

E.

Work was subsequently undertaken in agreement with the South
London Partnership, to establish a 5 Borough shared investigations
service led by Wandsworth Council with the South West London Fraud
Partnership (SWLFP) going live on the 1st April 2015.

F

With staff numbers depleted and the resilience of the audit teams
reduced as a result of the transfer of staff to the SWLFP, this has
paved the way for further discussions with the LBM on joining the
already established shared audit service between LBR and RBK.

G

Both the shared service and Merton’s internal audit service are highly
regarded within their organisations and proposals are on the basis of
continuation of the same level of activity in each. The operating model
assumes that the two current Heads of Internal Audit will remain
responsible for each of the Authorities as is, with one of these officers
taking the lead as Head of the Shared Service and the other
deputising. The Head of the Shared Service will be responsible for the
management of a shared pool of audit staff and resources across the
partnership to deliver the respective Audit Plans.

H

Further consideration will need to be given to the future of the service
in the light of the Wandsworth and Richmond shared staffing proposals
which may impact on this service in the next 12 to 18 months. Any
further proposals to expand the shared service or to consider other
delivery options will be subject to consultation with stakeholders and
formal member approval

I

A project plan is in place to develop and implement the shared service
expansion by the 1st October 2015.

J.

A report seeking endorsement to this decision went to the Audit and
Governance Committee on the 24th June 2015.

K

The Business Case is attached at Annex 1. Key points which the
Policy and Finance Committee should note are:
•

The key drivers and business benefits from the expansion of the
shared service under the proposed operating model are:
Ø To increase resilience and enable future savings and economies
of scale to be realised
Ø To deliver the service through a mix of in-house and contractor
resource allowing greater flexibility to buy in specialise audit
services and in a period of significant organisational change,
allow the service to expand or contract as and when required

H3

Ø The in-house staff can add value through being part of the
organisation and having a deeper understanding of the Council’s
and their risk appetites.
Ø To deliver efficiencies through exploiting opportunities for joinedup working, adopting a common methodology and service
standards, sharing knowledge, skills and expertise to provide a
supportive and stimulating working environment for those staff
working in the Shared Service with opportunities for career
development
Ø To be open to future opportunities to expand the Shared
Service, thus enabling greater efficiencies to be achieved
•

Development costs are expected to be minimal particularly as an
ICT solution already in place for the South London Legal
Partnership (SLLP) and SWLFP can be rolled out to the internal
audit shared service. No redundancies are anticipated as a result
of this project.

•

The shared service will continue to be governed by the Shared
Service Board which will be extended to include officers from
Richmond, Kingston and Merton, including the three Directors of
Finance (S151 officers). The Shared Service Board will report to
Executive Board, Kingston’s Strategic Leadership Team and
Merton’s Corporate Management Team.

L.

The proposed structure will be subject to full staff consultation starting
in July 2015.

M

A report went to LBM’s Cabinet on the 29th June and will be made the
LBR’s Cabinet on 2 July 2015.

Options
1.

Alternative delivery vehicles were considered in the initial Outline
Business Case undertaken as part of the current shared service
development in 2011/12. This included a reduced in-house service, and
full or partial outsourcing. The initial options appraisal identified that a
shared service with a mix of in-house and contract resources would be
the optimal solution. This initial business case was subject to an officer
challenge / review session to validate the findings, including from the
Strategic Leadership Team.

2.

A further independent review was undertaken in 2013/2014
recommending a shared service delivery model. Although this was not
taken forward at the time and the review related to the establishment of
a four borough shared service, the principles remain relevant.

H4

Consultations
3.

Consultation with stakeholders is in progress and an event for staff to
mark the beginning of the formal consultation period is due to be held
on the 7th July 2015. Regular progress reports are made to the Audit
and Governance Committee on the expansion of the shared service
and any associated risks. The Committee have been keen to stress
that it would not wish to see any diminution in capacity for RBK or
impact on the quality of the service provided. The proposals set out in
the Business Case are on the basis of a continuation in the same level
of activity in all three of the Authorities

Timescale
4.

A detailed project plan has been established for the expansion of the
current shared service arrangements to be implemented by the 1st
October 2015. This project plan is monitored by the Project Board
which includes the Heads of Internal Audit for the current shared
service and LBM, and will be overseen by the Shared Service Board.

Resource Implications
5.

A financial evaluation of the business case for expanding the Shared
Internal Audit Service has been undertaken. The key driver is to
establish a more resilient, flexible and effective internal audit service.
Any savings will be made through improved audit processes and the
development of in-house expertise in areas such as contract and IT
audit, currently procured externally. More significant savings are
anticipated where other Authorities join the shared service through the
sharing of management costs and the generation of greater economies
of scale. Project management and implementation related costs will be
shared between Kingston and Richmond and Merton and appropriate
approval for these will be sought via the Shared Service Board.
6. The current shared internal audit service comprises 9 FTE posts and
procures a number of audit days from Mazars via the Croydon
Framework contract equivalent to c2FTE. The total staff and contract
budget for 2015/16 is £568k and this delivers 1600 audit days split
equally between LBR and RBK.
7. The LBM internal audit service comprises 6 FTE posts and a budget to
procure audit days from Mazars equivalent to c0.3FTE. These posts
will be subject to TUPE transfer to LBR as part of the expansion of the
service. The total staff and contract budget for LBM is £346k and this
delivers 993 audit days
8. The total number of audit days to be delivered under the tri borough
shared audit service is 2,593 within a combined salary/contractor
budget of £914k. Costs for the shared service will be charged based on
the split of audit days delivered as above.

H5

Legal Implications
9.

The proposal is that staff will be employed by LBR as the host authority
but the service will continue to be governed by the Shared Service
Board. Staff currently employed by LBM will transfer to LBR under
TUPE regulations. TUPE is a complex area of law and advice will be
sought where necessary to ensure that legislation is complied with.

10.

The shared service arrangement between LBR and RBK is currently
overseen by a Collaboration Agreement. This will be reviewed by Legal
Services and extended to include LBM. The Agreement once amended
will be agreed by the Shared Service Board.

11.

There is a statutory requirement for internal audit to comply with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

12.

Councils have the power to arrange for the discharge of their functions
by another authority by virtue of the Local Government Act 1972.

Risk Assessment
13.

Risks are set out in the detailed Business Case at Annex 1.

Equalities Impact Assessment
14.

An Equalities Impact and Needs Analysis has been undertaken as part
of the Business Case at Annex 1 together with a Screening for
Relevance exercise. These assessments conclude that there is no
evidence to suggest that changing to a shared and jointly managed
service will have any impacts on external organisations or individuals.

Environmental Implications
15.

At this stage there are no environmental implications but, in due
course, opportunities to reduce the carbon footprint for all three
Councils, for example through accommodation and working
arrangements, will be explored.

Background papers - held by the Authors of the Report Alix Wilson 0208
8547 5125 and Andrew Bessant – 020 8547 4628
None

H6
ANNEX 1
FULL BUSINESS CASE – EXTENSION OF THE SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE
MAY 2015
Executive Summary
(i) Summary
The Council intends to extend the current shared internal audit service between Richmond and
Kingston to include LB Merton.
(ii) Overview of the Services to be commissioned
The extension to the current shared service arrangement will cover the internal audit function only
following the establishment of the South West London Fraud Partnership (SWLFP) led by Wandsworth
Council. The shared internal audit service will deliver the following to the 3 Councils:
•
•

Internal audit – delivery of the agreed annual audit plans in each authority
Internal audit – management support & advice as required to senior managers

The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and
effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with
the proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the Chief Financial Officer / S151 officer’s
responsibility to ensure that an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained, and that
an appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely.
It is essential given the level of organizational change that the internal audit service is fit for purpose
and proportionate to any new organizational structures. In periods of significant change there are risks
in reducing the level of audit resource and there may be a need for increased audit in some key areas.
However, with Council’s reducing in size and increasing commissioning, the level of internal audit
required may well reduce over time. In light of this, the shared service must, above all else, be a
flexible resource to expand and contract depending on organizational requirements.
Once extended, the shared internal audit service will consider the potential for further expansion. At
present, this includes plans to extend the service to include Wandsworth Council in 2016/17.
Consideration will have to be given to the future of the RBK internal audit service in the light of the
Richmond and Wandsworth shared staffing proposals.
(iii) Strategic Fit
Kingston , Richmond and Merton are members of the South London Partnership, the group of South
London Boroughs which have agreed to work together where appropriate in delivering new service
delivery vehicles.
Moreover, the shared service will offer the opportunity to combine the closeness and understanding of
the business offered by a mixed service (mix of in-house and contractor resource), with the opportunity
for resilience, efficiency and development enabled through a larger core of in-house staff.
(Iv) Considerations

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 1 of 20

H7
Consultation and engagement
Expansion proposals have been discussed and agreed by the Directors of Finance at each of the
authorities and formal endorsement sought from Audit Committees at LBR and RBK and General
Purposes Committee at LBM. The Heads of Internal Audit and Head of the South London Legal
Partnership (SLLP) who line manages the internal audit function at LBM, have had a number of
meetings to discuss and progress proposals. Meetings have also been held with staff.
Staff will be involved in the project, some by being involved in project work streams looking at future
arrangements for ICT, accommodation etc. A Staff workshop event is planned and there will be regular
update briefings to keep staff up to date with progress.
Formal staff consultation procedures will be followed as part of the development of the service and
TUPE transfer proposals.
Finance and efficiency
A financial evaluation of the business case for expanding the current shared Internal Audit service has
been carried out This is based on the shared service commencing on 1st October 2015.
The key driver for the shared service is resilience and the realization of future savings and economies
of scale as other parties join the shared service. Whilst there will be no immediate significant savings
anticipated as a result of this expansion of the current shared service arrangement ,work will be
undertaken to streamline processes and undertaking audits across three Authorities which should
produce efficiencies and make savings in terms of the number of audit days.
Development costs are expected to be minimal particular as an ICT solution already in place for the
South London Legal Partnership (SLLP) and SWLFP which can be rolled out to the internal audit
shared service. No redundancies are anticipated as a result of this project.
In the longer term, the shared service will seek to improve productivity and methods of working to
achieve further efficiency savings. Also, the service will remain flexible so that it can expand or contract
to meet organisational and/or statutory needs.
Policy implications
The commissioning role rests with the Directors of Finance who have the statutory S151 responsibility
to meet the requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015.
The role of the Audit Committees (LBR and RBK) and General Purposes Committee (LBM) will remain
in line with their current Terms of Reference
Risks
Risks are detailed at 2.4.1.
One of the key risks, particularly in the interim period, is that the Heads of Internal Audit will have a
reduced capacity to undertake work for the shared service and LBM respectively in the period up to
October 2015.
The key target for both the current shared service and LBM’s internal audit service to deliver 100% of
the 2015/16 Audit Plan remains in place. Following transfer of the investigations service to the
SWLFP, the risk of a major fraud impacting on the delivery of these Plans has now been largely
negated, however input from the respective Heads of Internal Audit may still be required .
Equality impact/considerations
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 2 of 20

H8
An Internal Audit and Investigations Services Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) has been
completed and is attached at Appendix 2. A Screening for Relevance has also been completed and
this is included in the EINA (Annex 1 and 2). These assessments conclude that there is no evidence to
suggest that changing to a shared and jointly managed service will bring about any negative or positive
effects on any external groups with protected characteristics.
The proposals may have an impact on staff and a further EINA will be done as part of the formal staff
consultation process.
Part 1: Business Plan from Service / Description of Proposed Delivery Vehicle
1.1 Description of the Business Need
Internal audit is a statutory service and has to be provided in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 which require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the
proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the Chief Financial Officer / S151 officer’s
responsibility to ensure that an effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained, and that
an appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely.
CIPFA’s Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) set out how an internal audit function should
be established and managed to meet the statutory requirements.
Internal audit delivers an annual audit plan, undertaking audit work across all the Councils’ services.
The plan is a mix of risk based, compliance and systems based audit and includes ICT audits, key
contracts and schools and other establishments.
Internal Audit has to
• develop so that it can continue to meet the needs of the changing organisations that it serves,
• improve its efficiency and effectiveness in delivering the service.
• continue to provide independent assurance over risks and management controls which
increases the likelihood of the Councils achieving their key objectives.
1.2 Current Service Delivery Arrangements
Richmond/Kingston
The current shared internal audit service comprises 9 FTE posts. In addition, it supplements the inhouse audit team with contract auditors from Mazars(acquired via the Croydon Framework contract) to
the equivalent of c2 FTE.
The internal audit team has a number of vacancies and these are also covered by our contract partner
auditors (Mazars) and via Agency staff. The total staff / contract budget for 2015/16 is £568k(in house
staff £441k and contract £127k).

The current Richmond/Kingston service delivers 1600 audit days, split equally between LBR and RBK.
Merton
The current service comprises of 6 FTE, in addition Mazars provide an additional 0.30 c FTE via the
Croydon framework. Total staff /contractor costs for LBM for 2015/16 are £346k (£306k staff and £40k
contract)
The current Merton service delivers 993 audit days.

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 3 of 20

H9
The three borough shared service will initially not involve a significant restructure of the teams but
simply an amalgamation of the current staffing structures at Merton into the Richmond/Kingston
structure. This means that there will be no changes to staffing costs but the opportunity will be taken to
review the staff mix and capacity in the longer term.
From the 1st April 2015, the fraud investigation work is now delivered by the South West London Fraud
Partnership (SWLFP). For Merton, Sutton, Richmond and Kingston. The Heads of Internal Audit across
each of the five boroughs will oversee the management and delivery of this function through
attendance at bi-monthly Steering Group meetings and through receipt and monitoring of monthly
performance reports.

1.3.1 The proposed service delivery vehicle
In summary, the following services will be delivered to the 3 Councils:
•
•

Internal audit – delivery of the agreed annual audit plans in each authority
Internal audit – management support & advice as required to senior managers

The full range of services proposed will include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Compliance – ensure stated and approved polices are being complied with
Operational – ensure systems of internal control are effective, risk are well managed and
operations achieve objectives
Regularity – support of external audit to ensure key financial controls work
Analytical – support managers? with specialist analytical skills
Computer – ensure IT controls are working effectively
Contract – monitor all aspects of the delivery of major contracts
Value for Money – measuring effectiveness and efficiency against the economies of any
particular activity
Advice and Guidance
Oversee delivery of fraud investigation service by SWLFP including completion of the agreed
Fraud plans
Attendance and reporting to Audit Committees (RBK and LBR) and General Purposes
Committee (LBM)
Co-coordinating and preparing the AGS (merton)

At a time when both organisations are undergoing significant organisational and service changes, the
level of risk exposure is increased and therefore it is critical that an adequate level of internal audit
work is maintained to ensure new working systems and processes are implemented well across the
organisations. Once the changes have become embedded, then the level of internal audit required may
well reduce. In light of this, the shared service must, above all else, be a flexible resource to adapt and
be fit for purpose in the new organisational structures.
Both the current shared service and LBM have in-house teams, and rely on an external contract
partner, Mazars, to help deliver the audit service. This will continue although there are other options
available through the employment of agency staff or procurement of audit days from other external
providers. These will be considered more fully. The Internal Audit shared service provides an
opportunity to make best use of existing resources and expertise to develop a more flexible and
resilient service, which is fit for purpose. This will include developing specialisms within the in-house
team to reduce reliance on external contractor resource which is more expensive. This should deliver
savings in the longer term.
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 4 of 20

H10
1.3.2 Main aims and strategic vision
The overall aim of the Shared Internal Audit Service is to combine the closeness and understanding of the
business offered by a mixed service (mix of in-house and contractor resource), with the opportunity for resilience,
efficiency and development enabled through a larger core of in-house staff. The aims of the shared service are to:
•
•
•

•
•
•

Expand the current shared service and develop a more commercial approach to the delivery of
services.
Deliver a programme of assurance on all key governance, risk and control systems to each
Council, operating in accordance with legislative requirements and recognised best practice
methodology;
To deliver the service through a mix of in-house staff and contract days procured through the
Croydon framework contract (or similar). This allows greater flexibility to buy in specialist audit
services and in a period of significant organisational change in both authorities, to expand or
contract as and when required;
Deliver high standards of customer service and be responsive and flexible in its approach,
offering the benefits of a mixed service which understands its clients.
Offer a wider base of experience, resilience, specialisms and skills, taking advantage of the
economies of scale available to larger audit teams
Deliver efficiencies through exploiting opportunities for joined up working, adopting a common
methodology and service standards

The existing shared service is a high performing service which contributes to the overall sound
governance and control environment in LBR and RBK. This includes consistent delivery of 100% of
audit plan days.

1.3.3 Proposed organisational structure
See structure chart attached at Appendix 1
There will be one combined team, providing a flexible pool of staff resource working
across each authority.
The structure includes a mix of in-house and contractor staff. Whilst the structure
includes a core of in-house staff, it also allows for internal audit resource to be procured
from an external contractor. The initial options appraisal reviewed a number of options
for service delivery however the mix of in-house and contractor resource was
recommended as the preferred option as this allowed greater flexibility and resilience,
essential particularly in a time of significant organizational change.
In the existing structures, the current shared service has 9FTE posts including the Head
of Internal Audit. Merton have 6 FTE, including the Head of audit post
This makes a total of 15 FTE; including the contractor costs at Richmond and Merton
(which equate to c2.3 FTE), there is an existing combined budget of £915k

1.3.4 Location and hosting arrangements
The main working base for staff will be in the Civic Centre in Twickenham but there will need to be
working space available at Kingston and Merton as well.
For internal audit work, there needs to be a presence at Kingston and Merton and auditors need to be
located on site for meetings with clients and given access to all relevant information and documents.
Some of this may be available remotely via ICT connections.
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 5 of 20

H11

All three authorities are committed to hot-desking and home-working and staff will need to work flexibly
at either location as required to attend meetings and respond to client needs.
An ICT workstream has been established to develop an ICT solution which allows staff to have access
to the necessary ICT systems across all three authorities. This will utilize systems and expertise
already established through other shared service arrangements.
1.3.5 Support Services Arrangements
It is proposed that as the shared service will be hosted by LBR, so in the main support
services will be provided by LBR, although as indicated above, there will need to be a
continued presence at RBK and LBM and whilst working there, staff will need to utilise
RBK and LBM support services as required.
1.4 Service Delivery Vehicle
Alternative delivery vehicles were considered in the initial Outline Business Case
undertaken as part of the current shared service development in 2011/12 this included a
reduced in-house service, and full or partial outsourcing. The initial options appraisal
identified that a shared service with a mix of in-house and contract resources would be
the optimal solution. This initial business case was subject to an officer challenge /
review session to validate the findings.
A further independent review was undertaken in 2013/2014 recommending a shared
service delivery model. Although this was not taken forward at the time and the review
related to the establishment of a four borough shared service, the principles remain
relevant.
Part 2: Council Perspective of the Business Plan
2.1.1 Savings and Value for Money
The key driver for this is the establishment of a more resilient service, better able to expand and
contract in accordance with need. It is anticipated that savings will be identified through improving
process, undertaking joint audits across authorities and potential future expansion of the service.
Costs are based on estimates for 2015/16 and since the expansion will not result in a substantial
restructure of the service, it is not anticipated that costs will change significantly if at all. There could be
an impact on productivity in year 1 to allow a period of settling into new working practices, and
additional staff development but productivity and efficiency would be expected to improve from year 2.
There may be some time lost due to staff travelling between sites however this will be managed and
kept to a minimum.
No redundancies are anticipated. Whilst there may be some development costs for ICT, these are
expected to be minimal.
The shared service will charge each authority on the basis of an agreed number of audit days. Regular
reports will be made to the Shared Service Board (SSB) governing this arrangement, so that the SSB
can monitor costs and performance levels. Any under or over spends at the year end will be shared
equally between the two authorities in line with the collaboration agreement.
2.1.2 Service Quality
It is absolutely essential that the quality of internal audit service is not adversely affected as a result of
the shared service arrangement. Poor quality of audit work can lead to the provision of audit assurance
to senior managers which is incorrect and could ultimately result in key control weaknesses having a
detrimental effect on the achievement of objectives and / or resulting in an inefficient use of resources;
at worst, it could result in a fraud being committed.
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 6 of 20

H12
The Internal Audit service works to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and is subject to
annual review to monitor compliance with the expected service standards. There are also working
protocols for internal audit work and with the external auditors. .
A number of factors will work to ensure the quality of services is maintained:
-

structure – skills matched to audit work required
audit protocols and service plans will include performance indicators for audit work
post audit quality questionnaires to ascertain client feedback
monitoring of the delivery of the Fraud plan by the SWLFP including achievement of
key performance indicators.

2.1.3 Service Continuity
As mentioned previously, access to a larger pool of staff will provide greater resilience and better use
of audit skills. The sharing of knowledge across three boroughs will provide staff with improved
experience and improved professional development opportunities.
Although the key driver is the provision of a more resilient and effective audit service, it needs to be
recognized that the Head of the Shared Service and Head of Internal Audit (LBM) may have less
capacity to be involved in corporate / management events/projects than in the past.
2.2.1 Consultation / Customer Engagement
The Heads of Internal Audit will be attending Directorate Management Teams (DMTs) at all the
authorities to discuss the proposed Shared Service arrangement, enabling senior managers in the 3
authorities to have an opportunity to comment on the proposals and to indicate what they see as
important issues for the service to provide / address.
LBR and RBK Audit Committees and General Purposes committee at Merton have been kept up to
date with developments and have expressed views that they would not wish to see the level of service
reduced. All are mindful that the expanded shared service arrangements should not have a detrimental
impact on the service currently provided.
Staff will be involved in the project, some by being involved in project work streams looking at future
arrangements for ICT, accommodation etc. A Staff “away” day is due to be held in July 2015, and
weekly update briefings will be provided to keep staff up to date with progress.
Formal staff consultation procedures will be followed for the proposed new structure.
2.2.2 Equalities
An Internal Audit Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) has been completed and is attached at
Appendix 2. A Screening for Relevance has also been completed and this is included in the EINA
(Annex 2). These assessments conclude that there is no evidence to suggest that changing to a
shared and jointly managed service will bring about any negative or positive effects on any external
groups with protected characteristics.
The proposals may have an impact on staff and a further EINA will be done as part of the formal staff
consultation process.

2.3.1 Statutory duties
Internal audit is a statutory service and has to be provided in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 which require that “A relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the
proper practices in relation to internal control”. It is the S151 officer’s responsibility to ensure that an
appropriate level of internal audit work is undertaken to fulfil this statutory requirement. There is no
clearly defined minimum statutory level set; this is a professional judgement made by the S151 Officer
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 7 of 20

H13
and the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that there is sufficient audit coverage on which to base
assurance on the Council’s overall control environment and on which External Audit can rely.
Internal audit delivers an annual audit plan, undertaking audit work across all the Councils’ services.
The plan is a mix of risk based, compliance and systems based audit and includes ICT audits, key
contracts and schools and other establishments.
Under the shared service arrangement, an annual audit plan will be agreed with each authority, via the
respective Director of Finance (s151 officer) and Audit Committees/General Purposes Committee.
These plans will be subject to discussion with the Directorate Management Teams as now.
Fraud investigations work is not in itself a statutory function but is an essential service to “protect the
public purse” from misuse, loss or theft. It forms part of the council’s anti-fraud strategies. From the 1st
April 2015, this work is undertaken by the SWLFP and will be overseen by the Steering Group which
consists of Heads of Internal Audit from each of the 5 boroughs.

2.3.2 Peer Review
The current shared service arrangement has been in place since 1st June 2012. As part of the
establishment of this service, independent reviews of the audit and investigation services were
undertaken. Other shared service arrangements will also researched and a number of learning points
were taken into account in developing the shared service. The authorities reviewed were:
Hertfordshire, South Devon, South West Audit Partnership, Preston/Lancaster/Fylde Borough Council
and Cambridgeshire CC & Northamptonshire CC shared investigations service. This time around,
discussions have been held with the Tri-Borough service (Kensington & Chelsea, Westminster and
Hammersmith and Fulham).
Lessons learnt can be summarized as follows:
• The importance of sound communication with staff and other key stakeholders
• Need to ensure ICT is fit for purpose
• Whilst savings are not always huge, there are benefits from increased resilience created in the
service and improved focus on performance
A Peer review of compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was undertaken at Merton
in 2013/14 and is due to be undertaken for the current shared service in 2016/17.
2.4.1 Risk

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 8 of 20

H14

Description
New shared service not able to
meet statutory requirement and /
or business need due to
uncertainty in each authority and
the extent of changes to services
as yet undetermined

The sharing of HIA resource
across the 3 boroughs results in a
reduced and unacceptable lower
profile of HIA in one or more
boroughs
Loss of experienced staff during
period of setting up new
arrangements
Business as usual suffers as focus
diverted to creating new
arrangements
Budgets overspend in 2015 /16
during expansion of the shared
service
Cost efficiencies arising from new
shared service are not achieved

Flexible service not achieved due
to failure on part of contractor to
provide acceptable level and
quality of resource
Quality of audit work declines and
fails to be sufficiently adequate for
external audit to place reliance on,
resulting in increased external
audit fees
Client satisfaction at one or more
of the authorities decreases and
the credibility / reputation of the
shared service gives rise to
criticism form senior management
and / or members

Recommended Action
New structure must be flexible so as to be able to expand / contract
resources & capacity to fit requirements
Legal agreement with each authority must include provision for
mechanism to review / agree funding requirements and / or
charges
Legal structure of shared service must be such that allows it to take
on new work with other organisations in the future whilst complying
with procurement legislation
Governance arrangements to clearly specify role and
responsibilities of HIA in each authority
Structure and roles and responsibilities of staff to ensure adequate
support is provided to the HIAs
Staff engagement in change process to allay fears arising from
uncertainties
Ensure staff can use mentoring services if required
Robust project management of business as usual and shared
services (audit monitoring, timesheets)
Use additional temporary resource to support delivery of business
as usual
Robust budget monitoring in each authority
Funding for any set up costs (e.g. IT, systems costs) to be agreed
by each authority
Robust budget monitoring, and performance management to
ensure chargeable time is kept to minimum to maximise outputs
Shared Service Board to receive regular budget monitoring reports
to agree remedial action if overspends arise
Engagement of contractor during development of new shared
service arrangements
New arrangements to consider use of other flexible resource
providers (e.g. use of interims, agency staff, seasonal workers)
Robust performance management of contract staff
Engagement with External Audit to agree expectations, systems,
procedures and quality standards
Regular liaison with External audit to discuss service delivery under
new arrangements
Engagement with clients, senior management and members as
part of set up.
Governance arrangements must include creation of IA Charter and
plan for marketing of services
Robust client satisfaction questionnaire process required (improve
level of returns) & reporting

Occurrence of significant fraud in
either or both authorities impacts
on setting up and delivery of
shared service arrangement

Business continuity / contingency plan to be agreed . This should
be minimal given fraud work is now undertaken by the SWLFP

Support services are not available
or are inadequate to support the
shared service, or delay the
implementation of the new shared
service arrangement

Engagement with support services throughout implementation (HR
& Payroll, IT, Facilities Management). Involvement in individual
workstreams.

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 9 of 20

H15
2.4.2 Constraints / Assumptions
At LBR, the HIA reports to the Director of Finance and Corporate Services. At RBK, the reporting lines
are different with the IA and Investigations Capability Lead post sitting lower down the Authority,
reporting to the Head of Corporate Governance who reports then to the Executive Head of
Organisational Development and Strategic Business. There is a dotted reporting line to the Director of
Finance. At LBM, the HIA has a dotted reporting to the Director of Finance and a management
reporting line to the Head of the SLLP who reports to the Director of Finance.
Different reporting structures could have an impact on the effectiveness of internal audit across the
shared service however this will be monitored as part of governance arrangements through the Shared
Service Board.
It is intended that the Head of Internal Audit for Merton, whilst being line managed by the Head of the
Shared service under the new arrangements, will continue to have a dotted line of reporting to the
Director of Finance at Merton.
Although the expansion of the shared service is likely to deliver any savings in the short term, in the
longer term, the shared service will seek to improve productivity and methods of working to achieve
further efficiency savings. The service will remain flexible so that it can expand or contract to meet
organisational and/or statutory needs.
Options will be considered and developed to expand the service to include Wandsworth and potentially
other clients in 2016/17. This should deliver savings through shared management costs and
economies of scale. As this is considered to be the likely future direction, the model for service delivery
must be capable of being adapted to allow other authorities to join the shared service. RBK will need to
review the current shared service delivery option in light of the Richmond and Wandsworth shared
staffing proposals and obtain member approval should further expansion or other delivery options be
considered .

2.4.3 Interdependencies
The shared internal audit service is inexplicably linked to other change programmes within each
authority. Until the future shape and delivery of services across these authorities is defined, the volume
of internal audit activity is not quantifiable. Hence it is critical that the shared service has a flexible
structure and resource to be able to expand or contract depending on levels of audit required.

Part 3: The Council’s Commissioning Approach
3.1 Services to be commissioned
The details of the service to be commissioned by LBR, RBK and LBM and managed by the shared
service are as set out in Section 1.3.1
The overall requirement is to have a flexible structure and resource which can expand or contract to
meet statutory and client needs. The main deliverable is completion of the annual audit plan at each
authority.
3.2 Process for acquiring the service
As this is to be an internal service hosted by the Council, no procurement process will be required to
commission the service. Any decisions relating to the arrangements between the three Councils will be
delegated to the Shared Service Board (see 3.9). The LBR senior officer representatives on this Board
(including the Section 151 Officer) will therefore take responsibility for commissioning the service.
3.3 Contract / Agreement
The shared service arrangement between the three authorities will be overseen by a Collaboration
Agreement which will be drafted by Legal Services. This will be based on the Collaboration already in
place to govern current arrangements. The Agreement once drafted will be signed off by the Shared
Service Board.
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 10 of 20

H16
3.4 Length of Agreement
The shared service Agreement will commence from 1st October 2015. The proposed period for the
agreement is 3 years, with provision included within the Agreement for at least 6 months notice from
either party should they wish to terminate the agreement. The agreement will include details of how
any dissolution costs will be dealt with and how overspends and savings will be shared.
3.5 Charging Mechanism
The charging mechanism will be agreed by the SSB. It is proposed that the current method of charging
remains based on the number of deliverable audit days and that invoices will be raised on a 6 monthly
basis.
3.6 Performance Indicators
These will be developed and agreed with the SSB but will follow common benchmarking performance
indicators for internal audit. Performance will also be monitored via customer satisfaction returns and
feedback from senior managers / audit clients on a regular basis as is currently the case.
3.7 Arrangements for use of Council support services (if applicable)
As the shared service is relatively small, the impact on other support services will be minimal. As LBR
will be the host authority, the support services will continue to be provided by LBR. However, for staff
working across RBK and LBM, appropriate support services will also continue to be provided by those
authorities.
3.8 Arrangements for use of Council accommodation (if applicable)
The exact accommodation requirements are still to be identified but it is expected that the existing
accommodation at LBR and RBK for the Shared Service will continue to be used, with a satellite office
available at LBM.
3.9 Governance Arrangements

A SSB with senior representative officers from LBR, RBK and LBM, including the three Directors of
Finance (S151 officers) will oversee the delivery of the Shared Service, and the arrangements between
the three authorities.
Regular reports will continue to be made to the Audit Committees/General Purposes Committee.
Decisions regarding the volume / level of audit and investigation work will rest with the SSB so that the
Directors of Finance can fulfill their Local Government Act S151 responsibilities. This will also be
subject to relevant member approval at each authority.
The Head of the Shared Service will be line managed by the Director of Finance and Corporate
Resources at LBR and will report direct to the SSB.
3.10 Client Management Arrangements
As the service will be internally managed within LBR there will not be the requirement for any specific
client management function for the service. The Directorate Management Teams across the three
authorities will effectively act as the service’s clients – therefore the Heads of Internal Audit will visit
Directorate Management Teams in both authorities on a quarterly basis to discuss internal audit work
and whether client needs are being met. At all times, the Heads of Internal Audit remain accountable to
the Directors of Finance (S151 officers) and the respective Audit Committees/GP Committee.
3.11 Summary of Implementation Plan
June 2015
• Establish project workstreams and develop timetable for managing processes
July 2015
• Issue of Formal Consultation Document to staff and Trade Unions and have launch event
• Formal consultation with Trade Unions under TUPE regulations begins
August 2015
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 11 of 20

H17
•
•

Review consultation responses
Final proposals on structure / process agreed for implementation

September 2015
• Legal agreement drafted and signed off
• Staff event prior to go live
• Accommodation and ICT arrangement agreed and put in place
October 2015
•
•

Go live and TUPE of staff
Debrief and identification of lessons learnt.

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Page 12 of 20

APPENDIX 1
Richmond

Merton

Kingston

Director of Finance
and Corporate
Services

Director of Finance

Director of Finance

Head of
Corporate
Governance

Head of Shared Service and
Head of Internal Audit (LBR
and RBK) RMG2

H18

Audit Manager
(Deputy HIA)
SCP49-55

External
Contractor

Head of Internal Audit
(LBM) and Deputy Head of
Shared Service (MG1)

Pool of Auditors

Principal Auditor
x2
SCP41-47

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit

Senior
Auditor x8
SCP 33-41

Page 13 of 20

Auditor x2
SC18-34

H19

APPENDIX 2
Equality Impact and Needs Analysis (EINA) for the Shared
Internal Audit Service
Directorate:

Finance & Corporate Services

Service Area:

Internal Audit Services

Name of service/ function/ policy/
being assessed:

Shared Internal Audit Service (expansion of current
arrangements)

Officers leading on assessment:

Alix Wilson – Head of Internal Audit Service

Other staff involved:

Jill Pain – Principal Auditor

BACKGROUND
1. Briefly describe the service/ function/ policy:
The current shared Internal Audit Service provided to the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames
(LBRuT) and the Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) is delivered by a mix of in-house staff and through an
external contract with Mazars (via the Croydon Framework contract).
The in-house team consists of eight members of staff. Mazars work as part of the team, providing
auditors as and when required. The shared service is hosted by LBRuT and sits within the Finance and
Corporate Services (FCS) Directorate, with the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) line managed by LBRuT’s
Director of FCS. The HIA has a direct reporting line to the Head of Corporate Governance at RBK and a
dotted reporting line to the RBK Director of Finance. The shared service reports to the Shared Service
Board, which includes both Directors of Finance.
Internal Audit’s role is to protect the public purse – to ensure Council Tax payers’ funds are used for
proper purposes, in accordance with agreed plans and priorities, and to ensure value for money is
obtained. This also includes the management of risks associated with all the Council’s activities.
An effective system of Internal Audit is a statutory function within Local Government, as required by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
Internal Audit work is governed by CIPFA’s Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. This sets out the
framework for internal audit and identifies the key objectives, status and processes for internal audit.
The investigation service which previously formed part of the current shared service arrangements, is
now delivered through a five borough shared service arrangement by the South West London Fraud
Partnership. The annual Fraud Plan continues to be established by the HIA and agreed by members. The
delivery of this plan is overseen and monitored by the HIA through membership on the Steering Group.

2. Why is the equality impact and needs analysis being undertaken?
The Internal Audit shared service currently serves both LBRuT and RBK Councils. An EINA is being
undertaken because it is proposed that the current shared service arrangements are extended to include
the London Borough of Merton (LBM). The service will be governed by the Shared Service Board, which
will include the Directors of Finance from all three Councils. The EINA is being prepared to help ensure
that there is transparency, fairness and accountability in the decision making process and to seek to
ensure that the needs and rights of different members of the community are considered.

14

H20

It has been agreed that the LBRuT will continue to be the host authority for the shared service.

3. Summary of the key findings
There is no evidence to suggest that expanding the shared service arrangement will bring about any
negative or positive effects on any external groups with protected characteristics.
There may be an impact on the staff currently employed by the shared service and LB Merton Audit
Team. The impact of any changes as a result of the expansion to the shared service will be considered in
a separate staff EINA which will be finalised following completion of the staff consultation on the shared
service.

4. Has this service/ function/ policy undertaken a screening for relevance?
An initial Screening for Relevance exercise was performed for the current shared service, a copy of this is
attached as Annex 1.
The following protected characteristic was identified as medium relevance:
Disability
The following aims were identified as high priorities for the service to address:
• Eliminate discrimination, harassment or victimisation
• Foster good relations
A further document for the extended shared service has also been completed and this is attached as
Annex 2.

5. What sources of information have been used in the preparation of this equality impact
and needs analysis? For example, this could include equalities monitoring information,
performance data, consultation feedback or needs assessment. Please provide the
details in the table below:
Information source

Description and outline of the information source

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/23
4/contents/made

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015:
Legislation for requirement for an effective system of
internal audit to be a statutory function within Local
Government.

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/sy
stem/uploads/attachment_data/file/207064
/public_sector_internal_audit_standards_d
ecember2012.pdf

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards:
CIPFA document that sets out framework for internal audit
and identifies the key objectives, status and processes for
internal audit.

Workforce Survey 2014

Annual document produced by LBRuT’s HR Service to
assess the Council’s workforce – not published (as of June
2015).

ANALYSING IMPACT, NEEDS AND EFFECTS
It is important that the analysis addresses each part of the duty assessed as relevant to the
area being examined.
15

H21

6. Key questions to consider:
• What does customer feedback, complaints or discussions with stakeholder groups tell you
about the impact of the service/ function/ policy on the protected characteristic groups,
where assessed as relevant to area being examined?
• Important to understand levels of disadvantage experienced by groups, different needs
people have.
• Are there any barriers to accessing services for any groups?
• How well are diverse needs understood and met?
• Do differences in service take up, user feedback or satisfaction levels indicate that it is not
accessible to certain protected groups, or does not meet their needs?
• Are there population changes that might indicate new needs?
• Have the needs of disabled people been identified and addressed where these are different
from the needs of non-disabled people?
• Is there evidence of differential impact or different outcomes which need to be addressed?
• Are there opportunities to promote equality or improve participation by diverse groups?
• Identify any need to tackle prejudice or promote understanding between different groups?

Protected Group

Findings

There is no data to analyse in respect to the ‘protected characteristics’.
The Internal Audit function’s customers are internal. No complaints have been received from internal
customers about the service provided by the shared Internal Audit function to date.
The service would seek to address the high priority areas detailed above (to eliminate discrimination,
harassment or victimisation and foster good relations) by engagement with senior managers via DMT
meetings providing updates on the shared service proposals.
For the purposes of this EINA, the investigations work delivered by the SWLFP is not covered as this
moved to sit outside of the function on 1st April 2015.
Equality objectives were included within the Service Plan for 2015/16.
There may be an impact on staff working in the shared service and within the LBM Audit Team. An EINA
will be prepared following completion of the staff consultation on the proposed shared service.
Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014):

Age

Age
0-20
21-30
31-40
41-50
51-60
61+

%
2%
16%
20%
27%
24%
10%

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.
Disability

As of October 2014, 6% of LBRuT staff stated that they considered themselves
to be disabled.
As of October 2014, 58% of staff employed by LBRuT were female.

Gender (Sex)

Gender reassignment

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.
No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.

16

H22
Marriage and civil
partnership1

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.

Pregnancy and
maternity

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.
Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014):
Ethnicity
White
Black/Black British
Asian/Asian British
Mixed
Other

Race/ethnicity

%
82%
8%
7%
2%
1%

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.
Breakdown of all staff employed by LBRuT (Oct 2014):
Religion/Belief
Christian
Muslim
Hindu
Sikh
Buddhist
Jewish
Other religion
No religion
Prefer not to say

Religion and belief
including non-belief

%
45%
3%
1%
2%
1%
<1%
5%
19%
24%

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.

Sexual orientation

No potential issues have been identified for this protected characteristic.

7. Have you identified any data gaps in relation to the relevant protected characteristics
and relevant parts of the duty?
If so, how will these data gaps be addressed?
What further information is needed to enable a robust equality analysis of the area?
Gaps in data

Action to deal with this

No gaps have been identified.

8.Consultation in the EINA process
Senior managers have been consulted via DMT meetings.
Audit Committee members have received regular reports regarding the shared service proposal.
Feedback indicated that managers and Audit Committee members were happy with the existing levels of
service and would not wish to see any diminution in service under the shared service.
This EINA will be reviewed by the FCS Equality & Diversity Steering Group and feedback considered.

ACTION PLANNING
1

Only in relation to the first part of the duty: eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation.

17

H23

9. What issues have you identified that require equality actions? What are these equality
actions, who will be responsible for them and when will they be completed?
Issue identified

Planned action

Lead officer

Date

No issues have been identified.

MONITORING AND REVIEW
10. How will the actions in the action plan be monitored and reviewed?
No issue were identified when producing this EINA so an action plan has not been developed.
Ongoing monitoring for equality impact will be performed by reviewing any complaints received about the
service.

11. Publishing the full completed analysis
Please provide details below:
Approved by
Date of approval
Date of publication

DECISION-MAKING PROCESS
12. Has a copy of this EINA or summary of key findings been provided to key decisionmakers, where relevant, to help inform decision making, for example as an appendix to a
Cabinet or Committee report or report for DMT or Exec Board?
• If so please provide the details including the name of the report, the audience i.e.
Cabinet/ Committee, the date it went, and the report author.
• Please also outline the outcome from the report and details of any follow up action
or monitoring of actions or decision taken:
Cabinet report – LBRuT (July 2015)
Report to Policy & Finance Committee – RBL (July)
Cabinet report – LBM (to be confirmed)
A copy of this EINA will be attached as an Appendix to the reports for these meetings.

18

Annex 1
Public Sector Equality Duty 2011: Screening for Relevance
Name of Directorate
Contact
Service/ Function

Finance & Corporate Services
Jill Pain – Principal Auditor

Telephone

020 8891 7278

Email

jill.pain@richmond.gov.uk

Are the areas listed below relevant to your service/ function?
Please answer H, M or L for ‘High’ Medium or Low’
Sex

Race

Disab’

Re&B

SO

GeR

P&M

M&CP

L

L

L

M

L

L

~

L

L

H

Advancing equality
of opportunity
between different
groups

Fostering
good relations

L

H

Legend
Age

Age

Sex

Sex

Race

Race

Disab’

Disability

Re & B

Religion and Belief

SO

Sexual orientation

GeR

Gender re-assignment

P&M

Pregnancy and maternity

M&CP

Marriage and civil
partnership

Rationale for no relevance to one or more protected characteristics or one or more parts of the duty:
Gender reassignment is not measured or reported on within the Internal Audit function.
Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit & Investigations

Page 19 of 20

H24

Internal Audit and
Investigations

Age

Eliminating
discrimination,
harassment or
victimisation

Disability has been rated medium relevance, as measures may need to be considered to facilitate disabled members of staff involved in an audit.

H25

Full Business Case –Shared Service - Internal Audit & Investigations

Page 20 of 20

Policy and Finance Committee

I1

Appendix I

2 July 2015
AntiSocial Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014  Public Spaces Protection Order
and Fixed Penalty Notice Arrangements
Report by the Director of Place and the Director of Finance
Purpose
To report the outcome of the Public Spaces Protection Order (dog fouling) consultation
and recommend the order is made, and to agree a consistent fixed penalty level, and
reduced penalty for early payment, for all Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) issued under
provisions of the AntiSocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 in those cases where
the offender is given the opportunity of avoiding liability to prosecution by paying a fixed
penalty under a FPN.
Recommendations of the Lead Member for Policy
To
RESOLVE 
that 

1. 
the Director of Place be authorised to make a Public Spaces Protection Order (dog
fouling) under in the form shown in Annex 1 (the Order) 
under Section 59
AntiSocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.
and the 
Corporate Solicitor be
instructed to 
execute the Order.
2. the amount of the fixed penalty payable under any Fixed Penalty Notice issued in
respect of breaches of the Order be set at £100, reduced to £60 if paid within 10
days of the Notice;

3. the Director of Place be authorised to take the steps to revoke the Royal Borough
of Kingston upon Thames Dogs (Fouling of Land) Designation Order 1997 and the
Corporate Solicitor be instructed to execute the Revocation Order,
4. Fixed Penalty Notices issued for breaches of any further Public Space Protection
Orders made and Community Protection Notices (CPNs) issued, under the
Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the 2014 Act), be set at the
level proposed in 2. above, reduced to £60 if paid within 10 days of the Notice, in
those cases where breaches are dealt with by way of FPNs, as opposed to by
prosecution.

Key Points
A.

At the full Council meeting on 15 January 2015 , it was resolved to consider
introducing appropriate a Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO) to help deal
with dog fouling in public places. Officers were instructed to report on the matter to
the Infrastructure, Projects and Contracts Committee on 25th March 2015, and
subsequently report back to the Policy and Finance Committee on the following:
outcome of the consultation on the proposed PSPO dealing with dog fouling, the
final text of a draft order; proposals for its enforcement including confirmation of the
amount of the fixed penalty and any reduced amount for early payment; proposals
for the authorisation or persons, including officers of the Council and contractors, to
issue Fixed Penalty Notices in relation to offences contrary to the requirements of

I2
the PSPO; and a proposal to revoke of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames Dogs (Fouling of Land) Designation Order 1997.
B.

PSPOs can be used to deal with a wide range of antisocial activities. This means
that over time it is likely that there will be some localities where there are several
PSPOs addressing different types of antisocial behaviour which will be in force
concurrently.

C.

There is one other power contained in the 2014 Act where FPNs can be issued for
breaches, instead of prosecuting the offender

the Community Protection Notice
(CPN). CPNs are intended to deal with unreasonable, ongoing problems or
nuisances which negatively affect the community’s quality of life by targeting the
person responsible. CPNs also replace some very specific Notices under earlier
statutory powers.

D.

Under the 2014 Act issuing a FPN is an alternative to prosecution for breaches of
both PSPOs and CPNs.

E.

This report recommends consistent arrangements for dealing with breaches of
PSPOs and CPNs, in those cases where the offender is given the opportunity of
avoiding liability to prosecution by paying a fixed penalty under a FPN.

Context
1.

There is a twopart test for making a PSPO. The Council must be satisfied on
reasonable grounds that the activities carried on, or likely to be carried on, in a
public place are detrimental to the local community’s quality of life, and that the
impact justifies the restrictions being put in place in a particular area. The
behaviour must also be persistent and unreasonable.

2.

Once made, Council officers, Police officers, and PCSOs would enforce the
PSPO as would other personnel that the Council may designate. As agreed by
the IPC Committee the Director of Place was delegated to authorise officers and
other personnel to issue FPNs in relation to contraventions of the requirements
of the PSPO.

3.

Following a standard procurement exercise NSL Services Group were procured
to act on the Council's behalf to issue FPNs for dog fouling and littering.

4.

A six month environmental enforcement pilot was launched on 8th June 2015
covering FPNs for littering using Section 87 of the Environmental Protection Act
1990. Assuming the Committee resolve to make a PSPO in respect of dog
fouling the Order will be enforced as part of the pilot.

5.

The text of a draft PSPO is set out in 
Annex 1 
and the Schedule to the Order
details the public places designated as ‘restricted areas’ for the purposes of
controlling dog fouling. The Order also contains exemptions from the
requirement to remove dog faeces. Before a PSPO can be made the Council
must give publicity to the proposed order and consult with certain bodies and
representatives. Public consultation is not required since the procedure is
deliberately intended to require a lighter touch consultation to save costs.

6.

Other localities may well be designated under PSPOs in due course. By way of
example, the transitional provisions in the 2014 Act allow existing Designated
Public Places Orders (DPPOs) to remain in force until 20 October 2017, unless
revoked before then. DPPOs have been used by the Council to place restrictions
on public drinking in areas that have experienced alcoholrelated disorder or
nuisance. Any DPPOs still in force on the above date effectively convert to
PSPOs and, under Section 75 of the 2014 Act, the provisions of the DPPO have
effect as if they were the provisions of a PSPO.

7.

I3
Breaches of DPPOs are enforced by the Police by prosecuting the offender and
this will remain an option for any DPPOs which they are converted to PSPOs.

8.

In view of the likelihood that there will be a number of PSPOs in the Borough, in
some cases covering the same localities, it would provide consistency for
residents and visitors, and for enforcement staff from all agencies, if a common
approach were adopted for all PSPOs. It is therefore suggested that where
breaches are dealt with by way of issuing FPNs, the fixed penalty and payment
arrangements for any future PSPOs should mirror those agreed for this PSPO.

9.

Whilst a FPN can be issued in respect of breaches of a CPN in an appropriate
case, as an alternative to prosecution, the offender may be prosecuted in which
case s/he is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding Level 4 of the
Standard Scale, currently £2500, in the case of an individual, or an unlimited fine
in the case of a body, under Section 48 of the 2014 Act.

10.

It is recommended that the same arrangements should be applied to any FPNs
issued for breaches of CPNs under the 2014 Act.

Revocation of Dogs (fouling of land) Designation Order 1997
11.

In 1997 the Council made the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Dogs
(Fouling of Land) Designation Order 1997 (‘the Designation Order’) requiring dog
owners in most parts of the Borough to remove faeces left by their dog on public
land. The Designation Order has not been enforced in recent years, and there is
now uncertainty over its scope. It is now intended to revoke the Designation
Order as the proposed PSPO will deal with dog fouling in a consistent manner
across the Borough.

Consultation
12.

Before the PSPO is made, the Council has to publish the proposed order under
Section 72 of the 2014 Act. The Council must also publish the PSPO on its
website once made under AntiSocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
(Publication of Public Spaces Protection Orders) Regulations 2014 (the 2014
Regulations).

13.

Under Section 72 of the 2014 Act before making a PSPO, the Council must
consult with a number of public bodies and local representatives. The Borough
Commander and Transport for London along with the Kennel Club were
therefore consulted on the proposed PSPO.

14.

While there is no duty to advertise in the local newspapers, the DEFRA guidance
states that it is good practice to publish a notice in a local newspaper about a
proposed PSPO in appropriate cases. The Committee directed that officers
publish notices of the Council's intention to make a PSPO and notice was duly
published in the Local Guardian newspaper on 21 May 2015 and ran for 14 days.

15.

At the same time, the proposed PSPO and notice was published on the Council’s
website, posted on notice boards in all the RBK libraries, parks notice boards
(within the pilot area) and Housing Estates.

16.

There have been no representations or remarks received regarding the public
places listed in the draft order as a result of the consultation.

Timescale
17.

If the Committee resolve to make the PSPO in the form annexed to this report it
will come into force once executed by the Council. It is intended that FPNs will be
issued as part of the enforcement pilot for any breach of the PSPO once it has
been made subject to satisfying the requirement in the 2014 Regulations to

I4
publish the Order as made on the website and to erect on, or adjacent to, the
public place to which the order relates such notices as considered sufficient to
draw the attention of any members of the public using that place to the PSPO;
and its effect.
Penalties for breaching the PSPO
18.

It is an offence under Section 67 of the 2014 Act without reasonable excuse to
fail to comply with any requirement imposed by a PSPO. A person convicted of
such offence may be fined up to Level 3 of the Standard Scale (currently £1,000)
and ordered to pay costs. A police constable, or an authorised person may
enforce an offence by initially issuing an FPN giving the recipient the opportunity
to pay the fixed penalty to discharge his/her liability to conviction of the offence.

19.

Under Section 68 of the 2014 Act it is for the Council to determine the amount of
the fixed penalty payable under the FPN up to a maximum of £100. This report
recommends that the Fixed Penalty is set at the maximum of £100 but is reduced
to £60 if it paid in 10 days of the FPN.

20.

If agreed at this meeting the arrangements in Paragraph 19 above would also
apply to any other PSPOs made by the Borough (including any DPPO
“converted” to a PSPO after 20 October 2017) and to any breaches of CPNs in
those cases where the offender is given the opportunity of avoiding liability to
prosecution for breaching of the PSPO or CPN by paying a fixed penalty under
FPN.


Resource Implications
21.

Modest expenditure on consultation to date, including the notice published in the
Local Guardian and the required signage, will be met from within existing
budgets.

Legal Implications
22.

The power to make a PSPO is contained in Section 59 of the 2014 Act and is
supplemented by guidance issued by the Secretary of State and Regulations.
The requirements for the making of a PSPO are set out in the body of the report.

23.

Under Section 66 of the 2014 Act any challenge to the validity of a PSPO must
be made in the High Court by an interested person within six weeks of it being
made. An interested person is an individual who lives in, or regularly works in, or
visits the restricted area. This means that only those who are directly affected by
the restrictions have the power to challenge. The validity of a PSPO can be
challenged on two grounds only: 

24.

1.

that the Council did not have power to make the order, or to include
particular prohibitions or requirements imposed

2.

that the procedural requirements for making the PSPO (for instance,
consultation) were not complied with.
On any application to the High Court challenging the validity of a PSPO the Court
may suspend the operation of the Order or any of the prohibitions or
requirements imposed by it until the final determination of the proceedings. If the
Court is satisfied the Council did not have the power to make the PSPO, or it did
but the Council failed to comply with the procedural requirements and, the
applicant has been substantially prejudiced by that failure, it may quash the
Order or any of the prohibitions or requirements imposed by it.

25.

26.

I5
The 2014 Act enables the Council to determine the amount of an FPN up to a
maximum of £100 and to fix the amount of any reduced penalty for early
payment (in “less than 14 days”).
In deciding whether to make a PSPO and, if so, what should be included in it,
under Section 72 of the 2014 Act the Council must have particular regard to the
rights of freedom of expression and freedom of assembly set out in Articles 10
and 11 of the Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental
Freedoms (“the Convention”). The restrictions which will be made if the
proposed PSPO is made do not engage these Articles and are considered
compatible with rights under the Convention.

Risk Assessment
27.

The risk of challenge to the PSPO is considered low and acceptable given the
Council’s express powers under Section 59 of the 2014 Act, provided the
procedural requirements are followed.

Equalities Impact Assessment
28.

In preparing this report officers have had regard to the Council’s public sector
equality duty under the Equalities Act 2010. The specific needs of people with
disabilities are catered for in the text of the draft Order.

Environmental Implications
29.

The impact on the local environment will be positive.

Background papers 
 None
Authors of report

MarieClaire Edwards, 
Service Manager Green Spaces, Carbon Reduction and
Sustainability, 
marieclaire.edwards@kingston.gov.uk

Extn 5372
Marion Todd, Relationship Manager, Safer Kinsgton Partnership,
Marion.Todd@Kingston.gov.uk

I6

ANNEX 1
Draft Public Spaces Public Protection Order
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES PUBLIC SPACES
PROTECTION ORDER (DOG FOULING) ORDER 2015
The Council of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (in this Order called “the
Council”) hereby makes the following Order pursuant to Section 59 of the Antisocial
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”).
1.

This Order may be cited as the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Public Spaces Protection Order (Dog Fouling) Order 2015 and shall come into
force on 2
nd July 2015

2.

This Order applies to the land described in the Schedule below being a public
place in the area of the Council, identified for the purposes of Section 59(4) of
the Act, and in this Order referred to as the “restricted area”.

The Requirement
3.

(1) If a dog defecates at any time in the restricted area the person who is in
charge of the dog at that time shall remove the faeces from the restricted area
forthwith, (“the Requirement”) unless the owner, occupier or other person or
authority having control of the restricted area has consented (generally or
specifically) to his failing to do so.
(2) Nothing in this Article applies to a person who—
(a) is registered as a blind person in a register compiled under Section 29
of the National Assistance Act 1948; or
(b) has a disability which affects his mobility, manual dexterity, physical
coordination or ability to lift, carry or otherwise move everyday objects,
in respect of a dog trained by a prescribed charity and upon which he
relies for assistance.
(3) For the purposes of this article—
(a) a person who habitually has a dog in his possession shall be taken to
be in charge of the dog at any time unless at that time some other
person is in charge of the dog;
(b) placing the faeces in a receptacle on the restricted area which is

I7

provided for the purpose, or for the disposal of waste, shall be a
sufficient removal from the restricted area;
(c) being unaware of the defecation (whether by reason of not being in the
vicinity or otherwise), or not having a device for or other suitable
means of removing the faeces shall not be a reasonable excuse for
failing to remove the faeces;
(d) in this Article "prescribed charity" means—
(i) Dogs for the Disabled (registered charity number 700454);
(ii) Support Dogs Ltd (registered charity number 1088281);
(iii) Canine Partners for Independence (registered charity number
803680).
Duration
4.

This Order shall remain in force for a period of three years unless extended
under Section 60 of the Act.
Schedule
LAND DESIGNATED BY DESCRIPTION
Part I

1)

Footpaths over which the public have a right of way and flower beds, planted
or grassed areas maintained by the Council, which adjoin such footpaths.

2)

Footways and verges (which for the avoidance of doubt includes unmade up
areas at the base of trees) adjoining cycle tracks or carriageways.

3)

Flower beds, planted or grassed areas maintained by the Council, which
adjoin footways, cycle tracks or carriageways.

4)

Forecourts adjoining footways except those which are separated from the
footway by a physical barrier.
Part II

The publicly accessible land situated at the following properties, forming part of the
Council’s Housing stock, (which, for the avoidance of doubt, includes grassed areas,
flower beds, planted areas, verges, the areas around the base of trees and access
roads, paths and car parks): 

I8

South of the Borough Neighbourhood
334, Ewell Road, Surbiton
Diana Gardens, Baden Powell Close, Tolworth
Kent Way, Tolworth
Chaffinch Close, Hook Rise North, Tolworth
The Forge, Elm Road, Hook
Gosbury Hill, Coutts Avenue, Chessington
Frimley Road/ Holwood, Chessington
Frimley Road/ Station Road, Chessington
Moor Lane, Chessington
Coxwold Path (Sheltered Flats), Chessington
Gibson Close/ Tedder Close, Chessington
5965, 6773, Bridge Road Flats, Chessington
Frimley Passage/ Hook Road, Chessington
Green Lane, Chessington
3344, Buckland Road, Chessington
Church Lane, Chessington
Cox Lane, Chessington
Peartree Close (Housing Estate) Chessington
Woodgate Stormont Road, Chessington
Ripon Gardens, Chessington
Woodgate Avenue, Chessington
Charles Lesser House, Chessington
Hartfield Road, Chessington
York Way, Chessington
Willcocks Close, Hook
The Causeway, Chessington
York Way, (open land), Chessington
Four Oaks, Mount Road Chessington
Stormant/Hereford Way, Chessington (rear access roads)
Woodview, Chessington (rear trades access points)

Kingston Town Neighbourhood
2 Springfield Road, Kingston.
Penrhyn Gardens, Penrhyn Road, Kingston.
St Johns Court, Beaufort Road, Kingston.
Kingston House, Surbiton Road, Kingston.
Hatton House, Meredith Court, Kingston
Park Road House, Kingston.
7999 Park Rd, Kingston.
Tapping Close, Kingston.
28 & 9136 New Road, Kingston.
Tudor Court, Kingston,

I9

280286 Kings Road, Kingston.
4662 St Georges Road, Kingston.
4763 St Georges Road, Kingston.
Dowler Court, Kingston.
Dale Court Estate, Kingston
5464a Deacon Road, Kingston.
Mcdonald House, Kingston.
153175 Richmond Park Road, Kingston.
Ernest Square, Kingston
Roseberry Square, Kingston
Lovekyn Close, London Road,
Kingston
Drovers Court, Fairfield East Cattle Market
34 Millfield, 3 Mill Place, Kingston.
Greenleas, Kingston.
Agar House, Denmark Road, Kingston
Bittoms Court, 2935 The Bittoms, Kingston.
Attfield Court, 19 Albert Road, Kingston.
119125 Maple Road, Surbiton
Ravens Court, Palace Road, Kingston.
616 Auckland Road, Kingston.
Athelstan House, Athelstan Road, Kingston.
Cambridge Gardens, Kingston.
Milestone House, Kingston.
Waights Court, Onslow House, Acre Road, Kingston
Denmark Road, Kingston
Heron Court, Kingston
Fairfield Place, Kingston.
6067,Dawson Road, Kingston.
Hugh Herland, Portland Road, Kingston.
Cambridge Road, Kingston.
Elm Road/Acre Road, Kingston.
Roupell House, Kingston
Haylett Gardens, Kingston (Housing Estate)
105 Elm Road, Kingston
Douglas Road Sub Station, Kingston
Norbiton Estate, Kingston
East Road Kingston
Avenue Road, Kingston (car park area)
Gladston Road, Kingston (car park area)
Canbury Court, Lower Ham Road, Kingston.
Sopwith Close, Kingston.
6, Cadogan Road, Kingston
11, Cadogan Road, Kingston

I10

Maldens & Coombe Neighbourhood
Georgia Road, Kingston
120 Fairholme House, New Malden.
115 Marshall House, New Malden.
14 Gilpin House, New Malden.
138 Merryweather Court, New Malden
Roebuck Court, New Malden.
Kinton Lodge, 20 Presbury Road, New Malden.
140 Maple Court, New Malden.
3569 Coombe Road New Malden.
128 Rowan Close, New Malden.
Martin House, New Malden.
Norton House, New Malden
Charnwood Close, New Malden
Vincent House, Burlington Road New Malden
Balgowan Close, Kingston Road, New Malden.
Fairmead Close, New Malden.
6587 Potters Grove, New Malden
8183 Windsor Avenue, New Malden.
Bazalgette Gardens, New Malden
90102 Cambridge Road, New Malden
6276 Potters Grove, New Malden
122128 Mount Pleasant Road
Gooding Close, Green Lane, New Malden
Franks Avenue, New Malden
Abermarle Gardens, New Malden,
Wessex Close Estate, Gloucester Road,Kingston.
Kingston Vale, Kingston.
Keswick Avenue, Kingston Vale SW15.
Sherwood House, Robin Hood Way, SW15
Cumberland House, Kingston.
Kingsnympton Park Estate, Kingston.
33 Gloucester Road, Kingston
South Lane Estate, New Malden
Sheephouse Way Estate, New Malden
Woodfield House, Oakfield Close, New Malden
Primrose Court, Worcester Park
Church Road, Pembury Avenue, Worcester Park
School Passage, Off College Gardens New Malden
157171 South Lane, New Malden

I11

Surbiton Neighbourhood
Glenbuck Court, Glenbuck Road, Surbiton
Thomas Pooley Court, Langley Road, Surbiton
87 Ewell Road, Surbiton
Browns Road, Surbiton
Vine Close, Surbiton
Alfriston Estate, Surbiton
Warwick Lodge, Berrylands Road, Surbiton
Flat 6, 3 Parklands, Surbiton
Alpha Road Estate, Surbiton
19 Avenue Elmers, Surbiton
Brine Court, Maple Road, Surbiton
School Lane Estate, Tolworth
Marion Court, Red Lion, Tolworth
Edith Gardens, Surbiton
449479 Ewell Road, Tolworth
Ravenscar Road, Tolworth
Addison Gardens, Surbiton

LAND DESIGNATED SPECIFICALLY
The following parks/pleasure grounds and open spaces except for any areas which
are from time to time provided by the Council as dog toilets and identified as such by
signs: 
South of the Borough 
Neighbourhood
Bonesgate Open Space
Bullwhips Open Space
Castle Hill
Chessington Hill Park
Churchfields Recreation Ground
Donald Wood Gardens
Jubilee Wood Local Nature Reserve
King Edward's Recreation Ground
King George's Recreation Ground
Lenelby Road Open Space
Mount Road Open Space
Pear Tree Close Playground

I12

RAF Chessington Playground
Sir Francis Barker Recreation Ground
Stokesby Road Open Space
Tolworth Court Farm Fields
Woodgate Avenue Playground
Woodview
Kingston 
Neighbourhood
Athelstan Recreation Ground
Barnfield Open Space
Canbury Gardens
Dysart Open Space
Eagle Brewery Wharf
Elm Road Recreation Ground
Fairfield Recreation Ground
Kingfisher Playground
Latchmere Recreation Ground
Queens Promenade
Royal Park Gate Playground
War Memorial Gardens
New Malden 
Neighbourhood
Barton Green
Beverley Park
Blagdon Road Open Space
Coombe Wood
Cromwell Avenue
Dickerage Recreation Ground
England Way Playground
Hogsmill Open Space
Green Lane Recreation Ground
Kingston Road Recreation Ground
Malden Green
Manor Park Recreation Ground
Plough Green
Risborough Green
The Hollows
Layfield
Surbiton 
Neighbourhood
Alexandra Recreation Ground
Claremont Gardens
Elmbridge Avenue Open Space
Knollmead
Berrylands Park
Fishponds Park

I13

Rose Walk
St Andrews Square
Southwood Drive Open Space
Surbiton Memorial Gardens
The Wood
Victoria Recreation Ground

THE COMMON SEAL OF THE MAYOR AND
BURGESSES OF THE ROYAL BOROUGH
OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES was
hereunto affixed this
day of July 2015
in the presence of:

Mayor

Corporate Solicitor

Policy and Finance Committee

J1

Appendix J

2 July 2015
Kingston Town Centre Management Board  Appointment
Report by the Head of Corporate Governance
Purpose
To consider the appointment of a representative to sit on the Kingston Town Centre
Management Board.
The Committee is asked to
consider the appointment of an elected Member to serve on the Kingston Town Centre
Management Board for the period to the end of the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

Key Points
A.

The Committee is asked to consider the appointment of an elected Member to fill
the vacancy on the Kingston Town Centre (Kingston First) Management Board
arising as a consequence of the death of Councillor Chrissie Hitchcock. The
Council has two representatives on the Board, the other being Councillor Hugh
Scantlebury. The appointment would run to the end of the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

Background papers  
None
Author of report  
Gary Marson, Democratic Support Team Leader,
gary.marson@
kingston.gov.uk/Tel
0208 547 5021

K1

Appendix K

Policy and Finance Committee
2 July 2015
Report title
Appointments to Member Working Groups
Report by Head of Corporate Governance
Purpose
To consider appointments to internal Member Working Groups for the 2015/16 Municipal
Year.
To RESOLVE that the appointments to the Member Working Groups at Annex 1 be approved for the 2015/16
Municipal Year to

Key Points
A.

B.

The Committee is asked to consider appointments for the 2015/16 Municipal Year
to the following Working Groups or other informal bodies to which Members are
appointed which deal with matters within the remit of this Committee, namely;
•

The Small to Medium Sized Businesses Working Group (3 Members)

•

The Armed Forces Community Covenant Working Group (2 Members)

•

Derek Osbourne Inquiry Member Group (4 Members)

•

ICT Shared Service Member Working Board (3 Members)

Details of the terms of reference and the nominees for each vacancy are set out at
Annex 1. (Liberal Democrat Group nominations to follow). The appointments do not
need to be strictly politically proportionate but should broadly reflect the political
balance of the Council.

Background papers – held by author of report – Gary Marson, Team Leader
Democratic Support, Tel; 0208 547 5021
None

K2

ANNEX 1
APPOINTMENTS TO INTERNAL BODIES

ARMED FORCES COMMUNITY COVENANT WORKING GROUP
2 vacancies to be
2014/15 membership
filled. A suggested
Group ratio is set out Cllrs John Ayles and Ken Smith
below
CON Cllr Ken Smith
LD
TBC
Remit; to examine means by which the Council can recognise the contribution of the
armed forces community and give tangible effect to its commitments under the Armed
Forces Covenant.

MEMBER OFFICER SMALL TO MEDIUM SIZED BUSINESSES WORKING GROUP
6 vacancies to be filled. A suggested
Group ratio is set out below
CON

Cllr Gaj Wallooppillai

CON

Cllr Chris Hayes

CON

Cllr Andy Johnson

LD

TBC

LD

TBC

2014/15 membership
Cllrs Gaj Wallooppillai, Chris Hayes,
Andy Johnson, Bill Brisbane, Hilary
Gander, Linsey Cottington

LD/LAB Cllr Linsey Cottington
The Lead Officer, Business Community
Chair to be elected by the WG
Remit: The focus of the group will be ‘small businesses’ in the secondary shopping areas,
independent retailers, social enterprises and sole traders with a focus on old and young
entrepreneurs and start‐ups. Retail businesses in the BID area of the town centre will be out of
scope.
The business sector focus of the group will be: Professional consultancies, Retail independents,
Hospitality and tourism, Knowledge and innovation companies, Creative industries, Service
providers
The group will be responsible for governance of the Business Community Strategy Action Plan
identify priorities for business support and seek external cooperation and partnership in delivering
it. The group will monitor and seek to influence Council policies to ensure they do not
unintentionally harm local business development. The group will contribute to the Council’s overall
business strategy and will advise on areas of the strategy relating to SMEs.

K3
DEREK OSBOURNE INQUIRY WORKING GROUP
4 vacancies to be filled on the
2014/15 membership
ratio below. None of the
Members shall have served on Cllrs Phil Doyle, Roy Arora, Diane White and
Linsey Cottington
the Council during Derek
Osbourne’s period in Office

CON
CON
LD
LAB

Cllr Cathy Roberts
Cllr Phil Doyle
TBC
Cllr Linsey Cottington

ICT SHARED SERVICE MEMBER BOARD
3 vacancies to be filled. A
suggested Group ratio is set out 2014/15 membership
Cllrs Richard Hudson, Gaj Wallooppillai and
below
Stephen Brister
CON Cllr Richard Hudson
(Three LB Sutton Members also sit on the Board)
CON Cllr Gaj Wallooppillai
LD
TBC
Remit;
i) To oversee the implementation of the ICT Shared Service through:
•

regular progress reports from the ICT Shared Services Management board

•

service performance monitoring reports

•

agreeing key strategic direction & associated activities

•

agreeing future revenue & capital investment

•

monitoring the progress of the Shared Service including ensuring savings targets
and planned benefits are realised

•

regular reports on the risks being managed on an exception basis

ii) As stakeholders, provide feedback regarding current arrangements for ICT services &
areas for improvement
iii) Acting as final arbiter where there is a conflict in direction or priority

Policy and Finance Committee

L1

Appendix L

2 July 2015
Urgent Action taken under Standing Order 32 (ref: 01/15-16) : Temporary Learning
Village – North Kingston Centre
Information item by the Head of Corporate Governance
Key Points
1.

Under Standing Order 32, the procedure for urgent action to be taken in between
committee meetings, it is required that an information item to the relevant
committee is provided at the next meeting of the relevant committee. The urgent
action below relates to three committees to which it will be reported as an
information item.

2.

Set out below are details of urgent action which the Director of Children’s Services,
the Director of Finance and the Capability Lead, Commissioning, are proposing to
take, in consultation with Councillors Andrea Craig, Eric Humphrey and Richard
Hudson (respectively Chairs of the Children, Youth & Leisure Committee, Policy &
Finance Committee and Infrastructure, Projects and Contracts Committee) under
the Standing Order 32 procedure

3.

The action to be taken is as follows:
i.

The procurement of temporary accommodation through the Crown
Commercial Service Framework to enable the opening of the proposed
Academy on the North Kingston Centre site for Year 7 Pupils from
September 2015;

ii.

The waiver of Contract Standing Orders 3 and 11 in order to facilitate 1)

iii.

The utilisation of either unallocated Section 106 contributions for education
projects, resources already earmarked within the capital programme for
school expansion or other capital funding sources in order to meet the cost
of the expenditure, estimated at £600,000; and

iv.

In the event that it proves necessary to meet the costs from within the capital
programme for school expansion, any consequential changes as may be
required to the financing of projects within the programme

4.

The reason for urgency is that a decision is required prior to the next relevant
Committee meetings because of the need to place orders with the relevant
suppliers as soon as possible in order to meet the requirement for the
accommodation to be fully operational by September 2015.

5.

Further detailed background information is provided below/ overleaf.

Background
6.

An Academy, sponsored by the Kingston Education Trust (KET), is due to
open on the North Kingston Centre site in September 2015.

L2
H2

7.

Due to factors entirely beyond the Council's control, neither the Education
Funding Agency (EFA), nor the KET, has been able to procure works
packages, either to refurbish the existing buildings on site, or to develop new
accommodation, in order to ensure the opening of the Academy for Year 7
Pupils, from September 2015.

8.

The Local Authority has a duty under Section 14 (1) of the Education Act
1996 to ensure that there are sufficient primary and secondary school places
available within the Borough to meet local demand. Because of this, the
Council intends to procure temporary accommodation to ensure that the
Academy is able to open for Year 7 pupils in September 2015 as planned.

Urgency
9.

As at the week commencing 1 June 2015, there are approximately 12 weeks
available to the Council to undertake the necessary procurement, delivery
and fit out of the accommodation. We also know that the market for supplying
temporary accommodation to schools also tends to peak at this time of year
to coincide with the school summer holidays. On this basis, it is deemed
essential to place orders, either in week commencing 1st June or early in
week commencing 8 June.

Procurement
10.

The procurement of the temporary accommodation will be undertaken via the
Crown Commercial Service (CCS) Framework. This Framework is hosted by
the CCS, which is an executive agency of the Cabinet Office, and is available
to all Local Authorities. The Framework is fully compliant with both the EU
Procurement Directives and the Council's Contract Standing Orders. The
Council has also used the CCS Framework successfully on several previous
occasions.

Costs / Funding
11.

A draft budget and schedule of expected costs has been reported to the
relevant Chairs of Committees.

12.

The revenue funding for the procurement of the temporary accommodation
and all other associated fees and costs will be met by the Council. It has
been agreed by the Director of Finance that these costs will be met either
from unallocated Section 106 contributions for education projects, or by
utilising resources already earmarked within the capital programme for school
expansion. The latter option would require some changes to financing of
capital projects within the wider programme to reflect that this commitment
will be a revenue rather than a capital expense. This project would be
alternatively resourced from other capital funding sources. The former is the
preferred method but subject to further scrutiny of conditions attached to the
S106 funding.

L3
H3

Background Papers held by Gary Marson, Democratic Support Team Leader,
gary.marson@kingston. gov.uk /tel 0208 547
Standing Order 32 form

